
Page 1 of 3 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Be Courteous - TURN OFF your cell phones and pagers while the meeting is in session. 

6:00 P.M. – REGULAR MEETING 

RECONVENE, CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
ROLL CALL (Hundley, Cook, Agrimonti, Edwards, Gallian) 
REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 

1. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC

At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the agenda.  It is recommended 
that you keep your comments to three minutes or less.  Under State Law, matters presented under this item 
cannot be discussed or acted upon by the City Council at this time.  For items appearing on the agenda, the 
public will be invited to make comments at the time the item comes up for Council consideration.  Upon being 
acknowledged by the Mayor, please step to the podium and speak into the microphone.  Begin by stating and 
spelling your name. 

2. MEETING DEDICATIONS

3. PRESENTATIONS

Item 3A: Presentation by Senior High School Student Bella Fanucchi on a Proposed 
Recreation Website - Requested by Mayor Pro Tem Agrimonti (City Clerk) 

Item 3B: Proclamation Declaring October Domestic Awareness Month in City of Sonoma 
(City Clerk) 

Item 3C: Presentation Giving an Update on the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act 
(SGMA) and Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) Governance Formation 
(Public Works Director) 

Item 3D: Presentation of the 2016 Pavement Management System Update (Public Works 
Director) 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE SONOMA CITY COUNCIL 
& 

CONCURRENT REGULAR MEETING OF SONOMA CITY COUNCIL AS THE 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE DISSOLVED SONOMA COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

Community Meeting Room, 177 First Street West, Sonoma CA 

Monday, October 17, 2016 
6:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 

**** 

AGENDA 

City Council 
Laurie Gallian, Mayor 

Madolyn Agrimonti, MPT 
David Cook, 

Gary Edwards 
Rachel Hundley 



Page 2 of 3 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR/AGENDA ORDER – CITY COUNCIL

All items listed on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be acted upon by a single motion. 
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Council, staff, or public request 
specific items to be removed for separate action.  At this time Council may decide to change the order of the 
agenda. 

Item 4A: Waive further reading and Authorize Introduction and/or Adoption of Ordinances 
by Title Only.  (Standard procedural action - no backup information provided) 

Item 4B: Adopt a Resolution Denying an Appeal of the Design Review and Historic 
Preservation Commission’s Decision to Approve an Application for Design 
Review of two Commercial Buildings and a Trash Enclosure at 19366 and 19370 
Sonoma Highway (Planning Director) 
Staff Recommendation:  Adopt the attached Resolution upholding the decision of the 
Design Review and Historic Preservation Commission. 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR/AGENDA ORDER – CITY COUNCIL AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY

All items listed on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be acted upon by a single motion. 
There will be no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Council, staff, or public request 
specific items to be removed for separate action.  At this time Council may decide to change the order of the 
agenda. 

6. PUBLIC HEARING

Item 6A:    Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action on Proposed Steps to Review and 
Implement a Safe Parking Program on the Police Station Property, Including 
Introduction and First Reading of an Ordinance amending section 7.20.010 of the 
Municipal Code 
Staff Recommendation: Introduce and conduct first reading of the attached ordinance 
amending SMC section 7.20.010. 

Item 6B: Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action on the First Reading and Adoption 
of an Interim Moratorium Ordinance on the Approvals for Vacation Rentals 
(Planning Director) 
Staff Recommendation: Conduct first reading and adopt the ordinance placing a 
moratorium on vacation rentals in the City of Sonoma.  

7. REGULAR CALENDAR – CITY COUNCIL

(Matters requiring discussion and/or action by the City Council) 

Item 7A: Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action to Approve Extension of the 
Refuse Contract to Sonoma Garbage Collectors through May 2027 (City Manager) 
Staff Recommendation: Approve the extension through May 2027 and direct the City 
Attorney to present a franchise extension agreement for action at the next regular 
Council meeting. 

Item 7B: Introduction and First Reading of an Ordinance Repealing Chapter 14.10 of the 
Sonoma Municipal Code and Reenacting a New Chapter 14.10 Adopting and 
Amending New Construction Codes (Community Services Director/Building 
Official and Fire Marshall) 

Staff Recommendation: (1) Discuss any initial questions regarding the proposed local 
amendments or the adoption of the California codes. (2) Publicly read the title of the 



Page 3 of 3 

proposed ordinance and schedule a public hearing to hear the matter and possibly adopt 
the ordinance on November 7, 2016. (3) Direct the City Clerk to prepare a summary and 
carry out the special noticing procedures as required by the Government Code. 

Item 7C: Introduction and First Reading of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 14.24 (Review, 
Rehabilitation and Abatement of Existing Seismically Unsafe Buildings) of the 
Sonoma Municipal Code (Community Services Director/Building Official) 
Staff Recommendation:  Introduce the amending ordinance by title “An Ordinance of the 
City of Sonoma Amending Chapter 14.24 (Review, Rehabilitation and Abatement of 
Existing Seismically Unsafe Buildings) of the Sonoma Municipal Code”. 

Item 7D: Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action to (1) Accept the First Quarter 
Progress Report on the 2016-17 City Council Goals and (2) Provide Direction on 
Climate Action 2020 Target Goals (City Manager) 
Staff Recommendation: Receive status report on Council GOALS; provide possible 
direction to staff on Climate 2020 target goals. 

8. REGULAR CALENDAR – CITY COUNCIL AS THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY

(Matters requiring discussion and/or action by the Council as the Successor Agency) 

9. COUNCILMEMBERS’ REPORTS AND COMMENTS

10. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS INCLUDING ANNOUNCEMENTS
FROM SUCCESSOR AGENCY STAFF

11. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC

At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the agenda 

12. ADJOURNMENT

I do hereby certify that a copy of the foregoing agenda was posted on the City Hall bulletin board on 
October 13, 2016.   Rebekah Barr, MMC, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 

Copies of all staff reports and documents subject to disclosure that relate to any item of business referred 
to on the agenda are normally available for public inspection the Wednesday before each regularly 
scheduled meeting at City Hall, located at No. 1 The Plaza, Sonoma CA.  Any documents subject to 
disclosure that are provided to all, or a majority of all, of the members of the City Council regarding any 
item on this agenda after the agenda has been distributed will be made available for inspection at the City 
Clerk’s office, No. 1 The Plaza, Sonoma CA during regular business hours. 

If you challenge the action of the City Council in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues 
you or someone else raised at the public hearing described on the agenda, or in written correspondence 
delivered to the City Clerk, at or prior to the public hearing. 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in 
this meeting, please contact the City Clerk (707) 933-2216. Notification 48-hours before the meeting will 
enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.  



City of Sonoma 

City Council

Agenda Item Summary 

City Council Agenda Item: 

Meeting Date:

3B 

10/17/16 

Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact 

 Rebekah Barr, MMC, City Clerk/Executive Assistant 

Agenda Item Title 

Proclamation Proclaiming the Month of October 2016 as “Domestic Violence Awareness Month” in 
the City of Sonoma   

Summary 

Alison Dunbar, YWCA requested this proclamation to proclaim October, 2016 as “Domestic Violence 
Awareness Month” in the City of Sonoma. Madeleine O’Connell, CEO, YWCA, will be present at that 
meeting to accept the proclamation 

In keeping with City practice, the proclamation recipient has been asked to keep the total length of 
their follow-up comments and/or announcements to not more than 10 minutes. 

Recommended Council Action 

Mayor Gallian to present the proclamation. 

Alternative Actions 

Council discretion 

Financial Impact 

N.A. 

Environmental Review Status 

  Environmental Impact Report   Approved/Certified 
  Negative Declaration   No Action Required 
  Exempt   Action Requested 
  Not Applicable 

Attachments: 

1. Proclamation

Alignment with Council Goals: 

Not applicable. 

cc: 

1



2



City of Sonoma 
City Council

Agenda Item Summary 

City Council Agenda Item: 

Meeting Date:

3C 

10/17/2016 

Department 

Public Works 

Staff Contact 

Dan Takasugi, Public Works Director / City Engineer 

Agenda Item Title 

Presentation Giving an Update on the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) and 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) Governance Formation 

Summary 

The Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) was passed by the California Legislature in 
August 2014 and went into effect on January 1, 2015.  The Act requires Groundwater Sustainability 
Agencies (GSA) to be formed at the local level with the intent for them to sustainably manage 
groundwater by eliminating overdraft of the groundwater basins and bringing use and recharge into 
balance. 

The SGMA legislation requires local agencies to form GSA’s by July 1, 2017.  Several GSA-eligible 
agencies have been meeting for over a year to form one GSA in the Sonoma Valley, upon which the 
City would have one seat on the 6-member governing board.  The Council was presented and 
concurred with Principles for Developing Governance Options in October 2015, which have served as 
a staff guide for the GSA governance formation.  The purpose of this presentation is to give the Council 
and the public an update on where the GSA-formation discussions stand, as the July 1, 2017 deadline 
approaches. 

Recommended Council Action 

Receive the presentation. 

Alternative Actions 

Council discretion. 

Financial Impact 

Continued City participation in the Sonoma Valley GSA formation and subsequent Groundwater 
Sustainability Plan will consume significant staff time, and potentially Water Fund obligations of 
uncertain amounts in transition years.  In future steady state operation, the GSA should be self-funding 
through fee revenues and assessments. 

Environmental Review Status 

  Environmental Impact Report   Approved/Certified 
  Negative Declaration   No Action Required 

3



  Exempt   Action Requested 
  Not Applicable 

Attachments: 

    None. 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Alignment with Council Goals: 

Indirectly supports the Council’s Water goal to develop long-term strategies to address the 
environmental and financial impacts of drought. 

cc: 

4



City of Sonoma 
City Council

Agenda Item Summary 

City Council Agenda Item: 

Meeting Date:

3D 

10/17/2016 

Department 

Public Works 

Staff Contact 

Dan Takasugi, Public Works Director / City Engineer 

Agenda Item Title 

Presentation of the 2016 Pavement Management System Update 

Summary 

The biennial update the City of Sonoma’s pavement management program was recently completed 

and certified under the Pavement Management Technical Assistance Grant Program (P‐TAP).  The 
City’s Pavement Condition Index (PCI) stands at a score of 75 out of 100. 

This presentation will look at the Pavement Management System update’s budget scenarios and 
their effect on PCI. 

The five year budget scenarios that were analyzed are as follows: 
1. No Annual Funding.  PCI decreases to PCI 67 in 2020.
2. $500K Annual Funding.  PCI decreases to PCI 72 in 2020.
3. $900K Annual Funding.  PCI stays constant at PCI 75 in 2020.
4. $1.6M Annual Funding.  PCI increases to PCI 80 in 2020.
5. $2.2M Annual Funding.  PCI increases to PCI 84 in 2020.

Recommended Council Action 

Receive the presentation. 

Alternative Actions 

N/A 

Financial Impact 

The Pavement Management System update will provide the City with detailed information to make 
the best financial decisions on maintaining City streets. 

Environmental Review Status 

  Environmental Impact Report   Approved/Certified 
  Negative Declaration   No Action Required 
  Exempt   Action Requested 
  Not Applicable 

5



Attachments: 

    None. 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Alignment with Council Goals: 

Supports the Council’s Infrastructure goal of providing reliable, safe, and effective streets and roads 
throughout the City and maintaining a high level of service and reliability of City facilities. 

cc: 

6



City of Sonoma 
City Council
Agenda Item Summary

City Council Agenda Item: 

Meeting Date:

4B 

10/17/16 

Department 
Planning and Community Services

Staff Contact 
David Goodison, Planning Director 

Agenda Item Title 
Resolution denying an appeal of the Design Review and Historic Preservation Commission’s 
decision to approve an application for design review of two commercial buildings and a trash 
enclosure at 19366 and 19370 Sonoma Highway. 

Summary 
On July 14, 2005, the Planning Commission approved a Planned Development Permit and Use 
Permit for a mixed-use development at 19370 Sonoma Highway, now known as Villas de Lunas. 
The approved project consisted of two commercial buildings placed toward Sonoma Highway with 
±6,936 square feet of gross commercial floor area, eight attached townhomes in the middle of the 
site, and seven single-family homes to the east. Construction of the residential elements of the 
project began in 2006. The public improvements, residential buildings, and associated landscaping 
were substantially completed, as was a portion of the parking lot associated with the commercial 
component. However, the property fell into foreclosure and construction was halted prior to final 
building permit sign off. In 2012, the project was acquired by Kibby Road, LLC, which proceeded to 
bring the residential portion of the project to completion.  

Following the completion and sale of the residential units, Kibby Road turned their attention to the 
commercial portion of the development. On May 31, 2016, the Design Review and Historic 
Preservation Commission (DRHPC) considered an application for design review of two commercial 
buildings, consistent with the 2005 approval, and an associated landscape plan. The initial design 
concept was not accepted by the DRHPC and the Commission also wanted the applicant to 
consider modifications to the landscaping plan to respond to neighbor requests for improved 
screening between the commercial parking lot and adjoining townhomes. In response to the 
feedback received from the DRHPC, the applicant worked to modify the building designs and the 
landscaping plan, including consultations with interested neighbors.  

A revised proposal was developed and considered by the DRHPC at a public meeting held on 
August 16, 2016. The revised design review submittal addressed the architectural detailing, colors, 
and materials of two 2-story commercial buildings with a combined 5,969 square feet of gross floor 
area, a reduction of 967 square feet relative to the maximum allowed by the 2005 Use Permit. The 
design employs a Mission-style architecture with stucco siding, double-hung windows, and a clay tile 
roof. The DRHPC voted 5-0 to approve the building design and the design of the trash enclosure, 
subject to the condition that the trash enclosure incorporate a solid fence. On August 30, 2016, a 
number of residents of Villas de Luna filed an appeal of the DRHPC’s decision. This appeal was 
heard by the City Council at a public hearing held on October 3, 2016, at which time the Council 
voted 5-0 to direct staff to prepare a Resolution denying the appeal. 

Recommended Council Action 
1. Adopt the attached Resolution upholding the decision of the Design Review and Historic

Preservation Commission.
Alternative Actions 

N.A. 

Financial Impact 
N.A. 

7



Environmental Review Status 
  Environmental Impact Report   Approved/Certified 
  Negative Declaration   No Action Required 
  Exempt   Action Requested 
  Not Applicable 

Alignment with Council Goals 
N.A. 

Compliance with Climate Action 2020 Target Goals: 
N.A. 

Attachments: 
1. Draft Resolution

cc: Joan Jennings (via email) 
Alicia Hansel, Kibby Road (via email) 

8



CITY OF SONOMA 
RESOLUTION NO. XX 

A RESOLUTION OF THE SONOMA CITY COUNCIL DENYING THE APPEAL OF JOAN 
JENNINGS AND OTHER RESIDENTS OF VILLAS DE LUNA, THEREBY UPHOLDING THE 
DECISION OF THE DESIGN REVIEW AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION TO 

APPROVE THE ARCHITECTURAL DETAILS, COLORS, AND MATERIALS OF TWO 
COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS AT 19366 AND 19370 SONOMA HIGHWAY  

WHEREAS, Studio 101 Designs and Kibby Road, LLC filed a Design Review application 
addressing the architectural details, colors, and materials of two commercial buildings proposed 
for a site located at 19366 and 19370 Sonoma Highway; and, 

WHEREAS, the Design Review application also addressed the design of a trash 
enclosure and the landscaping of a parking lot associated with the commercial buildings; and, 

WHEREAS, this application was initially considered by the Design Review and Historic 
Preservation Commission (DRHPC) in a public meeting held on May 31, 2016, at which time the 
DRHPC continued the item with direction to the applicants to: 1) revise the architectural 
concept, and 2) amend the landscaping plan to provide additional buffering for townhomes 
adjoining the parking lot on the east; and, 

WHEREAS, the applicants developed a revised proposal considered by the DRHPC at 
its meeting of August 16, 2016, at which time the Commission voted 5-0 to approve the revised 
architectural design, colors and materials of the two commercial buildings and to deny the 
proposed landscaping plan; and, 

WHEREAS, this decision was appealed to the City Council by Joan Jennings and other 
residents of the Villas de Luna development; and, 

WHEREAS, the Villas de Luna development represents the residential component of a 
larger mixed use development of which the two commercial buildings that were the subject of 
the design review application represent the commercial component; and, 

WHEREAS, in their appeal, the appellants asserted that that the approval granted by the 
DRHPC would have an adverse effect on parking, that the commercial development is too 
intense, that a landscape buffer should be required along the edge of the parking lot adjoining 
the townhomes, and that certain required improvements associated with the Villas de Luna 
development are incomplete or longer working correctly; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council considered the appeal in a duly noticed public hearing held 
on October 3, 2016. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Sonoma 
finds and declares as follows: 

Section 1. 

A. On July 14, 2005, the Planning Commission approved a Planned Development Permit and 
Use Permit for a mixed-use development at 19370 Sonoma Highway. At that time, the 
development was known as “Sonoma Village West” and “Orchard Park”, but the residential 
component is now called “Villas de Luna”. The approved project consisted of two 
commercial buildings placed toward Sonoma Highway with ±6,936 square feet of gross 

9



commercial floor area, eight attached townhome condominiums in the middle of the site, and 
seven detached homes (including a duplex) to the east. 

B. Construction of the residential elements of the project began in 2006. The public 
improvements, residential buildings, and associated landscaping were substantially 
completed, as was a portion of the parking lot associated with the commercial component. 
However, the property fell into foreclosure and construction was halted prior to final building 
permit sign off. In 2012, the project was acquired by Kibby Road, LLC, which proceeded to 
bring the residential portion of the project to completion in 2013.  

C. The City Attorney’s Office has determined that the Use Permit for the entirety of project 
remains valid, based on the following factors: 1) the Use Permit and Planned Development 
permit addressed the project as whole, encompassing both the residential and the 
commercial elements; 2) building permits had been issued for the residential units and the 
construction of the residential elements of the project were substantially complete; 3) site 
and public improvements associated with the entirety of the project, including the 
commercial component, had been implemented, including frontage improvements on 
Sonoma Highway, the construction of the public and private street, the grading of the 
commercial parcels, and the construction of a portion of the commercial parking lot. 

D. The location, height, and size of the two commercial buildings as reviewed by the DRHPC 
are consistent with the 2005 use permit approval.  

E. Pursuant to the conditions of the 2005 use permit approval and section 19.54.080.D.2 of the 
Sonoma Municipal Code, in its review of the design of the commercial buildings, the DRHPC 
did not have the latitude to require significant changes in the approved site plan, such as 
those requested by the appellants. 

F. Because the landscaping plan was denied by the DRHPC, it is outside of the scope of the 
DRHPC’s approval of the commercial building design, which is the decision that was 
appealed. Due to the denial, the applicant is already required to develop and submit a new 
landscaping plan.  

G. The development improvement identified in the appeal as being faulty is an existing feature, 
installed in conjunction with the residential components of the project. Because it was not an 
element in the design review application for the commercial buildings, it was therefore 
outside of the DRHPC’s scope of review of the design of the commercial buildings.  

H. Based on the preceding facts and circumstances, the issues raised by the appellants as well 
as their proposed remedies fall outside of the scope of the DRHPC’s review of the design of 
the commercial buildings, which is the action that was appealed.  

Section 2. 

The City Council hereby denies the appeal of the Design Review and Historic Preservation 
Commission decision to approve the architectural details, colors, and materials of two 
commercial buildings proposed for a site located at 19366 and 19370 Sonoma Highway. 

Section 3. 

The City Council hereby directs staff to continue to work with neighbors and the Kibby Road 
LLC to achieve a resolution of the landscape buffer adjoining the townhomes and the operation 
of the gate. 

 

10



 

 The foregoing Resolution was duly adopted this 17th day of October 2016, by the 
following roll call vote: 
 
   AYES:   
   NOES:   
   ABSENT:  
 
       ________________________________ 
       Laurie Gallian, Mayor 
 
       ATTEST: 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Rebekah Barr 

City Clerk 
 

 

11



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

12



City of Sonoma 
City Council
Agenda Item Summary

City Council Agenda Item: 

Meeting Date:

6A 

10/17/16 

Department 
Planning and Community Services

Staff Contact 
David Goodison, Planning Director 

Agenda Item Title 
Discussion, consideration and possible action on proposed steps to review and implement a safe 
parking program on the Police Station property, including consideration of an ordinance amending 
section 7.20.010 of the Municipal Code. 

Summary 
At its meeting of September 19, 2016, the City Council voted 3-2 to direct staff to develop a proposal 
for establishing, on a trial basis, a safe parking program on the Police Station property 
(Councilmembers Cook and Edwards opposed). The concept of safe parking refers to a managed 
allowance for homeless persons with cars to sleep in their cars overnight (e.g., 9 p.m. to 7 a.m.) at a 
safe location, preferably with access to a shower and bathroom facilities. Participating clients are 
screened in advance and given parking passes for designated spaces. Safe parking programs are 
often but not always offered on a seasonal basis during the winter months. As broadly discussed by 
the Councilmembers in favor of the concept, the program would include the following elements: 

• Approval on a trial basis to test the concept, preferably beginning in December.
• An allowance for up to five parking spaces.
• Program management, including client screening, provided by Sonoma Overnight Support, in

conjunction with its management of the emergency shelter located on the Police Station property.
• An opportunity for neighbor notification and community input.

With regard to the location of the parking spaces, although there was some discussion on the part of 
the Council about using parking area on the south side of the Community Meeting Room, the Police 
Chief has identified a number of issues with that location, not the least of which would be the 
disruption to program clients caused by emergency vehicles entering and leaving the secured 
parking area. In addition, it would be inconvenient for clients to check in with SOS staff and difficult 
for SOS staff to monitor the spaces. Therefore, staff recommends that the parking spaces identified 
for the program be located in proximity to the emergency shelter. 

After reviewing various options with the City Attorney, it is staff’s view that soundest approach would 
consist of the following steps: 

1. Introduce an ordinance amending SMC section 7.20.010 to modify what is currently a prohibition
on camping on publicly-owned property unless an exception is approved by the City Council
based on rules set by the Parks and Recreation Commission. The proposed amendment would
remove the reference to the Parks and Recreation Commission and allow the Council to authorize
camping on public property based on rules that it sets itself.

2. Direct staff to process an application for a temporary use permit for the safe parking program from
the Planning Commission. Technically, this would amount to a seasonal expansion of the already-
approved shelter use. A temporary use permit is recommended because it is consistent with
Development Code provisions regarding emergency shelters, it provides a mechanism for
establishing conditions of approval, and it allows for neighbor notice and comment.

3. Direct staff to negotiate an agreement with Sonoma Overnight Support for the management of the
program. This agreement would incorporate conditions of approval identified through the
temporary use permit process as well as issues such as insurance requirements. Once a draft
agreement was negotiated, it would be brought to the City Council for final review and approval.

13



Through this process, the program could be initiated by early December. 

Staff also looked at the option of retaining SMC 7.20.010 as written and referring the issue to the 
Community Services and Environment Commission (as the successor to the Parks and Recreation 
Commission) for the development of rules as called for under its provisions. However, it seems to 
staff that this approach does not provide a good mechanism for public input and ignores the 
provisions in the Development Code regulating emergency shelters.  

Recommended Council Action 
1. Introduce the attached ordinance amending SMC section 7.20.010.

Alternative Actions 
Council discretion. 

Financial Impact 
The cost of providing this program has not been completely defined, but should not exceed $8,000. 
A detailed cost estimate will be developed for Council review as the item moves forward. 

Environmental Review Status 
  Environmental Impact Report   Approved/Certified 
  Negative Declaration   No Action Required 
  Exempt   Action Requested 
  Not Applicable 

Alignment with Council Goals 
The consideration of a safe parking falls within the City Council’s Housing goal: “To analyze policy 
and programmatic tools suggested by the 2015 Housing Element update; implement strategies to 
facilitate creation of affordable rental and workforce housing; sustain or increase opportunities to 
continue the programs currently in place to maintain current affordable housing stock.” 

Compliance with Climate Action 2020 Target Goals: 
N.A. 

Attachments: 
1. Draft ordinance

cc: Kathy King, SOS 
Richard Goertzen, Field of Dreams 

14



CITY OF SONOMA 

ORDINANCE NO. XX - 2016 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SONOMA 
AMENDING CHAPTER 7.20 OF THE SONOMA MUNICIPAL CODE BY 

UPDATING THE PROVISIONS CONCERNING PROHIBITIONS ON CAMPING 
ON PUBLICALLY-OWNED PROPERTY  

The City Council of the City of Sonoma hereby ordains as follows: 

Section 1. Section 7.20 of the Sonoma Municipal Code is hereby amended as follows: 

7.20.010  Camping prohibited where. 

No ground, open space, building, hall, structure, or other real property owned by the city or in its 
possession or control shall be used by any person, persons or group of persons for camping, or 
for lodging either in the daytime or nighttime, nor shall any such place be used by any person 
for sleeping on the open ground, with or without bedding, during the hours of darkness, unless 
such place is specifically designated a campground or other public facility for camping, lodging 
or sleeping purposes by written order of this council, and then only pursuant to such rules and 
regulations as promulgated by the park and recreation commission City Council for the safe and 
proper conduct of such facilities. 

Section 2. Exemption from Environmental Review. 

The amendment to the Municipal Code effected by this ordinance is exempt from environmental 
review pursuant to Section (b)(3) of title 14 of the California Code of Regulations, because: 1) it 
will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment; 
and, 2) it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the adoption of the ordinance 
may have a significant effect on the environment since the ordinance merely updates rule-
making authority for camping regulations by substituting the “City Council” for the “park and 
recreation commission”, which is a commission that no longer exists. 

Section 3. Effective Date. 

This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days from and after the date of its passage. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Sonoma this XXX day 
of XXX 2016.  

AYES: 
NOES:  
ABSENT: 

________________________________ 
Laurie Gallian, Mayor 

15



ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Rebekah Barr 
City Clerk 

16



City of Sonoma 
City Council
Agenda Item Summary

City Council Agenda Item: 

Meeting Date:

6B 

10/17/16 

Department 
Planning and Community Services

Staff Contact 
David Goodison, Planning Director 

Agenda Item Title 
Discussion, consideration and possible action on the adoption of an interim moratorium ordinance 
on the approval of applications for vacation rentals. 

Summary 
At its meeting of October 3, 2016, the City Council unanimously agreed that it wished to review and 
update the City’s regulations concerning vacation rentals. As a related matter, the Council also 
agreed that it wished consider the adoption of an interim moratorium ordinance on new applications 
for vacation rentals while changes to the regulations are discussed and implemented. Under State 
law, an interim moratorium ordinance may be adopted based on anticipated changes in 
development policies arising from ongoing or anticipated planning studies, such as a zoning 
ordinance amendment. As directed by the City Council, the City Attorney has prepared a draft 
interim moratorium ordinance on applications for vacation rentals for the City Council’s consideration 
(attached). Upon adoption, the ordinance would go into effect immediately. However, the initial 
adoption of an interim moratorium ordinance requires a four-fifths vote of the Council. If the interim 
moratorium ordinance is adopted, it will remain in effect for a period of 45-days, but it may be 
extended twice: first for an additional period of ten months and 15 days and, then, for one year, for a 
total of two years.  

In November, staff will return to the City Council for a discussion of potential changes to the 
regulation of vacation rentals. 

Recommended Council Action 
1. Adopt the attached interim moratorium ordinance on new applications for vacation rentals.

Alternative Actions 
Council discretion. 

Financial Impact 
N.A. 

Environmental Review Status 
  Environmental Impact Report   Approved/Certified 
  Negative Declaration   No Action Required 
  Exempt   Action Requested 
  Not Applicable 

Alignment with Council Goals 
The discussion of vacation rental regulations is responsive to the City Council’s Housing goal: “To 
analyze policy and programmatic tools suggested by the 2015 Housing Element update; implement 
strategies to facilitate creation of affordable rental and workforce housing; sustain or increase 
opportunities to continue the programs currently in place to maintain current affordable housing 
stock.” 

Compliance with Climate Action 2020 Target Goals: 
N.A. 

17



Attachments: 
1. Draft interim moratorium ordinance

cc: Byron Jones 

18



1	
Moratorium	Ord.	10-11-16	

ORDINANCE NO. _____________ 

AN URGENCY ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SONOMA 
ESTABLISHING INTERIM RESTRICTIONS ON VACATION RENTALS PENDING 

THE CONSIDERATION AND STUDY OF ZONING AND OTHER LAND USE 
REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO VACATION RENTALS IN THE CITY 

The City Council of the City of Sonoma makes the following findings: 

WHEREAS, Sonoma is a community steeped in history with a small town environment which the 
City has endeavored to balance with the growth in the wine industry and the influx of tourists and 
new residents. This balance is both unique and of great value to the citizens. The City’s history, 
its residential districts, its beauty and its location in the midst of wine country have made Sonoma 
a special place in which to live and work.  These special qualities of the City must be respected so 
that Sonoma can continue to retain its unique attributes and thrive; and 

WHEREAS, Sonoma is a vital and active City that retains a strong sense of community and 
residential cohesiveness.  The City’s 2020 General Plan states, as a matter of policy, that “Sonoma 
should continue to be characterized by variety in terms of land uses, building types, and housing, 
and this diversity should be consistent with preserving the town’s small-scale and historic 
character.”  Moreover, the General Plan espouses that “[n]ew residential development should 
emulate the desirable characteristics of existing neighborhoods by providing variety in lot and unit 
sizes and a range of prices, including opportunities for lower-income households, and respect 
unique site and neighborhood conditions.”  Furthermore, one of the City Council’s housing goals 
is to “implement strategies to facilitate creation of affordable rental and workforce housing . . . and 
to maintain current affordable housing stock”.  

WHEREAS, over the last several decades, and due to the desirability of Sonoma as a destination 
tourist attraction, the City has been and continues to experience more and more pressure from 
visitors coming to Sonoma for short durations wishing to live in homes, condominiums and 
apartments offered by their owners for short vacation stays.  On-line services such as AirBnB and 
VRBO have accelerated and facilitated a significant increase in the number of real property owners 
willing to hold their residences out for short term rentals.  This has caused an ever increasing 
number of non-residents to be found living in neighborhoods with which they have no permanent 
identity or relationship; and  

WHEREAS, the City has received numerous complaints and compiled evidence that the short-
term renters utilizing these services have caused noise, nuisances, parking problems and 
disruptions to the permanent residents living in the neighborhoods where these short-term rentals 
are located. In some cases, the number and frequency of properties offered for short term rentals 
have transformed the neighborhoods in ways that are inimical to the community values reflected 
in the City’s General Plan and otherwise; and  

WHEREAS, under the City’s Development Code, vacation rentals are defined as the “rental or 
letting of up to two complete residential units, containing bedrooms, kitchens, and bathrooms, for 

19



2	
Moratorium	Ord.	10-11-16	

a period of less than 30 days. Typically, no on-site manager is present (“vacation rental”).”  
Sonoma Municipal Code (“SMC”) §19.92.020.  Under the Development Code, vacation rentals 
are allowed only with a use permit and, then, only in the Commercial and Mixed Use districts.   
Vacation rentals are prohibited in residential zones, except as an adaptive reuse of a historic 
structure, subject to use permit review and approval; and 

WHEREAS, owners of real property located in the Commercial and Mixed Use zoning districts 
continue to apply for use permits to convert or build residential structures for vacation rental 
purposes.  As of the date of this Ordinance, 57 legal vacation rentals are currently allowed in the 
City.  Additionally, illegal vacation rentals continue to increase to the point where their numbers 
have exceeded lawful vacation rentals, and the ability of the City to effectively monitor, control 
and restrict illegal vacation rentals has become an enforcement problem demanding ever 
increasing City resources. 

WHEREAS, Sonoma desires to protect its existing character, including its vibrant tourism industry 
and at the same time create a supportive environment for its existing residential areas, and to thrive 
in a manner consistent with its cohesive, community values.   Moreover, permitting the conversion 
of existing residential structures or the construction of new residential structures for vacation 
rentals undermines the City’s General Plan policy and the Council’s goals of encouraging the 
development and maintenance of affordable housing.  As such, the City Council desires to study 
the City’s General Plan and Development Code to determine whether those documents should be 
or need to be amended to preclude the approval of all future vacation rentals or to adopt provisions 
which foster more effective ways in which to regulate vacation rentals in the City of Sonoma and 
reduce the adverse impacts of vacation rentals on neighbors, neighboring properties and the stock 
of affordable housing; and 

WHEREAS, the City has received inquiries and anticipates it will receive pre-application and 
application materials for the conversion of existing structures or the construction of new residential 
structures for use as vacation rentals. These proposed new developments may conflict with 
intended studies and the ultimate decision of the City Council resulting from the studies descried 
above; and 

WHEREAS, the City has a responsibility to move forward with studies necessary to identify the 
regulations necessary to foster an appropriate mix of uses and harmonize and prioritize the various 
policies relating to vacation rentals and the impacts they have on neighboring land uses, 
neighborhoods and affordable housing. It is important for the City to fulfill this responsibility and 
look carefully at implementing regulations that balance the City's relevant policies prior to 
approving additional changes in land use on an individual property by property or residence by 
residence basis; and. 

WHEREAS, should the moratorium contemplated by this Ordinance not be adopted, applications 
for use permits allowing the establishment of additional vacation rentals in the City which are 
inconsistent with the community's long term vision for the City must be processed and, if approved, 
will hamper and irreparably impede the City's goal of further regulating vacation rentals to protect 
the small town residential character of the City and the residents of the City. Specifically, the 
under-regulated and unmonitored establishment and operation of vacation rentals may preclude 

20



3	
Moratorium	Ord.	10-11-16	

the City from adequately insuring the protection of the City’s neighborhoods and prevent the City 
from providing for more affordable housing in a meaningful way.  Moreover, should additional 
vacation rentals be allowed while the City is studying the propriety and/or criteria under which 
vacation rentals should be permitted, those studies and any decisions leading therefrom will likely 
be rendered less effective and meaningful; and   

WHEREAS, the City needs a reasonable period of time to properly and carefully consider and 
further study the appropriate mix of land uses and development criteria applicable to vacation 
rentals, potentially leading to the amendment of the City's General Plan and Development Code; 
and 

WHEREAS, the proliferation of illegal vacation rentals and the continued submittal of applications 
for use permits to allow additional vacation rentals, combined with the facts recited above, pose a 
current and immediate threat to the health, safety and/or welfare of the citizens of Sonoma. 
Moreover, the approval of use permit or other entitlements for use of land or structures as vacation 
rentals will result in that threat to the public health, safety or welfare of the City and its citizens. 
The granting or permitting of such entitlements or uses will likely be in conflict with, prevent the 
implementation of and/or seriously impair the efficacy of any General Plan amendment, specific 
plan, zoning or other land use policies which the City would consider as part of its study, thus 
rendering such plans and policies ineffectual in providing for the needs, assuring the housing 
diversity and preserving the unique character of the City and its neighborhoods; and  

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Ordinance is to prohibit the establishment of or the allowance of 
new, additional vacation rentals with the City pending the consideration and study of permanent 
regulations governing such development and use. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SONOMA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The above recitals and findings are incorporated herein by this reference. 

Section 2. The City and its agents, employees and departments shall not approve any plan, 
subdivision, design review permit, variance, use permit or other entitlements for any use of land 
or structure as a vacation rental within any zoning district in the City of Sonoma, 
and after the adoption of this Ordinance, no person shall commence development of a vacation 
rental in any zoning district in the City so long as this Ordinance is in effect. 

Section 3. During the effective life of this Ordinance, the City shall process any and all 
applications for vacation rentals, but if those applications are acted upon prior to the expiration of 
this Ordinance, they shall be denied.  

Section 4. This Ordinance shall not apply to: (a) those land use applications for vacation 
rentals (namely, use permits, building or grading permits) which were deemed complete prior to 
the adoption of this Ordinance; (b) construction required to comply with fire and/or life safety 
requirements; (c) disability accessibility work; and (d) vacation rentals that are adaptive re-uses 
within the meaning of SMC §§19.42.030.B.2.g. 

21



4	
Moratorium	Ord.	10-11-16	

Section 5. This Ordinance is categorically exempt from CEQA under: (a) Section 15308 of 
the State CEQA Guidelines (“Guidelines”) because it is a regulatory action taken by the City in 
accordance with Cal. Gov't Code §65858 to assure maintenance and protection of the environment; 
(b) Guidelines, Section 15060(a)(2) because it will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable 
indirect physical change in the environment; and (c) Guidelines, Section 15061(a)(3) because it 
can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the adoption of the ordinance may have 
a significant effect on the environment since the ordinance prohibits physical changes for a 
specified period of time. 

Section 6. The moratorium as adopted by this Ordinance shall become effective immediately 
upon its adoption and shall be of no further force and effect 45 days from its date of adoption, 
unless extended within said 45-day period in accordance with Cal. Gov’t Code §65858.  

Section 7. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance is 
for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this and each section, subsection, 
phrase or clause thereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, phrase 
or clauses be declared unconstitutional on their face or as applied. 

Section 8. This Ordinance shall be published in accordance with applicable provisions of law, 
by either: 

publishing the entire Ordinance once in the Sonoma Index Tribute, a newspaper of general 
circulation, published in the City of Sonoma, within fifteen (15) days after its passage and 
adoption, or 

publishing the title or appropriate summary in the Sonoma Index Tribune at least five (5) 
days prior to adoption, and a second time within fifteen (15) days after its passage and 
adoption with the names of those City Councilmembers voting for and against the 
Ordinance. 

******** 

THE FOREGOING ORDINANCE was first read and adopted as an urgency Ordinance at 
a regular meeting of the Sonoma City Council on the _____ day of _______, 2016, by the 
following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers 

NOES:     Councilmembers 

22



5	
Moratorium	Ord.	10-11-16	

ABSENT:   Councilmembers 

ABSTAIN:  Councilmembers 

____________________________________ 

Mayor of the City of Sonoma 

Attest: 

___________________________________ 

City Clerk of the City of Sonoma 

Approved as to form: 

____________________________________ 

City Attorney of the City of Sonoma 

23



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

24



City of Sonoma 
City Council

Agenda Item Summary 

City Council Agenda Item: 

Meeting Date:

7A 

10-17-2016 

Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact 

Carol E. Giovanatto, City Manager 

Agenda Item Title 

Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action to Approve Extension of the Refuse Contract to 
Sonoma Garbage Collectors through May 2027 

Summary 

In November 2014, Sonoma Garbage Collectors, Inc [SCG] requested a ten-year extension to its 
current agreement with the City. The Refuse Contract dated October 19, 1994 had been extended on 
four prior Council actions during its term and was, at that time, set to expire on May 31, 2017.  Sonoma 
Garbage submitted a request for an extension period of ten years through May 31, 2027.  

Following consideration of the proposal in November 2014, the Council ultimately gave conditional 
approval of the ten year extension to the refuse franchise which would only become effective if the 
recycling processing facility for the City’s recyclables was operational in three years.   

Sonoma Garbage Collectors, Inc is now requesting final approval from the City Council of the 
extension of their refuse contract through May 2017 having met the requirements set forth under their 
conditional extension. 

Recommended Council Action 

Staff recommendation is to approve the extension through May 2027 and direct the City Attorney to 
present a franchise extension agreement for action at the next regular Council meeting. 

Alternative Actions 

Request additional information. 

Financial Impact 

No direct financial impact. 

Environmental Review Status 

  Environmental Impact Report   Approved/Certified 
  Negative Declaration   No Action Required 
  Exempt   Action Requested 
  Not Applicable 

25



Attachments: 

Supplemental Report 
Sonoma Garbage Collectors letter requesting extension of contract 
Council Minutes November 3, 2014 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Alignment with Council Goals: 

The implementation and outcomes of establishing a local composting program aligns directly with 
the Council Goal on POLICY and LEADERSHIP (Expand focus on elements of the Climate 2020 
Plan Targets). 

cc: 

Sonoma Garbage Collectors, Inc. 

Ken Wells 

26



SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT 
Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action to Approve Extension of the 

Refuse Contract to Sonoma Garbage Collectors through May 2027 
 

For City Council meeting of October 17, 2016 
 

             
Confirmation of Extension of Refuse Contract 
In November 2014, Sonoma Garbage Collectors, Inc [SCG] requested a ten-year 
extension to its current agreement with the City. The Refuse Contract dated 
October 19, 1994 had been extended on four prior Council actions during its term 
and was, at that time, set to expire on May 31, 2017.  Sonoma Garbage submitted 
a request for an extension period of ten years through May 31, 2027.  The request 
was based on a proposal to initiate a local composting program through the 
construction and operation of a system designed to process all of the City’s 
sources separated organic, compostable waste stream. The ultimate success of 
this program would, at a minimum, create benefits in the areas of: 
 

 Reduction in greenhouse gas emissions by eliminating outhaul of 
compostable materials 

 Generating local compost materials to be sold locally 

 Expansion and support of a local business enterprise 
 

Following consideration of the proposal, the Council ultimately gave conditional 
approval of the ten year extension to the refuse franchise which would only 
become effective if the recycling processing facility for the City’s recyclables was 
operational in three years. The granting of this conditional extension allowed SGC 
to (1) pursue securing a location for the facility, (2) begin the permitting process, 
and (3) have the security of ongoing financial resources necessary to make 
commitments to construct the facility.   
 
Status of the Composting Facility 
The City has received a request from SGC for full approval from the City for the 
Contract Extension and to remove the conditional approval status.  As reported, in 
the letter the following milestones have been accomplished: 

 Processing site has been established at 1180 Fremont Avenue 

 Test loads of green waste have been processed 

 Use Permit has been issued by the Sonoma County Permit and Resource 
Management Department 

 SGC’s Notification of the new Chip & Grind Operation has been accepted 
by the County permitting agency 
 

Sonoma Garbage Collectors, Inc is now requesting final approval from the City 
Council of the extension of their refuse contract through May 2017 having met the 
requirements set forth under their conditional extension. 
 

27



Sonoma is fortunate to be the only city in Sonoma County to have a local refuse 
company and to maintain locally owned services.  The service extension of 
providing a composting facility provides economic development benefits as well as 
increasing Sonoma’s Climate Action targets.   

28



SONOMA GARBAGE COLLECTORS 
P.O. BOX 400 

EL VERANO, CA 95433 
 
 

September 29, 2016 

Carol Giovanatto, City Manager 

City of Sonoma 

No. 1 The Plaza 

Sonoma, CA 95476 

 

Re: Request Approval of Franchise Extension for Sonoma Garbage 

Collectors Following Implementation of a Local Composting Program 

 

On November 3, 2014 the City Council agreed to a ten-year franchise 

extension to Sonoma Garbage Collectors (SGC) conditional on the 

implementation of a local composting program to process the City's 

green waste. 

 

To date, SGC has established a processing site at 1180 Fremont Ave., 

acquired a grinder and screen for the delivery, handling and grinding of 

the City's green waste and has delivered test loads of processed green 

waste to local composters to ensure the initial processing of the City's 

green waste is appropriate for the production of quality compost. 

 

Sonoma County Environmental Health and Safety Division's Solid Waste 

Program is the CalRecycle designated Local Enforcement Agency (LEA) 

responsible for permits to process green waste.  Sonoma Garbage 

Collector's Notification of the new Chip & Grind Operation has been 

accepted and the operation has been issued a Use Permit (UPE15-0045) 

by the Sonoma County Permit and Resource Management Department. 

 

With several local composters available to handle the City's processed 

green waste, these permits provide SGC and the City with a local 

composting program, satisfying the conditional extension requirement. 

 

 

Respectfully, 
 

 
Ken Wells for  

Sonoma Garbage Collectors 

29



November 3, 2014, Page 1 of 4 

    
    
      

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OPENING 

 
Mayor Rouse called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  Fred Allebach led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
CITY COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT:  Barbose, Cook, Brown, Gallian and Mayor Rouse. 
ABSENT:  None 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  City Manager Giovanatto, Assistant City Manager/City Clerk Johann, City 
Attorney Walter, Development Services Director Wirick, Planning Director Goodison. 
 
1. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

 
Karla Noyes stated that the Council candidates should jot down the most important issues that 
the City was facing and keep them in mind in the future.  She reported attendance at the recent 
Water Forum and stated that a lot of good water conservation ideas were mentioned but she 
wondered how long they would actually take. 
 
Jack Wagner thanked the Council for their support of the candidates and stated that he had 
enjoyed participation and attendance at the City Council meetings. 
 
Madolyn Agrimonti reported that, as a candidate walking neighborhoods, she noticed a lot fewer 
garden hoses and more brown lawns.  She stated that the Index Tribune synopsis of the 
proposed water rate increases was accurate and helpful to the residents. 
 
Cathy {last name unintelligible} stated that she resided at The Haven and complained about the 
treatment and food she had received there. 
 
Ed Kenney objected to the housing project currently under construction on MacArthur Street. 
 
2. MEETING DEDICATIONS - None 

 
3. PRESENTATIONS  

 
Item 3A: Report Regarding the Sonoma County Library Commission 
 
Joanne Sanders and Mike Dawe reported on library system improvements and demonstrated 
their newly updated website with an explanation of the services available over the internet. 
 
Item 3B: Report by Sonoma Overnight Support regarding the Emergency Shelter 

Program 
 
Cindy Vrooman, Sonoma Overnight Support (SOS) Board President, stated that SOS started 
out as a faith based organization made up of volunteers from various churches.  In 2003, they 
became a non-profit organization (SOS).  Their mission had always been to shelter the 
homeless and feed the hungry.  
 
Catherine Barber, SOS Executive Director, reported that within the last year she had completed 
their first financial audit, hired additional staff including a bookkeeper and a full time shelter 
director, and put new policies and procedures into place.  She reported on services provided the 
last quarter and that they were experiencing a dramatic increase in the need for services.  She  
 

CONCURRENT REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE 
SONOMA CITY COUNCIL 

& 
SONOMA CITY COUNCIL AS THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 

DISSOLVED SONOMA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 

Community Meeting Room, 177 First Street West, Sonoma CA 
 

Monday, November 3, 2014 
6:00 p.m. 

**** 

MINUTES 

City Council 
Tom Rouse, Mayor 

David Cook, Mayor Pro Tem 
Steve Barbose 

Ken Brown 
Laurie Gallian 

 

 

30



November 3, 2014, Page 2 of 4 

 
Item 3B: Report by Sonoma Overnight Support, Continued  
 
emphasized that the majority of their clients were from Sonoma Valley.  Barber added that The 
Haven had only ten beds and mixing the male and female clients was problematic. 
 
Jeff Severson, Director of The Haven, reported that many of the people they see had mental 
health issues and stated there were not enough facilities available to accommodate the case 
load. 
 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR/AGENDA ORDER – CITY COUNCIL 

 
Item 4A: Waive Further reading and Authorize Introduction and/or Adoption of 

Ordinances by Title Only. 
Item 4B: Acceptance of the Sonoma Tourism Improvement District Annual Report. 
Item 4C: Adoption of a resolution approving an application by Project Sport LLC for 

temporary use of City streets for Echelon Ride to Revel Cycling Event on 
Saturday, April 25, 2015.  (Res. No. 53-2014) 

Item 4D: Adoption of a resolution approving an application by Destination Races for 
temporary use of City streets for the Napa to Sonoma Wine Country Half 
Marathon on Sunday, July 19, 2015.  (Res. No. 54-2014) 

Item 4E: Adoption of an ordinance amending the Chapter 19.94 of the Sonoma 
Municipal Code to implement Housing Element programs and comply with 
State law.  (Ord. No. 05-2014) 

Item 4F: Adoption of a resolution upholding an appeal of the Planning 
Commission’s decision to deny the application of Leonard Tillem for a Use 
Permit to allow the conversion of the mixed-use building at 162-166 West 
Spain Street into two vacation rental units as an adaptive reuse of an 
historic structure.  (Res. No. 55-2014) 

 
The public comment period opened and closed with none received.  It was moved by Clm. 
Barbose, seconded by Clm. Gallian, to approve the Consent Calendar.  The motion carried 
unanimously except that Clm. Cook and Mayor Rouse registered No votes on item 4F. 
 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR/AGENDA ORDER – CITY COUNCIL AS SUCCESSOR 

AGENCY - None 

 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS - None 

 
7. REGULAR CALENDAR – CITY COUNCIL 

 
Item 7A: Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action to Approve a Lease of the 

Marcy House Located at 205 First Street West to the Sonoma Valley 
Historical Society. 

 
Development Services Director Wirick reported that on March 1, 2014 the 25-year lease of the 
Marcy House to the Sonoma Sister Cities Association expired.  In May of 2014, the Sonoma 
Valley Historical Society (Society) submitted a proposal to lease the facility for office, storage 
and research use for the purpose of conducting historical archival curation, including 
conservation and preservation of historic documents, images and artifacts, bookkeeping, small 
meetings, artifact restoration, training and other similar Society activities.  He stated that the 
proposed lease was for a ten-year term with a rental rate of $1 per year with the Society 
responsible for all costs associated with the leased premises including maintenance, 
accessibility compliance, utilities, taxes and improvements.   
 
Mayor Rouse invited comments from the public.  Carol Page, Society President, stated that the 
house would serve as an archival and research center and that the Society would ensure it was 
maintained as an attractive historical resource. Patricia Cullinan and Fred Allebach also spoke 
in support of the lease arrangement. 
 
It was moved by Clm. Barbose, seconded by Clm. Brown, to approve the lease of Marcy House 
to the Sonoma Valley Historical Society.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 

31



November 3, 2014, Page 3 of 4 

Item 7B: Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action to Authorize the Sonoma 
Valley Historical Society to File a Use Permit Application and if Approved, 
to Sublet a Portion of the Marcy House for Commercial Administrative 
Office Purposes.  

 
Development Services Director Wirick explained that the Society would like to sublet a portion of 
the Marcy House to George McKale to conduct his consulting services business.  Pursuant to 
the lease agreement, the subletting of any portion of the building required express written 
permission by the City Council.  Additionally, since the City was the owner of the Marcy House, 
the filing of a Use Permit application had to be authorized by the City Council and the Use 
Permit would have to be approved by the Planning Commission for the commercial 
administrative office use.  Wirick added that pursuant to the lease agreement, the Society would 
be required to complete the accessibility improvements described in the lease prior to using the 
building for commercial administrative office purposes.  All rents collected by subletting the 
building would be collected and retained by the Society for the exclusive purpose of maintaining, 
repairing and improving the premises. 
 
Mayor Rouse invited comments from the public.  Patricia Cullinan requested the Council’s 
approval of the request. 
 
It was moved by Clm. Gallian, seconded by Clm. Brown, to authorize the Sonoma Valley 
Historical Society to file a Use Permit application for the commercial administrative office use 
and if said Use Permit was approved by the Planning Commission, authorize the City Manager 
to provide express written permission to allow the Society’s subletting of a portion of the 
premises for commercial administrative office use.  The motion carried unanimously.  
 
Item 7C: Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action to Grant a Conditional 

Extension of the Refuse Contract to Sonoma Garbage Collectors. 
 
City Manager Giovanatto reported that Sonoma Garbage Collectors requested a ten-year 
extension to its current agreement with the City, which would expire in May 2017.  The 
extension would allow development of a local composting program involving construction and 
operation of a composting system designed to process all of the City’s source separated 
organic, compostable waste stream.  As proposed the program would create benefits in the 
areas of greenhouse gas emission reduction by eliminating outhaul of compostable materials, 
would generate local compost materials to be sold locally and would provide expansion and 
support of a local business enterprise.  Giovanatto added that staff recommended a conditional 
extension which would allow Sonoma Garbage to pursue securing a location for the facility, 
begin the permitting process, and have the security of ongoing financial resources necessary to 
make commitments to construct the facility.  In return, Sonoma Garbage Collectors was offering 
to add a new residential service of bulky item pick up by appointment.   
 
Clm. Barbose questioned if this extension was allowed by the County Waste Joint Powers 
Authority (JPA).  City Manager Giovanatto responded that approval would be contingent upon it 
being approved by the JPA and that Waste Management Agency Director Mikus had stated he 
would support it. 
 
Mayor Rouse invited comments from the public.  Ken Wells stated he spoke to the JPA attorney 
and she was comfortable that the existing agreement allowed this type of program.  Will 
Honeybloom stated support for the extension and proposed composting program.  He 
complained that garbage trucks came around at four in the morning and asked if they couldn’t 
come at a later time.  Jack Wagner also spoke in support of the proposal. 
 
It was moved by Clm. Barbose, seconded by Clm. Brown, to approve the extension and to direct 
staff to prepare a resolution and franchise extension for action at the next Council meeting.  The 
motion carried unanimously. 
 
Item 7D: Discussion, consideration, and possible action regarding a request from 

Mr. Don Bandur to install an exercise rings station along the bike path, 
Requested by Mayor Rouse.  

 
City Manager Giovanatto reported that certain parcourse equipment, including a set of rings, 
had been donated and installed along the bike path by a volunteer organization in 1979.  
Because the equipment fell into disrepair and presented a liability to the City, it was eventually 
removed.  Mr. Don Bandur had requested many times the last few years that the ring station 
which was removed in 2012, be reinstalled.  Mayor Rouse placed this item on the agenda to see 
if there was support among the Councilmembers to direct staff to look into the feasibility of 
reinstating the parcourse equipment. 

32



November 3, 2014, Page 4 of 4 

Item 7D: Exercise Rings on the bike path, Continued 
 
Mayor Rouse stated that he felt that a parcourse or similar exercise structure would be good for 
the public and would provide exercise equipment for those who could not afford gym 
memberships.  He stated that the City could seek an outside organization to sponsor or co-
sponsor the equipment and its installation. 
 
Mayor Rouse invited comments from the public.  Madolyn Agrimonti stated her support for the 
idea and asked if the bike path could be marked so people would know how far they had 
walked.  Jack Wagner also supported the idea. 
 
Clm. Cook said he would support staff looking into the idea and said he would like to see the 
issue of a city wish book that had been brought up by Clm. Sanders two years ago revisited.  
Clm. Barbose stated that replacing the ring apparatus did not appeal to him since it was on the 
U.S. Consumer Products not safe list but he would support the reintroduction of some type of 
exercise equipment for public use.  Clm. Gallian stated that there would be replacement and 
maintenance costs, insurance requirements, etc. and she would like to have additional 
information before moving ahead. 
 
It was moved by Clm. Gallian, seconded by Clm. Barbose, to direct staff to research the 
possibility, costs and ramifications of an exercise course on City property and to report back to 
the City Council at a future date.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
8. REGULAR CALENDAR – CITY COUNCIL AS THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

 
9. COUNCILMEMBERS’ REPORTS AND COMMENTS 

 
Clm. Brown reported on Economic Development Steering Committee and the SVCAC retreat. 
 
Clm. Gallian reported on a meeting at Schellville Fire Station regarding County fire services, the 
Wine County Marine Ball, and the Ag and Open Space District meeting. 
 
Clm. Barbose reported on the Sonoma Clean Power meeting.   
 
10. CITY MANAGER COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS INCLUDING 

ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM SUCCESSOR AGENCY STAFF - None 

 
11. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC  

 
Jack Wagner stated that he had learned a lot during the campaign and he thanked Council and 
the community for their support. 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:43 p.m.  
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing minutes were duly and regularly adopted at a regular 
meeting of the Sonoma City Council on the 17th day of November 2014. 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Gay Johann 
Assistant City Manager / City Clerk 

33



 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

34



City of Sonoma 

City Council

Agenda Item Summary 

City Council Agenda Item: 

Meeting Date: 10/17/16 

Department 

Building Department 
Fire Department  

Staff Contact 

Wayne Wirick, Development Services Director / Building Official 
Alan Jones, Fire Marshal 

Agenda Item Title 

Introduction of Ordinance Repealing Chapter 14.10 of the Sonoma Municipal Code and Reenacting 
a New Chapter 14.10 Adopting and Amending New Construction Codes. 

Summary 

The California Building Standards Code is made up of 12 parts containing various construction 
codes (i.e. building, residential, electrical, plumbing, mechanical, energy, green building, existing 
building, fire, historical structures, etc.) which are adopted in whole or in part and then amended by 
some 14 different State agencies.  The California codes are generally published every three years 
by the State Building Standards Commission following the update of selected model codes by 
various code writing organizations.  The currently adopted 2013 California Building Standards Code 
in effect in Sonoma and throughout the State will become null and void effective January 1, 2017 
and therefor the new California codes must be adopted.   
The California Health and Safety Code allows local governments to amend building standards 
contained in the California Building Standards Code when the modifications are at least as stringent 
as what is required by the codes and provided that amendments are made with express findings of 
need based on local climatic, geological or topographical conditions. The California Building 
Standards Code does not provide fully adequate provisions for unsafe building abatement, signs, 
alternate plumbing systems, fire sprinkler systems, fire safety, administrative requirements, green 
building measures and other provisions recommended for Sonoma, which is why the City Council 
has regularly amended the codes adopted by the State to address these issues. 
The new 2016 technical codes adopted by the State generally update construction requirements and 
add more restrictive requirements than the technical codes currently in effect, particularly as it 
pertains to the California Energy Code.  
The suggested local amendments proposed by this ordinance are generally consistent with the 
direction, existing policies and construction requirements previously adopted by the City   
The 2016 California Building Standards Codes proposed for adoption are available for review at City 
Hall. 

Recommended Council Action 

1. Discuss any initial questions regarding the proposed local amendments or the adoption of
the California codes.

2. Publicly read the title of the proposed ordinance and schedule a public hearing to hear the
matter and possibly adopt the ordinance on November 7, 2016.

3. Direct the City Clerk to prepare a summary and carry out the special noticing procedures as
required by the Government Code.

Alternative Actions 

1. The City Council can direct staff to make further amendments to the proposed codes.  If
further amendments are proposed after the second reading and the public hearing, the
ordinance will need to be reintroduced at the next meeting of the council.  A second public
hearing need not be held on amendments made in accordance with council direction.

2. The City Council can choose not to adopt local amendments, in which case the unmodified
version of the 2016 California Building Standards Code would stand on its own and become
effective on January 1, 2017.

7B

35



Agenda Item       

 

 

Financial Impact 

Each time the California Building Standards Code are updated (approximately every 3 years), 
construction costs increase as a result of the addition of more restrictive, invasive and complicated 
requirements. The changes in the codes result in an increase in the cost of providing code 
compliance services by increasing the need for additional training and public education as well as 
increasing City costs to perform plan review, inspection and related code enforcement services.  The 
cost for construction also increases for project owners, contractors, developers and design 
professionals due to the need to learn and implement the new code requirements. 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  
Attachments:  

 Supplemental Report with attachments dated 10/17/16 [Includes Draft Ordinance repealing 
and reenacting a new Chapter 14.10 (Construction Codes) of the Sonoma Municipal Code]. 

NOTE: A strikeout/redline version of the proposed draft ordinance is available on the City’s Web 
site at: http://www.sonomacity.org/Sonoma/media/Files/Building/Building-Code-Adoption-
Ordinance-xx-2016-STRIKEOUT-10-17-16_1.pdf . 

Alignment with Council Goals:   

The adoption and implementation of the 2016 California Green Building Code plus the Tier 1 
measures will likely contribute in a positive way towards the Council Goal of promoting Climate 2020 
plan targets.   The adoption will also meet the Council Goal objective of standardizing graywater 
permits, regulation and procedures with Sonoma County. That said, because more stringent 
requirements will apply related to the 2016 California Energy Code the regulations will likely 
negatively impact the Council objective of “working to streamline processes and assist in downsizing 
requirements.”  Many of the new State requirements have been established to meet the goals set 
forth in various California Climate Change Executive Orders issued by the Governor. Securing 
building permits and approvals will require additional time and effort on the part of customers and 
City staff and construction costs will increase as a result of the new regulations. Staff will continue to 
work to improve customer services and seek cost effective solutions to the assist customers where 
feasible. 

cc: 

 
 

36

file://///COSFX1/VOL1/SHARE/CITY%20COUNCIL/Council%20Goals/2013-14%20COUNCIL%20GOALS.docx
http://www.climatechange.ca.gov/state/executive_orders.html


SUPPLEMENTAL STAFF REPORT 
 

Introduction of Ordinance Repealing Chapter 14.10 of the Sonoma Municipal Code and Reenacting a 

New Chapter 14.10 Adopting and Amending New 2016 Construction Codes 

 

For the City Council Meeting of October 17, 2016  

 

BACKGROUND 

The California Building Standards Code is made up of 12 parts containing various construction 

codes (i.e. building, residential, electrical, plumbing, mechanical, energy, fire, historical 

structures, green building, etc.) which are adopted in whole or in part and then amended by some 

14 different State agencies.  The California codes are generally amended and published every 

three years by the State Building Standards Commission following the update of selected model 

codes.  Pursuant to California Health and Safety Code, the California Building Standards Code is 

applicable to all occupancies throughout California 180 days following its publication by the 

California Building Standards Commission.  The latest (2016) iteration of the California 

Building Standards Code was published in July of 2016 and will become effective throughout 

California on January 1, 2017.  By state law, construction codes previously adopted, including 

those adopted by Sonoma and contained in Chapter 14.10 (Construction Codes) of the Sonoma 

Municipal Code, will become null and void on January 1, 2017. 

 

The California Health and Safety Code allows local governments to amend building standards 

contained in the California Building Standards Code when modifications are made with express 

findings of need based on local climatic, geological or topographical conditions.  State law 

dictates that amendments to the State Building Standards Code may not be less stringent than the 

provisions provided therein. Given that the California Building Standards Code does not provide 

fully adequate provisions for unsafe building abatement, signs, alternate plumbing systems, fire 

sprinkler systems, fire safety, administrative requirements, green building provisions and other 

provisions determined necessary for Sonoma, the City Council has regularly amended the codes 

adopted by the state to address these issues. 

 

ANALYSIS  

As mentioned earlier, the City’s existing construction codes become null and void for all 

construction permit applications submitted on or after January 1, 2017, at which time the 2016 

California Building Standards Code becomes effective throughout California. The new codes 

generally update construction requirements and add more restrictive and complex requirements 

than the codes currently in effect, particularly as they pertain to the California Energy Code.  

Some examples of new code requirements adopted by the state that will affect initial construction 

costs and compliance enforcement costs include the following: 

 

EXAMPLE OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES FROM THE 2013 TO THE 2016 CODES  

2016  Energy Code Change Highlights 

 The new energy code is requires approximately 5% greater efficiency for new 

nonresidential buildings and 28% greater efficiency for new residential buildings.   

37



 New residential thresholds for minimum insulation and door and window energy 

efficiency. 

 Updates were made to both mandatory and prescriptive residential HVAC requirements 

including  higher duct insulation, and lower duct leakage rates.  

 New requirements for pipe insulation for residential water heater replacements. 

 All new and replaced residential lighting be must be high efficacy. 

 New requirements for limiting the number of blank electrical boxes and requiring 

specialty lighting controls for said boxes. 

 New requirements for nonresidential HVAC controls and more stringent air conditioning 

equipment requirements.. 

 New prescriptive requirements for  nonresidential HVAC shut-off sensors for windows 

and doors . 

 Multilevel lighting control requirements for nonresidential buildings have been 

simplified. In addition, spaces that utilize certain types of occupancy controls are no 

longer required to also include multilevel control. 

 The line between nonresidential maintenance and retrofit has been redrawn. More 

projects are now exempt from alteration requirements. Those that are required to comply 

now have more options including some with reduced control requirements. 

2016  Residential Code Change Highlights 

 Revisions to the common wall requirements for townhouses. 

 Modification of the minimum size of a habitable room from 120 s.f. to 70 s.f. 

 Reduction of the minimum ceiling height for bathrooms, toilet rooms and laundry rooms 

from 7’-0 “ to 6’-8”. 

 EV charging station infrastructure required for new attached garages. 

 Modifications to residential mezzanines requirements. 

 Modifications to residential footing requirements (some more restrictive; some less 

restrictive).  

 New prescriptive requirements for deck framing. 

 New prescriptive requirements for tall walls. 

 New provisions for rim board headers. 

 Modifications and clarifications to the wall bracing requirements. 

 Revisions to ceiling and rafter span tables result in slightly longer allowable spans for 

certain species and grades of wood joists. 

2016  Building Code Change Highlights 

 Clarifies that the CA Building Code may be used for one- and two-family dwellings but 

in those cases the CA Residential Code may not be used. 

 Eliminates the 3,000 s.f. maximum area for residential accessory structures. 

38



 Small food processing establishments without dining facilities may now be classified as 

Group B occupancies thereby making the requirements for said establishments less 

stringent. 

 The maximum area of a private residential garage classified as a Group U occupancy is 

increased from 1,000 s.f. to 3,000 s.f. 

 EV charging station infrastructure is now required for new attached garages. 

 Modifications to the code result in an increase in the required separation for projections at 

exterior walls. 

 The dead load of rooftop mounted solar PV systems must now be indicated on the plans. 

 Special inspection requirements have been added for cold-formed steel special bolted 

moment frames. 

 New requirements have been added for underpinning and foundation design where 

excavations occur near other foundations or surcharge loading conditions. 

 New definitions and applicable test standards now address the use of plastic composites 

for use as deck boards, etc. 

 Added provisions for installing cladding over foam-insulating sheathing on various 

substrates.  

 Chapter 34 (existing buildings) has been repealed and the requirements thereof have been 

placed in the 2016 California Existing Building Code. 

2016  CALGreen Code Change Highlights 

 Modifies and expands requirements for Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Stations in 

certain new residential and nonresidential construction.  

 New requirement to provide third-party verification of waste diversion rates. 

 New requirement for designated areas for storage of recycling bins in multifamily 

developments with 5 or more units. 

 New requirements added for limiting water use with nonresidential food waste disposals. 

 Modified requirements for Recycled Content Value in nonresidential buildings. 

2016  Electrical Code Change Highlights 

 Addition of Ground Fault Circuit Interrupter (GFCI) and Arc-Fault Circuit Interrupter 

(AFCI) protection at numerous new locations within a home. 

 Modifications to requirements for electric power production sources, particularly 

pertaining to wind electric systems. 

 New requirement to seal raceways entering a building. 

 Modification of requirements for solar photovoltaic systems. 

 Modification of requirements for EV Charging systems. 

 Revised requirements for equipotential bonding of hat tubs and spas. 

2016  Mechanical Code Change Highlights 

 Adds restrictions for condensate pumps. 

 Adds requirements for service platforms for equipment located on sloped roof. 

 Modifications to allow condensate shut-off devices in lieu of secondary condensate 

drains. 

39



 Add requirement for cleanout ion condensate drains. 

 Modification of hood air flow rate calculation methods. 

 More restrictive Type II Hood terminations  

2016  Plumbing Code Change Highlights 

 Exposed plastic piping must be protected with water-based paint. 

 Allowances for “Family” restrooms in lieu of separate sex restrooms have been added. 

 Modification  requires expansion tanks regardless of the water heater type. 

 New requirement for all  hot water piping to be insulated. 

 Modification to require a tracer wire for plastic building supply water piping. 

 Modification to require underfloor access within 5 feet of a plumbing cleanout (changed 

from 20 feet.) 

 Modifications to allow for approved on-site treated graywater systems. 

 

HIGHLIGHTS OF PROPOPSED LOCAL AMENDEMNTS TO THE 2016  CODES 

The amendments proposed by the proposed ordinance are consistent with the existing policies or 

construction requirements previously adopted by the City Council. It is recommended that local 

amendments proposed for the 2016 California Building Standards Code is adopted so that the 

effective date of the proposed amendments corresponds with the January 1, 2017, effective date 

of the code. The highlights of the proposed local amendments are as follows: 

Administrative Provisions 

1. The administrative provisions have been revised to:  

a. Make grammatical and editorial changes to clarify the meaning of various 

provisions; 

b. Clarify the application and scope of the technical codes;  

c. Change references from Chapter 34 of the California Building Code to the 

California Existing Building Code; 

d. Clarify the work that is included in the determination of the permit valuation.; 

e. Add provision to authorize the building official to investigate the cause of a fire, 

explosion or hazardous condition; 

f. Add provision to authorize the building official to cause the disconnection of 

specified utilities where they serve dangerous equipment; 

g. Add provision to authorize the building official to delegate authority to enforce 

the codes; 

h. Clarify the permit exemption for a tree house; 

i. Add a new permit exemption for in-kind-repair or replacement of less than 32 square 

feet of drywall, siding, stucco or roofing within any 12 month period;   

j. Add clarifying language for the determination of substantially improved or 

substantially damaged existing buildings in flood hazard areas; 

k. Add provision to authorize the building official to require an evaluation of an 

existing building by registered design professional and/or a California certified access 

specialist when determined necessary by the building official due to the nature of the 

proposed work. 

40



l. Add provision to authorize the building official to withhold the approval of plans and 

a building permit application if approvals required by other governmental agencies or 

City departments pertaining to the work have not first been obtained; 

m. Clarify that the building official is authorized to withhold the issuance of a 

certificate of occupancy or permit to use or occupy structure when the work 

performed or required to be performed does not receive  all required inspection 

approvals;  

n. Modify provisions allowing the building official to implement emergency 

measures when there is imminent danger or failure or collapse of a building that 

endangers life or property; 

2016  California Building Code  

2. The proposed local amendments to the 2016  California Building Code are minor and 

consistent with previously adopted local amendments. 

2016  California Residential Code  

3. Add amendment in sections R302.2  and R302.3 to clarify the requirement for fire-

resistive wall construction separating dwelling units in townhouses and two-family 

dwellings where the dwelling units are located on separate parcels.   

4. Consistent with previously adopted local amendments, proposed local amendments have 

been added to the 2016  California Residential Code (CRC) to clarify existing 

requirements for residential fire sprinkler systems and swimming pool safety enclosures 

and barriers as previously adopted by the council.(CRC R313.2 and Appendix Chapter V) 

2016  California Plumbing Code  

5. Add amendment in section 713.4  to clarify when a public sewer is considered available.  

This section is amended to be consistent with the Sonoma Valley County Sanitation 

District Code.  

6. Consistent with previously adopted local amendments, a proposed local amendment has 

been added to the 2016  California Plumbing Code (CPC) to require a permit for a gray- 

water clothes washer system.(CPC 1502.1.1) 

2016  California Fire Code  

7. Consistent with previously adopted local amendments to be consistent with Sonoma 

County and other fire jurisdictions within the county, the Fire Chief is proposing 

additional operational permitting requirements (see Fire Code amendments subsections 

105.6.49).   

a. Apartment, hotel, motels (operational) 

b. Bonfires or rubbish fires (operational) 

c. Care Facilities (operational) 

d. Emergency Responder Radio Coverage System (operational) 

e. High-rise building (operational) 

f. Live entertainment (operational) 

g. Medical cannabis (operational) 

h. Model rockets rental, sale or operation (operational) 

41



8. Consistent with previously adopted local amendments to be consistent with Sonoma 

County and other fire jurisdictions within the county, the Fire Chief is proposing 

additional operational permitting requirements (see Fire Code amendments subsections 

105.7.19). 

9. Consistent with previously adopted local amendments, the Fire Chief is proposing 

administrative amendments related to violation penalties and the failure to comply with 

the requirements 2016  California Fire Code (CFC) - (CFC 109.4 and 111.4). 

10. Add a new subsection 113.6 to allow for cost recovery for fire suppression, investigation or 

emergency medical costs in accordance with Health and Safety Code Sections 13009 and 13009.1 

11. Add definitions to the California Fire Code section 202 for “ADDITION”, 

“MANUFACTURED HOME”, “MOBILE HOME”, “REMODELED”, “STRUCTURE”, 

“UMBRELLA STRUCTURE“ and “UNWARRANTED ALARM”. 

12. Add new subsections 401.3.2.1 and 402.1 related to unwarranted alarms. 

13. Add new subsection 503.2.6.1 for the evaluation and maintenance of private bridges. 

14. Add new subsection 503.3 for the marking of fire lanes. 

15. Add a new subsection 507.5.7 for fire hydrant size and outlets. 

16. Add a new subsection 507.5.8 for fire hydrant street marker. 

17. Amend subsection 904.12 for commercial cooking systems. 

18. Amend subsection 3101.1 for Tents, umbrella structures, temporary stage canopies and 

membrane structures. 

19. Add new subsection 3314.3 requiring fire sprinkler protection prior to construction 

exceeding 40 feet in height above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access. 

20. Amend various automatic fire sprinkler standards in Chapter 80 . 

21. The Fire Chief is proposing to re-enact previously adopted local amendments to the 

California Fire Code for the following sections: 

a. 304.1.2.1 – Combustible vegetation. 

b. 304.1.4 - Defensible space - neighboring property. 

c. 501.1 and subsections – Address identification. 

d. 503.2.6 - Vehicle loads for bridges and elevated surfaces.  

a. 507.5 - Fire hydrant systems.   

b. 507.5.1 - Where fire hydrants are required. 

c. 510.1 - Emergency responder radio coverage in buildings. 

d. 901.4.1.1 - Owner responsibilities. 

e. 901.6.1 - Standards for fire protection systems. 

f. 901.11 - Notice of nuisance alarm. 

g. 901.12  - Unreliable fire alarm systems. 

h. 903.2 – Where automatic fire sprinkler systems are required. 

i. 903.7.7 - Fire department connections.   

j. 903.4.2 – Alarm activated by water flow on sprinkler system. 

42



k. 905.3.1 - Height of Class III standpipe systems in other than R-3 and R-3.1 

occupancies.  

l. 907.2.8.1 - Manual fire alarm system for R-1 occupancies 

m. 3314.4 - Buildings being demolished. 

n. 5001.5.3 - Electronic reporting.   

o. 5704.1.1 - Tanks storage prohibited.  

p. 5704.1.2 - Tanks storage – Other locations 

q. 5704.1.3 - Existing tank storage.   

r. 6107.5 - Seismic anchoring system for propane/LPG gas containers. 

s. Appendix B101.1 - Procedure for determining fire-flow requirements for 

buildings 

t. Appendix B, subsection B102.1 – Revised definitions for “FIRE-FLOW” and 

“FIRE-FLOW CALCULATION AREA”. 

u. Appendix B, subsection B105.1 - minimum fire-flow requirements for one- and 

two-family dwellings. 

v. Appendix B, subsection B105.2 - minimum fire-flow and flow duration for 

buildings other than one- and two-family dwellings. 

w. Appendix C, subsection C102 - Fire hydrant locations. 

x. Appendix D, Section D101 – Scope for fire apparatus access roads 

y. Appendix D, subsection D103.1 - Grade of fire apparatus access roads. 

z. Appendix D, subsection D103.3 - Minimum turning radius of fire apparatus 

access roads. 

aa. Appendix D, subsection D103.4 - Turnaround provisions for dead-end fire 

apparatus access roads. 

bb. Appendix D, subsection D103.6 - NO PARKING-FIRE LANE sign requirements. 

cc. Appendix D, subsection D106.4 - Multiple-family residential projects having 

more than 50 dwelling units shall be provided with two separate and approved fire 

apparatus access roads. 

dd. Appendix D, subsection D107 - one- and two-family dwellings where the number 

of dwelling units exceeds 50 shall be provided with two separate and approved 

fire apparatus access roads. 

2016  California Green Building Code (CALGreen) 

22. Consistent with previously adopted council policies and local amendments, the Building 

Official is proposing adoption of additional mandatory green building compliance 

measures in conformance with Tier 1 status (excluding Energy Efficiency Measures) as 

described in the California Green Building Code (CALGreen).  Tiers are pre-defined sets 

of additional measures within CALGreen that may be adopted by the City Council to 

increase the level of green compliance within the City.  These tiers (Tier 1 or Tier 2) each 

include a series of measures that go beyond the basic (mandatory) requirements of the 

CALGreen code. Adopting CALGreen plus Tier 1 (CALGreen+Tier1-Excluding Energy) 

status as mandatory is recommended by the Redwood Empire Association of Code 

Officials to promote regional consistency in the application of green building standards 

throughout Sonoma County and other jurisdictions throughout the North Bay region.  

43



Adoption of Tier 1Energy Efficiency Measures as mandatory is not recommended for the 

following reasons: 

a. The new mandatory 2016  California Energy Code represent a 28% increase in 

required efficiency for residential buildings and a 5% increase in required 

efficiency for nonresidential buildings over those jurisdictions (including 

Sonoma) that previously adopted mandatory Tier 1 energy requirements. 

Adoption of mandatory Tier 1 Energy Efficiency Measures under the 2016  

California Green Building Code would require an additional 15% increase (a 

cumulative increase of efficiency of 43% for new residential and 20% for new 

nonresidential buildings) in energy efficiency in all new buildings. This would 

place a significant cost burden on owners that may not be cost effective.   

b. The cost effectiveness study required by state law to implement mandatory Tier 1 

Energy Efficiency Measures could not be completed and approved prior to the 

adoption of the codes by the City Council.   

c. No other jurisdiction in the region is proposing to adopt Tier 1 Energy Efficiency 

Measures. 

A summary of reasons for the newly proposed local amendments (those local amendments that 

substantially differ from the local amendments previously adopted by the City Council) can be 

found in Attachment B. 

The proposed ordinance has been reviewed by the City Attorney’s office. 

The codes proposed for adoption (without amendments) are available for review at City Hall.  

The strikeout/underline version of the draft ordinance can be downloaded from the City website 

at : http://www.sonomacity.org/Sonoma/media/Files/Building/Building-Code-Adoption-
Ordinance-xx-2016-STRIKEOUT-10-17-16_1.pdf. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 

Each time the codes are updated (approximately every 3 years), construction costs increase as a 

result of the addition of more restrictive, invasive and complicated requirements. The changes in 

the code result in an increase in the cost of providing code compliance services by increasing the 

need for additional training and public education as well as increasing City costs for plan review, 

inspection and related code enforcement services. The cost for construction also increases for 

project owners, contractors, developers and design professionals due to the need to learn and 

implement the new code requirements.   

 

City staff annually updates and makes recommendations to the City Council for revisions to the 

adopted fee schedule to help offset the service cost increases resulting from the adoption of the 

new California Building Standards Code.  

 

RECOMMENDATION 

1. Discuss any initial questions regarding the proposed local amendments or the adoption of the 

California codes.   

44



2. Publicly read the title of the proposed ordinance and schedule a public hearing to hear the 

matter and possibly adopt the ordinance on November 7, 2016 . 

3. Direct the City Clerk to prepare a summary and carry out the special noticing procedures as 

required by the Government Code. 

 

Note that the required process for adopting and amending the Building Standards Code is 

different from the process followed with most other City ordinances.  In this case, the public 

hearing on the substance of the ordinance is conducted at the time of second reading of the 

ordinance, rather than at the time of the first reading.  The action recommended for October 17
th

 is 

simply to discuss questions and introduce the ordinance.  While public comments can be taken, a 

public hearing must be held at the subsequent meeting (in this instance on November 7
th

 ), at 

which time the ordinance would either be adopted or amended and reintroduced.  

 

ALTERNATIVES 

1. The City Council can direct staff to make further amendments to the proposed codes.  If 

further amendments are proposed after the second reading and the public hearing, the 

ordinance will need to be reintroduced at the next meeting of the Council.  A second public 

hearing need not be held on amendments made per Council direction. 

2. The City Council can choose not to adopt local amendments, in which case the unmodified 

version of the 2016  California Building Standards Code would stand on its own and become 

effective on January 1, 2017. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

 Attachment  A - Draft Ordinance Repealing and Reenacting a New Chapter 14.10 

(Construction Codes) of the Sonoma Municipal Code. 

 Attachment  B - Summary of Reasons for Amendments to the State Building Standards Code 

45



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

CITY OF SONOMA 
 

ORDINANCE NO. __-2016 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SONOMA REPEALING CHAPTER 14.10 OF THE 
SONOMA MUNICIPAL CODE IN ITS ENTIRETY AND REENACTING A NEW 

CHAPTER 14.10, ADOPTING NEW ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS AND ADOPTING 
BY REFERENCE PARTS 2, 2.5, 3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11 AND 12 OF THE 2016 

CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS CODE AND AMENDMENTS THERETO. 
 
 

 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SONOMA DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. 
 
 Chapter 14.10, Construction Codes, of the Sonoma Municipal Code and Ordinance 07-2013 are 
hereby repealed in its entirety and reenacted to read as follows:  
 
 

Chapter 14.10 
 

CONSTRUCTION CODES 
 

Sections: 
14.10.005 Findings. 
14.10.010 Administrative Provisions. 
14.10.015 Technical Codes Adopted. 
14.10.020 2016 California Building Code Amendments. 
14.10.025 2016 California Residential Code Amendments. 
14.10.030 2016 California Electrical Code Amendments. 
14.10.035 2016 California Mechanical Code Amendments. 
14.10.040 2016 California Plumbing Code Amendments. 
14.10.045 2016 California Fire Code Amendments. 
14.10.050 2016 California Green Building Standards Code Amendments. 
14.10.055 2016 California Existing Building Code Amendments 
14.10.060 Board of Appeals. 
14.10.065 Modification of Fee Schedules. 
14.10.070 Enforcement Authority.  
 
14.10.005 Findings.    

A. The city council finds that in order to best protect the health, safety, sustainability and 
welfare of the citizens of Sonoma, the administrative regulations adopted herein and hereinafter 
referred to as the “administrative provisions” and the building standards for building construction, 
hereinafter referred to as the “technical codes,” and also known as the 2016 Edition of the California 
Building Standards Code and the California Code of Regulations, Title 24, including Parts 2, 2.5, 3, 4, 
5, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11 and 12, shall be adopted as provided herein. 
 
 B. Based on the materials presented by and the recommendations of the city’s building 
official and fire chief, the city council finds that it is necessary to make procedural and administrative 
modifications and changes to the California Building Standards Code and to adopt certain appendices 

46



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

to the California Building Standards Code as specifically adopted in this ordinance, to provide more 
efficient, economical and expeditious enforcement of the building standards of the City of Sonoma, 
hereinafter referred to as “the City.” The city council further finds and determines that pursuant to 
Health and Safety Code Sections 13143.5,17958, 17958.5, 17958.7 and 18941.5 the substantive 
amendments to California Building Standards Code, which are adopted by this chapter, are reasonable 
and necessary because of local climatic, geographical or topographical conditions and do not lessen, 
diminish or change the standards set forth within the California Building Standards Code except as 
authorized by law.   
 
 C. The city council finds and determines that pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 
18909(c), the “administrative provisions” adopted by this chapter are procedural and administrative in 
nature and are not subject to the requirements of findings pursuant to Sections 17958.5, 17958.7 and 
18941.5. 

 D. The city council hereby makes the following express findings of necessity, as applicable, 
for the modifications to the California Building Standards Code: 
 
 Express Finding of Necessity #1: The City's topography and terrain contain areas which are 
very susceptible to wildland fires, having a local climate characterized by hot, dry summers with 
periodic high winds which are a predominate factor in the spread of fire by burning embers that are 
carried by the wind to adjacent exposed areas. This is further compounded by agricultural and 
recreational use of lands contained within the City, as well as the open space, brush and hills that are 
part of and immediately adjacent to the City.  These topographic and climatic conditions impact the 
City’s emergency services in such a way that their effects should be mitigated through appropriate 
amendments to the construction codes where practical. 
 
 Express Finding of Necessity #2: Earthquake activity represents significant potential hazards 
which could result in road closures, loss of housing, fires, injuries, collapsed buildings, and isolation of 
persons requiring assistance.  Additionally, soil conditions within the City are such that liquefaction may 
occur during seismic activity, creating the potential for structure collapse or mudslides. There are only a 
limited number of thoroughfares through the City, and during periods of traffic congestion resulting from 
roadway obstructions, emergency services response times are increased. The City is comprised of a 
relatively large number of historically significant buildings which contain archaic materials and designs 
which present unique safety, remodeling and upgrading problems due to their age and proximity to 
earthquake faults. The proximity of the Rogers Creek earthquake fault, located only a few miles from 
the City, represents a geologic hazard that could significantly impact the City’s occupants, its 
emergency services and its economic well-being in such a way that the potential hazards should be 
mitigated through appropriate amendments to the construction codes where practical. 
 
 Express Finding of Necessity #3: Due to the elevation of the City in relation to sea level and 
periodic storms resulting in significant rainfall, flooding during the rainy season often restricts traffic, has 
a detrimental effect on structures, housing and their occupants and can impair emergency services 
ability to respond to life threatening emergencies.  Additionally, high ground water, clay soils and the 
location of the “hardpan” within the City can slow rain and surface water absorption, often resulting in 
localized ponding and flooding. These geologic and climatic conditions impact the City in such a way 
that their effects should be mitigated through appropriate amendments to the construction codes where 
practical. 
 

Express Finding of Necessity #4: The City's climate is periodically subject to relatively dry 
winters and hot, dry summers.  The lack of rainfall can result in water shortages and reductions in 
available ground water that impact the public health, safety, and welfare of its citizens and businesses 

47



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

in such a way that their effects should be mitigated through appropriate amendments to the 
construction codes to prohibit the use of equipment or fixtures which waste water and require water 
conservation measures, the efficient use of potable water, including utilization of fire-resistive 
construction and fire protection systems to reduce the use of water for fire-fighting,  and other water-
saving measures.   
 
14.10.010 Administrative Provisions. 

 By adoption of the administrative provisions in this chapter the city council does not intend to 
create, establish, or impose any mandatory duty or liability on the part of the city, its officers, 
employees, or any other person acting on its behalf, notwithstanding the use of “shall,” “will,” “must” or 
similar terms within this section. The following administrative provisions are hereby adopted and shall 
apply to the technical codes adopted by reference in this chapter as may be amended herein: 
 

SECTION 101 

GENERAL 

101.1 Title. The provisions of Sonoma Municipal Code Section 14.10.010 shall be known as 

the “administrative provisions” and shall be cited as such. These administrative provisions, 

together with the technical codes adopted by the city council, will be referred to herein as 

"this code."   

101.2 Scope. These administrative provisions shall serve as the administrative, organizational 

and enforcement rules and regulations in support of the technical codes adopted by the City 

which regulate the site preparation, construction, alteration, relocation, enlargement, 

replacement, moving, demolition, repair, maintenance, use and occupancy of buildings, 

structures, building service equipment and any appurtenances connected or attached to such 

buildings or structures within the City.  

The provisions of each of the technical codes shall apply as follows: 

101.2.1  California Building Code. The provisions of the California Building Code 

shall apply to the construction, alteration, relocation, enlargement, replacement, 

repair, equipment, use and occupancy, location, moving, maintenance, removal and 

demolition of every building or structure or any appurtenances connected or attached 

to such buildings or structures. 

48



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

Exception:  

1. Detached one- and two-family dwellings and multiple single-family 

dwellings (townhouses) not more than three stories above grade plane in 

height with a separate means of egress, and their accessory structures not 

more than three stories above grade plane in height, shall be permitted to 

be constructed in accordance with the California Residential Code. 

2. Live/work units located in townhouses and complying with the 

requirements of Section 419 of the California Building Code shall be 

permitted to be constructed in accordance with the California Residential 

Code. Fire suppression systems for live/work units located in townhouses 

constructed shall conform to California Residential Code Section R313. 

3. Owner-occupied lodging houses with five or fewer guestrooms shall be 

permitted to be constructed in accordance with the California Residential 

Code where equipped with a fire sprinkler system in accordance with 

California Residential Code Section R313. 

101.2.2  California Residential Code. The provisions of the California Residential 

Code shall apply to the construction, alteration, relocation, enlargement, replacement, 

repair, equipment, use and occupancy, location, moving, maintenance, removal and 

demolition of detached one- and two-family dwellings and multiple single-family 

dwellings (townhouses) not more than three stories above grade plane in height with 

a separate means of egress, and their accessory structures not more than three stories 

above grade plane in height. 

101.2.3  California Electrical Code. The provisions of the California Electrical 

Code shall apply to the installation, alterations, repairs and replacement of electrical 

systems, including but not limited to, electrical wiring, equipment, appliances, 

fixtures, devices, fittings and/or appurtenances, and other electrical-related systems, 

materials, parts or components. 

101.2.4  California Mechanical Code. The provisions of the California Mechanical 

Code shall apply to the installation, alterations, repairs and replacement of 

mechanical systems, including but not limited to, equipment, appliances, fixtures, 

fittings and/or appurtenances, including ventilating, heating, cooling, air- 

conditioning and refrigeration systems, commercial kitchen equipment, incinerators 

and other energy systems. The provisions of the California Mechanical Code shall 

49



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

also apply to the installation of gas piping from the point of delivery, gas appliances 

and related accessories as covered in this code. These requirements apply to gas 

piping systems extending from the point of delivery to the inlet connections of 

appliances and the installation and operation of residential and commercial gas 

appliances and related accessories. 

101.2.5  California Plumbing Code. The provisions of the California Plumbing 

Code shall apply to the installation, alteration, repair and replacement of plumbing 

systems, including but not limited to, equipment, appliances, fixtures, fittings and 

appurtenances, and where connected to a water or sewage system and all aspects of a 

medical gas system.  

101.2.6  California Energy Code.  The provisions of the California Energy Code 

shall apply to all matters governing the design and construction of buildings for 

energy efficiency. 

101.2.7  California Historical Building Code.  The provisions of the California 

Historical Building Code shall apply to the preservation, restoration, rehabilitation, 

relocation or reconstruction of buildings or properties designated as qualified 

historical buildings or properties.  

101.2.8  California Fire Code. The provisions of the California Fire Code shall 

apply to matters affecting or relating to structures, processes and premises from the 

hazard of fire and explosion arising from the storage, handling or use of structures, 

materials or devices; from conditions hazardous to life, property or public welfare in 

the occupancy of structures or premises; and from the construction, extension, repair, 

alteration or removal of fire suppression, automatic sprinkler systems and alarm 

systems or fire hazards in the structure or on the premises from occupancy or 

operation. 

101.2.9   California Existing Building Code.  The provisions of the California 

Existing Building Code shall apply to matters governing the repair, alteration, change 

of occupancy, addition to and relocation of existing buildings. 

101.2.9.1 Buildings not previously occupied. A building or portion of a 

building that has not been previously occupied or used for its intended 

purpose in accordance with the laws in existence at the time of its completion 

shall be permitted to comply with the provisions of the laws in existence at 

50



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

the time of its original permit unless such permit has expired. Subsequent 

permits shall comply with the California Building Code or California 

Residential Code, as applicable, for new construction. 

101.2.9.2 Buildings previously occupied. The legal occupancy of any 

building existing on the date of adoption of this code shall be permitted to 

continue without change, unless otherwise limited, restricted or prohibited  in 

the California Existing Building Code or the California Fire Code, or as is 

deemed necessary by the building official for the general safety and welfare 

of the occupants and the public. 

101.2.9.3 Building evaluation. The building official is authorized to require 

an existing building to be investigated and evaluated by a registered design 

professional when the building official determines that such evaluation is 

necessary to safeguard the public health, safety and welfare insofar as 

they are affected by a proposed repair, alteration, change of 

occupancy, change in use, addition, relocation of an existing building, 

when unpermitted work has occurred, when the building has been 

damaged or when the building official determines that the building 

may be unsafe or dangerous. The design professional shall notify the 

building official if any potential nonconformance with the provisions of the 

California Existing Building Code is identified or observed. 

101.2.10  California Green Building Standards Code. The provisions of the 

California Green Building Standards Code shall apply to the planning, design, 

operation, construction, sustainability, use and occupancy of all newly constructed 

and altered buildings or structures, unless otherwise indicated in that code. 

 

 

101.3 Purpose. The purpose of these administrative provisions is to protect the health, safety, 

and welfare of the public as it pertains to building construction and the built environment and 

provide for the administration and enforcement of the technical codes adopted by the City. 

The purpose of the technical codes adopted by the City is to establish minimum building 

standards to safeguard the public safety, health and general welfare through sustainability, 

affordability, structural strength, means of egress facilities, stability, sanitation, light and 

51



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

ventilation, energy conservation and safety to life and property from fire and other hazards 

attributed to the built environment and to provide safety to fire fighters and emergency 

responders during emergency operations. 

SECTION 102  

APPLICABILITY   

102.1 Conflict between codes. Where there is a conflict between a general requirement and a 

specific requirement in the technical codes, the specific requirement shall be applicable. 

Where conflicts occur between the provisions of the technical codes and referenced 

standards, the provisions of the technical codes shall apply. Where conflicts between 

technical codes occur, the more restrictive requirement, as determined by the Building 

Official, shall apply. 

102.2 Other laws. The provisions of this code shall not be deemed to nullify any provisions 

of local, state or federal law. 

102.3 Application of references. References to chapter or section numbers, or to provisions 

not specifically identified by number, shall be construed to refer to such chapter, section or 

provision of this code. Where references in this code are made to Chapter 1, Division II 

(Scope and Administration) of the California Building Code,  California Residential Code, 

California Plumbing Code, California Mechanical Code, or the California Existing Building 

Code, the applicable corresponding provisions contained within these administrative 

provisions shall apply. 

102.4 References to prior code. Unless superseded and expressly repealed, references in 

City forms, documents and regulations to the chapters and sections of this code previously 

adopted by the city council, shall be construed to apply to the corresponding provisions 

contained within this code.  

102.5 Referenced codes and standards. The technical codes and standards referenced in this 

code and the other building and construction regulations contained in Title 14 of the Sonoma 

Municipal Code shall be considered part of the requirements of this code to the prescribed 

extent of each such reference. Where differences occur between provisions of this code and 

other referenced codes and standards, the more restrictive provision shall apply.  Where there 

is a conflict between a general standard and a specific standard, the specific standard shall be 

applicable.   

52



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

All reference to codes published by the National Fire Protection Association, the International 

Code Council, the International Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials and 

similar code publishing organizations within the referenced standards shall be replaced by 

similar equivalent provisions, if available and published in the California Building Standards 

Code as adopted and amended by the City of Sonoma. 

Exception: Where enforcement of a code provision would violate the conditions of 

the listing of the equipment or appliance, the conditions of the listing and 

manufacturer's instructions shall apply. 

102.6 Appendices. Provisions in the appendices or annexes of the technical codes shall not 

apply unless such appendices or annexes or provisions in which they are contained, have been 

specifically adopted. 

102.7 Partial invalidity. In the event any part or provision of this code is held to be illegal or 

void, this shall not have the effect of making void or illegal any of the other parts or 

provisions. 

102.8 Existing installations of building service equipment. Unless otherwise specifically 

required by federal, state or local laws, regulations or ordinances, building, electrical, 

plumbing, mechanical, sustainability measures, energy systems  and conveyance equipment, 

components and systems lawfully in existence at the time of the adoption of the technical 

codes may have their use, maintenance or repair continued if the use, maintenance or repair is 

in accordance with the original approved design and a hazard to life, health or property has 

not been created by such building service equipment.  

102.9 Existing occupancy. The legal occupancy of any structure existing on the date of 

adoption of this code shall be permitted to continue without change, except as is specifically 

required by the California Existing Building Code, the California Historical Building Code, 

the California Fire Code, State Housing Law, this code or any other federal or state regulation 

preempting these regulations, as applicable. 

102.10 Additions, alterations or repairs. Additions, alterations or repairs to any electrical, 

mechanical or plumbing equipment, components or systems or to any structure shall conform 

to the applicable requirements for new construction without requiring the entire existing 

structure or system to comply with all of the requirements of this code, unless otherwise 

stated. Additions, alterations or repairs shall not cause an existing structure or electrical, 

mechanical or plumbing equipment, component or system to become unsafe or adversely 

53



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

affect the condition of the building. Additions, alterations and repairs to structures shall 

comply with the minimum requirements of this code, as applicable. 

102.11 Moved Buildings. Moved buildings shall comply with the California Existing 

Building Code.   

102.12 Maintenance. Buildings, structures and parts thereof and electrical, plumbing and 

mechanical equipment, components and systems shall be maintained in a safe, sanitary and 

proper operating condition pursuant to the applicable provisions of the technical codes or any 

federal or state regulation preempting the applicability and enforcement of the technical 

codes.  

 

SECTION 103 

DEFINITIONS 

For the purpose of this code, certain terms, phrases, words and their derivatives shall be 

construed as specified in this section or as otherwise defined in the technical codes. Where 

terms are not defined, they shall have their ordinarily accepted meanings within the context 

with which they are used. Webster's Third New International Dictionary of the English 

Language, Unabridged, shall be considered as providing ordinarily accepted meanings.  

…ADDITION.  See California Building Code Section 202. 

…ALTER or ALTERATION. See California Building Code Section 202. 

…APPROVED. See California Building Code Section 202. 

…ATTRACTIVE NUISANCE. See definition for “Nuisance.” 

…BUILDING. See California Building Code Section 202. 

…BUILDING, EXISTING. See California Building Code Section 202. 

…BUILDING OFFICIAL. See California Building Code Section 202. 

…BUILDING SERVICE EQUIPMENT.  The plumbing, mechanical, electrical and 

elevator equipment including piping, wiring, ductwork, fixtures and other accessories, 

components  and devices which provide sanitation, lighting, power, security, heating, 

ventilation, cooling, refrigeration, cooking, fire-suppression, alarms and transportation 

facilities essential to the occupancy of the building or structure for its designated use. 

…CITY.  See Section 1.04.010 of the Sonoma Municipal Code. 

54



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

…DANGEROUS BUILDING. See definition for “Unsafe Structure.” 

…JURISDICTION. See California Building Code Section 202. 

…NUISANCE. (See definition in Sonoma Municipal Code Section 14.30.020(A)  

…OCCUPANCY is the purpose for which a building, or part thereof, is used or intended to 

be used. 

…OWNER is any person, agent, firm or corporation having a legal or equitable interest in 

the property. 

…PARTY IN INTEREST means the record owner as the name and address of that person 

or entity appears on the last equalized assessment roll and if known, the person in real or 

apparent charge and control of the premises involved, and if known, the holder of any 

mortgage, trust deed or other lien or encumbrance of record or any other known beneficiary 

to the building or structure or the land upon which it is located, and if known, residential 

tenants of a property.  

…PERMIT. See California Building Code Section 202. 

…PERMITEE is the responsible party designated on a permit. The permittee shall either be 

the property owner, the property owner’s authorized representative or a contractor licensed to 

perform or oversee the permitted work. 

…PUBLIC NUISANCE. See definition for “Nuisance.” 

…REPAIR. See California Building Code Section 202. 

…STRUCTURE. See California Building Code Section 202. 

…TECHNICAL CODES are those codes adopted by the city council in Chapter 14.10.015 

of the Sonoma Municipal Code containing the provisions for design, construction, alteration, 

addition, repair, removal, demolition, use, location, occupancy and maintenance of buildings 

and structures and building service equipment as herein defined.  

   THIS CODE refers to the  provisions in this chapter, together with the technical codes 

adopted by the city council as amended herein. 

…UNSAFE STRUCTURE.  Any building or structure which has any or all of the conditions 

or defects hereinafter described is an unsafe building provided that such conditions or defects 

exist to the extent that life, health, property, or safety of the public or its occupants are 

55



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

endangered. For the purposes of this code, the term “dangerous building” is synonymous with 

the term “unsafe building.” 

(a) Whenever any door, aisle, passageway, or other means of exit is not of sufficient 

width or size or is not so arranged as to provide safe and adequate means of exit in 

case of fire or panic. 

(b) Whenever the walking surface of any aisle, passageway, stairway or other means 

of exit is so warped, worn, loose, torn, obstructed or otherwise unsafe as to not 

provide safe and adequate means of exit in case of fire or panic. 

(c) Whenever the stress in any materials, member, or portion thereof, due to all dead 

and live loads, is more than one and one-half times the working stress or stresses 

allowed for new buildings of similar structure, purpose, or location. 

(d) Whenever any portion thereof has been damaged by fire, earthquake, wind, flood, 

or by any other cause, to such an extent that the structural strength or stability thereof 

is materially less than it was before such catastrophe and is less than the minimum 

requirements for new buildings of similar structure, purpose, or location. 

(e) Whenever any portion, member, or appurtenance thereof is likely to fail, to 

become detached or dislodged, or to collapse and thereby injure persons or damage 

property. 

(f) Whenever any portion of a building, or any member, appurtenance, or 

ornamentation on the exterior thereof is not of sufficient strength or stability or is not 

so anchored, attached, or fastened in place so as to be capable of resisting a wind 

pressure of one-half of that specified for new buildings of similar structure, purpose, 

or location without exceeding the working stresses permitted for such buildings. 

(g) Whenever any portion of a structure has cracked, warped, buckled, or settled to 

such an extent that walls or other structural portions have materially less resistance to 

winds or earthquakes than is required in the case of similar new construction. 

(h) Whenever the building or structure, or any portion thereof, because of (1) 

dilapidation, deterioration, or decay; (2) faulty construction; (3) the removal, 

movement, or instability of any portion of the ground necessary for the purpose of 

supporting such building; (4) the deterioration, decay, or inadequacy of its 

foundation; or (5) any other cause, is likely to partially or completely collapse. 

56



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

(i) Whenever, for any reason, the building, structure, or any portion thereof, including 

equipment regulated by this code, is manifestly unsafe for the purpose of which it is 

being used. 

(j) Whenever the exterior walls or other vertical structural members list, lean, or 

buckle to such an extent that a plumb line passing through the center of gravity does 

not fall inside the middle one-third of the base. 

(k) Whenever the building or structure, exclusive of the foundation, shows thirty-

three percent or more damage or deterioration of its supporting member or members, 

or fifty percent damage or deterioration of its non-supporting members, enclosing or 

outside walls or coverings. 

(l) Whenever the building or structure has been so damaged by fire, wind, 

earthquake, or flood or has become so dilapidated or deteriorated so as to become (1) 

an attractive nuisance to children or, (2) a public nuisance, or (3) freely accessible to 

persons for the purpose of committing unlawful acts. 

(m) Whenever any building or structure has been constructed, exists or is maintained 

in violation of any specific requirement of this code as applicable, including 

construction without a permit, or prohibition pursuant to California Health and Safety 

Code Section 17920.3 or of any law or ordinance of this state or jurisdiction relating 

to the condition or location of said structure or building. 

(n) Whenever any building or structure which, whether or not erected in accordance 

with all applicable laws and ordinances, has in any non-supporting part, member, or 

portion less than fifty percent, or in any supporting part, member, or portion less than 

sixty-six percent of the (1) strength, (2) fire-resisting qualities or characteristics, or 

(3) weather-resisting qualities or characteristics, required by law in the case of a 

newly-constructed building of like area, height, and occupancy in the same location. 

(o) Whenever a building or structure, used or intended to be used for dwelling 

purposes, because of inadequate maintenance, dilapidation, decay, damage, faulty 

construction or arrangements, inadequate light, air or sanitation facilities, or 

otherwise, is determined by the health officer, fire chief or building official to be 

unsanitary, unfit for human habitation, or in such a condition that is likely to cause 

sickness or disease. 

57



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

(p) Whenever any building, structure or portion thereof, because of obsolescence, 

dilapidated condition, deterioration, damage, inadequate exits, inadequate 

maintenance, damage from an earthquake, flood, fire or other calamity, 

abandonment, exposure to hazardous materials, lack of sufficient fire-resistive 

construction, faulty electric wiring, faulty or unsafe gas conditions or heating 

apparatus, unsanitary conditions or other cause, is determined by the fire chief or 

building official to be a fire hazard, attractive nuisance, hazard to the life, safety or 

health of the public or occupants of the building. 

(q) Whenever any building or structure is in such a condition as to constitute a public 

nuisance or as otherwise known to common law or equity jurisprudence.  

(r) Whenever any portion of a building or structure remains on a site after the 

demolition or destruction of the building or structure or portion thereof, or whenever 

any building or structure so abandoned for a period in excess of six months so as to 

constitute such building or portion thereof an attractive nuisance or hazard to the 

public. 

(s) Whenever any building or structure has been abandoned or becomes vacant, is 

dilapidated and unsecured or open at exterior doors or windows, leaving the interior 

of the building exposed to the elements or accessible to entrance by trespassers or is 

otherwise an attractive nuisance or hazard to the public. 

(t) Whenever any building, structure or portion thereof, whether structurally damaged 

or not, is dangerous to human life by reason of being located in an area which is 

unsafe due to hazard from landslide, settlement, or slippage or any other cause. 

(u) Whenever any building, structure or portion thereof, because of unfinished, 

uninspected or uncompleted work required under a building permit and where the 

permit for the work has expired, or uncompleted work that would have been required 

under a building permit but where no permit has been issued, is determined by the 

building official to be a fire hazard, attractive nuisance, hazard to the life, safety or 

health of the public or occupants of the building. 

(v) Whenever any building is declared to be substandard as defined in Section 

17920.3 of the California Health & Safety Code. 

 …VALUATION or VALUE, as applied to a building and its building service equipment, 

shall be the estimated cost to replace the building and its building service equipment, along 

58



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

with all casework, appliances, fixtures, equipment and other items and appurtenances 

attached or connected thereto, in kind, based on current replacement costs, as determined 

by the building official. Valuation shall also include displays, shelving or other elements 

or fixtures within or immediately adjacent to an accessible route as defined by the 

California Building Code.  Cord and plug connected equipment not otherwise 

regulated by this code shall be excluded from the calculation of valuation. 

SECTION 104 

BUILDING DEPARTMENT 

104.1 Creation of enforcement agency. The building department is hereby created and the 

official in charge thereof shall be known as the building official. 

104.2 Appointment. The building official shall be appointed by the city manager. 

104.3 Deputies. The building official, with the approval of the city manager, shall have the 

authority to appoint deputy building officials, technical officers, inspectors, plans examiners 

and other employees or official representatives of the Building Department.  Such employees 

or official representatives shall have powers as delegated by the building official. 

SECTION 105  

DUTIES AND POWERS OF THE BUILDING OFFICIAL 

105.1 General authority. The building official is hereby authorized and directed to enforce 

the provisions of this code. The building official shall have the authority to render 

interpretations of this code and to adopt policies and procedures in order to clarify the 

application of its provisions. Such interpretations, policies and procedures shall be in 

conformance with the intent and purpose of this code. Such policies and procedures shall not 

have the effect of waiving requirements specifically provided for in this code. 

105.1.1  Authorization to investigate.  The building official is authorized to 

investigate the cause, origin, and circumstances of any fire, explosion, or other 

hazardous condition. 

105.1.2 Dangerous equipment. When the use of any electrical, plumbing or 

mechanical equipment or its installations is found to be dangerous to human life, 

heath or property, the building official shall have the authority to have the premises 

59



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

disconnected from its source of electric, gas or water  supply as applicable. The 

building official shall provide written notice of such disconnection and the causes 

therefor shall be given within 24 hours to the owners, the occupant, or both, of such 

building, structure, or premises. It shall be unlawful for any person to reconnect the 

equipment to its source of electric supply, or to use or permit to be used electric 

power in any such electrical equipment until such causes for the disconnection have 

been remedied to the satisfaction of the building official. 

105.1.3 Delegation of authority.  The building official shall be permitted to delegate 

to other qualified individuals such powers as necessary for the proper administration 

and enforcement of this code. 

105.2 Applications and permits. The building official shall receive applications, review 

construction documents and issue permits for the erection and alteration, demolition and 

moving of buildings and structures, inspect the premises for which such permits have been 

issued and enforce compliance with the provisions of this code. 

105.3 Notices and orders. The building official shall issue all necessary notices or orders to 

ensure compliance with this code. 

105.4 Inspections. The building official is authorized to make all required inspections, or the 

building official shall have the authority to accept reports of inspection by agencies or 

individuals approved by the building official for the specific purpose. Reports of such 

inspections shall be in writing and be prepared by a responsible officer of such approved 

agency or by the responsible individual. The building official may seek and engage expert 

opinion as deemed necessary to report upon unusual technical issues that arise. 

105.5 Identification. The building official shall carry proper identification when inspecting 

structures or premises in the performance of duties under this code. 

105.6 Right of entry. Where it is necessary to make an inspection to enforce the provisions 

of this code, or where the building official has reasonable cause to believe that there exists in 

a structure or upon a premises a condition which is contrary to or in violation of this code 

which makes the structure or premises potentially unsafe, dangerous or hazardous, the 

building official is authorized to enter the structure or premises at reasonable times to inspect 

or to perform the duties imposed by this code, provided that if such structure or premises be 

occupied that credentials be presented to the occupant and entry requested. If such structure 

or premises are unoccupied, the building official shall first make a reasonable effort to locate 

60



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

the owner or other person having charge or control of the structure or premises and request 

entry. If entry is refused, the building official shall have recourse to the remedies provided by 

law to secure entry. 

105.7 Department records. The building official shall keep official records of applications 

received, permits and certificates issued, fees collected, reports of inspections, and notices 

and orders issued. Such records shall be retained in the official records of the City for the 

period required by the City or state for the retention of the specific public record. 

105.8 Liability. The building official or his/her designee, member of the board of appeals or 

employee charged with the enforcement of this code, while acting for the jurisdiction in good 

faith and without malice in the discharge of the duties required by this code or other pertinent 

law or ordinance, shall not thereby be rendered liable personally and is hereby relieved from 

personal liability for any damage accruing to persons or property as a result of any act or by 

reason of an act or omission in the discharge of official duties. Any suit instituted against an 

officer or employee because of an act performed by that officer or employee in the lawful 

discharge of duties and under the provisions of this code shall be defended by legal 

representative of the jurisdiction until the final termination of the proceedings. The building 

official or any subordinate shall not be liable for cost in any action, suit or proceeding that is 

instituted in pursuance of the provisions of this code. 

105.9 Approved materials and equipment. Materials, equipment and devices approved by 

the building official shall be constructed and installed in accordance with such approval. 

105.9.1 Used materials and equipment. The use of used materials which meet the 

requirements of this code for new materials is permitted. Used materials, equipment 

and devices shall not be reused unless approved by the building official. 

105.10 Modifications. Wherever there are practical difficulties involved in carrying out the 

provisions of this code, the building official shall have the authority to grant modifications for 

individual cases, provided the building official shall first find that the specific circumstance 

makes the strict letter of this code impractical and the modification is in compliance with the 

intent and purpose of this code and that such modification does not lessen health, 

accessibility, life and fire safety requirements or structural requirements. The details of 

granting the modification shall be recorded and entered in the files of the building 

department.  

61



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

105.11 Alternative materials, design and methods of construction and equipment. The 

provisions of this code are not intended to prevent the installation of any material or to 

prohibit any design or method of construction not specifically prescribed by this code, 

provided that any such alternative has been approved. An alternative material, design or 

method of construction may be approved where the building official finds that the proposed 

design is satisfactory and complies with the intent of the provisions of this code, and that the 

material, method or work offered is, for the purpose intended, at least the equivalent of that 

prescribed in this code.  

105.11.1 Research reports. Supporting data may be required by the building official 

where necessary to assist in the approval of materials or assemblies not specifically 

provided for in this code. Supporting data may consist of valid research reports, test 

reports or manufacturer’s data from sources approved by the building official.  

105.11.2 Tests. Whenever there is insufficient evidence of compliance with the 

provisions of this code, or evidence that a material or method does not conform to the 

requirements of this code, or in order to substantiate claims for alternative materials 

or methods, the building official shall have the authority to require tests as evidence 

of compliance to be made at no expense to the jurisdiction. Test methods shall be as 

specified in this code or by other recognized test standards. In the absence of 

recognized and accepted test methods, the building official shall approve the testing 

procedures. Tests shall be performed by an approved agency. Reports of such tests 

shall be retained by the building official for the period required for retention of public 

records in this same category. 

 

SECTION 106  

PERMITS 

106.1 Required. Any owner or authorized agent who intends to construct, enlarge, alter, 

repair, move, demolish or change a building or occupancy or use of a building or structure, or 

to erect, install, enlarge, alter, repair, remove, convert or replace any electrical, gas, 

mechanical or plumbing system or component thereof or any accessible feature, element or 

component, the installation of which is regulated by this code, or to cause any such work to 

be done, shall first make application to the building official and obtain the required permit. 

106.1.1 Annual permit. In lieu of an individual permit for each alteration to an 

already approved electrical, gas, mechanical or plumbing installation, the building 

62



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

official is authorized to issue an annual permit upon application therefore to any 

person, firm or corporation regularly employing one or more qualified tradespersons 

in the building, structure or on the premises owned or operated by the applicant for 

the permit. 

106.1.2 Annual permit records. The person to whom an annual permit is issued 

shall keep a detailed record of alterations made under such annual permit. The 

building official shall have access to such records at all times or such records shall be 

filed with the building official as designated. 

106.2 Work exempt from permit. Exemption from permit requirements of this code shall 

not be deemed to grant authorization for any work to be done in any manner in violation of 

the provisions of this code or any other laws or ordinances of this jurisdiction. Permits shall 

not be required for the following: 

Building:   

1. One-story detached accessory structures used as tool and storage sheds, 

playhouses, trellises, arbors, gazebos, shade structures for other than motor 

vehicles, and similar uses, when located on a parcel which contains an 

existing Group R, and/or Group U Occupancy, provided that the building 

complies with zoning setback requirements and the floor area does not 

exceed 120 square feet and the total height does not exceed 9 feet and the 

structure contains no plumbing facilities, electrical circuits or heating 

appliances.  No more than one structure may be allowed under this 

exemption unless separated from another permit-exempt structure by 10 feet 

or more.  

2. Fences constructed of other than stone, masonry or concrete, not over 8 

feet in total height. Fences constructed of stone, masonry or concrete, not 

over 6 feet in total height. 

3. Retaining walls that are not over 4 feet in height measured from the 

bottom of the footing to the top of the wall and retaining not more than 3 feet 

of material, unless supporting a surcharge or impounding Class I, II or IIIA 

liquids. 

63



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

4. Water tanks supported directly upon grade if the capacity does not exceed 

5,000 gallons and the ratio of height to diameter or width does not exceed 2 

to 1. 

5. Sidewalks, walkways, nonstructural concrete slabs and driveways not 

more than 30 inches above adjacent grade and not over any basement or story 

below and are not part of an accessible route. 

6. Painting, papering, tiling, carpeting, cabinets, countertops and similar 

finish work not otherwise altering building service equipment or subject to 

the accessibility requirements contained in Chapters 11A or 11B of the 

California Building Code. 

7. Temporary motion picture, television and theater stage sets and scenery. 

8. Prefabricated swimming pools accessory to a Group R-3 occupancy that 

are less than 18 inches deep, do not exceed 5,000 gallons, and are installed 

entirely above ground. 

9. Shade cloth structures constructed for nursery or agricultural purposes, not 

including service systems. 

10. Swings and other playground equipment with a projected area less than 

120 square feet and are accessory to detached one- and two-family dwellings 

not  subject to the accessibility requirements contained in Chapters 11A or 

11B of the California Building Code. 

11. Window awnings of Groups R-3 and U occupancies supported by an 

exterior wall which do not project more than 54 inches from the exterior wall 

and do not require additional support. 

12. Recovering of awnings on previously approved existing framework. 

13. Decks not exceeding 200 square feet in area, that are not more than 30 

inches above grade at any point, are not attached to a building and do not 

serve a required exit door or an accessible route. 

14. Non-fixed and movable fixtures, cases, racks, counters and partitions not 

over 5 feet 9 inches in height and work not otherwise subject to the 

accessibility requirements contained in Chapters 11A or 11B of the 

California Building Code. 

64



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

15. A tree house that does not exceed 64 square feet in floor area and 8 feet 

in height measured from the top of the treehouse floor to highest point on the 

roof and does not exceed a total height of 15 feet measured from grade plane 

to the top of the treehouse floor or highest point on the roof whichever is 

higher.  

16. Flagpoles not erected upon a building and not more than 15 feet in height 

above grade plane. 

17. In-kind-repair or replacement of less than 32 square feet of drywall, 

siding, stucco or roofing within any 12 month period.  

Electrical:  

1. Listed cord-and-plug connected temporary decorative lighting. 

2. Reinstallation of existing attachment plug receptacles, but not the outlets 

therefore. 

3. Replacement of branch circuit overcurrent devices of the required capacity 

in the same location 

4. Electrical wiring, devices, appliances, apparatus or equipment operating at 

less than 25 volts and not capable of supplying more than 50 watts of energy. 

5. Minor repair work, including installation or replacement of equipment 

such as lamps and electric utilization equipment approved for connection to 

approved  permanently-installed receptacles.  

6. Electrical equipment used for radio and television transmissions, except 

equipment and wiring for a power supply and the installations of towers and 

antennas. 

7. Installation of any temporary system required for the testing or servicing 

of electrical equipment or apparatus or the process of manufacturing, testing, 

servicing, or repairing electrical equipment or apparatus. 

8. Replacement of flush or snap switches, fuses, lamp sockets, receptacles, 

contactor or control device and other minor maintenance and repair work, 

such as replacing worn cords and tightening connections on a wiring device. 

65



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

9. Portable motors or other portable appliances energized by means of a cord 

or cable having an attachment plug end to be connected to an approved 

receptacle when that cord or cable is permitted by the Electrical Code. 

10. Repair or replacement of electrodes or transformers of the same size and 

capacity for signs or gas tube systems. 

11. Installation, alteration or repair of electrical wiring, apparatus or 

equipment or the generation, transmission, distribution or metering of 

electrical energy or in the operation of signals or the transmission of 

intelligence by a public or private utility in the exercise of its function as a 

serving utility. 

Mechanical:  

1. A portable heating appliance, portable ventilating equipment, a portable 

cooling unit, or a portable evaporative cooler. 

2. A closed system of steam, hot, or chilled water piping within heating or 

cooling equipment regulated by this code. 

3. Replacement of any minor component part or assembly of an appliance 

that does not alter its original approval of the equipment and complies with 

other applicable requirements of this code. 

4. Self-contained refrigeration systems containing 10 pounds or less of 

refrigerant or that are actuated by motors of 1 horsepower (746 W) or less 

and refrigerating equipment that is part of the equipment for which a permit 

has been issued pursuant to the requirements of this code. 

5. A plug-and-cord connected unit refrigeration system. 

6. Portable plug-and-cord connected cooking or clothes-drying appliances. 

7. Portable plug-and-cord connected ventilation or cooling equipment. 

8. Portable plug-and-cord connected evaporative cooler. 

9. Portable fuel-cell appliances that are not connected to a fixed piping 

system and are not interconnected to a power grid.  

66



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

Plumbing: 

1. The stopping of leaks in drains, water, soil, waste or vent pipes; provided, 

however, that if any concealed trap, drain pipe, water, soil, waste or vent pipe 

becomes defective and it becomes necessary to remove and replace the same 

with new material, such work shall be considered as new work and a permit 

shall be obtained and inspection made as provided in this code. 

2. The clearing of stoppages or the repairing of leaks in pipes, valves or 

fixtures, and the removal and reinstallation of water closets, provided such 

repairs do not involve or require the replacement or rearrangement of valves, 

pipes or fixtures. 

3. Exterior rainwater catchment systems used for outdoor non-spray 

irrigation with a maximum storage capacity of 5,000 gallons where the tank 

is supported directly upon grade and the ratio of height to diameter or width 

does not exceed 2 to 1 and does not require electrical power or a makeup 

water supply connection. 

4. Exterior rainwater catchment systems used for spray irrigation with a 

maximum storage capacity of 360 gallons. 

106.2.1 Emergency repairs. Where equipment replacements and repairs must be 

performed in an emergency situation, the permit application shall be submitted within 

the next building department business day to the building official. 

106.2.2 Minor Repairs. Application or notice to the building official is not required 

for ordinary or minor maintenance or repairs to structures, including minor damage to 

nonstructural members, the replacement of lamps or the connection of approved 

portable electrical equipment to approved permanently-installed receptacles. Such 

repairs shall not include the cutting away of any wall, partition or portion thereof, the 

removal or cutting of any structural beam or load-bearing support, or the removal, 

change or rearrangement of parts of a structure affecting any required means of 

egress or accessibility requirements; nor shall ordinary repairs include addition to, 

alteration of, replacement or relocation of any water supply, sewer, drainage, drain 

leader, gas, soil, waste, vent or similar piping, electric wiring or mechanical or other 

work affecting public health or general safety.  

67



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

106.2.3 Public service agencies. A permit shall not be required for the installation, 

alteration or repair of generation, transmission, distribution, metering or other related 

equipment that is under the ownership and control of public service agencies by 

established right. 

106.3 Application for permit. To obtain a permit, the applicant shall first file an application 

therefore in writing on a form furnished by the building department for that purpose. 

Such application shall: 

1. Identify and describe the work to be covered by the permit for which application is

made. 

2. Describe the land on which the proposed work is to be done by legal description,

street address or similar description that will readily identify and definitely locate the 

proposed building or work. 

3. Indicate the use and occupancy for which the proposed work is intended.

4. Be accompanied by construction documents and other information as required

herein. 

5. State the estimated value of the proposed work.

6. Be signed by the applicant or the applicant's authorized agent.

7. Give such other data and information as required by the building official.

106.3.1 Action on application. The building official shall examine or cause to be 

examined applications for permits and amendments thereto within a reasonable time 

after filing. If the application is incomplete or does not conform to the requirements 

of pertinent laws, the building official shall reject such application and stipulate the 

reasons therefor to the applicant.  If, in the sole opinion of the building official, the 

construction documents, including plans, specifications, reports and calculations, lack 

sufficient information to show compliance with this code, are inaccurate, are not 

easily readable, are incomplete or do not conform to the requirements of pertinent 

laws, the building official shall reject such application and state in writing the reasons 

therefor. If the building official is satisfied that the proposed work conforms to the 

requirements of this code and laws and ordinances applicable thereto, the building 

official shall issue a permit therefor as soon as practicable. 

68



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

106.3.1.1 Determination of substantially improved or substantially 

damaged existing buildings in flood hazard areas. For applications for 

reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, alteration, repair or other 

improvement of existing buildings or structures located in a flood hazard area 

as established by Sonoma Municipal Code Chapter 14.25, the building 

official shall examine or cause to be examined the construction documents 

and shall make a determination with regard to the value of the proposed 

work. For buildings that have sustained damage of any origin, the value of 

the proposed work shall include the cost to repair the building or structure to 

its pre-damaged condition. If the building official finds that the value of 

proposed work equals or exceeds 50 percent of the market value of the 

building or structure before the damage has occurred or the improvement is 

started, the proposed work is a substantial improvement or restoration of 

substantial damage and the building official shall require existing portions of 

the entire building or structure to meet the requirements of Sonoma 

Municipal Code Chapter 14.25, 

106.3.2 Time limitation of application. An application for a permit for any 

proposed work shall be deemed to have been abandoned 180 days after the date of 

filing unless such application has been pursued in good faith or a permit has been 

issued; except that the building official is authorized to grant one or more extensions 

of time for additional periods not exceeding 180 days each. The extension shall be 

requested in writing and justifiable cause demonstrated. 

106.4 Validity of permit. The issuance or granting of a permit shall not be construed to be a 

permit for, or an approval of, any violation of any provision of this code or of any other 

ordinance of the jurisdiction. Permits presuming to give authority to violate or cancel the 

provisions of this code or other ordinances of the jurisdiction shall not be valid. The issuance 

of a permit based on construction documents and other data shall not prevent the building 

official from requiring subsequent correction of errors in the construction documents and 

other data. The building official is also authorized to prevent occupancy or use of a structure 

where in violation of this code or of any other ordinances of the City. 

106.5 Expiration. Every permit issued shall become invalid unless the work authorized by 

such permit is commenced within 180 days after its issuance, or if the work authorized by 

such permit is suspended or abandoned for a period of 180 days after the time the work is 

69



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

commenced. For the purposes of this section, work shall be considered abandoned if no 

required regular inspection has been conducted by the building department within any l80-

day period. The building official is authorized to grant, in writing, one or more extensions of 

time, for periods not more than 180 days each. The extension shall be requested in writing 

and justifiable cause demonstrated. 

106.6 Suspension or revocation. The building official is authorized to suspend or revoke a 

permit issued under the provisions of this code wherever the permit is issued in error or on 

the basis of incorrect, inaccurate or incomplete information, or in violation of any ordinance 

or regulation or any of the provisions of this code. 

106.7 Placement of permit. The building permit or copy thereof shall be kept on the site of 

the work until the completion of the project. The project  inspection record card and approved 

plans for the permit, if any, shall be available for use by the building official during 

inspections. 

106.8 Responsibility of permittee. It shall be the duty of the permittee and every person who 

performs work on a new or existing building or structure, including installation or repair of a 

building, or structure, or of accessibility features, electrical, gas, mechanical or plumbing 

systems of a building or structure  for which this code is applicable, to comply with this code. 

Building permits shall be presumed to incorporate the provision that the permittee and those 

performing work on behalf of the permittee will carry out the proposed work in accordance 

with the approved plans, with all requirements of this code and any other laws or regulations 

applicable thereto, whether specified or not. No approval shall relieve or exonerate any 

person from the responsibility of complying with the provisions and intent of this code. 

106.9 Preliminary inspection. Before issuing a permit, the building official is authorized to 

examine or cause to be examined buildings, structures and sites for which an application has 

been filed.  The permit applicant shall be responsible for providing reasonable access for 

conducting the preliminary inspection and for the payment of any fee adopted by the City for 

said inspection. 

 

SECTION 107  

SUBMITTAL OF CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS  

107.1 Submittal documents. Submittal documents consisting of the permit application, construction 

documents, statement of special inspections, geotechnical report, required checklists, energy reports, 

calculations, flood elevation documentation, equipment documentation, certifications and other reports 

70



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

and data as determined necessary by the building official shall be submitted in three sets with each 

permit application.  

107.1.1. Building evaluation. The building official is authorized to require an 

existing building to be investigated and evaluated by a registered design professional 

and/or a California Certified Access Specialist (CASp) when determined necessary 

by the building official due to the nature of the proposed work. The design 

professional and/or California Certified Access Specialist (CASp)  shall notify the 

building official if any actual or potential nonconformance with the provisions of this 

code is found. 

 

107.2 Construction Documents.  Construction documents shall be prepared by a registered 

design professional where required by state law or where due to the complexity or nature of 

the design or if special circumstances exist, the building official determines at any time that 

construction documents, or a portion thereof, must be prepared by a registered design 

professional. The building official is authorized to waive the submission of all or a portion of 

the construction documents or the information contained therein and any other information if 

it is determined that the nature of the work proposed does not require construction documents 

or a portion thereof to determine whether  the proposed work is in compliance with this code.  

107.2.1 Information on the construction documents. Construction documents shall 

be submitted with the application for permit and drawn upon suitable material at a 

size and scale acceptable for readability and document imaging as determined by the 

building official. Electronic media documents are permitted to be submitted when 

first approved by the building official. Construction documents shall utilize common 

architectural drafting, symbols, graphics and techniques and shall be of sufficient 

detail, clarity and accuracy to correctly indicate the location, nature and extent of the 

work proposed and to show in detail that it will conform to the applicable provisions 

of this code and relevant laws, ordinances, rules and regulations, as determined by 

the building official. One or more of the construction documents listed below shall be 

prepared and submitted for approval when required by the building official: 

1.  Site Plan  

2.  Design information and elevation certificates for structures within Flood 

Hazard Areas. 

3.  Grading and Drainage Plan 

71



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

4.  Erosion Control and Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan. 

5.  Foundation Plan.   

6.  Floor Framing Plans.   

7.  Floor Plans. 

8.  Electrical Plans.   

9.  Mechanical and Duct Layout Plans 

10. Ceiling Framing Plan 

11. Roof Plan  

12. Truss Layout Plan and Truss Design Documentation 

13. Roof Framing Plan  

14. Full Building Cross-Sections   

15. Foundation Details  

16. Framing or Structural Details  

17. Architectural Details 

18. Exterior Elevations  

19. Interior Elevations   

20. Reflected Ceiling Plans 

21. Plumbing Plan 

22. Restaurant Equipment Plan  

23. Landscaping & Irrigation Plan 

24. Fire Protection System Plans and Shop Drawings 

25. Accessibility Plans and Details 

26. Means of Egress Plan 

27. Any other plans or documentation needed to show compliance with the 

codes, ordinance and regulations as determined by the building official. 

107.2.2 Building Design Information.  When required by the building official, 

construction documents shall include building design information including, but not 

limited to, applicable codes used, design occupancy classifications, construction type, 

building fire resistance rating, number of stories, building height, allowable and 

proposed building area, inclusion of fire sprinkler system, allowable and proposed 

occupant load calculations, exiting calculations, calculations to determine required 

number of restroom fixtures, accessible route of travel, disproportionate cost 

calculations and path of travel deficiencies for accessibility hardship claims, 

structural design loads and criteria, structural wind and seismic categories, wind and 

72



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

seismic importance factors, structural calculations, design flood elevations, 

CALGreen checklists and other pertinent design assumptions or information. 

107.2.3 Manufacturer's installation instructions. Where required by the building 

official, construction documents shall include manufacturer's specification sheets 

and/or installation instructions.   

107.3 Examination of documents; plan review. When the building official determines that 

the necessary submittal documents, construction documents and building design information 

have been provided, the building official shall examine or cause to be examined construction 

documents for compliance with this code and other pertinent laws and ordinances.  The 

building official may utilize or authorize the use of consultant services to perform all or a 

portion of the construction documents review.  The applicant shall be responsible for the 

payment of all costs to conduct the plan review. The building official is authorized to 

withhold the approval of plans and a building permit application if approvals required by 

other governmental agencies or City departments pertaining to the work which are necessary 

for the work to be lawfully performed have not first been obtained. 

107.3.1 Approval of construction documents. When the building official issues a 

permit, the construction documents shall be approved in writing or by a stamp which 

states,  “APPROVED FOR PERMIT." One set of construction documents so 

reviewed shall be retained by the building official. One set shall be returned to the 

applicant and shall be available at the site of work at all times and shall be open to 

inspection and use by the building official or his or her authorized representative. 

107.3.2 Previous approvals. The issuance of a permit based on reviewed and 

approved plans and specifications shall not prevent the building official from 

thereafter requiring the correction of errors or omissions in said plans and 

specifications, or from preventing building operations being carried on thereunder 

when in violation of this code or of any other pertinent laws and ordinances of the 

City. This code shall not require changes in the construction documents, construction 

or designated occupancy of a structure for which an unexpired permit exists to 

otherwise meet a new or different technical code other than those technical codes 

lawfully adopted and in effect at the time of permit issuance.   

107.3.3 Phased approval and conditional authorization to proceed. The building 

official is authorized to issue a permit for the construction of foundations or any other 

73



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

part of a building or structure before the construction documents for the whole 

building or structure have been submitted, provided that adequate information and 

detailed statements have been filed complying with pertinent requirements of this 

code. The permittee for the foundation or other parts of a building or structure shall 

proceed with the building operation at the permittee's own risk and without assurance 

that the work will be approved or that a permit for the entire structure will be granted. 

107.4 Amended construction documents. Work shall be installed in accordance with the 

approved construction documents. Any changes or proposed changes in the work made 

during construction that are not in full conformance and compliance with the approved 

construction documents or the technical codes, shall require the resubmittal of revised 

construction documents for approval by the building official, as either an amended or full  

replacement set for the previously approved construction documents.  The permittee or their 

designee shall be responsible for the payment of all costs to perform the plan review for 

amended construction documents.  Any  additional proposed  work that was not otherwise 

shown or specified on the approved plans for an active permit or that would otherwise 

increase the valuation of an active permit shall require a new permit unless determined 

otherwise by the building official. 

107.5 Design professional in responsible charge. When it is required that documents be 

prepared by a registered design professional, the building official shall be authorized to 

require the owner to engage and designate on the building permit application a registered 

design professional who shall act as the registered design professional in responsible charge. 

If the circumstances require, the owner shall designate a substitute registered design 

professional in responsible charge who shall perform the duties required of the original 

registered design professional in responsible charge. The building official shall be notified in 

writing by the owner if the registered design professional in responsible charge is changed or 

is unable to continue to perform the duties.  

The registered design professional in responsible charge shall be responsible for reviewing 

and coordinating submittal documents prepared by others, including phased and deferred 

submittal documents, for compatibility with the design of the building. 

107.6 Deferred submittals. For the purposes of this section, deferred submittals are defined 

as required documentation listed as deferred submittals on the approved plans but are not 

submitted for building department approval until after the permit has been issued.  Deferral of 

any submittal items shall receive  prior approval of the building official. The registered 

74



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

design professional in responsible charge or the project designer shall list the deferred 

submittals on the construction documents for review by the building official.  

Deferred submittal documents shall be submitted to the registered design professional in 

responsible charge, if any, who shall review them and forward them to the building official 

with a notation indicating that the deferred submittal documents have been reviewed and been 

found to be in general conformance to the design of the building. Deferred submittal items 

shall not be installed until the deferred submittal documents have been approved by the 

building official. The permittee or their designee shall be responsible for the payment of all 

costs to perform the plan review for deferred submittal documents. 

107.7 Retention of construction documents. One set of approved construction documents 

shall be retained by the building official in accordance with the City’s records retention 

policy, or as otherwise required by state law. 

 

SECTION 108  

TEMPORARY STRUCTURES AND USES  

108.1 General. The building official is authorized to issue a permit for temporary structures 

and temporary uses. Such permits shall be limited as to time of service, but shall not be 

permitted for more than 180 days. The building official is authorized to grant extensions for 

demonstrated cause. 

108.2 Conformance. Temporary structures and uses shall conform to the structural strength, 

fire safety, means of egress, accessibility, light, ventilation and sanitary requirements as 

necessary to ensure the health, safety and general welfare of the public and those using the 

temporary structure and shall comply with the applicable requirements of Chapter 31 of the 

California Building Code. 

108.3 Temporary power. The building official is authorized to give permission to 

temporarily supply and use power in parts of an electric installation before all work has been 

fully completed. The parts covered by the temporary authorization shall comply with the 

applicable requirements of the technical codes. 

108.4 Termination of approval. The building official is authorized to terminate a permit for 

a temporary structure or use and to order the temporary structure or use to be discontinued. 

 

75



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

SECTION 109  

FEES  

109.1 Payment of fees. Fees shall be assessed in accordance with the provisions of this 

section and applicable state law. Permit applicants, permittees and persons in violation of any 

provision of this code shall pay all fees necessary to cover the full cost of providing the 

building department service related to the permit, activity or enforcement action in 

accordance with the schedule of fees adopted by the city council. A permit shall not be valid 

until applicable fees adopted by resolution or ordinance of the city council or otherwise 

prescribed by law have been paid nor shall an amendment to a permit be released until an 

additional fee to review and approve the amendment, if any, has been paid.   

109.2 Schedule of fees. Fees for building department services necessary to bring violations of 

this code into compliance, verify conformance with the technical codes or to reimburse the 

jurisdiction for other services rendered shall be paid in accordance with the fee schedule 

established by resolution or ordinance of the city council. 

109.3 Permit inspection fees. The inspection fees for each permit shall be as set forth in the 

fee schedule adopted by the city council.    

When the permit holder’s work is incomplete or changed so as to require more than 

one additional inspection, an additional inspection fee shall be charged at the hourly rate set 

forth in the fee schedule.  When additional inspection fees are assessed, they shall be paid 

prior to scheduling any further inspections. 

109.4 Plan Review Fees. The plan review fees specified in this section are separate from and 

in addition to permit inspection fees. The plan review fee to review compliance with the 

technical codes shall be as set forth in the fee schedule adopted by the city council.  

When submitting an application for a building permit, the applicant shall pay a plan 

review deposit in an amount determined by the building official to defray all or a portion of 

the cost to review the plans and other construction documentation associated with the permit 

application.  Any portion of the deposit that is unused for plan review purposes shall be 

applied towards inspection and other fees assessed on the permit.  If the plan review deposit 

exceeds the total cost of the permit, a refund of the unused balance of the deposit shall be 

issued to the applicant at no additional charge. 

76



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

When submittal documents are incomplete or changed so as to require additional plan 

review or when the project involves deferred submittal documents, an additional plan review 

fee shall be charged at the hourly rate set forth in the fee schedule adopted by the city council. 

109.5 Other Fees. The city council may adopt other fees for services to be charged in 

connection with the issuance of a building permit or the delivery of services by the building 

department.  

109.6 Investigation fee; work commencing or continuing without a permit. Any person 

who commences or continues work requiring a permit on a building, structure, site, electrical 

system, mechanical system, plumbing system or conveying system without first obtaining or 

otherwise maintaining required permits and required inspection approvals shall be subject to -

an investigation fee adopted by the city council.  The investigation fee shall be in addition to 

any other fee charged, and shall be imposed under this section to defray the costs incurred by 

the City in connection with its duties to monitor, review, investigate, and enforce this code.  

109.7 Related fees. The payment of the fee for the construction, alteration, removal or 

demolition work done in connection with, or concurrently with, work authorized by a 

building permit shall not relieve the applicant or permittee from the payment of other fees 

that are prescribed by law or adopted by the City. 

109.8 Refunds. The building official may establish a refund policy and may authorize 

refunding of a fee paid hereunder which was erroneously paid or collected or for which 

services were not rendered or were only partially rendered. 

109.9 Building permit valuation. The applicant for a permit shall provide an estimated value 

of the work at time of application.  The estimated value of work shall include the total value 

of all work including materials, equipment, labor, overhead, profit, general conditions and 

other costs associated with the work for which the permit is being issued. The building 

official shall establish the permit valuation based on published valuation data as updated from 

time to time. If, in the opinion of the building official, the published valuation data are not 

readily available or are over or underestimated based on the actual work of the project, the 

building official may utilize any other reasonable or appropriate means of determining the 

permit valuation, including, but not limited to, using the applicant’s estimated value of work, 

obtaining detailed and complete cost estimates provided by the applicant, or applying 

construction cost estimating manuals.  Final building permit valuation shall be determined 

and set by the building official. 

77



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

 

SECTION 110  

INSPECTIONS  

110.1 General. Construction or work for which a permit is required shall be subject to 

inspection by the building official or his/her designee and such construction or work shall 

remain accessible and exposed for inspection purposes until approved. Approval as a result of 

an inspection shall not be construed to be an approval of a violation of the provisions of this 

code or of other ordinances of the jurisdiction. Inspections presuming to give authority to 

violate or cancel the provisions of this code or of other ordinances of the jurisdiction shall not 

be valid. It shall be the duty of the permit applicant to cause the work to remain accessible 

and exposed for inspection purposes. Neither the building official nor the City shall be liable 

for expense entailed in the removal or replacement of any material required to allow 

inspection.  

110.2 Preliminary inspection. Before issuing a permit, the building official is authorized to 

examine or cause to be examined buildings, structures and sites for which an application has 

been filed. 

110.3 Required inspections. The building official or his/her designee, upon reasonable 

notification, shall make the inspections set forth herein. Reinforcing steel or structural 

framework of any part of any building or structure shall not be covered or concealed without 

first obtaining the approval of the enforcing agency. 

110.3.1 Footing and foundation inspection. Footing and foundation inspections 

shall be made after excavations for footings are complete and any required 

reinforcing steel is in place. For concrete foundations, any required forms and 

reinforcing steel shall be in place prior to inspection. Materials for the foundation 

shall be on the job site except where concrete is ready-mixed in accordance with 

ASTM C 94.  

110.3.2 Concrete slab and under-floor inspection. Concrete slab and under-floor 

inspections shall be made after in-slab or under-floor reinforcing steel and building 

service equipment, conduit, piping or other ancillary building trade products or 

equipment are installed, but before any concrete is placed or floor sheathing is 

installed, including the subfloor. 

78



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

110.3.3 Plumbing, mechanical, gas and electrical systems inspection. Rough 

inspection of plumbing, mechanical, gas and electrical systems shall be made prior to 

covering or concealment, before fixtures or appliances are set or installed, and prior 

to framing inspection. 

110.3.4 Lowest floor elevation in flood hazard areas. In flood hazard areas as 

established by the flood damage prevention regulations of the City, upon placement 

of the lowest floor, including basement, and prior to further vertical construction, the 

building official shall require submission of a flood elevation certificate, prepared 

and sealed by a registered design professional. 

110.3.5 Frame inspection. Framing inspections shall be made after the roof deck or 

sheathing, all framing, fire-blocking and bracing are in place and pipes, chimneys and 

vents to be concealed are complete and the rough electrical, plumbing, heating wires, 

pipes and ducts are approved. 

110.3.5.1 Moisture content verification.  When required by the California 

Green Building Standards Code, moisture content of framing members shall 

be verified.   

110.3.6 Masonry inspection. Inspection of masonry construction, including 

reinforcing steel, shall be made prior to grouting cells. 

110.3.7 Lath and gypsum board inspection. Lath and gypsum board inspections 

shall be made after lathing and gypsum board, interior and exterior, is in place, but 

before any plastering is applied or before gypsum board joints and fasteners are taped 

and finished. 

110.3.8 Fire- and smoke-resistant penetrations and fire-resistance-rated 

construction inspection. Where fire-resistance-rated construction is required 

between dwelling units or due to location on property, the building official shall 

require an inspection of such construction after all lathing and/or wallboard is in 

place, but before any plaster is applied, or before wallboard joints and fasteners are 

taped and finished. Protection of joints and penetrations in fire-resistance-rated 

assemblies, smoke barriers and smoke partitions shall not be concealed from view 

until inspected and approved.  

110.3.9 Energy efficiency. Inspections shall be made to determine compliance with 

the California Energy Code and shall include, but not be limited to, inspections for: 

79



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

envelope insulation, fenestration, duct systems, electrical lighting and controls, 

heating, ventilating and air conditioning equipment and controls and water-heating 

equipment.  

110.3.10  Other inspections. In addition to the inspections above, the building 

official may make or require any other inspections to ascertain compliance with this 

code and other laws enforced by the building official or building department. 

110.3.10.1 Special Inspections. Special inspections shall be performed in 

accordance with chapter 17 of the California Building Code. 

110.3.10.2 CALGreen inspections.  Inspections shall be made to determine 

compliance with the California Green Building Code.  Said inspections shall 

be made by a special inspector, hired by the permit holder, at the sole cost of 

the permit holder, and approved by the building official.  In lieu of special 

inspections, the building official, or his/her designee, shall have the authority 

to conduct CALGreen inspections and/or utilize written documentation to 

verify compliance with the California Green Building Code.   

110.3.10.3 Contractor self-certification of work performed.  In lieu of 

performing certain designated inspections and as a method of verifying 

compliance of a specific requirement of the technical codes, the building 

official may, at his/her sole discretion, accept a signed self-certification 

statement from a licensed contractor or other qualified individual certifying 

that the specific work or requirement has been properly installed or 

completed in accordance with the requirements of the technical codes.   

110.3.11 Final inspection. Final inspection shall be made after the permitted work is 

complete.  The building, or portion thereof where the work occurred, shall not be 

used or occupied until all work has been approved by the building department and a 

certificate of occupancy has been issued by the building official.  

110.3.12 Waiving of inspections for minor work.  The building official may 

authorize the waiver of inspections for minor work or elements if the building official 

finds that the nature or scope of the minor work is not likely to be in violation of the 

technical codes. 

80



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

110.4 Inspection agencies. The building official is authorized to accept reports of approved 

agencies, provided such agencies satisfy the requirements as to qualifications and reliability, 

as determined by the building official. 

110.5 Inspection requests. It shall be the duty of the permit holder or their agent to notify the 

building official that such work is ready for inspection. The building official shall cause to 

have the work inspected in accordance with the inspection request or as soon thereafter as the 

building official’s schedule may permit, subject to scheduling availability.  It shall be the 

duty of the person requesting any inspections required by this code to provide access to and 

means for inspection of such work. The building official is authorized to withhold any 

requested inspection where there is reason to believe that the work has been changed from 

what is shown on the approved plans and no plan amendment for the changed work has been 

approved by the building official. 

110.6 Approval required. Work shall not be performed beyond the point indicated in each 

successive inspection without first obtaining the approval of the building official. The 

building official, upon notification, shall make the requested inspections and shall either 

indicate the portion of the construction that is satisfactory as completed, or shall notify the 

permit holder or an agent of the permit holder of any noted violations found or corrective 

work required to proceed with or complete the inspected portion of the work. Any portion of 

the work that does not comply with this code shall be corrected and such portion shall not be 

covered, concealed or used until authorized by the building official. 

 

SECTION 111  

CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY  

111.1 Use and occupancy. No new, relocated or altered building or structure, or portion 

thereof,  shall be used or occupied, and no change in the existing use or occupancy 

classification of a building or structure, or portion thereof, shall be made until the building 

official has issued a certificate of occupancy therefor as provided herein. The building official 

is authorized to allow temporary use or occupancy of an altered building or portion thereof,  

while the building is being altered when the building official finds that the nature of the work 

does not pose a significant hazard to the occupants or the public.  The building official is 

authorized to withhold the issuance of a certificate of occupancy when the work performed or 

required to be performed does not receive  all required inspection approvals. Issuance of a 

certificate of occupancy shall not be construed as an approval of a violation of the provisions 

81



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

of this code or of other ordinances of the City. A certificate of occupancy presuming to give 

authority to violate or cancel the provisions of this code or other ordinances of the jurisdiction 

shall not be valid. The building official is authorized to withhold a certificate of occupancy or 

permit to use or occupy a structure if approvals required by other governmental agencies or 

City departments pertaining to the work which are necessary for the work to be lawfully 

completed have not first been obtained. 

Exceptions: A Certificate of occupancy is not required for work exempt from a 

permit. 

111.2 Change in use. Changes in the character or use of an existing structure shall not be 

made except as specified in the California Existing Building Code and Chapter 11 of the 

California Fire Code. . 

111.3 Certificate issued. After the building official inspects the building or structure and 

finds no violations of the provisions of this code or other laws that are enforced by the 

building department or any other City department and any approvals from other agencies 

have been obtained as required by Section 111.1 , the building official shall issue a certificate 

of occupancy which shall contain the following:  

1. The building permit number. 

2. The address of the structure. 

3. The occupancy or use of the structure 

4. The name of the building official or his/her designee approving the certificate. 

5. Any special stipulations and conditions of the building permit. 

In lieu of issuance of a separate certificate, the building permit together with the completed 

and fully signed building permit inspection record may serve as the certificate of occupancy. 

111.4 Temporary occupancy. The building official is authorized to issue a temporary 

certificate of occupancy before the completion of the entire work covered by the permit, 

provided that such portion or portions shall be occupied safely. The building official shall set 

a time period during which the temporary certificate of occupancy is valid.  A fee for the 

issuance of a temporary certificate of occupancy, if applicable, shall be paid by the applicant 

prior to its issuance in accordance with the City’s adopted fee schedule.  In addition, as 

security to guarantee the satisfactory completion of all required work, the building official 

may require the submittal to the building department of a refundable performance guarantee 

82



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

deposit in an amount equal to 100 percent of the estimated cost needed to complete the work, 

as determined by the building official. The performance guarantee deposit shall be refunded 

to the originator of the deposit following satisfactory completion of all required work and 

issuance of a final certificate of occupancy. 

111.5 Revocation. The building official is authorized to suspend or revoke, in writing, a 

certificate of occupancy or temporary certificate of occupancy issued under the provisions of 

this code whenever the certificate is issued in error or on the basis of incorrect information or 

when it is determined by the building official that the building or structure or portion thereof 

is in violation of the provisions of this code. 

 

SECTION 112  

SERVICE UTILITIES  

112.1 Connection of service utilities. No person shall make connections to a utility or source 

of energy for fuel, water, electricity or sewer from any building or system that is regulated by 

this code for which a permit is required, until approved by the building official. 

112.2 Temporary connection. The building official shall have the authority to authorize and 

approve a temporary connection of the building or system to the utility or source of energy 

for fuel, water or electricity provided that the building official finds that the temporary 

connection is safe for the purpose intended. 

112.3 Authority to disconnect service utilities. The building official shall have the authority 

to authorize disconnection of utility service to the building, structure or system regulated by 

this code in case of emergency where necessary to eliminate an immediate hazard to life or 

property or when such utility connection has been made without first obtaining building 

department approval. The building official shall notify the serving utility and whenever 

possible the owner and occupant of the building, structure or service system of the decision to 

disconnect prior to taking such action. If not notified prior to disconnection, the owner or 

occupant of the building, structure or service system shall be notified in writing as soon as 

practical thereafter. 

 

83



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

SECTION 113  

APPEALS  

113.1 General. In order to hear and decide appeals of orders, decisions or determinations 

made by the building official relative to the application and interpretation of this code, there 

shall be and is hereby created a board of appeals. The board of appeals shall serve as the 

“local appeals board” and the “housing appeals board” pursuant to Sections 17920.5 and 

17920.6 of the California Health and Safety Code. The board shall adopt rules of procedure 

for conducting its business, and shall render all decisions and findings in writing to the 

appellant with a duplicate copy to the building official. 

113.2 Limitations on authority. Any person, firm, corporation, or entity adversely affected 

by an order, decision or determination made by the building official related to the application 

or interpretation of this code may make application for appeal. In addition, any member of the 

city council may call up for review by the board of appeals any order, decision, or 

determination made by the building official.  An application for appeal shall be based on a 

claim that the true intent of this code or the rules legally adopted thereunder have been 

incorrectly interpreted, the provisions of this code do not fully apply, or an equally good or 

better form of construction is proposed. The board shall have no authority to waive 

requirements of this code. 

113.3 Decisions subject to appeal.  Final orders, decisions or determinations made by the 

building official relative to the application and interpretation of this code are subject to appeal 

to the board of appeals.   

113.4 Effect of failure to appeal.  Failure to file an application for appeal in conformance 

with the requirements of Sections 113.5 and 113.6 shall constitute a waiver of the right to an 

administrative hearing on the matter. 

113.5 Deadline for filing of appeal. All such appeals shall be initiated by filing with the city 

clerk (with a copy to the building official) a written application for appeal on a form provided 

by the city clerk within 15 calendar days of the date the building official’s decision, notice or 

order (oral or written) is properly served, together with any applicable fees pursuant to the fee 

schedule adopted by the city council.  

113.6 Contents of application for appeal. The application for appeal shall state the nature 

and date of the decision being appealed, the name and address of the appellant and his/her 

interest in the matter, the property address which is the subject of the appeal, the specific 

84



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

action requested by the appellant to be taken by the appeal body, the signature(s) of the 

appellant(s), and, unless the appeal is by a member of the city council, the reasons (in 

conformance with Section 113.2, above) which, in the opinion of the appellant, render the 

decision unjustified or incorrect. 

113.7 Staying of decision or order under appeal.  The filing of the application for appeal 

shall have the effect of staying any decision or order of the building official pertaining to said 

appeal or the issuance or granting of any permit, certificate or other approval which is related 

to the appeal unless, at the sole discretion of the building official, such decision, order or 

action is necessary to protect the life, health, safety, property or well-being of the public or 

occupants of the building.  When the building official makes said determination, the building 

official shall notify the appellant, in writing, that the decision, order or action under appeal 

shall continue to be in effect until otherwise overturned by the board of appeals.  

113.8 Hearing.  Upon receipt of a timely filed application for appeal in proper form and 

payment of the required fee, the city clerk shall set a hearing date before the board of appeals 

no later than 60 days after the filing of the application for appeal.  Only those matters or 

issues specifically raised by the appellant shall be considered in the hearing of the appeal. 

113.9 Hearing request by building official.  The building official may, at any time, request 

a hearing be held by the board of appeals to review and affirm any final decision of the 

building official.  

113.10 Notice of hearing. Not less than 10 days prior to the hearing, the building official 

shall serve or cause to be served either personally or by first class mail, postage prepaid, a 

copy of the notice of hearing upon the appellant.  

113.11 Action of board of appeals. Upon the conclusion of the appeal hearing, the appeal 

board shall render its decision, which shall be final and may not be appealed to the city 

council. Notice of the final decision of the board shall be mailed to the appellant by first class 

mail, postage prepaid. 

 

SECTION 114  

VIOLATIONS  

114.1 Unlawful acts. It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to erect, 

construct, alter, extend, repair, move, remove, demolish or occupy any building, structure or 

equipment regulated by this code, or cause same to be done, in conflict with or in violation of 

85



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

any of the provisions of this code or any other provision of Chapter 14.10 of the Sonoma 

Municipal Code. 

114.2 Notice of violation. The building official is authorized to serve a notice of violation 

and order to abate on the affected property owner and if known, person responsible for the 

erection, construction, alteration, extension, repair, moving, removal, demolition, 

maintenance, use or occupancy of a building or structure in violation of the provisions of this 

code, or in violation of an order or corrective work required by the building official, a 

correction notice or an approved plan, or in violation of a permit or certificate issued under 

the provisions of this code. Such order shall direct the discontinuance of the illegal action or 

condition and the abatement of the violation. The order shall also state that failure to comply 

with the notice or order and cure the violation within the time period allowed in the notice of 

violation and order to abate may result in the building official recording the notice of 

violation and order to abate against the subject property.  The order shall advise the affected 

property owner and if known, the person responsible for the violation, of their appeal rights 

pursuant to Section 113.3 herein. 

114.3 Service of notice or order.  The notice of violation and order to abate shall be deemed 

properly served if a copy thereof is (a) personally delivered to the record owner of the 

property involved, or (b) sent by certified mail to the record owner of the property at the 

address listed on the last equalized county tax assessment roll with the return receipt 

requested. If the notice of violation and order to abate sent by certified mail is returned 

showing that it was not delivered, a copy of the notice of violation and order to abate shall be 

posted in a conspicuous place in or about the structure affected by such notice and a copy 

thereof mailed, by first class mail, to the record owner at the address listed on the last 

equalized county tax assessment roll.  In addition to the methods of service set forth herein, 

the building official is authorized to post one or more copies of a placard stating any 

restrictions pertaining to the use or occupancy of the structure and  copy of the notice of 

violation and order to abate in a conspicuous place in or about the structure affected by such 

notice. 

114.4 Recording of notice or order.  If the notice of violation and order to abate is not 

complied with in the time prescribed by such notice, the building official is authorized to 

record with the County Recorder’s Office, after the expiration of said time period, said notice 

of violation and order to abate against the property with respect to which the violation exists.  

Said notice must specify the nature of the violation, the provisions of this code being violated, 

86



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

when the building official first learned of the existence of the violations, how much time the 

violator had to cure the violation, and the assessor’s parcel number and street address, if any, 

of the subject property. 

Following the recordation of the notice of violation, the building official is not required to 

make any inspection or review of the premises to determine the continued existence of the 

cited violations. It is the responsibility of the record owner, occupant or other party in interest 

to comply with the above provisions and to notify the building official when the violation has 

been corrected. 

114.5 Rescission of recorded notice or order. Any person who desires to have recorded a 

notice rescinding the notice of violation must first obtain the necessary approvals and 

permit(s) to correct the violation. Once the building official determines that the work covered 

by such permit(s) has been satisfactorily completed, the building official shall, following a 

request made by the person requesting said rescission, record a notice rescinding the prior 

notice of violation.  The person requesting said rescission shall be responsible for the 

payment of any fee adopted by resolution of the city council for the rescission or termination 

of said notice. 

114.6 Prosecution of violation. If the notice of violation is not complied with in the time 

prescribed by such notice, the building official is authorized to request the legal counsel of 

the City to institute the appropriate proceeding at law or in equity to restrain, correct or abate 

such violation, or to require the removal or termination of the unlawful occupancy of the 

building or structure in violation of the provisions of this code or of the order or direction 

made pursuant thereto.  

114.7 Violation penalties. Any person, firm or corporation who violates a provision of this 

code or any other provision of Chapter 14.10 of the Sonoma Municipal Code, or fails to 

comply with any of the requirements thereof, or allows a violation to continue without taking 

reasonable means to cure or abate the same after having been ordered to do so, or who erects, 

constructs, alters or repairs a building or structure in violation of the approved construction 

documents or directive of the building official, or of a permit or certificate issued under the 

provisions of this code, is punishable as provided by Section 1.12.010 of the Sonoma 

Municipal Code.  Each violation shall constitute a separate offense for each and every day 

such person, firm or corporation violates or allows a violation to continue without taking 

reasonable means to cure or abate the same after having been ordered to do so.  A violation of 

this code or any other provision of Chapter 14.10 of the Sonoma Municipal Code shall be 

87



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

deemed a public nuisance and is subject to nuisance abatement proceedings as provided by 

Section 1.12.010 and Chapter 14.30 of the Sonoma Municipal Code.  

114.8 Administrative Penalties.  As an alternative to the provisions provided in this Section 

114, the building official is authorized to utilize the procedures set forth in Chapter 1.30 

(Administrative Penalties) of the Sonoma Municipal Code. 

 

SECTION 115  

STOP WORK ORDER  

115.1 Authority.  Whenever the building official finds any work regulated by this code being 

performed in a manner contrary to the provisions of this code or contrary to the approved 

plans or that is dangerous, substandard or unsafe, the building official is authorized to issue a 

stop work order. 

115.2 Issuance of stop work order. The stop work order shall be in writing and shall be 

posted in a conspicuous place in or about the structure affected by such notice and given to 

the record owner of the property involved, or to the owner's agent or to the person doing the 

work. The stop work order shall be deemed properly served if a copy thereof is (a) personally 

delivered to the record owner of the property involved, or (b) personally delivered to the 

owner's agent or to the person doing the work, or (c) sent by certified mail to the record 

owner of the property at the address listed on the last equalized county tax assessment roll 

with the return receipt requested. If a stop work order sent by certified mail is returned 

showing that it was not delivered, a copy of the stop work order shall be posted in a 

conspicuous place in or about the structure affected by such notice and a copy thereof mailed, 

by first class mail, to the record owner at the at the address listed on the last equalized county 

tax assessment roll. Upon issuance of a stop work order, the cited work shall immediately 

cease.  The stop work order shall state the conditions under which work will be permitted to 

resume. 

115.2.1 Violation to remove or deface a stop work order.  It shall be a violation of 

this code to remove, deface or mutilate any stop work order posted on a structure or 

site pursuant to this section without the express written permission of the building 

official. 

115.3 Unlawful continuance. Any person who shall continue any work in or about the 

structure after having been served with a stop work order, except such work as that person is 

directed to perform to remove a violation or unsafe condition, shall be subject to penalties as 

88



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

prescribed by Section 1.12.010 of the Sonoma Municipal Code.  Further, any violation of this 

section is deemed a public nuisance and may be subject to nuisance abatement proceedings as 

provided by Section 1.12.010 and Chapter 14.30 of the Sonoma Municipal Code.  

 

SECTION 116  

UNSAFE STRUCTURES AND EQUIPMENT  

116.1 Authority.  For the purposes of this code, any applicable building, structure or 

equipment, including those structures that are subject to the requirements of Division 13, Part 

1.5 of the California Health and Safety Code commencing with Section 17910 (State Housing 

Law), which by inspection or observation by the building official, has any of the conditions 

or defects defined as an unsafe structure, shall be abated by repair, rehabilitation, demolition 

or removal. 

116.2 Unsafe structures prohibited. No person shall own, use, occupy or maintain any 

unsafe structure.  

116.3 Unsafe structures declared a public nuisance. Any unsafe structure or equipment 

regulated by this code is hereby declared to be a public nuisance. In addition to instituting any 

appropriate action to prevent, restrain or correct a violation of this section, the building 

official may abate an unsafe condition by repair, rehabilitation, demolition or removal in 

accordance with the procedure specified in this section or as alternatively set forth by the 

nuisance abatement proceedings in Chapter 14.30 of the Sonoma Municipal Code.  

116.4 Notice of unsafe structure. The building official shall examine or cause to be 

examined every building or structure or portion thereof reported as dangerous, damaged or 

unsafe and if, in the building official's opinion, such building or structure is found to be an 

unsafe structure as defined in this code, the building official shall give to the party in interest 

written notice stating the defects thereof. This notice shall require the owner, other party in 

interest or person in charge of the building or premises to commence either the required 

repairs or improvements or demolition and removal of the building or structure or portions 

thereof and all such work shall be completed within a time frame stipulated by the building 

official.  If necessary, such notice shall also require the building, structure, or portion thereof 

to be vacated forthwith and not reoccupied until the required repairs and improvements be 

completed, inspected and approved by the building official. The designated period within 

which the owner, tenant, other party in interest or person in charge is required to comply with 

89



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

such notice shall begin as of the date the owner or person in charge receives such notice by 

personal service or certified mail. If such notice is by posting, the designated period shall 

begin ten (10) days following the date of posting.  The notice of unsafe structure shall state 

the rights to a hearing or appeal. The notice period shall be a minimum of thirty (30) days 

unless the building official deems a shorter period necessary to prevent or remedy an 

immediate threat to the health and safety of the public or occupants of the structure. 

116.5 Service of notice of unsafe structure.  The notice of unsafe structure shall be deemed 

properly served if a copy thereof is (a) personally delivered upon every party in interest, as 

defined in this code; or (b) posted in a conspicuous place on the structure or property and a 

copy thereof mailed by certified mail with a return receipt requested to the record owner of 

the property involved at the address listed on the last equalized county tax roll and if known, 

any party in interest.  

If the notice of unsafe structure sent by certified mail is returned showing that it was not 

delivered, the notice shall be deemed properly served if a copy thereof is posted in a 

conspicuous place on the unsafe structure or property involved and a copy is mailed by first 

class mail to the record owner of the property involved at the address listed on the last 

equalized county tax roll.   

The failure of any owner or other person to receive such notice shall not affect in any manner 

the validity of any proceedings taken hereunder.  

116.6 Recording of notice of unsafe structure.  If the notice of unsafe structure is not 

complied with in the time prescribed by such notice, the building official is authorized to 

record with the County Recorder’s Office, after the expiration of said time period, said notice 

against the property with respect to the unsafe conditions and violations that exist.  Said 

notice must specify the nature of the unsafe conditions, the provisions of this code being 

violated, when the building official first learned of the existence of the unsafe conditions, 

how much time the violator has to cure the unsafe conditions and violations, and the 

assessor’s parcel number and street address, if any, of the subject property. 

Following the recordation of the notice of unsafe conditions, the building official is not 

required to make any inspection or review of the premises to determine the continued 

existence of the cited unsafe conditions or violations. It is the responsibility of the record 

owner, occupant or other party in interest to comply with the above provisions. 

90



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

116.6.1 Rescission of recorded notice or order. Any person who desires to have 

recorded a notice rescinding the notice of unsafe structure must first obtain the 

necessary approvals and permit(s) to correct or remove the unsafe conditions and 

violations. Once the building official determines that the work covered by such 

permit(s) has been satisfactorily completed, the building official shall, following a 

request made by the person requesting said rescission, record a notice rescinding the 

prior notice of unsafe structure. The person requesting said rescission shall be 

responsible for the payment of any fee adopted by resolution of the city council for 

the rescission or termination of said notice. 

116.7 Posting of notice to vacate. Any unsafe building ordered vacated in accordance with 

this section shall not be reoccupied until the unsafe conditions have been eliminated. Each 

such vacated building shall be locked and otherwise secured against entry and the building 

official shall post thereon a placard stating: 

"UNSAFE - DO NOT ENTER OR OCCUPY” 

In cases where the building official has determined that partial occupancy of a building may 

be allowed, the building official shall post thereon a placard stating: 

“RESTRICTED USE” 

All placards posted shall indicate, in general terms, the unsafe conditions found and the date 

of said posting. Additional information may be placed on the placard or notice to vacate as 

deemed appropriate by the building official.  Such notice shall be posted in a conspicuous 

place at or near the main entrance and shall be visible to persons approaching the building or 

structure from a street.  

116.7.1 Proof of posting.  Proof of posting of the notice to vacate shall be provided 

by written declaration under penalty of perjury executed by the person making the 

posting and declaring the time, date, manner and location the posting was made. 

116.7.2 Violation to remove or deface posted notice to vacate.  It shall be a 

violation of this code to remove, deface or mutilate any notice to vacate posted on a 

building pursuant to this section without the express written permission of the 

building official. 

116.8 Right of hearing.  Any interested party may request a hearing before the board of 

appeals to show cause why the building or structure should not be ordered repaired, vacated 

91



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

and repaired, or vacated and demolished or removed. The request for a hearing shall comply 

with the provisions set forth in Section 113 of this code. A hearing shall be requested by the 

building official prior to demolition or repair of an unsafe building by the City except when 

such demolition or repair is done under the emergency procedure set forth in this section.  

116.9 Order of board of appeals. If, after holding a hearing on the matter, the board of 

appeals finds that the building or structure is an unsafe structure, it shall issue a written order 

that includes, but is not limited to, the following:  

1.  The name, address and telephone number of the City. 

2.  The address or location of the unsafe structure. 

3.  The name and address of the parties in interest. 

4.  A finding of fact that (a) the building or structure is an unsafe structure and 

nuisance and directing that it either be demolished or otherwise repaired in 

accordance with this code as applicable; or (b) the building or structure is an unsafe 

structure and nuisance and directing that it shall be vacated and that the building or 

structure either be demolished or otherwise repaired in accordance with this code as 

applicable.  

5.  A list of the specific defects and violations. 

6.  The dates required for the commencement and the completion of either the 

required repairs or improvements or the demolition or removal of the building or 

structure or portions thereof. 

7.  If necessary, a statement that the building, structure, or portion thereof be 

immediately vacated and not reoccupied until the required repairs and improvements 

are completed, inspected and approved by the building official. 

8.  A statement that if the repairs or demolition necessary to remove the unsafe 

conditions is not made within the designated period stated in the order, the building 

official may then demolish or repair such portions of the structure, or may cause such 

work to be done, to the extent necessary to eliminate the hazard determined to exist 

by the board of appeals.   

9.  A statement that the order by the board of appeals is not appealable to the city 

council. 

92



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

10. A statement that all costs to enforce the order of the building official and the 

board of appeals and for the repairs or demolition necessary to remove the unsafe 

conditions incurred by the City, shall be made a personal obligation of the property 

owner and if not paid within 30 days of request of payment by the City, may be made 

a special assessment against the property involved, pursuant to Section 118.1. 

11. If the building or structure, or portion thereof is residential, a statement in 

accordance with Section 17980(e) of the Health and Safety Code that, in accordance 

with Section 17274 and 24436.5 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, a tax deduction 

may not be allowed for interest, taxes, depreciation, or amortization paid or incurred 

in a taxable year, and, in addition, any other notice required by Health and Safety 

Code Section 17980.  

116.9.1 Board of appeals termination of building official’s order.  If, after holding 

a hearing on the matter, the board of appeals finds that the building or structure is not 

an unsafe structure, it shall issue a written order terminating the order of the building 

official. 

116.9.1 Service and posting of order of board of appeals. The order of the board of 

appeals shall be served upon the same parties and in the same manner as required for 

the notice of hearing. It shall also be conspicuously posted on or about the building or 

structure.  

116.10 Failure to comply with order of building official.  If the repairs or demolition 

necessary to remove the unsafe condition as set forth in the notice of unsafe structure is not 

made within the designated period prescribed by the building official and if a hearing has not 

otherwise been held by the board of appeals, the building official shall request that a hearing 

be held regarding the unsafe conditions and failure to comply with the order.  

116.11 Failure to comply with order of the board of appeals.  If the repairs or demolition 

necessary to remove the unsafe condition as set forth in the order of the board of appeals is 

not made within the designated period the building official may then demolish or repair such 

portions of the structure, or may cause such work to be done, to the extent necessary to 

eliminate the hazard determined to exist by the board of appeals.  

SECTION 117 

93



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

EMERGENCY MEASURES 

117.1 Imminent danger. Where, in the opinion of the building official, there is imminent 

danger of failure or collapse of a building that endangers life or property, or where any 

building or part of a building has fallen and life is endangered by the occupation of the 

building, or where there is actual or potential danger to the occupants or those in the 

proximity of any structure because of potential for collapse, electrical hazards, explosives, 

explosive fumes or vapors, or the presence of toxic fumes, gases, or material, or operation of 

defective or dangerous equipment, or any other cause, the building official is hereby 

authorized to take any appropriate emergency measure described herein and order and require 

the occupants to vacate the premises forthwith.  

117.1.1 Posting of placards due to imminent danger. The building official and his 

or her authorized representatives are hereby authorized to post appropriate placards 

on any unsafe buildings or structures causing imminent danger to the occupants or 

the public and subject to these emergency measures.  The building official shall cause 

to be posted at each entrance to such buildings or structures a placard reading: 

“UNSAFE - DO NOT ENTER OR OCCUPY” 

In cases where the building official has determined that partial occupancy of a 

building may be allowed, the building official shall post thereon a placard reading: 

“RESTRICTED USE” 

All placards posted shall indicate, in general terms, the unsafe conditions causing the 

imminent danger, the date of said posting, any restrictions of the entry , use or 

occupancy of said building, the name or number of the posting inspector and the 

contact information for interested persons or occupants to obtain more information. 

Additional information may be placed on the placards or notice to vacate as deemed 

appropriate by the building official, including any to restrictions or limitations of the 

use or occupancy of the structure.  Such notice shall be posted in a conspicuous place 

at or near the main entrance and shall be visible to persons approaching the building 

or structure from a street.  

117.1.2 Unlawful to enter or use a posted structure  It shall be unlawful for any 

person to enter or use a structure in violation of its posted placard except with a valid 

permit or written permission, issued by the building official, for the purpose of 

94



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

securing the structure, making the required repairs, removing the hazardous 

condition, or of demolishing the same. 

117.1.3 Unlawful to remove or deface posted placard. Once a placard has been 

attached to a building or structure, it shall not to be removed, altered or covered 

except by the building official. It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or 

corporation to alter, remove, cover or deface a placard unless authorized pursuant to 

this section. 

117.2 Temporary emergency safeguards and repairs. Notwithstanding other provisions of 

this code, whenever, in the opinion of the building official there is an immediate and 

imminent danger due to an unsafe condition, the building official may order the boarding up 

of openings, barricading, securing, temporary bracing, temporary repairs, isolation of, 

alteration to, demolition, or other appropriate action to render such structure temporarily safe 

or temporarily secure and shall cause such other action to be taken as the building official 

deems necessary to meet such emergency.  In all cases, the use of demolition to abate the 

unsafe condition shall be limited to what is reasonably necessary to abate the immediate 

and imminent danger and mitigate the loss of, or damage to life, health, property. 

117.3 Closing streets and sidewalks. Where necessary for public safety, the building official 

may temporarily close structures and temporarily order the closure of sidewalks, walkways, 

streets, public ways, and places adjacent to unsafe structures, and prohibit the same from 

being utilized. 

117.4 Labor for temporary emergency safeguards and repairs. For the purposes of this 

section, the building official may employ the necessary labor and materials to perform the 

required work for temporary emergency safeguards and repairs as expeditiously as possible in 

accordance with Sonoma Municipal Code Section 3.04.090. 

117.5 Costs of temporary emergency safeguards and repairs. Prior to incurring costs for 

temporary emergency safeguards and repairs, the building official shall obtain the approval of 

the city manager for said costs. Costs incurred in the performance of emergency work shall 

be paid by the jurisdiction. The city attorney may institute appropriate action to recover costs 

against the owner of the premises or the owner’s authorized agent for the City costs for 

implementing emergency measures upon the unsafe structures or conditions in accordance 

with this code. 

95



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

117.6 Hearing. Any person ordered to take emergency measures shall comply with such 

order forthwith. Any affected person shall thereafter, upon petition directed to the appeals 

board, be afforded a hearing as described in this code. 

117.8 Emergency notice.  The emergency measures described herein may be implemented 

without any prior notice whatsoever when, in the opinion of the building official and the city 

manager, an imminent danger to the occupants of a building or the public exists and where 

immediate action is necessary to protect life, property or public safety. Whenever emergency 

measures have been implemented on any private property for any unsafe structure or 

condition the building official shall provide  notice to the parties in interest, the tenant(s) of 

the building and the city council, as early as the circumstances will permit within 30 days 

following said implementation.  

 

SECTION 118  

RECOVERY OF COSTS 

118.1 Payment of costs for enforcement.  All reasonable and actual costs incurred by the 

City for the enforcement and abatement of an unsafe structure, public nuisance or any 

violation of this code, shall be made a personal obligation of the property owner and shall be 

paid to the City not more than 30 days from the date the invoice for said costs is mailed.  The 

building official shall keep an account of the cost of enforcement and abatement and shall 

render an itemized written report of said costs to the property owner when requested. 

If the property owner fails to pay the full cost of the personal obligation within 30 days from 

the date the invoice for services is mailed by the building official, said costs shall be 

confirmed by the city council and made a special assessment against the property upon which 

the structure stood or nuisance existed, pursuant to the procedures established by this section, 

which the city council adopts pursuant to Government Code Section 38773.5.  

The building official shall prepare and submit an itemized written report to the city council of 

the cost of removing and/or abating the nuisance, violation or unsafe building including, but 

not limited to, administrative costs, inspection costs, investigation costs, enforcement costs, 

attorney fees or costs, and all costs of prosecution.  Before the report is submitted and 

reviewed by the city council, a copy of the report and notice of the time when the report will 

be reviewed by the city council for confirmation shall be mailed to the party in interest, 

certified mail, return receipt requested, at the address shown on the last equalized assessment 

96



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

roll or the supplemental roll, whichever is more current at least ten (10) days prior to review 

by the city council. The notice shall specify that the property may be sold after three years by 

the tax collector for unpaid delinquent assessments, and shall otherwise be in compliance 

with Government Code Section 38773.5. 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 38773.5(b), recovery of attorneys' fees shall be limited 

to the prevailing party for those individual actions or proceedings in which the city elects, at 

the initiation of that individual action or proceeding, to seek recovery of its own attorneys' 

fees. In no action, administrative proceeding, or special proceeding shall an award of 

attorneys' fees to a prevailing party exceed the amount of reasonable attorneys' fees incurred 

by the City in the action or proceeding.  

The city council shall hold a hearing to determine the reasonableness or correctness of the 

assessment, or both. The building official shall notify, in writing, the party in interest of the 

city council’s decision. If the total assessment, as confirmed by the city council is not paid in 

full within ten (10) days after receipt of such notice from the building official, the building 

official shall take those actions necessary to cause a special assessment to be recorded against 

the parcel in the amount confirmed by the city council. From the date of such recording, such 

balance due shall be a special assessment against the parcel.  

The special assessment shall be collected at the same time and in the same manner as 

ordinary municipal taxes are collected, and shall be subject to the same penalties and the 

same procedure and sale in case of delinquency as provided for ordinary municipal taxes. All 

the laws applicable to the levy, collection and enforcement of County taxes shall be 

applicable to such special assessment. 

 

SECTION 119  

INTERFERENCE PROHIBITED 

A person shall not obstruct, impede, or interfere with the building official, any representative 

authorized by the building official, or with any person who owns or holds any estate or 

interest in any unsafe building which has been ordered by the building official or the board of 

appeals to be repaired, vacated and repaired, or vacated and demolished, whenever the 

building official or such owner is engaged in repairing, vacating and repairing, or 

demolishing any such unsafe building pursuant to this code, or is performing any necessary 

act preliminary to or incidental to such work, or authorized or directed pursuant hereto.  

97



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

 

 

14.10.015 Technical Codes Adopted. 

  Pursuant to Section 50022.2 of the California Government Code, the following technical codes 
are adopted by reference as described herein and as amended by the following sections of this 
Chapter: 
 

A. 2016 California Building Code Volumes 1 and 2, based on the 2015 International 
Building Code published by the International Code Council;  

 
B. 2016 California Residential Code, based on the 2015 International Residential Code 

published by the International Code Council;  
 
C. 2016 California Electrical Code, based on the 2014 National Electrical Code published 

by the National Fire Protection Association and BNi Publications; 
 
D. 2016 California Mechanical Code, based on the 2015 Uniform Mechanical Code 

published by the International Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials; 
 
E. 2016 California Plumbing Code, based on the 2015 Uniform Plumbing Code published 

by the International Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials;  
 
F. 2016 California Energy Code published by the California Building Standards 

Commission; 
 
G. 2016 California Historical Building Code, published by the California Building Standards 

Commission; 
 
H. 2016 California Fire Code, based on the 2015 International Fire Code published by the 

International Code Council: 
 
I. 2016 California Existing Building Code, based on the 2015 International Existing Building 

Code published by International Code Council; 
 
J. 2016 California Green Building Standards Code published by the California Building 

Standards Commission; 
 
K. 2016 California Referenced Standards published by the California Building Standards 

Commission;  
 
 
14.10.020    2016 California Building Code Amendments. 
 

A.  Based upon the express findings of necessity #1, #2, #3 and #4 set forth in Section 
14.10.005, the administrative regulations of Chapter 1, Division II of Part 2 of the 2016 California 
Building Standards Code, known as the California Building Code, as adopted by Section 14.10.015, are 
amended as follows: 

 
Delete Chapter 1, Division II (Scope and Administration) in its entirety and replace with the 
administrative provisions contained in Section 14.10.010 of the Sonoma Municipal Code. 

98



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

 
 
B.  Based upon the express findings of necessity #1 and #2 set forth in Section 14.10.005, 

Part 2 of the 2016 Edition of the California Building Standards Code, known as the California Building 
Code, as adopted by Section 14.10.015, is amended as follows: 

 
Adopt by reference and add the following 2016 California Building Code appendices: 
 

1) Appendix Chapter H – Signs  

2) Appendix Chapter I - Patio Covers. 
 
 
 

14.10.025   2016 California Residential Code Amendments. 
 

A.  Based upon the express findings of necessity #1, #2, #3 and #4 set forth in Section 
14.10.005, the administrative regulations of Chapter 1, Division II of Part 2.5 of the 2016 California 
Building Standards Code, known as the California Residential Code, as adopted by Section 14.10.015, 
is amended as follows: 

 
Delete Chapter 1, Division II (Scope and Administration) in its entirety and replace with the 
administrative provisions contained in Section 14.10.010 of the Sonoma Municipal Code. 

 
B.  Based upon the express findings of necessity #1 set forth in Section 14.10.005, Part 2.5 

of the 2016 Edition of the California Building Standards Code, known as the California Residential 
Code, as adopted by Section 14.10.015, is further amended as follows: 
 

1) Adopt by reference and add Appendix Chapter H (Patio Covers) of the 2016 California 
Residential Code appendices. 

2) Adopt by reference and add Appendix Chapter V (Swimming Pool Safety Act) of the 
2016 California Residential Code appendices. 

 
 

C. Based upon the express findings of necessity #1, #2 and #4 set forth in Section 
14.10.005, Part 2.5 of the 2016 Edition of the California Building Standards Code, known as the 
California Residential Code, as adopted by Section 14.10.015, is further amended as follows: 

 
 

Amend section R302.2 to read as follows: 
 

R302.2  Townhouses. Walls separating townhouses located on individual separate lots or 

parcels and placed within 3 feet of a property line shall not be common walls.  Common 

walls may be used for separating townhouses where no property line exists within 3 feet of a 

common wall.  Common walls separating townhouses shall be assigned a fire-resistance rating in 

accordance with Section R302.2, Item 1 or 2. The common wall shared by two townhouses shall 

be constructed without plumbing or mechanical equipment, ducts or vents in the cavity of the 

common wall. The wall shall be rated for fire exposure from both sides and shall extend to and be 

tight against exterior walls and the underside of the roof sheathing. Electrical installations shall be 

99



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

in accordance with the California Electrical Code. Penetrations of the membrane of common 

walls for electrical outlet boxes shall be in accordance with Section R302.4. 

 

 

Amend section R302.3 to read as follows: 
 

R302.3 Two-family dwellings. Walls separating dwelling units located on individual separate 

lots or parcels and placed within 3 feet of a property line shall comply with the requirements of 

Section R302.2 for townhouses.  Dwelling units in two-family dwellings shall be separated from 

each other by wall and floor assemblies having not less than a I-hour fire-resistance rating where 

tested in accordance with ASTM E119 or UL 263. Fire-resistance-rated floor/ceiling and wall 

assemblies shall extend to and be tight against the exterior wall, and wall assemblies shall extend 

from the foundation to the underside of the roof sheathing. 

 
D.  Based upon the express findings of necessity #1, #2 and #4 set forth in Section 

14.10.005, Part 2.5 of the 2016 Edition of the California Building Standards Code, known as the 
California Residential Code, as adopted by Section 14.10.015, is further amended as follows: 
 

Delete subsection R313.2 including the exception in its entirety and replace to read as follows: 
 

R313.2  One- and two-family dwellings automatic fire systems. An automatic residential fire 

sprinkler system shall be installed in one- and two- family dwellings, factory-built housing, 

mobile homes and manufactured homes. 

 

Exception: An automatic residential fire sprinkler system shall not be required for 

additions or alterations to existing one- and two- family dwellings, factory-built housing, 

mobile homes and manufactured homes that are not already provided with an automatic 

residential sprinkler system unless otherwise required by the Fire Code. 

 

R313.2.1  Design and installation. Automatic residential fire sprinkler systems shall be designed 

and installed in accordance with Section R313.3 or NFPA 13D. 

 

Exception: Automatic residential fire sprinkler systems installed in factory-built housing, 

mobile homes and manufactured homes, shall be designed and installed in accordance 

with California Code of Regulations, Title 25, Section 4302. 

 
 
14.10.030 2016 California Electrical Code Amendments. 
 

A.  Based upon the express findings of necessity #1, #2, #3 and #4 set forth in Section 
14.10.005, Part 3 of the 2016 California Building Standards Code, known as the California Electrical 
Code, as adopted by Section 14.10.015, is amended as follows: 

 
Delete Annex H (Administration and Enforcement) of the electrical code in its entirety and 
replace and adopt in its place the administrative provisions contained in Section 14.10.010 of 
the Sonoma Municipal Code. 

 
 
14.10.035 2016 California Mechanical Code Amendments. 
 

100



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

A.  Based upon the express findings of necessity #1, #2, #3 and #4 set forth in Section 
14.10.005, the administrative regulations of Chapter 1 Division II of Part 4 of the 2016 California 
Building Standards Code, known as the California Mechanical Code, as adopted by Section 14.10.015, 
is amended as follows: 
 

Delete Chapter 1, Division II (Administration) in its entirety and replace with the administrative 
provisions contained in Section 14.10.010 of the Sonoma Municipal Code. 

 
B. Based upon the express findings of necessity #1 and #2 set forth in Section 14.10.005, 

Part 4 of the 2016 California Building Standards Code, known as the California Mechanical Code, as 
adopted by Section 14.10.015, is amended as follows: 

 
Adopt by reference and add the following 2016 California Mechanical Code appendices:  

1) Appendix B (Procedures to be Followed to Place Gas Equipment into Operation) 
 
 
14.10.040 2016 California Plumbing Code Amendments. 
 

A.  Based upon the express findings of necessity #1, #2, #3 and #4 set forth in Section 
14.10.005, the administrative regulations of Chapter 1 Division II of Part 5 of the 2016 California 
Building Standards Code, known as the California Plumbing Code, as adopted by Section 14.10.015, is 
amended as follows: 
 

Delete Chapter 1, Division II (Administration) in its entirety and replace with and adopt the 
administrative provisions contained in Section 14.10.010 of the Sonoma Municipal Code. 

 
 

B. Based upon the express findings of necessity #3 set forth in Section 14.10.005, Part 5 of 
the 2016 California Building Standards Code, known as the California Plumbing Code, as adopted by 
Section 14.10.015, is amended as follows: 
 

Amend Section 713.4 to read as follows: 
 

713.4 Public Sewer Availability. The public sewer may be considered to not be available 

for a proposed building or exterior drainage facility where such public sewer or a building 

or an exterior drainage facility connected thereto is located more than 300 feet from a 

proposed building or exterior drainage facility on a lot or premises that abuts and is served 

by such public sewer. 

 
 
 

C. Based upon the express findings of necessity #1, #2, #3 and #4 set forth in Section 
14.10.005, Part 5 of the 2016 California Building Standards Code, known as the California Plumbing 
Code, as adopted by Section 14.10.015, is amended as follows: 
 

Adopt by reference and add the following 2016 California Plumbing Code appendices:  

a. Appendix A (Recommended Rules for Sizing the Water Supply System). 

b. Appendix C (Alternate Plumbing Systems) 

101



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

c. Appendix D (Sizing Storm Water Drainage Systems) 

d. Appendix E (Manufactured/Mobile Home Parks and Recreational Vehicle Parks) 

e. Appendix H (Private Sewage Disposal Systems) 

f. Appendix I (Installation Standards for PEX Tubing Systems for Hot- and Cold-Water 
Distribution) 

 
 
14.10.045 2016 California Fire Code Amendments. 
 

A. Based upon the express findings of necessity #1, #2, #3 and #4set forth in Section 
14.10.005, Part 9 of the 2016 California Building Standards Code, known as the California Fire Code, 
as adopted by Section 14.10.015, is amended by adopting by reference and adding the following 
appendices: 
 

1)  Appendix Chapter4 – Special Detailed Requirements Based on Use and Occupancy  

2) Appendix B – Fire-Flow Requirements for Buildings 

3) Appendix BB - Fire-Flow Requirements for Buildings 

4) Appendix C – Fire Hydrant Locations and Distribution 

5) Appendix CC – Fire Hydrant Locations and Distribution 

6) Appendix D - Fire Apparatus Access Roads 

7) Appendix E – Hazard Categories 

8) Appendix F – Hazard Ranking  

Appendix H  - Hazardous Materials Management Plans and Hazardous Materials  
Inventory Statements 2016 

 
 B. Based upon the express findings of necessity #1, #2, #3 and #4 set forth in Section 
14.10.005, Part 9 of the 2016 California Building Standards Code, known as the California Fire Code, 
as adopted by Section 14.10.015 and as further amended by the adoption of certain appendices, is 
amended to read as follows: 

 
Amend subsection 105.6.49 to read as follows: 

 

105.6.49 Additional permits.  In addition to the permits required by Section 105.6, the 

following permits shall be obtained from the Bureau of Fire Prevention prior to engaging 

in the following activities, operations, practices or functions: 

1.  Production facilities.  To change use or occupancy, or allow the attendance of a 

live audience, or for wrap parties. 

2.  Pyrotechnics and special effects.  To use pyrotechnic special effects, open flame, 

use of flammable or combustible liquids or gases, welding, and the parking of motor 

vehicles in any building or location used for the purpose of motion picture, television 

and commercial productions. 

3.  Live Audiences.  To install seating arrangements for live audiences in approved 

production facilities, production studios and sound stages. See Chapter 48. 

102



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

4.  Apartment, hotel, motel. An operational permit is required to operate an apartment 

house, hotel, or motel. 

5.  Bonfires or rubbish fires. An operational permit is required to kindle or authorize 

the kindling or maintenance of bonfires or rubbish fires. 

6.  Change of occupancy. An operational permit is required for any change in the occupancy, 

business or tenancy of any building, facility, or structure.7.  Care facilities.  An operational 

permit is required to operate a care facility as listed: 

1.  Day care with an occupant load greater than eight (8) persons. 

2.  Residential or commercial institutional care facility, occupancies complying 

with Health and Safety Code Section 13235 are exempt 

8.  Emergency Responder Radio Coverage System. An operational permit is required 

for buildings and/or facilities with emergency responder radio coverage systems and 

related equipment. 

9.  Fire protection systems. An operational permit is required for buildings and/or 

facilities with fire protection systems and related equipment such as fire pumps, fire 

hydrant systems, fire suppression systems, fire alarm systems, smoke management 

systems, and similar systems governed by this code. 

10. High-rise occupancy. An operational permit is required to operate a high-rise 

building as defined in Title 24, Part 2, California Code of Regulations. 

11. Institutional or residential occupancy (6 or less persons). An operational permit 

is required to operate an institutional or residential occupancy for 6 or less persons, 

except day care and residential care facilities for the elderly. 

12. Institutional or residential occupancy (more than 6 persons). An operational 

permit is required to operate an institutional or residential occupancy for more than 6 

persons. Exception: A permit is not required for large family day care providing care 

for less than 9 children. 

13. Medical Gas Systems. An operational permit is required for buildings and/or 

facilities with medical gas systems and related equipment, and similar systems 

governed by this code. 

14. Oil or natural gas well. An operational permit is required to own, operate or 

maintain an oil or natural gas well. 

15. Organized Camps. An operational permit is required to operate an organized camp 

(Group-C Occupancy). 

16. Public Christmas Tree Lot or Pumpkin Patch. An operational permit is required 

to operate a Christmas tree lot or pumpkin patch, haunted house, or similar facility that 

is open to the public. 

17. Special Event Permit An operational permit is required for any organized 

procession or assemblage of 50 or more people, which could significantly impact 

vehicular traffic or create a safety problem. Examples include, but are not limited to: 

music festivals, outdoor markets, circus, walkathons, runs, marathons, trail rides, 

bicycle races, celebrations, parades and other similar activities. 

18. Winery Caves – Public Accessible. An operational permit is required to operate a 

Type-2 or Type-3 winery cave that is accessible to the public.   

103



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

19.  Live entertainment. An operational permit is required to operate a business where 

alcohol is served, while providing live entertainment to the public. 

20.  Medical cannabis. Operational permits are required to operate a medical cannabis 

facility or operation listed below: 

1. Cultivation 

2. Distribution 

3. Manufacturing (non-volatile) 

4. Testing/lab  

21.  Model rockets rental, sale or operation. An operational permit is required to 

operate, manufacture, import, export, possess, store, rent or sell model rockets as 

defined by Health and Safety Code Section 12519. 

 
 

Add a new subsection 105.7.19 to read as follows: 
 

105.7.19 Additional Construction Permits. In addition to the permits required by Section 

105.7, the following construction permits shall be obtained from the Bureau of Fire 

Prevention prior to starting construction: 

1.  Emergency vehicle access facilities. A construction permit is required for 

installation or modification of roadways and roadway structures used for emergency 

vehicle access. 

2.  Excavation near flammable or combustible liquid pipeline. A construction 

permit is required to excavate or do any work below grade within ten (10) feet of any 

pipeline for the transportation of flammable or combustible liquid. 

3.  Fire-line underground utility piping. A construction permit is required to install, 

alter, or make improvements to fire-line underground utility piping. A separate utility 

permit from the building official is required prior to installing any private underground 

fire protection water piping and associated appliances. 

4.  Medical gas system. A construction permit is required to install a medical gas 

system. 

5.  Oil or natural gas well. A construction permit is required to drill an oil or natural 

gas well. 

6. Roof-mounted solar photovoltaic power systems. A construction permit is 

required to install or modify a roof-mounted solar photovoltaic power system, with the 

exception of small residential rooftop solar energy systems which permit requirements 

are stated within Chapter 14.27 of the Sonoma Municipal Code. 

 
 
Amend subsection 109.4 to read as follows: 
 

109.4  Violation penalties.  Any person, firm or corporation who violates a provision of this 

code, or any other section of Chapter 14.10 of the Sonoma Municipal Code, or fails to 

comply with any of the requirements thereof, or allows a violation to continue without taking 

reasonable means to cure or abate the same after having been ordered to do so, or who erects, 

104



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

constructs, alters or repairs a building or structure in violation of the approved construction 

documents or directive of the fire chief, or of a permit or certificate issued under the 

provisions of this code, is punishable as provided by Section 1.12.010 of the Sonoma 

Municipal Code.  Each violation shall constitute a separate offense for each and every day 

such person, firm or corporation violates or allows a violation to continue without taking 

reasonable means to cure or abate the same after having been ordered to do so.  A violation of 

this section or any other section of Chapter 14.10 of the Sonoma Municipal Code shall be 

deemed a public nuisance and is subject to nuisance abatement proceedings as provided by 

Section 1.12.010.   

 
 
Amend subsection 111.4 to read as follows: 
 

111.4 Failure to comply. Any person who shall continue any work in or about the structure 

after having been served with a stop work order, except such work as that person is directed 

to perform to remove a violation or unsafe condition, shall be subject to penalties as 

prescribed by Section 1.12.010 of the Sonoma Municipal Code.  Further, any violation of this 

section is deemed a public nuisance and may be subject to nuisance abatement proceedings as 

provided by Section 1.12.010. 

 

Add a new subsection 113.6 to read as follows: 

113.6 Cost recovery. Fire suppression, investigation or emergency medical costs are recoverable 

in accordance with Health and Safety Code Sections 13009 and 13009.1, as may be amended 

from time to time.  Additionally, any person(s) who negligently, intentionally or in violation of 

law causes an emergency response, including, but not limited to, a traffic accident, spill of toxic 

or flammable or combustible fluids or chemicals is liable for the costs of securing such 

emergency, including those costs pursuant to Government Code Section 53150, et seq, as may be 

amended from time to time.  Any expense incurred by the Fire Department for securing such 

emergency shall constitute a debt of such person(s) and shall be collectable by the Fire 

Department in the same manner as in the case of an obligation under contract, expressed or 

implied. 

 
 

Amend Section 202 to add the following definition of "ADDITION" between "ACCESSIBLE 
ROUTE" and "AGED HOME OR INSTITUTION”: 

 
ADDITION is the increase of area of an existing structure, for which a building permit has been 

issued, where the increase in floor area is not made exclusively for the provision of accessibility 

for the physically disabled. 

 
 
Amend Section 202 to add the following definition of "MANUFACTURED HOME" between 
"MANUAL STOCKING METHODS" and "MOBILE HOME”: 

 
MANUFACTURED HOME is a structure when erected on site, is 320 or more square feet, is 

built on a permanent chassis and designed to be used as a single-family dwelling with or without 

a foundation when connected to the required utilities, and includes the plumbing, heating, air 

conditioning, and electrical systems contained therein. (CA Health & Safety Code §18007) 
 

105



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

 
Amend Section 202 to add the following definition of "MOBILE HOME" between 
"MANUFACTURED HOME" and "MARINA”: 
 

MOBILE HOME is a structure when erected onsite, is 320 or more square feet, is built on a 

permanent chassis and designed to be used as a single-family dwelling with or without a 

foundation system when connected to the required utilities, and includes the plumbing, heating, 

air conditioning, and electrical systems contained therein. (CA Health & Safety Code §18008) 
 
 
Amend Section 202 to add the following definition of "REMODELED" between "RELOCATABLE 
BUILDING (PUBLIC SCHOOL) and "REMOTE EMERGENCY SHUTOFF DEVICE" to read as 
follows: 

 

REMODELED is work requiring a building permit including, but not limited to, cosmetic or 

structural repairs, renovations, restorations, alterations or additions to a structure, the total 

valuation of which, as determined by the building official, exceeds $100,000 for buildings 

containing residential uses or occupancies and $150,000 for all other occupancies over any 36-

month period.  
 
 

Amend Section 202 to add the following definition of "STRUCTURE" between "STORY ABOVE 
GRADE PLANE" and "SUPERVISING STATION" to read as follows: 

 
STRUCTURE is that which is built or constructed, an edifice or building of any kind or any 

piece of work artificially built up or composed of parts joined together in some definite manner, 

regardless of property lines. 

 
 
Amend Section 202 to add the following definition of "Umbrella Structure" between "Twenty-four 
hour basis" and "Unauthorized Discharge" to read as follows: 
 

UMBRELLA STRUCTURE.  A structure, enclosure or shelter with or without sidewalls or 

drops, constructed of fabric or pliable material supported by a central pole. (See “Membrane 

Structure” and “Tent”) 

 

 

Amend Section 202 to add the following definition of "Unwarranted Alarm" between "Unwanted 
Fire" and "Use (material)" to read as follows: 
 

UNWARRANTED ALARM. The giving, signaling or transition of an alarm notification to a 

public fire station or emergency communication center when such alarm is the result of a 

defective condition of an alarm system, system servicing testing, construction activities, ordinary 

household activities, false alarm or other cause when no such danger exists. 

 
 
Amend subsection 304.1.2 by adding subsection 304.1.2.1 to read as follows: 

 
304.1.2.1  Combustible Vegetation.  The fire chief shall notify a property owner by U. S. Postal 

mail when it is determined that a property is or may become a fire hazard due to combustible 

vegetation. The property owner may be given the choice of performing hazard abatement work on 

106



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

their own behalf, or authorizing the fire chief to have the work performed. In the event that the 

property owner does not reply, fails to complete the abatement, or authorizes the fire chief to 

perform the work on the owner's behalf, the fire chief may cause the work to be performed, then 

bill the property owner for the cost of such work plus an appropriate administrative fee. Upon the 

request of the property owner, or in the event that a property owner fails to reply to a bill for 

weed abatement services, the chief shall request the City Clerk to report the cost of such services 

to the County Tax Assessor, so that the balance due can be added to the property tax of that parcel 

of land. 

 
 

Add subsection 304.1.4 to read as follows: 
 

304.1.4  Defensible space - neighboring property 

Persons owning, leasing, or controlling property within areas requiring defensible spaces are 

responsible for maintaining a defensible space on the property owned, leased or controlled by 

said person, within a distance of not less than 30 feet (91 467 mm) from any neighboring building 

structure or property line.  Distances may be modified by the fire code official because of a site-

specific analysis based on local conditions. 

 
 
Add a new subsection 401.3.2.1 to read as follows: 
 

401.3.2.1 Unwarranted alarm notification. Notification of emergency responders based on an 

unwarranted alarm may be punishable by a fine in accordance with the adopted fee schedule. In 

addition, the responsible party may be liable for the operational and administrative costs, incurred 

from the emergency response or mitigation procedures resulting from an unwarranted alarm 

notification. 

 

 

Amend Section 402.1 by adding the following term after the term “LOCKDOWN” : 
UNWARRANTED ALARM 

 

 
Amend subsection 501.1 to read as follows: 

 
501.1 Scope. Fire service features for buildings, structures and premises shall comply with this 

chapter. Design and construction shall be in accordance with the following sections unless 

otherwise authorized by the fire code official in accordance with 104.9 Alternative Materials and 

Methods. 

 
 

 
 
Add a new subsection 503.2.6.1 to read as follows: 

 

503.2.6.1 Evaluation and maintenance. All existing private bridges and elevated surfaces that 

are a part of the fire department access roadway, shall be evaluated by a California licensed civil 

engineer experienced in structural engineering or a California licensed structural engineer, for 

safety and weight rating, in accordance with American Association of State Highway and 

Transportation Officials (AASHTO) Manual: ``The Manual for Bridge Evaluation,'' Second 

Edition, or other approved standard.  Vehicle load limits shall be posted at both entrances to 

107



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

bridges. All bridges and elevated structures providing fire department access shall be routinely 

maintained in accordance with Section 503.2.6 or when directed by the fire code official or 

authorized designee. 

 
 

Amend subsection 503.3 to read as follows: 
 

503.3 Marking. Where required by the fire code official, approved signs or other 

approved notices or markings that include the words NO PARKING – FIRE LANE in 

accordance with the California Vehicle Code, shall be provided for fire apparatus access 

roads to identify such roads or prohibit the obstruction thereof.  The means by which fire 

lanes are designated shall be maintained in a clean and legible condition at all times and be 

replaced or repaired when necessary to provide adequate visibility. 

 
 
Add the following sentence to the end of section 503.2.7: 
 

All buildings located on slopes of greater than five percent (5%) shall also include such additional 

fire protection measures, as the fire chief deems necessary to mitigate access constraints. 

 

 
Amend subsection 505.1 to read as follows: 
 

505.1 Address identification. New and existing buildings shall have approved address numbers, 

building numbers or approved building identification placed in a position that is plainly legible 

and visible from the street or road fronting the property. These numbers shall contrast with their 

background. Where required by the fire code official, address numbers shall be provided in 

additional locations to facilitate emergency response. Address numbers shall be Arabic numbers 

or alphabetical letters. Posted address numbers shall be those assigned by the City of Sonoma. 

Address numbers shall be maintained. 

 

Exceptions:  

1. These requirements may be modified with the approval of the fire code official. 

2. Illuminated address numbers are not required for existing buildings where approved; 

reflective numbers are to be installed. 

 

505.1.1 Addresses for buildings.  All buildings shall be issued an address by the local 

jurisdiction which conforms to that jurisdiction's overall address system. Accessory buildings 

will not be required to have a separate address; however, each unit within a building shall be 

separately identified. 

 

505.1.2 Numbers for one and two- family dwellings. Numbers for one and two- family 

dwellings shall be a minimum of 4 inches (101.6mm) high with a minimum stroke width of 

0.5 inches (12.7 mm). Where access is by means of a private road and the building cannot be 

viewed from the public way, a monument, pole, or other sign or means shall be used to 

identify the structure.  

 

505.1.3 Numbers for other than one and two- family dwellings.  Numbers for other than 

one- and two- family dwellings shall be a minimum of 12 inches high with a minimum stroke 

width of 1 inch.  Suite and unit directional numbers shall be not less than six (6) inches high 

108



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

with a minimum stroke width of three-quarter (0.75) inch.  Numbers shall be not less than 

four (4) inches high with a minimum stroke width of one-half (0.5) inch. 

 

505.1.4 Complex directory.  Where two or more buildings cannot be viewed from the public 

way or when determined by the fire code official, an approved illuminated complex directory, 

monument, pole, or other approved sign or means shall be used to identify the structures at 

the main entrances to the property. The complex directory, monument, pole, or other 

approved sign or means shall comply with the requirements of the City’s sign regulations 

contained in Title 18 of the Sonoma Municipal Code. 

 

505.1.5 Installation, location and visibility of addresses. All buildings shall have a 

permanently posted address, which shall be placed at each driveway entrance and visible 

from both directions of travel along the road. In all cases, the address shall be posted at the 

beginning of construction and shall be maintained thereafter, and the address shall be visible 

and legible from the road on which the address is located. 

 

505.1. 5.1 Address signs along one-way roads shall be visible from both the intended 

direction of travel and the opposite direction. 

 

505.1. 5.2 Where multiple addresses are required at a single driveway, they shall be mounted 

on a single post. (d) Where a roadway provides access solely to a single commercial or 

industrial business, the address sign shall be placed at the nearest road intersection 

providing access to that site. 

 
 

Add a new subsection 507.1.1 to read as follows: 
 

507.1.1 Emergency water during construction. The emergency water system shall be 

available on-site prior to combustible construction. Required fire hydrants shall be accepted 

by the City of Sonoma and conform to City of Sonoma Standard Plan 501. 
 
 

Amend subsection 507.5 to read as follows: 
 

507.5  Fire hydrant systems.  Fire hydrant systems shall comply with Sections 507.5.1 through 

507.5.8.  

 
 

Amend subsection 507.5.1 by deleting the subsection and exception and replacing it to read as 
follows: 

 
507.5.1 Where required. Where a portion of the facility or building hereafter constructed or 

moved into or within the jurisdiction is more than 150 feet (45.179 m) from a hydrant on a fire 

apparatus access road, as measured by an approved route around the exterior of the facility or 

building, on-site fire hydrants and mains shall be provided where required by the fire code 

official. 

 
 

Add a new subsection 507.5.7 to read as follows: 
 

109



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

507.5.7 Fire hydrant size and outlets. Shall be in accordance with City of Sonoma  standard 

plans, or as approved by the fire code official. 

 
Add a new subsection 507.5.8 to read as follows: 
 

507.5.8 Fire hydrant street marker. Fire hydrant locations shall be visually indicated in 

accordance with the City of Sonoma standards or as approved by the fire code official, as may be 

amended from time to time. Any hydrant marker damaged or removed during the course of street 

construction or repair shall be immediately replaced by the contractor, developer or person 

responsible for removal or damage. 

 

Amend subsection 510.1 to read as follows: 
 
510.1 Emergency responder radio coverage in buildings. All buildings, Type-2 winery caves 

and Type-3 winery caves shall have approved radio coverage for emergency responders within 

the building or winery cave based upon the existing coverage levels of the public safety 

communication systems of the jurisdiction, at the exterior of the building. This section shall not 

require improvement of the existing public safety communication systems. 

Exceptions: 

1. Where approved by the building official and the fire code official, a wired 

communication system in accordance with Section 907.2.13.2 may be permitted 

to be installed in lieu of an approved radio coverage system. 

2. Where it is determined by the fire code official that the radio coverage system is 

not necessary. 

3. In facilities where emergency responder radio coverage is required and such 

systems, components or equipment required could have a negative impact on the 

normal operations of that facility, the fire code official shall have the authority to 

accept an automatically activated emergency responder radio coverage system. 

 
 

Amend subsection 901.4.1 by adding subsection 901.4.1.1 to read as follow:  
 

901.4.1.1 Owner Responsibilities. Where such systems and appliances are required by this or 

any other code, it shall be the responsibility of the owner that a person or persons familiar with 

the function and proper operation of such devices be in attendance whenever the premises is 

occupied. 

 
 

Add subsection 901.11 to read as follows: 
 

901.11 Notice of Nuisance Alarm. The officer in charge of fire units responding to a fire 

alarm signal shall determine whether a true emergency exists. If the officer determines that 

an emergency does not exist, the chief of the local fire agency or his/her authorized 

representative may issue a written notice of nuisance alarm to the owner or person in 

charge or control of the facility where the alarm signal originated. 

 
 

Add subsection 901.12 to read as follows: 
 

110



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

901.12 Unreliable Fire Alarm Systems. The fire chief of the local fire agency or his/her 

authorized representative may determine that a fire alarm system is unreliable upon receipt 

of more than four (4) nuisance alarms within a twelve (12) month period. Upon finding 

that an alarm system is unreliable, the fire chief of the local fire agency or his/her 

authorized representative may order the following: 

 

1. For any nuisance alarm where the system is not restored, the fire chief may require 

the system owner to provide standby personnel as defined by Section 901.7 or take 

such other measures, as the fire chief deems appropriate. Persons or activities required 

by the fire chief shall remain in place until a fire department approved fire alarm 

maintenance firm certifies in writing to the fire chief that the alarm system has been 

restored to a reliable condition. The fire chief may require such tests, as he deems 

necessary to demonstrate the adequacy of the system. 

 

2. Upon the fifth (5th) and sixth (6th) nuisance alarms from the alarm system within 

a twelve- (12) month period, the system owner shall pay a mitigation fee to the fire 

department of $150.00, plus the cost of fire engine response, for each occurrence. 

 

3. Upon the seventh (7th) and eighth (8th) nuisance alarms from the alarm system 

within a twelve- (12) month period, the system owner shall pay a mitigation fee to the 

fire department of $300.00, plus the cost of fire engine response for each occurrence.  

 

4. Upon the ninth (9th) and following nuisance alarms from the alarm system within 

a twelve-e (12) month period, the system owner shall pay a mitigation fee to the fire 

department of $500.00, plus the cost of fire engine response, for each occurrence.  

 
 

Amend subsection 903.2 by deleting subsections 903.2 through 903.2.11.3 and replacing to 
read as follows: 
 

903.2 Where required. An automatic fire sprinkler system shall be installed in all new buildings, 

factory-built housing, manufactured homes and mobile homes for which a building permit is 

required and in existing buildings upon a remodel or addition to a building.  

 

Exceptions: 

1.  Spaces or areas in telecommunications buildings used exclusively for 

telecommunications equipment, associated electrical power distribution equipment, 

batteries and standby engines, provided those spaces or areas are equipped 

throughout with an automatic fire alarm system and are separated from the remainder 

of the building by fire barriers consisting of not less than 1-hour fire-resistance-rated 

walls and 2-hour fire-resistance-rated floor/ceiling assemblies. 

2.  Detached structures used exclusively as a Group U Occupancy. 

3.  Shipping containers used as a Group S, Division 2 Occupancy. 

4.  Unless otherwise required in by other sections of the code, a sprinkler system shall 

not be required when all of the following are met: 

a. The addition of floor area to a building results in a total floor area for the 

building of less than 4,000 square feet or the addition is less than ten percent 

(10%) of the existing floor area of the building; and  

111



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

b. The cumulative total building permit valuation for all building permits issued for 

the subject building within any 36 month period, as determined by the building 

official, is equal to or less than $100,000 for buildings containing residential uses 

or occupancies and equal to or less than $150,000 for all other occupancies.  

5.   In an existing multiple-tenant building that requires a fire sprinkler system, the fire 

chief has the authority to modify the fire sprinkler requirements when the intended 

use does not create any increase in fire danger and the cost of installing a complete 

fire sprinkler system throughout the entire building creates an unreasonable financial 

hardship, as determined by the fire chief. 

[NOTE:  Subsection numbers 903.2.1 through 903.2.11.3 are not used due to local amendments.] 

 
 
Amend subsection 903.3.7 to read as follows: 

 
903.3.7 Fire department connections.  The location of fire department connections shall be 

approved by the fire code official.  Fire department hose connections for fire suppression systems 

and standpipes shall be provided with approved vandal-resistant caps. 

 
 
Amend subsection 903.4.2 to read as follows:  

 
903.4.2 Alarms. At least one exterior approved audible device activated by the water flow 

equivalent to the flow of a single sprinkler of the smallest orifice size installed in the 

system shall be connected to every automatic fire alarm system in an approved location, 

and approved audible devices shall be connected to every automatic sprinkler system for 

the purpose of occupant notification. Actuation of the automatic sprinkler system shall 

actuate the building fire alarm system in all normally occupied areas for the purpose of 

occupant notification. If the building contains sleeping rooms, the interior alarm shall be 

located in or adjacent to one or more of these rooms. Otherwise, the interior alarm should 

be placed at a constantly attended location, or as a secondary alternative, the alarm shall be 

located where people are likely to be present whenever the building is occupied. 

 
 

Amend subsection 904.12 to read as follows: 
 

904.12 Commercial cooking systems. Commercial cooking equipment that produce 

grease laden vapors shall be provided with a Type I Hood, in accordance with the 

California Mechanical Code, NFPA 96, and an automatic fire extinguishing system that is 

listed and labeled for its intended use as follows: 

1. Wet chemical extinguishing system, complying with UL 300. 

2. Carbon dioxide extinguishing system. 

3. Automatic fire sprinkler systems. 

All existing dry chemical and wet chemical extinguishing systems shall comply with UL 300. 

 

Exception: Public school kitchens, without deep-fat fryers, shall be upgraded to a UL 300 

compliant system during state-funded modernization projects that are under the jurisdiction of 

the Division of the State Architect. 

 

112



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

All systems shall be installed in accordance with the California Mechanical Code, NFPA 96, 

appropriate adopted standards, their listing and the manufactures’ installation instructions. 

 

Exception: Factory-built commercial cooking recirculating systems that are tested, listed, 

labeled and installed in accordance with UL 710B and the California Mechanical Code and 

NFPA 96. 

 
 

Amend subsection 905.3.1 to read as follows: 
 

905.3.1 Height. In other than R-3 and R-3.1 occupancies, Class III standpipe systems shall be 

installed throughout at each floor level where any of the following occur: 

1.  Buildings where the floor level of the highest story is located more than 30 feet above 

the lowest level of fire department vehicle access. 

2.  Buildings that are three or more stories in height. 

3.  Buildings where the floor level of the lowest story is located more than 30 feet below 

the highest level of fire department vehicle access. 

4.  Buildings that are two or more stories below the highest level of fire department 

vehicle access. 

5.  On the roof of buildings three or more stories in height. 

Exceptions:   

1.  Class I standpipes are allowed in buildings equipped throughout with an automatic 

sprinkler system in accordance with Section 903.3.1.1 or 903.3.1.2. 

2.  Class I manual standpipes are allowed in open parking garages where the highest 

floor is located not more than 150 feet (45 720 mm) above the lowest level of fire 

department vehicle access. 

3.  Class I manual dry standpipes are allowed in open parking garages that are subject 

to freezing temperatures, provided that the hose connections are located as required 

for Class II standpipes in accordance with Section 905.5. 

4.  Class I standpipes are allowed in basements equipped throughout with an 

automatic sprinkler system. 

5.  In determining the lowest level of fire department vehicle access, it shall not be 

required to consider: 

5.1  Recessed loading docks for four vehicles or less, and 

5.2  Conditions where topography makes access from the fire department vehicle 

to the building impractical or impossible. 

 
 
Amend subsection 3101.1 to read as follows: 
 

3101.1 Scope. Tents, umbrella structures, temporary stage canopies and membrane structures 

shall comply with this chapter.  The provisions of Section 3103 are applicable only to temporary 

tents, umbrella structures, and membrane structures.  The provisions of Section 3104 are 

applicable to temporary and permanent tents, umbrella structures, and membrane structures. 

Other temporary structures shall comply with the California Building Code. 

113



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

 

These building standards govern the use of tents, umbrella structures, awnings or other fabric 

enclosures, including membrane (air-supported and air-inflated) structures and places of 

assemblage, in or under which 10 or more persons may gather for any lawful purpose. 

Exceptions: 

1. Tents, umbrella structures, awnings or other fabric enclosures used to cover or 

enclose private swimming pools and similar facilities on the premises of private one- 

and two-family dwellings. 

2. Tents used to conduct committal services on the grounds of a cemetery. 

3. Tents, umbrella structures, awnings or other fabric enclosures erected and used 

within a sound stage, or other similar structural enclosure which is equipped with an 

overhead automatic sprinkler system. 

4. Tensioned membrane roof materials supported by ridged frames or installed on a 

mast and cable system provided such structures conform to the requirements of one 

of the types of construction as described in these regulations. 

5. Fabric structures which are part of mobile homes, recreational vehicles, or 

commercial coaches governed by the provisions of Division 13, Part 2, Health and 

Safety Code (Department of Housing and Community Development). 

 
 
Amend subsection 3102.1 by adding the following term after the term “TENT”: 
 
 UMBRELLA STRUCTURE 

 

 

Add new subsection 3314.3 to read as follows: 
 

3314.3 Where required. In buildings of combustible construction required to have automatic 

sprinkler system by Section 903, automatic sprinkler system shall be installed prior to 

construction exceeding 40 feet (12,192 mm) in height above the lowest level of fire department 

vehicle access.  Such automatic sprinkler system shall be extended as construction progresses to 

within one floor of the highest point of construction having secured decking or flooring. 
 
 
Add new subsection 3314.4 to read as follows: 
 

3314.4 Buildings being demolished. Where a building is being demolished and a sprinkler 

system exists within such a building, such sprinkler system shall be maintained in an operable 

condition so as to be available for use by the fire department. Such sprinkler system may be 

demolished with the building but shall not be demolished more than one floor below the floor 

being demolished. 

 
 
Add subsection 5001.5.3 to read as follows: 
 

5001.5.3 Electronic Reporting.  All Hazardous Material Management Plans (HMMP) and 

Hazardous Material Inventory Statements (HMIS) shall be submitted electronically as 

approved by the fire code official. 

 

114



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

 
Add subsection 5704.1.1 to read as follows: 
 

5704.1.1 Tanks Storage prohibited.  No existing aboveground tanks for the storage of 

Class I and Class II liquids outside of buildings (except LPG-Propane) shall be permitted 

on mercantile, residential, and other congested parcels. Existing tanks on such parcels shall 

be removed within one (1) year after written notice from the fire code official. 

 
 
Add subsection 5704.1.2 to read as follows: 
 

5704.1.2 Tank Storage - Other locations. New aboveground tanks for storage of Class I 

and II liquids on parcels not covered under Section 5704.1.2 shall be enclosed in a 

flammable liquid storage vault constructed in accordance with the standards of the fire 

department. Existing tanks on such parcels shall conform to new within one (1) year after 

written notice from the fire code official. 

 
 

Add subsection 5704.1.3 to read as follows: 
 

5704.1.3 Existing Tank Storage.  Existing tank storage shall meet the requirements of 

new tank installations within one year of notice from the fire code official. 

 
 

Add subsection 6107.5 to read as follows: 
 

6107.5 Seismic Anchoring. An approved seismic anchoring system shall be installed on all 

permanently installed propane/LPG gas containers.  

 
 
Amend Chapter 80 - Referenced Standard  NFPA 13D-16 Section 5.1.1.2 to read as follows:  
 

5.1.1.2.  A supply of at least three sprinklers shall be maintained on the premises so that any 

sprinklers that have operated of been damaged in any way can be promptly replaced. 

 
 
Amend Chapter 80 - Referenced Standard  NFPA 13D-16 by adding Section 5.1.1.2.1 to read 
as follows:  
 

5.1.1.2.1.  The sprinklers shall correspond to the types and temperature ratings of the 

sprinklers in the property.  The stock sprinklers shall include not less than one sprinkler of 

all types and ratings installed. 
 
Amend Chapter 80 - Referenced Standard  NFPA 13D-16 by adding Section 5.1.1.2.2 to read 
as follows: 
 

5.1.1.2.2.  The sprinklers shall be kept in a cabinet located where the temperature to which they 

are subjected will at no time exceed the maximum ceiling temperatures specified in Table 

5.1.1.6.1 for each of the sprinklers within the cabinet. 

 

 

115



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

 
Amend Chapter 80 - Referenced Standard  NFPA 13D-16 by adding Section 5.1.1.2.3 to read 
as follows: 
 

5.1.1.2.3.  One sprinkler wrench as specified by the sprinkler manufacture shall be 

provided in the cabinet for each type of sprinkler installed to be used for the removal and 

installation of sprinklers in the system. 
 
 
Amend Chapter 80 - Referenced Standard  NFPA 13D-16 by revising Section 7.6 to read as 
follows: 
 

7.6 A local waterflow alarm shall be provided on all sprinkler systems. 

 
 
Amend Chapter 80 - Referenced Standard  NFPA 13D-16 by adding Section 8.1.2.1 to read as 
follows: 
 

8.1.2.1 Garages are permitted to be protected by residential sprinklers. 
 
 
Amend Chapter 80 - Referenced Standard  NFPA 13D-16 by revising Section 8.3.4 to read as 
follows: 
 

8.3.4 Sprinklers shall not be required in detached garages, open attached porches, detached 

carports, and similar structures unless otherwise required by the California Building or 

Fire Codes. 

 

 
Amend Chapter 80 - Referenced Standard  NFPA 13D-16 by adding Section 8.3.5.2 to read as 
follows: 
 

8.3.5.2 At least one quick-response intermediate temperature residential sprinkler shall be 

installed above attic access openings. 
 
 
Amend Chapter 80 - Referenced Standard  NFPA 13D-16 by revising Section 11.2.1.1 to read 
as follows: 
 

11.2.1.1 Where a fire department pumper connection is not provided, the system shall be 

hydrostatically tested at not less than 200 psi without evidence of leakage. 

 
 
 
Amend Appendix B, subsection B101.1 to read as follows: 
 

B101.1  Scope. The procedure for determining fire-flow requirements for buildings or portions of 

buildings hereafter constructed shall be in accordance with this appendix. This appendix does not 

apply to structures other than buildings. Design and construction shall be in accordance with the 

following sections unless otherwise authorized by the fire code official in accordance with 104.9 

Alternative Materials and methods. 

116



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

 
 
Amend the definition of FIRE-FLOW in Appendix B, subsection B102.1 to read as follows: 

 
FIRE-FLOW. The flow rate of a water supply, measured at 20 pounds per square inch (psi) (138 

kPa) residual pressure, measured in the water main in the vicinity of the flowing hydrant, that is 

available for fire fighting. 

 
 
Amend the definition of FIRE-FLOW CALCULATION AREA in Appendix B, subsection B102.1 
to read as follows: 

 
FIRE-FLOW CALCULATION AREA. The floor area, in square feet, used to determine the 

required fire flow. The fire-flow calculation area or floor area shall be the total floor area of all 

floor levels within the exterior walls that are under the horizontal projection of the roof, except as 

modified in Section B 104.3. 

 
 
Amend Appendix B, subsection B105.1 to read as follows: 
 

B105.1  One- and two-family dwellings. The minimum fire-flow requirements for one- and two-

family dwellings having a fire-flow calculation area which does not exceed 3,600 square feet 

(344.5 m2) shall be 1500 gallons per minute (3785.4 L/min). Fire-flow and flow duration for 

dwellings having a fire-flow calculation area in excess of 3,600 square feet (344.5 m2) shall not 

be less than that specified in Table B 105.1. 

 

Exception: A reduction in required fire-flow of up to 50 percent, as approved, may be allowed 

when the building is provided with an approved automatic sprinkler system 

 
 
Amend Appendix B, subsection B105.2 to read as follows: 

 
B105.2  Buildings other than one- and two-family dwellings. The minimum fire-flow and flow 

duration for buildings other than one-and two-family dwellings shall be as specified in Table 

B105.1. 

 

Exception: A reduction in required fire-flow of up to 50 percent, as approved, may be 

allowed when the building is provided with an approved automatic sprinkler system 

installed in accordance with Section 903.3.1.1 or 903.3.1.2. The resulting fire-flow shall 

not be less than 2,000 gallons per minute (5678 l/min) for the prescribed duration as 

specified in Table B 105.1. 

 
 

Amend Appendix B, Table B105.1 by deleting footnote a). 
 
 
Amend Appendix C, subsection C102 to read as follows: 
 

C102.1 Fire Hydrant Locations. Where fire hydrants are required, fire hydrants shall be 

provided along required fire apparatus access roads and adjacent public streets, and a fire hydrant 

117



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

shall be located within 50 feet of the Fire Department Connection (FDC), or as approved by the 

fire code official. 

 
 

Amend Appendix D, Section D101 to read as follows: 
 

D101.1  Scope. Fire apparatus access roads shall be in accordance with this appendix as amended 

and all other applicable requirements of the International Fire Code. This section applies to 

residential and commercial developments. Design and construction shall be in accordance with 

the following sections unless otherwise authorized by the fire code official, in accordance with 

104.9 Alternative Materials and methods. 

 
 

Amend Appendix D, subsection D103.1 to read as follows: 
 

D103.1  Access road width with a hydrant. Where a fire hydrant is located on a fire apparatus 

access road, the minimum road width shall be determined by the fire code official. 

 
 

Amend Appendix D, subsection D103.2 to read as follows: 
 

D103.2  Grade. The grade of fire apparatus access roads shall be in accordance with the local 

agency requirement for public streets or as approved by the fire code official. 

 
 

Amend Appendix D, subsection D103.3 to read as follows: 
 

D103.3  Turning radius. The minimum turning radius shall be determined by the fire code 

official. 

 
 

Amend Appendix D, subsection D103.4 to read as follows: 
 

D103.4  Dead ends. Dead-end fire apparatus access roads in excess of 150 feet (45 720 mm) 

shall be provided with width and turnaround provisions in accordance with the local agency 

requirements for public streets or as approved by the fire code official. 

 
 

Amend Appendix D, subsection D103.4 by deleting Table D103.4: 
 
 
Amend Appendix D, subsection D103.6 to read as follows: 

 
D103.6  Signs. Where required by the fire code official, fire apparatus access roads shall be 

marked with permanent NO PARKING-FIRE LANE signs complying with C.V.C. (California 

Vehicle Code). 

 
 

Amend Appendix D, subsection D104.2 to read as follows: 
 

(The exception to D104.2 is deleted) 

118



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

 
 
Amend Appendix D, subsection D106.1 to read as follows: 

 
D106.1  Projects having more than 50 dwelling units.  Multiple-family residential projects 

having more than 50 dwelling units shall be provided with two separate and approved fire 

apparatus access roads. 

 
(The exception to D106.1 is deleted) 

 
 

Amend Appendix D subsection D106 by deleting subsection D106.2: 
 
 
Add Appendix D subsection D106.4 to read as follows: 
 

Multi-residential projects having more than 50 dwelling units. Hotels, motels, 

condominiums, apartments, townhouses and similar multi-residential projects having more 

than 50 dwelling units shall be provided with two separate and approved fire apparatus 

access roads. 

 
 
Amend Appendix D, subsection D107.1 to read as follows: 

 
D107.1  One- or two-family dwelling residential developments. Developments of one- and 

two-family dwellings where the number of dwelling units exceeds 50 shall be provided with two 

separate and approved fire apparatus access roads and shall meet the requirements of section 

D104.3. 

 
(The exceptions to D107.1 are deleted.) 

 
 
14.10.050    2016 California Green Building Standards Code Amendments. 
 

A.  Based upon the express finding of necessity #1 and #4 set forth in Section 14.10.005, 
Part 11 of the 2016 California Building Standards Code, known as the California Green Building 
Standards Code, as adopted by Section 14.10.015, is further amended as follows: 

 
 
Adopt by reference and add Appendix Chapter A4 (Residential Voluntary Measures) and 
Appendix Chapter A5 (Nonresidential Voluntary Measures) of the 2016 California Green 
Building Standards Code appendices. 
 
 
Amend Section 301.1 to read as follows: 
 

301.1 Scope. Buildings shall be designed to include the green building measures specified as 

mandatory in Chapters 4 and 5 of this code, as applicable. Newly constructed buildings shall also 

be designed to include the prerequisite and applicable elective measures to achieve Tier 1 status 

as prescribed in Appendix A4 and A5 of this code, as applicable, except that the energy efficiency 

measures set forth in Appendix A4 Division A4.2 and Appendix A5 and Division A5.2 need not 

119



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

be met. Additions and alterations shall meet the requirements of Section 301 but shall not be 

required to meet Tier 1 status as prescribed in Appendix A4 or A5 of this code, as otherwise 

applicable. The building official shall develop  CALGreen application checklists to be included in 

the design and used for construction of structures covered by this code. All buildings subject to 

the requirements of this code shall meet all applicable requirements of the California Energy 

Code (California Code of Regulations, Title 24, Part 6). 

 
 
 

Amend the title and explanatory note of Appendix A4 to read as follows: 
 

Appendix A4 

Supplementary Residential Mandatory and Elective Measures 
The measures contained herein that are necessary to achieve Tier 1 status shall be mandatory 

pursuant Section 301.1 of this code. 

 
 

Amend Appendix Section A4.201.1 to read as follows: 
 

A4.201.1 Scope. For the purposes of meeting mandatory Tier 1 status pursuant to Section 301.1 

of this code, compliance with the provisions contained in this Appendix A4 Division A4.2 need 

not be met. The provisions contained in this Appendix A4 Division A4.2 are entirely voluntary 

and are intended only as a means to encourage buildings to achieve exemplary performance in the 

area of energy efficiency.   

 
 
Amend Item 2 in Appendix Section A4.601.4.2 to read as follows: 

 

2. From Division A4.2, Energy Efficiency. 

2.1. No requirements for this division. 

 
 
Amend the note in the last paragraph of Appendix Section A4.601.4.2 to read as follows: 
 

Note: Checklists developed by the building official may be used to show which elective measures 

are selected.  The building official may require the use of a specific form or checklist developed 

by the building official to show compliance with the provisions of Appendix A4. 

 
 

Delete Appendix Section A4.602 (Residential Occupancies Application Checklist) in its entirety. 
 
 
Delete Appendix Division A4.7 (Residential Model Ordinance) in its entirety. 
 
 
Amend the title and explanatory note of Appendix A5 to read as follows: 
 

Appendix A5 

120



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

Supplementary Nonresidential Mandatory and Elective Measures 
The measures contained herein that are necessary to achieve Tier 1 status shall be mandatory 

pursuant Section 301.1 of this code. 
 
 

Amend Appendix Section A5.201.1 to read as follows: 
 

A5.201.1 Scope. For the purposes of meeting mandatory Tier 1 status pursuant to Section 301.1 

of this code, compliance with the provisions contained in this Appendix A5 Division A5.2 need 

not be met. The provisions contained in this Appendix A5 Division A5.2 are entirely voluntary 

and are intended only as a means to encourage buildings to achieve exemplary performance in the 

area of energy efficiency. 
 
 
Amend the first paragraph in Appendix Section A5.601.2.3 to read as follows: 
 

A5.601.2.3  Tier 1.  For the purposes of meeting mandatory Tier 1 status pursuant to Section 

301.1 of this code, compliance with the provisions contained in Sections A5.203.1.1 and Section 

A5.203.1.2.1 need not be met. The provisions of those sections are entirely voluntary and are 

intended only as a means to encourage buildings to achieve exemplary performance in the area of 

energy efficiency.  

 
 
Amend the first paragraph in Appendix Section A5.601.2.4 to read as follows: 
 

A5.601.2.4  Measures for Tier 1.  In addition to the provisions of Section A5.601.2.1 above, 

compliance with the following measures from Appendix A5 is required for Tier 1.   

 
 
Delete Appendix Section A5.602 (Nonresidential Occupancies Application Checklist) in its 
entirety. 
 
 
 

14.10.055    2016 California Existing Building Code Amendments. 
 

A.  Based upon the express finding of necessity #1, #2, #3 and #4 set forth in Section 
14.10.005, Part 1110 of the 2016 California Building Standards Code, known as the California Existing 
Building Code, as adopted by Section 14.10.015, is further amended as follows: 

 
Delete subsection 407.1.1 and Amend Section 407.1 to read as follows: 
 

407.1 Conformance. No change shall be made in the use, character of use, occupancy or 

occupancy classification of any building unless such building is made to comply with the 

applicable provisions of the California Building Standards Code for the new use or occupancy. 

Subject to the approval of the building official, the use or occupancy of existing buildings shall be 

permitted to be changed and the building may be occupied for purposes in other groups or 

occupancy classifications without conforming to all of the requirements of this code for those 

uses, groups or occupancy classifications, provided the new or proposed use complies with the 

121



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

energy and accessibility requirements of the California Building Standards Code for the intended 

use and provided further that the new or proposed use is less hazardous, based on life and fire 

risk, than the existing use. 

Exception: The building need not be made to comply with the seismic requirements for a 

new structure unless required by Section 407.4. 

 

B.  Based upon the express finding of necessity #2 set forth in Section 14.10.005, Part 10 of 
the 2016 California Building Standards Code, known as the California Existing Building Code, as 
adopted by Section 14.10.015, is amended as follows: 

 
Adopt by reference and add the following 2016 California Existing Building Code appendices: 
 

1) Appendix Chapter A1 – Seismic Strengthening Provisions for Unreinforced 
Masonry Bearing Wall Buildings. 

2) Appendix Chapter A3 – Prescriptive Provisions for Seismic Strengthening of 
Cripple Walls and Sill Plate Anchorage of Light Wood-Frame Residential 
Buildings. 

3) Appendix Chapter A4 – Earthquake Risk Reduction in Wood-Frame Residential 
Buildings with Soft, Weak or Open Front Walls.  

 

Amend the first sentence in Appendix Chapter A3 Section A301.2 to read as follows: 

A301.2  Scope.  The provisions of this chapter are voluntary and may be applied to residential 

light-frame wood construction containing one or more of the structural weaknesses specified in 

Section A303. 

 

Amend the first sentence in Appendix Chapter A4 Section A403.2 to read as follows: 

A401.2  Scope.  The provisions of this chapter are voluntary and may be applied to all existing 

Occupancy Group R-1 and R-2 buildings of wood construction, or portions thereof, where the 

structure has a soft, weak or open-front wall line and there exists one or more stories above.  

 

 

14.10.060 Board of Appeals. 

 The city council is designated as the board of appeals in order to hear and decide appeals of 
orders, decisions or determinations made by the building official or the fire chief relative to the application 
and interpretation of the construction codes adopted by the city council. The procedure for appeals shall be 
that established in Section 14.10.010. 
 
14.10.065 Modification of Fee Schedules. 

 The construction codes adopted in this chapter are modified by the suspension of the operation of 
any fee schedules contained therein whenever the city council has by ordinance or resolution adopted a 
different schedule or schedules. It is the intention of the city council that it shall, for administrative 
convenience, adopt from time to time resolutions containing fee schedules for the granting of permits 
under the codes adopted in this chapter and for the administration thereof.  
 

122



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

14.10.070 Enforcement Authority. 

 Unless otherwise provided by ordinance or resolution of the city council, the building official of the 
City is the enforcement officer for all provisions of the technical codes adopted herein except that the fire 
chief of the City shall be the enforcement officer for all provisions of the California Fire Code and 
amendments thereto and all building standards adopted by and subject to the enforcement authority of the 
California State Fire Marshal and published in the State Building Standards Code relating to fire and panic 
safety and other regulations of the State Fire Marshal. 
 
 
SECTION 2. CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT  

 The City Council finds that the adoption of this ordinance is exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) under California Code of Regulations, Title 14 Section 15061(b)(3), in 
that it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the adoption of this ordinance will have a 
significant effect on the environment.  The ordinance adopts standard codes that will be in effect pursuant 
to state law and sets requirements for compliance.  The adoption of this ordinance does not entitle new 
development or any changes to the physical environment. 
 
 
SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY.  

 If any section, subsection, clause, sentence, word or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason 
held to be invalid and/or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect 
the validity of remaining portions of this ordinance.  The city council declares that it would have passed and 
adopted this ordinance and each of the provisions thereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more 
such provisions, sections, subsections, phrases or clauses be declared invalid and/or unconstitutional. 
 
 
SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 These construction codes, including the appendices thereto and secondary codes mentioned 
therein, except as otherwise excluded, are in full force and effect as ordinances of the City of Sonoma, 
thirty (30) days after the adoption of this ordinance by the City Council or on January 1, 2017, whichever is 
later. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Sonoma this _________ day 

of _________________, 2016.  

 

___________________________ 

Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

Rebekah Barr, City Clerk 

 

 

State of California   ) 

County of Sonoma ) 

City of Sonoma  ) 

 

123



ATTACHMENT A 
Draft Ordinance – Rev 10/11/16 

I, Rebekah Barr, City Clerk of the City of Sonoma, do hereby certify that the foregoing ordinance was adopted on 

_____________________________, 2016 by the following vote: 

 

      AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

 

 

              

        ____________________________ 

        Rebekah Barr, City Clerk   

 

 

124



A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 B
 

R
ea

so
n

s 
F

o
r 

L
o

ca
l 

A
m

en
d

m
e
n
ts

 –
 R

e
v
1

0
/1

1
/1

6
 

 
C

o
d

e 
/ 

A
ct

io
n
 /

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 t

o
 b

e 
A

d
d

ed
 o

r 
A

m
e
n

d
ed

 
R

ea
so

n
 f

o
r 

A
m

e
n
d

m
e
n
t 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

ve
 P

ro
vi

si
o

n
s 

 

R
ep

ea
l 

an
d

 a
d
o

p
t 

a 
n

ew
 S

M
C

 1
4

.1
0

.1
0

 (
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

s)
 

as
 w

ri
tt

en
. 

T
h

e 
re

v
is

ed
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
re

p
la

ce
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

an
d
 t

h
e 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

co
d

e 
cu

rr
en

tl
y
 i

n
 p

la
ce

. 
T

h
e 

re
p

la
ce

d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 

ac
co

m
p

li
sh

 t
h

e 
fo

ll
o

w
in

g
: 

 
C

la
ri

fy
 t

h
e 

ap
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
co

p
e 

o
f 

th
e 

te
ch

n
ic

al
 c

o
d

es
. 

 

 
P

ro
v
id

e 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
ab

at
em

en
t 

o
f 

u
n

sa
fe

 b
u

il
d

in
g
s 

th
at

 w
er

e 
p

re
v
io

u
sl

y
 c

o
n

ta
in

ed
 i

n
 t

h
e 

U
n

if
o
rm

 C
o

d
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

A
b

at
em

en
t 

o
f 

D
an

g
er

o
u

s 
B

u
il

d
in

g
s,

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

n
o

 l
o

n
g
er

 p
u

b
li

sh
ed

. 

 
C

h
an

g
e 

re
fe

re
n

ce
s 

fr
o

m
 d

el
et

ed
 C

h
ap

te
r 

3
4

 o
f 

th
e 

C
al

if
o

rn
ia

 B
u

il
d

in
g
 C

o
d

e 
to

 t
h

e 
C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 E

x
is

ti
n

g
 B

u
il

d
in

g
 C

o
d

e.
  

 
C

la
ri

fy
 t

h
e 

w
o

rk
 t

h
at

 i
s 

in
cl

u
d

ed
 i

n
 t

h
e 

d
et

er
m

in
at

io
n

 o
f 

th
e 

p
er

m
it

 v
al

u
at

io
n

  

 
C

la
ri

fy
 s

u
b

m
it

ta
l 

re
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

p
er

m
it

s.
 

 
A

u
th

o
ri

ze
 t

h
e 

b
u

il
d

in
g
 o

ff
ic

ia
l 

to
 i

n
v
es

ti
g
at

e 
th

e 
ca

u
se

 o
f 

a 
fi

re
, 

ex
p

lo
si

o
n

 o
r 

h
az

ar
d

o
u

s 
co

n
d

it
io

n
. 

 T
h

is
 i

s 

o
cc

as
io

n
al

ly
 n

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
if

 a
 c

o
d

e 
v
io

la
ti

o
n
 r

es
u

lt
ed

 i
n

 a
 f

ir
e,

 e
x
p

lo
si

o
n

 o
r 

h
az

ar
d

o
u

s 
co

n
d

it
io

n
. 

 
A

u
th

o
ri

ze
 t

h
e 

b
u

il
d

in
g
 o

ff
ic

ia
l 

to
 c

au
se

 t
h

e
 d

is
co

n
n

ec
ti

o
n

 o
f 

sp
ec

if
ie

d
 u

ti
li

ti
es

 w
h

er
e 

th
ey

 s
er

v
e 

d
an

g
er

o
u

s 
eq

u
ip

m
en

t.
  

T
h

is
 i

s 
in

fr
eq

u
en

tl
y
 n

ee
d

ed
 w

h
en

 a
 h

az
ar

d
 m

u
st

 b
e 

el
im

in
at

ed
 a

t 
th

e 
u

ti
li

ty
 s

o
u

rc
e.

 

 
A

u
th

o
ri

ze
 t

h
e 

b
u

il
d

in
g
 o

ff
ic

ia
l 

to
 d

el
eg

at
e 

au
th

o
ri

ty
 t

o
 e

n
fo

rc
e 

th
e 

co
d

es
. 

 T
h

is
 i

s 
n

ee
d

ed
 s

o
 t

h
at

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

fo
rc

e 
o

f 
la

w
 

is
 p

as
se

d
 d

o
w

n
ed

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 w
it

h
 d

el
eg

at
ed

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

. 

 
C

la
ri

fy
 w

h
en

 c
er

ta
in

 w
o

rk
 i

s 
ex

em
p

t 
fr

o
m

 a
 p

er
m

it
. 

 
C

la
ri

fy
 l

an
g
u

ag
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

d
et

er
m

in
at

io
n

 o
f 

su
b

st
an

ti
al

ly
 i

m
p

ro
v
ed

 o
r 

su
b

st
an

ti
al

ly
 d

am
ag

ed
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
il

d
in

g
s 

in
 f

lo
o

d
 

h
az

ar
d

 a
re

as
. 

 T
h

is
 i

s 
n

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 c

o
n

fo
rm

 t
o

 C
it

y
, 

S
ta

te
 a

n
d

 F
ed

er
al

 f
lo

o
d

 h
az

ar
d

 m
it

ig
at

io
n

 r
eg

u
la

ti
o
n

s.
 

 
A

u
th

o
ri

ze
 t

h
e 

b
u

il
d

in
g
 o

ff
ic

ia
l 

to
 r

eq
u

ir
e 

an
 e

v
al

u
at

io
n

 o
f 

an
 e

x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
il

d
in

g
 b

y
 r

eg
is

te
re

d
 d

es
ig

n
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 

an
d

/o
r 

a 
C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 c

er
ti

fi
ed

 a
cc

es
s 

sp
ec

ia
li

st
 w

h
en

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 b

y
 t

h
e 

b
u

il
d

in
g
 o

ff
ic

ia
l 

d
u

e 
to

 t
h

e 
n

at
u

re
 o

f 

th
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 w
o

rk
. 

T
h

is
 i

s 
o

cc
as

io
n

al
ly

 n
ee

d
ed

 w
h

en
 a

 h
ig

h
 l

ev
el

 o
f 

ex
p

er
ti

se
 i

s 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 t
o

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

an
d

 d
es

ig
n

 

p
ro

je
ct

s 
re

q
u

ir
in

g
 a

 p
er

m
it

. 

 
A

u
th

o
ri

ze
 t

h
e 

b
u

il
d

in
g
 o

ff
ic

ia
l 

to
 w

it
h

h
o

ld
 t

h
e 

ap
p

ro
v
al

 o
f 

p
la

n
s 

an
d

 a
 b

u
il

d
in

g
 p

er
m

it
 a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
 i

f 
ap

p
ro

v
al

s 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 b

y
 o

th
er

 g
o

v
er

n
m

en
ta

l 
ag

en
ci

es
 o

r 
C

it
y
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 p

er
ta

in
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e 

w
o

rk
 h

av
e 

n
o

t 
fi

rs
t 

b
ee

n
 o

b
ta

in
ed

. 
 

T
h

is
 i

s 
o

cc
as

io
n

al
ly

 n
ee

d
ed

 w
h

en
 o

th
er

 a
g
en

ci
es

 o
r 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 h
av

in
g
 j

u
ri

sd
ic

ti
o

n
 o

v
er

 a
 p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

th
e 

w
o

rk
 o

f 
a 

p
ro

je
ct

 h
av

e 
n

o
t 

ap
p

ro
v
ed

 t
h

e 
p
la

n
s.

 

 
C

la
ri

fy
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
b

u
il

d
in

g
 o

ff
ic

ia
l 

is
 a

u
th

o
ri

ze
d

 t
o
 w

it
h

h
o

ld
 t

h
e 

is
su

an
ce

 o
f 

a 
ce

rt
if

ic
at

e 
o

f 
o

cc
u

p
an

cy
 o

r 
p

er
m

it
 t

o
 u

se
 o

r 

o
cc

u
p

y
 s

tr
u

ct
u

re
 w

h
en

 t
h

e 
w

o
rk

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 o

r 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 t
o

 b
e 

p
er

fo
rm

ed
 d

o
es

 n
o

t 
re

ce
iv

e 
al

l 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 i
n

sp
ec

ti
o
n

 

ap
p

ro
v
al

s.
  

T
h

is
 i

s 
im

p
li

ed
 b

y
 t

h
e 

co
d

e 
b
u

t 
cl

ar
if

ie
s 

th
e 

re
q

u
ir

em
en

t.
 

 
A

d
d

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
co

ll
ec

ti
n

g
 a

 f
u
ll

y
 r

ef
u

n
d

ab
le

 w
o

rk
 g

u
ar

an
te

e 
d

ep
o

si
t 

fo
r 

te
m

p
o

ra
ry

 o
cc

u
p

an
cy

 a
u

th
o

ri
za

ti
o

n
s.

  

T
h

is
 p

ro
v
id

es
 m

o
re

 f
le

x
ib

il
it

y
 t

o
 o

w
n

er
s 

n
ee

d
in

g
 t

o
 u

se
 o

r 
o

cc
u

p
y
 a

 b
u

il
d

in
g
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 f
u

ll
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
w

o
rk

. 

 
C

la
ri

fy
 t

h
e 

p
ro

ce
ss

 f
o

r 
ap

p
ea

ls
 o

f 
d

ec
is

io
n

s 
m

ad
e 

b
y
 t

h
e 

b
u

il
d

in
g
 o

ff
ic

ia
l.

 

 
C

la
ri

fy
 t

h
e 

p
ro

ce
ss

 a
n

d
 n

o
ti

ci
n

g
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 f
o

r 
is

su
in

g
 n

o
ti

ce
 o

f 
v
io

la
ti

o
n

s,
 s

to
p

 w
o

rk
 o

rd
er

s 
an

d
 n

o
ti

ce
s 

o
f 

u
n

sa
fe

 

st
ru

ct
u

re
s 

an
d
 e

q
u

ip
m

en
t.

 

 
C

la
ri

fy
 t

h
e 

p
ro

ce
ss

 f
o

r 
re

co
v
er

y
 c

o
st

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t 
an

d
 a

b
at

em
en

t 
o

f 
u

n
sa

fe
 s

tr
u

ct
u

re
s;

 

 
D

el
et

e 
fe

e 
ta

b
le

s 
th

at
 w

il
l 

o
th

er
w

is
e 

b
e 

h
an

d
le

d
 o

r 
ad

o
p

te
d
 i

n
 t

h
e 

re
so

lu
ti

o
n
 a

d
o
p

ti
n

g
 r

e
v
is

ed
 f

ee
s.

 

 
M

o
d

if
y
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
al

lo
w

in
g
 t

h
e 

b
u

il
d

in
g
 o

ff
ic

ia
l 

to
 i

m
p

le
m

en
t 

em
er

g
en

cy
 m

ea
su

re
s 

w
h

en
 t

h
er

e 
is

 i
m

m
in

en
t 

d
an

g
er

 o
r 

fa
il

u
re

 o
r 

co
ll

ap
se

 o
f 

a 
b
u

il
d

in
g
 t

h
at

 e
n

d
an

g
er

s 
li

fe
 o

r 
p

ro
p

er
ty

. 
 T

h
is

 i
s 

n
ee

d
ed

 f
o

r 
p
u

b
li

c 
sa

fe
ty

. 
  

2
0

1
6

  
C

a
li

fo
rn

ia
 B

u
il

d
in

g
 C

o
d

e 
 

D
el

et
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
1

, 
D

iv
is

io
n

 I
I 

(S
co

p
e 

an
d

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
) 

an
d

 

re
p

la
ce

 w
it

h
 n

ew
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
o

f 
S

M
C

 1
4

.1
0

.1
0
. 

T
h

e 
d

el
et

io
n

 a
n
d

 r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
o

f 
th

e 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
co

d
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
o

f 
th

e 
co

d
es

 i
s 

n
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e 
a 

co
n

si
st

en
t 

an
d

 m
o

re
 

co
m

p
re

h
en

si
v
e 

se
t 

o
f 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

 o
f 

al
l 

o
f 

th
e 

te
ch

n
ic

al
 c

o
d

es
..

. 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 H

 –
 S

ig
n

s 
P

ro
v
id

es
 n

ew
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
sa

fe
 i

n
st

al
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
si

g
n

s 
n

o
t 

o
th

er
w

is
e 

co
v
er

ed
 b

y
 t

h
e 

co
d

e.
 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 I

 –
 P

at
io

 C
o

v
er

s 
P

ro
v
id

es
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
p

at
io

 c
o

v
er

s 
th

at
 a

re
 n

o
t 

o
th

er
w

is
e 

sp
ec

if
ic

al
ly

 s
p

ec
if

ie
d

 i
n

 t
h

e 
m

ai
n

 b
o
d

y
 o

f 
th

e 
co

d
e.

 

2
0

1
6

  
C

a
li

fo
rn

ia
 R

es
id

en
ti

a
l 

C
o

d
e 

 

125



A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 B
 

R
ea

so
n

s 
F

o
r 

L
o

ca
l 

A
m

en
d

m
e
n
ts

 –
 R

e
v
1

0
/1

1
/1

6
 

 D
el

et
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
1

, 
D

iv
is

io
n

 I
I 

(S
co

p
e 

an
d

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
) 

an
d

 

re
p

la
ce

 w
it

h
 n

ew
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
o

f 
S

M
C

 1
4

.1
0

.1
0
. 

T
h

e 
d

el
et

io
n

 a
n
d

 r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
o

f 
th

e 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
co

d
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
o

f 
th

e 
co

d
es

 i
s 

n
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e 
a 

co
n

si
st

en
t 

an
d

 m
o

re
 

co
m

p
re

h
en

si
v
e 

se
t 

o
f 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

 o
f 

al
l 

o
f 

th
e 

te
ch

n
ic

al
 c

o
d

es
..

. 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 V

 –
 S

w
im

m
in

g
 P

o
o

ls
, 
S

p
as

 a
n

d
 H

o
t 

T
u

b
s 

P
ro

v
id

es
 p

o
o

l 
b

ar
ri

er
 a

n
d

 a
n

ti
-d

ro
w

n
in

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
re

si
d

en
ti

al
 o

cc
u

p
an

ci
es

 c
o

n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
re

q
u

ir
em

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

C
al

if
o

rn
ia

 B
u

il
d
in

g
 C

o
d

e 
an

d
 t

h
e 

C
al

if
o

rn
ia

 H
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

af
et

y
 C

o
d

e 
(S

w
im

m
in

g
 P

o
o

l 
S

af
et

y
 A

ct
).

 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 H

 –
 P

at
io

 C
o

v
er

s 
P

ro
v
id

es
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
p

at
io

 c
o

v
er

s 
th

at
 a

re
 n

o
t 

o
th

er
w

is
e 

sp
ec

if
ic

al
ly

 s
p

ec
if

ie
d

 i
n

 t
h

e 
co

d
e.

 

A
m

en
d

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 R

3
0
2

.2
 a

n
d
 R

3
0

2
.3

 r
el

at
ed

 t
o

 c
o

m
m

o
n

 w
al

ls
 i

n
 

to
w

n
h

o
u

se
s 

an
d

 t
w

o
-f

am
il

y
 d

w
el

li
n

g
s.

 

T
h

es
e 

am
en

d
m

en
ts

 a
re

 n
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 c
la

ri
fy

 t
h

e 
re

q
u

ir
e
m

en
t 

fo
r 

fi
re

-r
es

is
ti

v
e 

w
al

l 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 s
ep

ar
at

in
g
 d

w
el

li
n

g
 u

n
it

s 
in

 

to
w

n
h

o
u

se
s 

an
d

 t
w

o
-f

am
il

y
 d

w
el

li
n

g
s 

w
h

er
e 

th
e 

d
w

el
li

n
g
 u

n
it

s 
ar

e 
lo

ca
te

d
 o

n
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

p
ar

c
el

s.
 

D
el

et
e 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 R
3

1
3

.2
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
 a

 n
ew

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 R

3
1

3
.2

 a
n
d

 

S
ec

ti
o

n
 R

3
1
3

.2
.1

 t
o

 r
eq

u
ir

e 
fi

re
 s

p
ri

n
k
le

rs
 i

n
 n

ew
 a

n
d

 c
er

ta
in

 

al
te

ra
ti

o
n

s 
to

 f
ac

to
ry

-b
u

il
t 

h
o
u

si
n
g
, 

m
o

b
il

e 
h

o
m

es
 a

n
d

 

m
an

u
fa

ct
u

re
d

 h
o

m
es

. 

T
h

is
 a

m
en

d
m

en
t 

st
at

es
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
in

st
al

la
ti

o
n

 o
f 

an
 a

u
to

m
at

ic
 f

ir
e 

sp
ri

n
k
le

r 
sy

st
em

 m
u

st
 b

e 
in

st
al

le
d

 i
n

 o
n

e
- 

an
d

 t
w

o
- 

fa
m

il
y
 

d
w

el
li

n
g
s,

 f
ac

to
ry

-b
u

il
t 

h
o
u

si
n

g
, 
m

o
b

il
e 

h
o

m
es

 a
n

d
 m

an
u

fa
ct

u
re

d
 h

o
m

es
 i

n
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 F

ir
e 

C
o
d

e 
(C

F
C

).
  

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 a
m

en
d

m
en

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e 

C
F

C
 p

ro
v
id

e 
n

ew
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
fi

re
 s

p
ri

n
k
le

r 
in

 o
n

e-
 a

n
d

 t
w

o
- 

fa
m

il
y
 d

w
el

li
n

g
s,

 f
ac

to
ry

-b
u

il
t 

h
o

u
si

n
g
, 

m
o

b
il

e 
h
o

m
es

 a
n

d
 m

an
u

fa
ct

u
re

d
 h

o
m

es
. 

2
0

1
6

  
C

a
li

fo
rn

ia
 E

le
ct

ri
ca

l 
C

o
d

e 
 

D
el

et
e 

A
n

n
ex

 H
 (

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 E
n

fo
rc

em
en

t)
 a

n
d

 r
ep

la
ce

 

w
it

h
 n

ew
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
o

f 
S

M
C

 1
4

.1
0
.1

0
. 

T
h

e 
d

el
et

io
n

 a
n
d

 r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
o

f 
th

e 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
co

d
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
o

f 
th

e 
co

d
es

 i
s 

n
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e 
a 

co
n

si
st

en
t 

an
d

 m
o

re
 

co
m

p
re

h
en

si
v
e 

se
t 

o
f 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

 o
f 

al
l 

o
f 

th
e 

te
ch

n
ic

al
 c

o
d

es
..

. 

2
0

1
6

  
C

a
li

fo
rn

ia
 M

e
ch

a
n

ic
a

l 
C

o
d

e 
 

D
el

et
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
1

, 
D

iv
is

io
n

 I
I 

(S
co

p
e 

an
d

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
) 

an
d

 

re
p

la
ce

 w
it

h
 n

ew
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
o

f 
S

M
C

 1
4

.1
0

.1
0
. 

T
h

e 
d

el
et

io
n

 a
n
d

 r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
o

f 
th

e 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
co

d
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
o

f 
th

e 
co

d
es

 i
s 

n
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e 
a 

co
n

si
st

en
t 

an
d

 m
o

re
 

co
m

p
re

h
en

si
v
e 

se
t 

o
f 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

 o
f 

al
l 

o
f 

th
e 

te
ch

n
ic

al
 c

o
d

es
..

. 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 B

 (
P

ro
ce

d
u

re
s 

to
 b

e 
F

o
ll

o
w

ed
 t

o
 P

la
ce

 G
as

 

E
q

u
ip

m
en

t 
in

to
 O

p
er

at
io

n
) 

T
h

is
 p

ro
p
o

se
d

 a
m

en
d

m
en

t 
p

ro
v
id

es
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 s
af

et
y
 p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s 

to
 f

o
ll

o
w

 t
o

 p
la

ce
 g

as
 e

q
u

ip
m

en
t 

in
to

 o
p

er
at

io
n
. 

2
0

1
6

  
C

a
li

fo
rn

ia
 P

lu
m

b
in

g
 C

o
d

e 
 

D
el

et
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
1

, 
D

iv
is

io
n

 I
I 

(A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
) 

an
d
 r

ep
la

ce
 w

it
h

 n
ew

 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
o

f 
S

M
C

 1
4

.1
0
.1

0
. 

T
h

e 
d

el
et

io
n

 a
n
d

 r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
o

f 
th

e 
ad

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
co

d
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
o

f 
th

e 
co

d
es

 i
s 

n
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e 
a 

co
n

si
st

en
t 

an
d

 m
o

re
 

co
m

p
re

h
en

si
v
e 

se
t 

o
f 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

 o
f 

al
l 

o
f 

th
e 

te
ch

n
ic

al
 c

o
d

es
..

. 

A
m

en
d

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 7

1
3

.4
 r

el
at

ed
 t

o
 p

u
b

li
c 

se
w

er
 a

v
ai

la
b

il
it

y
. 

T
h

is
 a

m
en

d
m

en
t 

is
 n

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 b

e 
co

n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
S

o
n
o

m
a 

V
al

le
y
 C

o
u
n

ty
 S

an
it

at
io

n
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

C
o
d

e.
 

A
m

en
d

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 1

5
0
1

.3
, 

1
5

0
2

.1
.1

 a
n

d
 1

5
0
2

.5
 b

y
 d

el
et

in
g
 t

h
e 

ex
ce

p
ti

o
n

s 
th

at
 w

o
u

ld
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
ex

em
p

t 
g
ra

y
w

at
er

 c
lo

th
e
s 

w
as

h
er

 

sy
st

em
s 

fr
o

m
 a

 c
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 p

er
m

it
. 

T
h

es
e 

am
en

d
m

en
ts

 e
li

m
in

at
e 

th
e 

ex
ce

p
ti

o
n

 t
h

at
 w

o
u

ld
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
ex

em
p

t 
cl

o
th

es
 w

as
h

er
 g

ra
y
w

at
er

 s
y
st

em
s 

fr
o

m
 a

 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 p

er
m

it
. 

T
h

is
 a

m
en

d
m

en
t 

is
 n

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 r

eq
u

ir
e 

a 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 p
er

m
it

 f
o

r 
cl

o
th

es
 w

as
h

er
 s

y
st

em
s 

so
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
b
u

il
d

in
g
 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

ca
n

 v
er

if
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 i
n

sp
ec

ti
o

n
 t

h
at

 a
ll

 o
f 

th
e 

p
lu

m
b

in
g
 s

af
et

y
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 f
o

r 
a 

cl
o

th
es

 w
as

h
er

 g
ra

y
w

at
er

 s
y
st

em
 

ar
e 

m
et

. 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 A

 (
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

ed
 R

u
le

s 
fo

r 
S

iz
in

g
 t

h
e 

W
at

er
 

S
u

p
p

ly
 S

y
st

em
).

 

A
d

d
s 

g
u

id
an

ce
 a

n
d

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

si
zi

n
g
 w

at
er

 s
u

p
p

ly
 s

y
st

em
s 

n
o

t 
o
th

er
w

is
e 

co
v
er

ed
 b

y
 t

h
e 

co
d

e.
 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

 (
A

lt
er

n
at

e 
P

lu
m

b
in

g
 S

y
st

em
s)

 
T

h
is

 a
m

en
d

m
en

t 
p

ro
v
id

es
 n

ee
d

ed
 p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

d
es

ig
n

 o
f 

en
g
in

ee
re

d
 w

at
er

 s
y
st

em
s.

 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 D

 (
S

iz
in

g
 S

to
rm

w
at

er
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

S
y
st

em
s)

 
A

d
d

s 
g
u

id
an

ce
 a

n
d

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

si
zi

n
g
 s

to
rm

w
at

er
 s

y
st

em
s 

n
o

t 
o

th
er

w
is

e 
co

v
er

ed
 b

y
 t

h
e 

co
d

e.
 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 E

 (
M

an
u

fa
ct

u
re

d
/M

o
b

il
e 

H
o

m
e 

P
ar

k
s 

an
d

 

R
ec

re
at

io
n

al
 V

eh
ic

le
 P

ar
k
s)

 

P
ro

v
id

es
 r

eq
u
ir

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

M
an

u
fa

ct
u

re
d

/M
o
b

il
e 

H
o

m
e 

an
d

 R
V

 P
ar

k
s 

n
o

t 
o

th
er

w
is

e 
co

v
er

ed
 b

y
 t

h
e 

co
d

e.
 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 H

 (
P

ri
v
at

e 
S

ew
ag

e 
D

is
p

o
sa

l 
S

y
st

em
s)

 
P

ro
v
id

es
 r

eq
u
ir

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

p
ri

v
at

e 
se

w
ag

e 
d

is
p

o
sa

l 
sy

st
em

s 
(r

eg
u

la
te

d
 a

n
d

 e
n

fo
rc

ed
 b

y
 t

h
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

o
f 

H
ea

lt
h

 S
er

v
ic

es
).

 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 I

 (
In

st
al

la
ti

o
n

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s 
fo

r 
P

E
X

 T
u
b

in
g
 S

y
st

em
s 

fo
r 

H
o

t-
 a

n
d
 C

o
ld

-W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ib
u
ti

o
n

) 

P
ro

v
id

es
 n

ee
d

ed
 i

n
st

al
la

ti
o

n
 s

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

P
E

X
 w

at
er

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n
 s

y
st

em
s 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

m
en

t 
th

e 
p
lu

m
b

in
g
 c

o
d

e.
 

2
0

1
6

  
C

a
li

fo
rn

ia
 F

ir
e 

C
o

d
e 

 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

4
- 

 S
p

ec
ia

l 
D

et
ai

le
d

 R
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 B

as
ed

 

o
n

 U
se

 a
n
d

 O
cc

u
p

an
cy

 

P
ro

v
id

es
 n

ee
d

ed
 s

p
ec

ia
l 

d
et

ai
le

d
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 u

se
 a

n
d
 o

cc
u

p
an

cy
 f

o
r 

re
si

d
en

ti
al

 c
ar

e 
fa

ci
li

ti
es

 l
ic

en
se

d
 b

y
 

g
o

v
er

n
m

en
ta

l 
ag

en
ci

es
. 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

B
 –

 F
ir

e 
F

lo
w

 R
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

B
u

il
d

in
g
s 

P
ro

v
id

es
 a

 n
ee

d
ed

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

 f
o

r 
ca

lc
u

la
ti

n
g
 t

h
e 

am
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
w

at
er

 n
ee

d
ed

 f
o

r 
fi

re
fi

g
h

ti
n

g
 p

u
rp

o
se

s 
in

 p
o

rt
io

n
s 

o
f 

b
u

il
d

in
g
s 

o
r 

b
u

il
d

in
g
s 

h
er

ea
ft

er
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
ed

. 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

B
B

 –
 F

ir
e 

F
lo

w
 R

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 f
o

r 

B
u

il
d

in
g
s 

P
ro

v
id

es
 a

 n
ee

d
ed

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

 f
o

r 
ca

lc
u

la
ti

n
g
 t

h
e 

am
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
w

at
er

 n
ee

d
ed

 f
o

r 
fi

re
fi

g
h

ti
n

g
 p

u
rp

o
se

s 
fo

r 
sc

h
o

o
l 

b
u
il

d
in

g
s 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 

b
y
 t

h
e 

G
o

v
er

n
m

en
t 

C
o

d
e.

 

ATTACHMENT B 

 

126



A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 B
 

R
ea

so
n

s 
F

o
r 

L
o

ca
l 

A
m

en
d

m
e
n
ts

 –
 R

e
v
1

0
/1

1
/1

6
 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

C
 –

 F
ir

e 
H

y
d

ra
n

t 
L

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n
 

P
ro

v
id

es
 n

ee
d

ed
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

lo
ca

ti
o
n

s 
an

d
 m

in
im

u
m

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 o
f 

fi
re

 h
y
d

ra
n

ts
. 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

C
C

 -
 F

ir
e 

H
y
d

ra
n

t 
L

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 

P
ro

v
id

es
 n

ee
d

ed
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

lo
ca

ti
o
n

s 
an

d
 m

in
im

u
m

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 o
f 

fi
re

 h
y
d

ra
n

ts
 f

o
r 

sc
h

o
o
l 

b
u

il
d

in
g
s 

re
q
u

ir
ed

 

b
y
 t

h
e 

G
o

v
er

n
m

en
t 

C
o

d
e.

 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

D
 

P
ro

v
id

es
 n

ee
d

ed
 m

in
im

u
m

 s
p

ec
if

ic
at

io
n

s 
fo

r 
fi

re
 a

p
p

ar
at

u
s 

ac
ce

ss
 r

o
ad

s.
 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

E
 

P
ro

v
id

es
 n

ee
d

ed
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 i
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
, 

ex
p

la
n

at
io

n
s 

an
d

 e
x
am

p
le

s 
to

 i
ll

u
st

ra
te

 a
n

d
 c

la
ri

fy
 h

az
ar

d
o

u
s 

m
at

er
ia

l 
ca

te
g
o

ri
es

 a
n

d
 

cl
as

si
fi

ca
ti

o
n

s.
 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

F
 

P
ro

v
id

es
 n

ee
d

ed
 f

ir
ef

ig
h

te
r 

w
ar

n
in

g
 p

la
ca

rd
 d

es
ig

n
at

io
n

s 
b

as
ed

 o
n

 h
az

ar
d

 c
la

ss
if

ic
at

io
n

 c
at

eg
o

ri
es

. 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

H
 

P
ro

v
id

es
 a

 t
em

p
la

te
 f

o
r 

b
u

si
n

es
se

s 
w

h
en

 t
h

e 
ty

p
e 

an
d

 q
u

an
ti

ty
 o

f 
h

az
ar

d
o

u
s 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 s

to
re

d
 r

eq
u

ir
es

 a
 H

az
ar

d
o

u
s 

M
at

er
ia

ls
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

P
la

n
 a

n
d
 I

n
v
en

to
ry

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

A
m

en
d

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 1

0
5

.6
.4

9
 –

 A
d

d
it

io
n

al
 (

o
p

er
at

io
n

al
) 

p
er

m
it

s 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 

A
d

d
s 

ad
d

it
io

n
al

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 (

o
p

er
at

io
n

al
) 

p
er

m
it

s 
–

 N
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 b
e 

co
n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

 l
o

ca
l 

am
en

d
m

en
ts

 t
o

 b
e 

ad
o
p

te
d

 b
y
 o

th
er

 

S
o

n
o

m
a 

C
o

u
n

ty
 j

u
ri

sd
ic

ti
o

n
s.

 

A
d

d
 a

 n
ew

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 1

0
5

.7
.1

9
 -

 A
d

d
it

io
n

al
 (

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
) 

p
er

m
it

s 
A

d
d

s 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 c
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 p

er
m

it
s 

- 
N

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 b

e 
co

n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

 l
o

ca
l 

am
en

d
m

en
ts

 t
o

 b
e 

ad
o

p
te

d
 b

y
 o

th
er

 

S
o

n
o

m
a 

C
o

u
n

ty
 j

u
ri

sd
ic

ti
o

n
s.

 

A
m

en
d

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 1

0
9

.3
 –

 v
io

la
ti

o
n
 p

en
al

ti
es

 
A

m
en

d
s 

th
e 

co
d

e 
to

 e
st

ab
li

sh
 v

io
la

ti
o

n
s 

th
er

eo
f 

as
 a

 m
is

d
em

ea
n

o
r 

an
d

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

p
en

al
ti

es
 f

o
r 

v
io

la
ti

o
n

s 
th

er
eo

f 
ar

e 
se

t 
fo

rt
h

 i
n

 

S
o

n
o

m
a 

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 C
o

d
e 

(S
M

C
) 

C
h

ap
te

r 
1
.1

2
. 

 N
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 b
e 

co
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
 S

M
C

. 

A
m

en
d

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 1

1
1

.4
 –

 F
ai

lu
re

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 s

to
p
 w

o
rk

 o
rd

er
 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 e

st
ab

li
sh

 t
h

at
 a

 f
ai

lu
re

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 a
 s

to
p

 w
o

rk
 o

rd
er

 i
s 

an
 i

n
fr

ac
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

p
en

al
ti

es
 a

re
 s

et
 f

o
rt

h
 i

n
 

S
o

n
o

m
a 

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 C
o

d
e 

(S
M

C
) 

C
h

ap
te

r 
1
.1

2
. 

 N
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 b
e 

co
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
 S

M
C

 

A
d

d
 a

 n
ew

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 1

1
3
.6

 a
d

d
re

ss
in

g
 c

o
st

 r
ec

o
v
er

y
 

A
d

d
s 

co
st

 r
ec

o
v
er

y
 l

an
g
u

ag
e 

fo
r 

fi
re

 s
u

p
p

re
ss

io
n

, 
in

v
es

ti
g
at

io
n

 o
r 

em
er

g
en

cy
 m

ed
ic

al
 c

o
st

s 
in

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 H

ea
lt

h
 a

n
d

 

S
af

et
y
 C

o
d

e 
S

ec
ti

o
n

s 
1
3

0
0

9
 a

n
d

 1
3

0
0

9
.1

 

A
m

en
d

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 2

0
2

 t
o

 a
d

d
 t

h
e 

d
ef

in
it

io
n

 o
f 

"A
D

D
IT

IO
N

" 
A

m
en

d
s 

th
e 

co
d

e 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e 
a 

n
ee

d
ed

 d
ef

in
it

io
n
 t

o
 b

e 
co

n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

 p
re

v
io

u
s 

C
it

y
 o

rd
in

an
ce

s 
an

d
 p

o
li

ci
es

 p
er

ta
in

in
g
 t

o
 f

ir
e 

sp
ri

n
k
le

r 
sy

st
em

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 a

n
d

 t
ri

g
g
er

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 2

0
2

 t
o

 a
d

d
 t

h
e 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g
 d

ef
in

it
io

n
 o

f 

"M
A

N
U

F
A

C
T

U
R

E
D

 H
O

M
E

" 

P
ro

v
id

e 
a 

n
ee

d
ed

 d
ef

in
it

io
n

 t
o

 b
e 

co
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
 C

A
 H

ea
lt

h
 &

 S
af

et
y
 C

o
d

e 
§

1
8
0

0
7

. 

A
m

en
d

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 2

0
2

 t
o

 a
d

d
 t

h
e 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g
 d

ef
in

it
io

n
 o

f 
"M

O
B

IL
E

 

H
O

M
E

" 

P
ro

v
id

e 
a 

n
ee

d
ed

 d
ef

in
it

io
n

 t
o

 b
e 

co
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
 C

A
 H

ea
lt

h
 &

 S
af

et
y
 C

o
d

e 
§

1
8
0

0
8

. 

A
m

en
d

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 2

0
2

 t
o

 a
d

d
 t

h
e 

d
ef

in
it

io
n

 o
f 

"R
E

M
O

D
E

L
E

D
”
 

P
ro

v
id

e 
a 

n
ee

d
ed

 d
ef

in
it

io
n

 t
o

 b
e 

co
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
 p

re
v
io

u
s 

C
it

y
 o

rd
in

an
ce

s 
an

d
 p

o
li

ci
es

 p
er

ta
in

in
g
 t

o
 f

ir
e 

sp
ri

n
k
le

r 
sy

st
em

 

re
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
 a

n
d

 t
ri

g
g
er

s.
  

E
st

ab
li

sh
es

 t
h

e 
tr

ig
g
er

 f
o

r 
re

q
u

ir
in

g
 a

 f
ir

e 
sp

ri
n

k
le

r 
sy

st
em

 i
n

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
il

d
in

g
s 

w
h

en
 c

o
sm

et
ic

 o
r 

st
ru

ct
u

ra
l 

re
p

ai
rs

, 
re

n
o

v
at

io
n

s,
 r

es
to

ra
ti

o
n

s,
 a

lt
er

at
io

n
s 

o
r 

ad
d

it
io

n
s 

to
 a

 s
tr

u
ct

u
re

, 
th

e 
to

ta
l 

v
al

u
at

io
n
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
, 

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 

b
y
 t

h
e 

b
u

il
d

in
g
 o

ff
ic

ia
l,

 e
x
ce

ed
s 

$
1

0
0
,0

0
0

 f
o

r 
b

u
il

d
in

g
s 

co
n

ta
in

in
g
 r

es
id

en
ti

al
 u

se
s 

o
r 

o
cc

u
p

an
ci

es
 a

n
d

 $
1

5
0

,0
0

0
 f

o
r 

al
l 

o
th

e
r 

o
cc

u
p

an
ci

es
 o

v
er

 a
n

y
 3

6
 m

o
n

th
 p

er
io

d
. 

A
m

en
d

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 2

0
2

 t
o

 a
d

d
 t

h
e 

d
ef

in
it

io
n

 o
f 

"S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
" 

P
ro

v
id

e 
a 

n
ee

d
ed

 d
ef

in
it

io
n

 t
o

 b
e 

co
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
 p

re
v
io

u
s 

C
it

y
 o

rd
in

an
ce

s 
an

d
 p

o
li

ci
es

 p
er

ta
in

in
g
 t

o
 f

ir
e 

sp
ri

n
k
le

r 
sy

st
em

 

re
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
 a

n
d

 t
ri

g
g
er

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 2

0
2

 t
o

 a
d

d
 t

h
e 

d
ef

in
it

io
n

 o
f 

“U
M

B
R

E
L

L
A

 

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
”
 

P
ro

v
id

e 
a 

n
ee

d
ed

 d
ef

in
it

io
n

 f
o

r 
ap

p
ly

in
g
 n

ew
 p

er
m

it
ti

n
g
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 f
o

r 
u

m
b

re
ll

a 
st

ru
ct

u
re

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 2

0
2

 t
o

 a
d

d
 t

h
e 

d
ef

in
it

io
n

 o
f 

“U
N

W
A

R
R

A
N

T
E

D
 

A
L

A
R

M
” 

P
ro

v
id

e 
a 

n
ee

d
ed

 d
ef

in
it

io
n

 f
o

r 
ap

p
ly

in
g
 n

ew
 p

er
m

it
ti

n
g
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 f
o

r 
u

m
b

re
ll

a 
st

ru
ct

u
re

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 3

0
4

.1
.2

 b
y
 a

d
d

in
g
 s

u
b

se
ct

io
n

 3
0

4
.1

.2
.1

 -
  

C
o

m
b

u
st

ib
le

 V
eg

et
at

io
n

 

P
ro

v
id

e 
a 

n
ee

d
ed

 d
ef

in
it

io
n

 t
o

 b
e 

co
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
 p

re
v
io

u
s 

C
it

y
 o

rd
in

an
ce

s 
an

d
 p

o
li

ci
es

 p
er

ta
in

in
g
 t

o
 w

ee
d

 a
b

at
em

en
t.

 

A
d

d
 s

u
b

se
ct

io
n
 3

0
4

.1
.4

 -
 D

ef
en

si
b

le
 s

p
ac

e 
P

ro
v
id

e 
a 

d
ef

en
si

b
le

 s
p

ac
e 

o
f 

n
o
t 

le
ss

 t
h

an
 3

0
 f

ee
t 

b
et

w
ee

n
 v

ac
an

t 
lo

ts
 a

n
d
 n

ei
g
h
b

o
ri

n
g
 s

tr
u

ct
u

re
s.

 

A
d

d
 a

 n
ew

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 4

0
1
.3

.2
.1

 
P

ro
v
id

es
 f

o
r 

th
e 

ab
il

it
y
 f

o
r 

co
st

 r
ec

o
v
er

y
 f

o
r 

u
n

w
ar

ra
n

te
d

 f
ir

e 
al

ar
m

s.
 

127



A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 B
 

R
ea

so
n

s 
F

o
r 

L
o

ca
l 

A
m

en
d

m
e
n
ts

 –
 R

e
v
1

0
/1

1
/1

6
 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 5

0
1

.1
 –

 F
ir

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
fe

at
u

re
s.

 
A

u
th

o
ri

ze
s 

th
e 

fi
re

 c
o

d
e 

o
ff

ic
ia

l 
to

 a
u

th
o

ri
ze

 a
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
d

es
ig

n
 a

n
d
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 f

ea
tu

re
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

fi
re

 a
p

p
ar

at
u

s 
ac

ce
ss

 r
o

a
d

s,
 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 r

o
o

fs
, 

p
re

m
is

es
 i

d
en

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

, 
k
ey

 b
o

x
es

, 
fi

re
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n
 w

at
er

 s
u

p
p

li
es

, 
fi

re
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n
 e

q
u
ip

m
en

t 
id

en
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

ac
ce

ss
, 

et
c.

, 
w

h
en

 d
o
n

e 
in

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 S

ec
ti

o
n

 1
0
4

.9
 A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

M
at

er
ia

ls
 a

n
d

 M
et

h
o

d
s.

  
 T

h
is

 c
o

d
e 

ch
an

g
e 

is
 n

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 

p
ro

v
id

e 
fl

ex
ib

il
it

y
 i

n
 e

n
fo

rc
em

en
t 

p
ro

v
id

ed
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
m

at
er

ia
l,

 m
et

h
o
d

 o
r 

w
o

rk
 o

ff
er

ed
 i

s 
at

 l
ea

st
 e

q
u

iv
al

en
t 

in
 q

u
a
li

ty
, 

st
re

n
g
th

, 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s,
 f

ir
e 

re
si

st
an

ce
 d

u
ra

b
il

it
y
 a

n
d

 s
af

et
y
. 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 5

0
3

.2
.3

- 
 S

u
rf

ac
e 

re
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

fi
re

 a
p

p
ar

at
u

s 

ac
ce

ss
 r

o
ad

s 

C
la

ri
fy

 f
ir

e 
d

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
ac

ce
ss

 r
o

ad
 s

u
rf

ac
in

g
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

. 

A
d

d
 a

 n
ew

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 5

0
3
.2

.6
.1

fo
r 

ev
al

u
at

io
n

 a
n
d

 m
ai

n
te

n
an

ce
 o

f 

b
ri

d
g
es

. 

P
ro

v
id

es
 r

eq
u
ir

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

ev
al

u
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 o
f 

b
ri

d
g
es

 f
o

r 
th

e 
sa

fe
ty

 o
f 

em
er

g
en

cy
 r

es
p

o
n

d
er

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 5

0
3

.3
 

A
m

en
d

s 
N

o
 P

ar
k
in

g
 m

ar
k
in

g
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 t
o

 b
e 

co
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
al

if
o

rn
ia

 V
eh

ic
le

 C
o

d
e 

to
 a

ll
o
w

 f
o

r 
p

ro
p

er
 e

n
fo

rc
em

en
t.

 

A
d

d
 s

u
b

se
ct

io
n
 5

0
3

.2
.7

 f
o

r 
b
u

il
d

in
g
s 

lo
ca

te
d

 o
n

 s
lo

p
es

 o
f 

g
re

at
er

 

th
an

 f
iv

e 
p

er
ce

n
t 

(5
%

).
 

A
d

d
s 

n
ee

d
ed

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

t 
fo

r 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 f

ir
e 

p
ro

te
ct

io
n

 m
ea

su
re

s,
 a

s 
th

e 
fi

re
 c

h
ie

f 
d

ee
m

s 
n

ec
es

sa
ry

 t
o

 m
it

ig
at

e 
ac

ce
ss

 

co
n

st
ra

in
ts

 b
y
 b

u
il

d
in

g
 o

n
 s

lo
p

es
 g

re
at

er
 t

h
an

 f
iv

e 
p

er
ce

n
t 

(5
%

).
 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 5

0
5

.1
 –

 P
re

m
is

es
 i

d
en

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 (
 i

n
cl

u
d

in
g
 

su
b

se
ct

io
n
 m

o
d

if
ic

at
io

n
s)

 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 c

la
ri

fy
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
C

it
y
 o

f 
S

o
n

o
m

a 
as

si
g
n

s 
ad

d
re

ss
 n

u
m

b
er

s 
an

d
 c

la
ri

fi
es

 t
h

e 
cr

it
er

ia
 f

o
r 

ad
d

re
ss

 

id
en

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

. 

A
d

d
 a

 n
ew

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 5

0
7
.1

.1
 -

 E
m

er
g
en

cy
 w

at
er

 d
u

ri
n

g
 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
. 

A
d

d
s 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 t
o

 r
eq

u
ir

e 
em

er
g

en
cy

 w
at

er
 s

y
st

em
 o

n
-s

it
e 

p
ri

o
r 

to
 i

n
st

al
li

n
g
 c

o
m

b
u

st
ib

le
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
. 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 5

0
7

.5
 -

 F
ir

e 
h

y
d

ra
n

t 
sy

st
em

s 
A

m
en

d
s 

th
e 

co
d

e 
to

 e
li

m
in

at
e 

th
e 

re
fe

re
n

ce
 t

o
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

C
 w

h
ic

h
 i

s 
n

o
t 

ad
o

p
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e 

C
it

y
. 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 5

0
7

.5
.1

 –
 W

h
er

e 
fi

re
 h

y
d

ra
n

ts
 a

re
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 
A

m
en

d
s 

th
e 

co
d

e 
to

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e 
th

e 
p

re
v
io

u
s 

re
q
u

ir
em

en
t 

fo
r 

o
n

-s
it

e 
h

y
d

ra
n

ts
 (

5
0

8
.5

.1
) 

A
d

d
 a

 n
ew

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 5

0
7
.5

.7
- 

 F
ir

e 
h

y
d

ra
n

t 
si

ze
 a

n
d

 o
u

tl
et

s 
R

eq
u

ir
es

  
F

ir
e 

h
y
d

ra
n

t 
si

ze
 a

n
d

 o
u

tl
et

s 
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 C

it
y
 o

f 
S

o
n

o
m

a 
st

an
d

ar
d

 p
la

n
s 

A
d

d
 a

 n
ew

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 5

0
7
.5

.8
- 

 F
ir

e 
h

y
d

ra
n

t 
st

re
et

 m
ar

k
er

 
R

eq
u

ir
es

  
F

ir
e 

h
y
d

ra
n

t 
 s

tr
ee

t 
m

ar
k
er

s 
to

 c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 C
it

y
 o

f 
S

o
n

o
m

a 
st

an
d

ar
d

 p
la

n
s 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 5

1
0

.1
 –

 E
m

er
g

en
cy

 r
es

p
o

n
d

er
 r

ad
io

 c
o

v
er

ag
e
 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 r

eq
u

ir
e 

n
ee

d
ed

 e
m

er
g
en

cy
 r

es
p

o
n

d
er

 r
ad

io
 c

o
v
er

ag
e 

in
 b

u
il

d
in

g
s 

an
d

 c
er

ta
in

 w
in

er
y
 c

av
es

. 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 9

0
1

.4
.1

- 
O

w
n

er
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

fu
n

ct
io

n
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

p
er

 o
p

er
at

io
n

 o
f 

fi
re

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n

 s
y
st

em
s 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 r

eq
u

ir
e 

th
at

 i
t 

is
 t

h
e 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
th

e 
o

w
n

er
 t

h
at

 a
 p

er
so

n
 o

r 
p

er
so

n
s 

fa
m

il
ia

r 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
fu

n
ct

io
n

 a
n
d

 

p
ro

p
er

 o
p

er
at

io
n

 o
f 

a 
b

u
il

d
in

g
’s

 f
ir

e 
p

ro
te

ct
io

n
 s

y
st

em
 b

e 
in

 a
tt

en
d

an
ce

 w
h

en
ev

er
 t

h
e 

p
re

m
is

es
 a

re
 o

cc
u

p
ie

d
. 

A
d

d
 s

u
b

se
ct

io
n
 9

0
1

.1
1
 -

 N
o

ti
ce

 o
f 

N
u

is
an

ce
 A

la
rm

 
A

m
en

d
s 

th
e 

co
d

e 
to

 e
st

ab
li

sh
 a

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

 f
o

r 
w

ri
tt

en
 n

o
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a 

n
u

is
an

ce
 a

la
rm

. 
 N

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 e

n
fo

rc
e 

p
en

al
ti

es
 f

o
r 

fa
ls

e
 

fi
re

/s
m

o
k

e/
sp

ri
n

k
le

r 
al

ar
m

s.
 

A
d

d
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 9
0

1
.1

2
- 

U
n

re
li

ab
le

 F
ir

e 
A

la
rm

 S
y
st

em
s 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 e

st
ab

li
sh

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
an

d
 p

en
al

ti
es

 f
o

r 
fa

ls
e 

fi
re

/s
m

o
k
e/

sp
ri

n
k
le

r 
al

ar
m

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 9

0
3

.2
  

- 
F

ir
e 

S
p

ri
n

k
le

rs
 -

 W
h

er
e 

R
eq

u
ir

ed
 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 b

e 
co

n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

 p
re

v
io

u
s 

C
it

y
 o

rd
in

an
ce

s 
an

d
 p

o
li

ci
es

 p
er

ta
in

in
g
 t

o
 f

ir
e 

sp
ri

n
k
le

r 
sy

st
em

 r
eq

u
ir

e
m

en
ts

 

an
d

 t
ri

g
g
er

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 9

0
3

.3
.7

 -
 F

ir
e 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

co
n

n
ec

ti
o
n

s 
T

h
e 

p
u

rp
o

se
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 c

o
d
e 

la
n

g
u

ag
e 

is
 t

o
 t

ak
e 

ad
v
an

ta
g
e 

o
f 

n
ew

 t
ec

h
n

o
lo

g
y
 d

es
ig

n
ed

 t
o

 a
ss

u
re

 t
h

at
 f

ir
e 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

co
n

n
ec

ti
o
n

s 
ar

e 
u

se
ab

le
 w

h
en

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
. 

F
ir

e
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
co

n
n

ec
ti

o
n

s 
ar

e 
ty

p
ic

al
ly

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t

im
es

 w
h

en
 t

h
e 

m
u

n
ic

ip
al

 

w
at

er
 s

u
p

p
ly

 i
s 

in
ca

p
ab

le
 o

f 
d

el
iv

er
in

g
 n

o
rm

al
 f

lo
w

s 
an

d
 p

re
ss

u
re

s.
 S

u
ch

 c
ir

cu
m

st
an

ce
s 

h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 e
x

p
er

ie
n

ce
d

 b
y
 o

th
er

 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

d
u

ri
n

g
 l

ar
g
e 

fi
re

s 
an

d
 s

u
b

se
q

u
en

t 
to

 s
ei

sm
ic

 a
ct

iv
it

y
. 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 9

0
3

.4
.2

 -
 A

la
rm

s 
T

h
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 a
m

en
d

m
en

t 
p

ro
v
id

es
 c

le
ar

er
 g

u
id

an
ce

 t
o

 b
u
il

d
in

g
 o

w
n

er
s,

 f
ir

e 
p

ro
te

ct
io

n
 s

y
st

em
 d

es
ig

n
er

s 
an

d
 s

y
st

em
 i

n
st

al
le

rs
. 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 9

0
4

.1
2

- 
 C

o
m

m
er

ci
al

 c
o

o
k
in

g
 s

y
st

em
s 

A
d

d
s 

a 
n

ee
d

ed
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 f
o

r 
C

o
m

m
er

ci
al

 c
o

o
k
in

g
 s

y
st

em
s 

to
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 N

F
P

A
 9

6
. 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 9

0
5

.3
.1

- 
C

la
ss

 I
II

 s
ta

n
d
p

ip
e 

sy
st

em
s.

 
A

m
en

d
s 

th
e 

co
d

e 
to

 c
o

n
si

d
er

 t
h

e 
ro

o
f 

as
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 s
to

ry
 f

o
r 

b
u

il
d

in
g
s 

th
re

e 
o

r 
m

o
re

 s
to

ri
es

 i
n

 h
ei

g
h

t 
th

er
eb

y
 e

x
p

an
d

in
g
 t

h
e 

cl
as

s 
II

I 
st

an
d

p
ip

e 
sy

st
em

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

t 
 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 3

1
0

1
.1

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 t
en

ts
 

P
ro

v
id

es
 a

d
d
it

io
n

al
 n

ee
d

ed
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
to

 c
la

ri
fy

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

re
q
u

ir
em

en
ts

 f
o

r 
te

n
ts

 a
ls

o
 a

p
p

ly
 t

o
 u

m
b

re
ll

a 
st

ru
ct

u
re

s.
 

A
d

d
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 3
3

1
4

.3
 -

 B
u

il
d
in

g
s 

u
n

d
er

 c
o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
. 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e 
an

 a
d

d
ed

 m
ea

su
re

 o
f 

fi
re

 s
af

et
y
 f

o
r 

b
u
il

d
in

g
s 

h
ig

h
 b

u
il

d
in

g
s 

u
n

d
er

g
o

in
g
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
. 

A
d

d
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 3
3

1
4

.4
 -

 B
u

il
d
in

g
s 

b
ei

n
g
 d

em
o

li
sh

ed
 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e 
an

 a
d

d
ed

 m
ea

su
re

 o
f 

fi
re

 s
af

et
y
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e 

d
em

o
li

ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

u
lt

i-
st

o
ry

 b
u

il
d

in
g
s.

 

A
d

d
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 5
0

0
1

.5
.3

 -
 E

le
ct

ro
n

ic
 R

ep
o

rt
in

g
 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 m

ee
t 

fu
tu

re
 e

le
ct

ro
n

ic
 r

ep
o

rt
in

g
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 o
f 

A
B

 2
2

8
6
 f

o
r 

th
e 

C
al

if
o

rn
ia

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
en

ta
l 

R
ep

o
rt

in
g
 

S
y
st

em
. 
  T

h
is

 i
n

cl
u

d
es

 f
ac

il
it

y
 d

at
a 

re
g
ar

d
in

g
 h

az
ar

d
o

u
s 

m
at

er
ia

l 
re

g
u

la
to

ry
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s,
 c

h
em

ic
al

 i
n

v
en

to
ri

es
, 
u

n
d

er
g
ro

u
n
d

 a
n
d

 

ab
o

v
eg

ro
u

n
d
 s

to
ra

g
e 

ta
n

k
s,

 a
n

d
 h

az
ar

d
o

u
s 

w
as

te
 g

en
er

at
io

n
. 

A
ll

 r
eg

u
la

te
d

 b
u

si
n

es
se

s 
an

d
 U

n
if

ie
d

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

g
en

ci
es

 i
n

 t
h

e 

S
ta

te
 o

f 
C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 m

u
st

 u
se

 t
h

e 
in

te
rn

et
 t

o
 f

il
e 

b
y
 J

an
u

ar
y
 1

, 
2

0
1

6
. 

128



A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 B
 

R
ea

so
n

s 
F

o
r 

L
o

ca
l 

A
m

en
d

m
e
n
ts

 –
 R

e
v
1

0
/1

1
/1

6
 

 A
d

d
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 5
7

0
4

.1
.1

 -
  

T
an

k
s 

S
to

ra
g
e 

p
ro

h
ib

it
ed

 
A

m
en

d
s 

th
e 

co
d

e 
to

 r
em

o
v
e 

th
e 

th
re

at
 o

f 
fi

re
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

lo
si

v
e 

d
an

g
er

 f
ro

m
 t

an
k
 s

to
ra

g
e 

o
f 

cl
as

s 
I 

an
d

 I
I 

li
q
u

id
s 

in
 m

er
ca

n
ti

le
, 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 a
n

d
 r

es
id

en
ti

al
 p

ar
ce

ls
. 

A
d

d
 S

ec
ti

o
n

 5
7
0

4
.1

.2
 -

 T
an

k
 S

to
ra

g
e 

- 
O

th
er

 l
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
A

m
en

d
s 

th
e 

co
d

e 
to

 a
ss

u
re

 t
h

at
 n

ew
 t

an
k
 i

n
st

al
la

ti
o

n
s 

m
ee

t 
cu

rr
en

t 
sa

fe
ty

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

cl
as

s 
I 

an
d

 I
I 

li
q

u
id

s.
 A

d
d

it
io

n
al

ly
 

ex
is

ti
n

g
 t

an
k
s 

in
 a

p
p

ro
v
ed

 l
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
m

u
st

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

sa
fe

ty
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 w
it

h
in

 o
n

e 
y
ea

r.
 

A
d

d
 S

ec
ti

o
n

 5
7
0

4
.1

.3
 -

 E
x
is

ti
n

g
 T

an
k
 S

to
ra

g
e
 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 u

p
g
ra

d
e 

ex
is

ti
n

g
 t

an
k
 i

n
st

al
la

ti
o

n
s 

to
 m

ee
t 

cu
rr

en
t 

sa
fe

ty
 r

eq
u

ir
e
m

en
ts

 f
o

r 
cl

as
s 

I 
an

d
 I

I 
li

q
u

id
s.

  

A
d

d
 S

ec
ti

o
n

 6
1
0

7
.5

 -
 S

ei
sm

ic
 A

n
ch

o
ri

n
g
 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 r

eq
u

ir
e 

ap
p

ro
v
ed

 s
ei

sm
ic

 a
n

ch
o

ri
n

g
 f

o
r 

in
st

al
le

d
 p

ro
p

an
e/

L
P

G
 g

as
 c

o
n

ta
in

er
s 

 

A
m

en
d

 C
h

ap
te

r 
8

0
 -

 R
ef

er
en

ce
d

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s 
 (

F
ir

e 
S

p
ri

n
k
le

r 

S
y
st

em
s)

 

V
ar

io
u

s 
se

ct
io

n
s 

o
f 

C
h

ap
te

r 
8
0

 -
 R

ef
er

en
ce

d
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

p
er

ta
in

in
g
 t

o
 f

ir
e 

sp
ri

n
k
le

r 
sy

st
em

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

s 
ar

e 
m

o
d

if
ie

d
 t

o
 b

e 

co
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
 S

o
n
o

m
a 

C
o

u
n

ty
 a

n
d

 o
th

er
 f

ir
e 

ju
ri

sd
ic

ti
o
n

s 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

co
u
n

ty
. 

A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
d

ef
in

it
io

n
 o

f 
F

IR
E

-F
L

O
W

 i
n

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n
 

B
1

0
2
. 

T
h

is
 r

ev
is

io
n

 c
la

ri
fi

es
 w

h
er

e 
th

e 
p

re
ss

u
re

 f
o

r 
fi

re
-f

lo
w

 i
s 

m
ea

su
re

d
. 

A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
d

ef
in

it
io

n
 o

f 
F

IR
E

-F
L

O
W

 C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

IO
N

 A
R

E
A

 i
n

 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n
 B

1
0
2

.1
 

F
lo

o
r 

ar
ea

 w
as

 c
la

ri
fi

ed
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e 
co

n
si

st
en

cy
 i

n
 c

al
cu

la
ti

n
g
 f

ir
e 

fl
o

w
. 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 B
1

0
5
.1

 –
 F

ir
e 

fl
o

w
 f

o
r 

 o
n

e-
an

d
 

tw
o

-f
am

il
y
 d

w
el

li
n

g
s 

T
h

is
 i

s 
am

en
d

ed
 t

o
 i

n
cr

ea
se

 t
h

e 
m

in
im

u
m

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 f

ir
e-

fl
o

w
 f

ro
m

 1
0

0
0
 t

o
 1

5
0
0

 g
al

lo
n

s 
p

er
 m

in
u

te
. 

T
h

e 
la

n
g
u

ag
e 

to
 r

ed
u

ce
 

fi
re

-f
lo

w
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 s

p
ri

n
k
le

r 
sy

st
em

 i
n

st
al

la
ti

o
n

 i
s 

n
o

t 
au

to
m

at
ic

. 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 B
1

0
5
.2

 –
 F

ir
e 

fl
o

w
 f

o
r 

b
u

il
d

in
g
s 

o
th

er
 t

h
an

 o
n

e-
an

d
 t

w
o

-f
am

il
y
 d

w
el

li
n

g
s 

T
h

e 
la

n
g
u

ag
e 

to
 r

ed
u

ce
 f

ir
e-

fl
o

w
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 s

p
ri

n
k
le

r 
sy

st
em

 i
n

st
al

la
ti

o
n

 i
s 

n
o

t 
au

to
m

at
ic

. 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B
, 

T
ab

le
 B

1
0

5
.1

 b
y
 d

el
et

in
g
 f

o
o

tn
o

te
 a

).
 

T
h

is
 p

re
v
en

ts
 a

 r
ed

u
ct

io
n

 i
n

 n
ee

d
ed

 f
ir

e
-f

lo
w

 f
o

r 
re

si
d

en
ti

al
 s

tr
u

ct
u
re

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 C
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 C
1

0
2
 -

 F
ir

e 
H

y
d

ra
n

t 
L

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

to
 s

ta
n

d
ar

d
iz

e 
th

e 
lo

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

fi
re

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

co
n

n
ec

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

m
o

re
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
fi

re
 s

ce
n

e 

o
p

er
at

io
n

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
, 

S
ec

ti
o

n
 D

1
0
1

 -
 F

ir
e 

ap
p

ar
at

u
s 

ac
ce

ss
 r

o
ad

s 
A

m
en

d
s 

th
e 

co
d

e 
to

 a
ll

o
w

 t
h

e 
fi

re
 c

o
d

e 
o

ff
ic

ia
l 

so
m

e 
fl

ex
ib

il
it

y
 w

h
en

 d
o
n

e 
in

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 1
0

4
.9

 A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 

M
at

er
ia

ls
 a

n
d

 M
et

h
o
d

s.
 F

le
x
ib

il
it

y
 i

n
 e

n
fo

rc
em

en
t 

p
ro

v
id

ed
 t

h
at

 t
h
e 

m
at

er
ia

l,
 m

et
h

o
d

 o
r 

w
o

rk
 o

ff
er

ed
 i

s 
at

 l
ea

st
 e

q
u

iv
al

en
t 

in
 

q
u

al
it

y
, 

st
re

n
g
th

, 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s,

 f
ir

e 
re

si
st

an
ce

 d
u

ra
b

il
it

y
 a

n
d

 s
af

et
y
. 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 D
1

0
3
.1

 -
 A

cc
es

s 
ro

ad
 w

id
th

 w
it

h
 a

 

h
y
d

ra
n

t 

A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
al

lo
w

s 
lo

ca
l 

au
th

o
ri

ti
es

 t
o

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

fi
re

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

ac
ce

ss
 s

p
ec

if
ic

at
io

n
s 

in
st

ea
d

 o
f 

th
e 

In
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 F

ir
e 

C
o

d
e.

 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 D
1

0
3
.2

 -
  

G
ra

d
e 

o
f 

fi
re

 a
p

p
ar

at
u

s 

ac
ce

ss
 r

o
ad

s 

T
h

e 
g
ra

d
e 

o
f 

fi
re

 a
p

p
ar

at
u

s 
ac

ce
ss

 r
o

ad
s 

is
 s

p
ec

if
ic

 t
o

 t
h

e 
ty

p
e 

o
f 

eq
u

ip
m

en
t 

av
ai

la
b

le
 a

n
d

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e 

d
et

er
m

in
ed

 l
o

ca
ll

y
. 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 D
1

0
3
.3

 -
 m

in
im

u
m

 t
u

rn
in

g
 r

ad
iu

s 
T

u
rn

in
g
 r

ad
iu

s 
is

 s
p

ec
if

ic
 t

o
 t

h
e 

fi
re

 a
p

p
ar

at
u

s 
u

se
d
. 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 D
1

0
3
.4

 -
 D

ea
d

-e
n

d
 f

ir
e 

ap
p

ar
at

u
s 

ac
ce

ss
 r

o
ad

s 

T
h

is
 c

h
an

g
e 

al
lo

w
s 

a 
lo

ca
l 

ju
ri

sd
ic

ti
o

n
 t

o
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
d

ea
d

-e
n

d
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 f
o

r 
w

id
th

 a
n
d

 t
u

rn
ar

o
u

n
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 D
1

0
3
.4

 b
y
 d

el
et

in
g
 T

ab
le

 D
1

0
3

.4
 

A
ll

o
w

s 
lo

ca
l 

st
an

d
ar

d
s 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 D
1

0
3
.6

 -
  

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

-F
IR

E
 

L
A

N
E

 s
ig

n
s 

C
h

an
g
e 

al
lo

w
s 

lo
ca

l 
ju

ri
sd

ic
ti

o
n
 t

o
 a

p
p
ly

 t
h

e 
si

g
n

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 V

eh
ic

le
 C

o
d

e 
in

 d
es

ig
n

 a
n

d
 p

la
ce

m
en

t 
ra

th
er

 

th
an

 b
as

in
g
 i

t 
o

n
 s

o
le

ly
 o

n
 r

o
ad

 w
id

th
. 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 D
1

0
4
.2

 b
y
 d

el
et

in
g
 e

x
ce

p
ti

o
n

 t
o

  

D
1

0
4
.2

 

T
h

e 
ex

ce
p

ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
id

ed
 f

o
r 

a 
re

d
u
ct

io
n

 i
n

 f
ir

e 
d

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
ac

ce
ss

 i
n

 s
tr

u
ct

u
re

s 
w

it
h

 a
 g

ro
ss

 b
u
il

d
in

g
 a

re
a 

u
p

 t
o

 1
2

4
,0

0
0

 s
q

u
ar

e 

fe
et

. 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 D
1

0
6
.1

 –
 F

ir
e 

ap
p

ar
at

u
s 

ac
ce

ss
 

ro
ad

s 
fo

r 
 m

u
lt

i-
fa

m
il

y
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

h
av

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h

an
 5

0
 d

w
el

li
n

g
 u

n
it

s 

M
o

d
if

ie
s 

w
h

en
 t

w
o

 f
ir

e 
ap

p
ar

at
u

s 
ac

ce
ss

 r
o

ad
s 

ar
e 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 –

 C
h

an
g
es

 t
h

e 
re

q
u

ir
em

en
t 

fr
o

m
 1

0
0

 d
w

el
li

n
g
 u

n
it

s 
to

 5
0

 d
w

el
li

n
g
 

u
n

it
s.

 

A
m

en
d

  
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 D

, 
su

b
se

ct
io

n
 D

1
0

6
 b

y
 d

el
et

in
g
 s

u
b

se
ct

io
n

 

D
1

0
6
.2

 

T
h

is
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 r
ef

er
re

d
 t

o
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

o
f 

2
0

0
 o

r 
m

o
re

 d
w

el
li

n
g
 u

n
it

s 
an

d
 r

ep
ea

ts
 t

h
e 

tw
o

 a
cc

es
s 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

en
t 

re
g
ar

d
le

ss
 o

f 
sp

ri
n

k
le

rs
 

A
d

d
  

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n
 D

1
0

6
.3

 –
 F

ir
e 

ap
p

ar
at

u
s 

ac
ce

ss
 r

o
ad

s 

fo
r 

m
u

lt
i-

re
si

d
en

ti
al

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
h

av
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
h

an
 5

0
 d

w
el

li
n

g
 u

n
it

s 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 a

ll
o

w
 f

ir
e 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

ac
ce

ss
 f

o
r 

em
er

g
en

cy
 o

p
er

at
io

n
s 

an
d

/o
r 

ev
ac

u
at

io
n

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 D
1

0
7
 -

–
 F

ir
e 

ap
p

ar
at

u
s 

ac
ce

ss
 

ro
ad

s 
fo

r 
p

ro
je

ct
s 

h
av

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h

an
 5

0
 d

w
el

li
n

g
 u

n
it

s 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 a

ll
o

w
 f

ir
e 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

ac
ce

ss
 f

o
r 

em
er

g
en

cy
 o

p
er

at
io

n
s 

an
d

/o
r 

ev
ac

u
at

io
n

s.
 

2
0

1
6

  
C

a
li

fo
rn

ia
 G

re
en

 B
u

il
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s 
C

o
d

e 
 

129



A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 B
 

R
ea

so
n

s 
F

o
r 

L
o

ca
l 

A
m

en
d

m
e
n
ts

 –
 R

e
v
1

0
/1

1
/1

6
 

 A
d

o
p

t 
b

y
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 a
n

d
 a

d
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 C
h

ap
te

r 
A

4
 (

R
es

id
en

ti
al

 

V
o

lu
n
ta

ry
 M

ea
su

re
s)

 a
n

d
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

A
5

 (
N

o
n

re
si

d
en

ti
al

 

V
o

lu
n
ta

ry
 M

ea
su

re
s)

 o
f 

th
e 

2
0
1

6
 C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 G

re
en

 B
u

il
d
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s 
C

o
d

e 
ap

p
en

d
ic

es
. 

T
h

es
e 

ap
p

en
d

ic
es

 p
ro

v
id

e 
th

e 
p

re
re

q
u

is
it

e 
an

d
 a

p
p

li
ca

b
le

 e
le

ct
iv

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 a

ch
ie

v
e 

th
e 

T
ie

r 
1

 l
ev

el
 o

f 
co

m
p

li
an

ce
. 

 T
h

e 
ti

er
 

1
 r

eq
u
ir

em
en

ts
 (

ex
cl

u
d

in
g
 T

ie
r 

1
 -

 E
n

er
g
y
 m

ea
su

re
s)

 a
re

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
ed

 b
y
 t

h
e 

R
ed

w
o

o
d

 E
m

p
ir

e 
A

ss
o

ci
at

io
n

 o
f 

C
o

d
e 

O
ff

ic
ia

ls
 

to
 p

ro
m

o
te

 r
eg

io
n

al
 c

o
n

si
st

en
cy

 i
n

 t
h

e 
ap

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

g
re

en
 b

u
il

d
in

g
 s

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

th
ro

u
g
h
o

u
t 

S
o

n
o

m
a 

C
o

u
n
ty

 a
n

d
 o

th
er

 

ju
ri

sd
ic

ti
o

n
s 

th
ro

u
g
h
o

u
t 

th
e 

N
o

rt
h
 B

ay
 r

eg
io

n
.  

 

A
m

en
d

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 3

0
1

 –
 R

eq
u

ir
es

 m
an

d
at

o
ry

 c
o

m
p

li
an

ce
 w

it
h

 T
ie

r 
1

 

st
at

u
s 

o
f 

th
e 

co
d

e 
ex

ce
p

t 
fo

r 
en

er
g

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
an

d
 

ad
d

it
io

n
s 

an
d

 a
lt

er
at

io
n

s.
 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 r

eq
u

ir
e 

th
at

 t
h

e 
p

re
re

q
u
is

it
e 

an
d
 a

p
p

li
ca

b
le

 e
le

ct
iv

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 a

ch
ie

v
e 

T
ie

r 
1

 s
ta

tu
s,

 a
s 

sp
ec

if
ie

d
 i

n
 t

h
e 

co
d

e 
b

ec
o

m
e 

m
an

d
at

o
ry

 f
o

r 
al

l 
n

ew
 b

u
il

d
in

g
s 

ex
ce

p
t 

th
at

 t
h

e 
E

n
er

g
y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 M

ea
su

re
s 

in
 A

p
p

en
d
ix

 A
4

 D
iv

is
io

n
 A

4
.2

 a
n

d
 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 A
5

 a
n

d
 D

iv
is

io
n

 A
5

.2
 n

ee
d

 n
o

t 
b

e 
m

et
. 

 T
ie

r 
1

 E
n

er
g

y
 m

ea
su

re
s 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e 

v
er

y
 d

if
fi

cu
lt

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 g
iv

en
 t

h
e 

re
ce

n
t 

in
cr

ea
se

 i
n

 t
h

e 
m

an
d

at
o

ry
 e

n
er

g
y
 r

eq
u

ir
e
m

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

2
0
1

6
 C

A
 E

n
er

g
y
 C

o
d

e.
  

 

T
h

is
 a

m
en

d
m

en
t 

al
so

 s
ti

p
u

la
te

s 
th

at
 t

h
e 

ad
d
it

io
n

al
 C

A
L

G
re

en
 T

ie
r1

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 d

o
 n

o
t 

ap
p

ly
 t

o
 a

d
d
it

io
n

s 
an

d
 a

lt
er

at
io

n
s.

  

T
h

e 
ap

p
li

ca
ti

o
n
 o

f 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 T

ie
r 

1
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e 

v
er

y
 d

if
fi

cu
lt

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 f
o

r 
ex

is
ti

n
g
 b

u
il

d
in

g
s.

  

T
h

is
 a

m
en

d
m

en
t 

es
ta

b
li

sh
es

 g
re

en
 b

u
il

d
in

g
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 t
h

at
 a

re
 m

o
re

 r
es

tr
ic

ti
v

e
 t

h
an

 w
h

at
 i

s 
o

th
er

w
is

e 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 b
y
 s

ta
te

 l
aw

 

an
d

 a
re

 i
n
 s

u
b

st
an

ti
al

 c
o
n

fo
rm

an
ce

 w
it

h
 w

h
at

 i
s 

b
ei

n
g
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

ed
 f

o
r 

ad
o
p

ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e 

m
aj

o
ri

ty
 o

f 
o

th
er

 b
u

il
d

in
g
 o

ff
ic

ia
ls

 

th
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t 
S

o
n
o

m
a 

C
o

u
n

ty
. 

T
h

is
 c

o
d

e 
am

en
d

m
en

t 
w

il
l 

h
el

p
 p

ro
v
id

e 
re

g
io

n
al

 c
o

n
si

st
en

cy
 o

f 
g
re

en
 b

u
il

d
in

g
 r

eg
u

la
ti

o
n

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
ti

tl
e 

an
d
 e

x
p

la
n

at
o

ry
 n

o
te

 o
f 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 A
4

. 
C

la
ri

fi
es

 t
h

e 
ti

tl
e 

to
 r

ef
le

ct
 t

h
at

 t
h
e 

ap
p

en
d
ix

 p
ro

v
id

es
 s

u
p
p

le
m

en
ta

ry
 r

es
id

en
ti

al
 m

an
d

at
o

ry
 a

n
d

 e
le

ct
iv

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ra
th

er
 t

h
an

 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 m
ea

su
re

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 S
ec

ti
o
n

 A
4

.2
0

1
.1

  
 

T
h

is
 c

h
an

g
e 

is
 n

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 c

la
ri

fy
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
co

n
ta

in
ed

 i
n
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 A

4
 D

iv
is

io
n

 A
4

.2
 (

E
n

er
g
y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 M

ea
su

re
s)

 

ar
e 

en
ti

re
ly

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 a

re
 i

n
te

n
d

ed
 o

n
ly

 a
s 

a 
m

ea
n

s 
to

 e
n

co
u

ra
g
e 

b
u

il
d

in
g
s 

to
 a

ch
ie

v
e 

ex
em

p
la

ry
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 i

n
 t

h
e 

ar
ea

 

o
f 

en
er

g
y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
. 

A
m

en
d

 I
te

m
 2

 i
n

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 A

4
.6

0
1
.4

.2
 

T
h

is
 a

m
en

d
m

en
t 

cl
ar

if
ie

s 
th

at
 t

h
e 

T
ie

r 
1

 E
n

er
g

y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 m

ea
su

re
s 

d
o

 n
o

t 
ap

p
ly

. 

A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
n

o
te

 i
n

 t
h

e 
la

st
 p

ar
ag

ra
p

h
 o

f 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 S

ec
ti

o
n

 

A
4

.6
0

1
.4

.2
 

T
h

is
 a

m
en

d
m

en
t 

cl
ar

if
ie

s 
th

at
 t

h
e 

b
u

il
d

in
g
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
m

ay
 d

ev
el

o
p

 a
n

d
 r

eq
u

ir
e 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 f
o

rm
s 

to
 s

h
o

w
 C

A
L

G
re

en
 

co
m

p
li

an
ce

. 
 

D
el

et
e 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 S
ec

ti
o
n

 A
4

.6
0

2
 (

R
es

id
en

ti
al

 O
cc

u
p

an
ci

es
 

A
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

 C
h

ec
k
li

st
) 

C
h

ec
k
li

st
s 

fo
r 

C
A

L
G

re
en

 +
T

ie
r 

1
 w

il
l 

b
e 

cu
st

o
m

iz
ed

 f
o

r 
th

e 
C

it
y
 o

f 
S

o
n

o
m

a,
 t

h
er

ef
o

re
, 

th
e 

co
d

e 
p

ro
v
id

ed
 c

h
ec

k
li

st
 i

s 
n

o
t 

n
ee

d
ed

. 

D
el

et
e 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
iv

is
io

n
 A

4
.7

 
T

h
is

 d
el

et
es

 a
 d

iv
is

io
n

 w
h

ic
h

 c
o

n
ta

in
s 

a 
m

o
d

el
 o

rd
in

an
ce

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

n
o

t 
n

ec
es

sa
ry

 i
n

 t
h

e 
co

d
e.

 

A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
ti

tl
e 

an
d
 e

x
p

la
n

at
o

ry
 n

o
te

 o
f 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 A
5

 
C

la
ri

fi
es

 t
h

e 
ti

tl
e 

to
 r

ef
le

ct
 t

h
at

 t
h
e 

ap
p

en
d
ix

 p
ro

v
id

es
 s

u
p
p

le
m

en
ta

ry
 n

o
n

re
si

d
en

ti
al

 m
an

d
at

o
ry

 a
n

d
 e

le
ct

iv
e 

m
ea

su
re

s,
 r

at
h

er
 

th
an

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 m
ea

su
re

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 S
ec

ti
o
n

 A
5

.2
0

1
.1

  
 

T
h

is
 c

h
an

g
e 

is
 n

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 c

la
ri

fy
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
co

n
ta

in
ed

 i
n
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 A

5
 D

iv
is

io
n

 A
5

.2
 (

E
n

er
g
y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 M

ea
su

re
s)

 

ar
e 

en
ti

re
ly

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 a

re
 i

n
te

n
d

ed
 o

n
ly

 a
s 

a 
m

ea
n

s 
to

 e
n

co
u

ra
g
e 

b
u

il
d

in
g
s 

to
 a

ch
ie

v
e 

ex
em

p
la

ry
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 i

n
 t

h
e 

ar
ea

 

o
f 

en
er

g
y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
. 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 S
ec

ti
o
n

 A
5

.6
0

1
.2

.3
 

T
h

is
 c

h
an

g
e 

is
 n

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 c

la
ri

fy
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
co

n
ta

in
ed

 i
n
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 A

5
 D

iv
is

io
n

 A
5

.2
 (

E
n

er
g
y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 M

ea
su

re
s)

 

ar
e 

en
ti

re
ly

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 a

re
 i

n
te

n
d

ed
 o

n
ly

 a
s 

a 
m

ea
n

s 
to

 e
n

co
u

ra
g
e 

b
u

il
d

in
g
s 

to
 a

ch
ie

v
e 

ex
em

p
la

ry
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 i

n
 t

h
e 

ar
ea

 

o
f 

en
er

g
y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
. 

A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
fi

rs
t 

p
ar

ag
ra

p
h

 i
n

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 S
ec

ti
o
n

 A
5

.6
0
1

.2
.4

 
T

h
e 

am
en

d
m

en
t 

is
 n

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 c

la
ri

fy
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
T

ie
r 

1
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 a
re

 n
o

t 
v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
. 

D
el

et
e 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 S
ec

ti
o
n

 A
5

.6
0

2
 (

N
o

n
re

si
d

en
ti

al
 O

cc
u

p
an

ci
es

 

A
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

 C
h

ec
k
li

st
) 

C
h

ec
k
li

st
s 

fo
r 

C
A

L
G

re
en

 +
T

ie
r 

1
 w

il
l 

b
e 

cu
st

o
m

iz
ed

 f
o

r 
th

e 
C

it
y
 o

f 
S

o
n

o
m

a,
 t

h
er

ef
o

re
, 

th
e 

co
d

e 
p

ro
v
id

ed
 c

h
ec

k
li

st
 i

s 
n

o
t 

n
ee

d
ed

. 

2
0

1
6

  
C

a
li

fo
rn

ia
 E

x
is

ti
n

g
 B

u
il

d
in

g
 C

o
d

e 
 

D
el

et
e 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 4
0
7

.1
.1

 a
n

d
 A

m
en

d
 S

ec
ti

o
n

 4
0

7
.1

 –
C

o
n

fo
rm

an
ce

 

w
h

en
 a

 u
se

 i
s 

ch
an

g
ed

. 

T
h

is
 a

m
en

d
m

en
t 

is
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 t
o

 c
la

ri
fy

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

re
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
 o

f 
al

l 
o

f 
th

e 
ap

p
li

ca
b

le
 t

ec
h

n
ic

al
 c

o
d

es
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e 

C
it

y
 (

n
o

t 

ju
st

 t
h

e 
C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 B

u
il

d
in

g
 C

o
d

e)
 a

p
p

ly
 t

o
 b

u
il

d
in

g
s 

u
n

d
er

g
o

in
g
 a

 c
h

an
g
e 

in
 u

se
 o

r 
o

cc
u
p

an
cy

. 

A
d

o
p

t 
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

A
1

 –
 S

ei
sm

ic
 S

tr
en

g
th

en
in

g
 P

ro
v
is

io
n

s 

fo
r 

U
n

re
in

fo
rc

ed
 M

as
o

n
ry

 B
ea

ri
n

g
 W

al
l 

B
u

il
d

in
g
s 

T
h

is
 a

p
p

en
d

ix
 c

h
ap

te
r 

is
 n

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e 
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

d
es

ig
n

 c
ri

te
ri

a 
an

d
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 f
o

r 
S

ei
sm

ic
 S

tr
en

g
th

en
in

g
 

o
f 

fo
r 

U
n

re
in

fo
rc

ed
 M

as
o

n
ry

 B
ea

ri
n

g
 W

al
l 

B
u

il
d

in
g
s 

an
d

 p
ro

v
id

e 
co

n
fo

rm
an

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
C

it
y
’s

 U
n

re
in

fo
rc

ed
 M

as
o

n
ry

 

B
u

il
d

in
g
 o

rd
in

an
ce

 (
S

M
C

 C
h

ap
te

r 
1

4
.2

4
).

 

A
d

o
p

t 
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

A
3

 –
 P

re
sc

ri
p

ti
v
e 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
S

ei
sm

ic
 

S
tr

en
g
th

en
in

g
 o

f 
C

ri
p

p
le

 W
al

ls
 a

n
d

 S
il

l 
P

la
te

 A
n

ch
o

ra
g
e 

o
f 

L
ig

h
t 

W
o

o
d

-F
ra

m
e 

R
es

id
en

ti
al

 B
u

il
d
in

g
s 

T
h

is
 a

p
p

en
d

ix
 c

h
ap

te
r 

is
 n

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e 
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

d
es

ig
n

 c
ri

te
ri

a 
an

d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 f
o

r 
S

ei
sm

ic
 

S
tr

en
g
th

en
in

g
 o

f 
C

ri
p

p
le

 W
al

ls
 a

n
d

 S
il

l 
P

la
te

 A
n

ch
o

ra
g
e 

o
f 

L
ig

h
t 

W
o

o
d

-F
ra

m
e 

R
es

id
en

ti
al

 B
u

il
d
in

g
s.

 

130



A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 B
 

R
ea

so
n

s 
F

o
r 

L
o

ca
l 

A
m

en
d

m
e
n
ts

 –
 R

e
v
1

0
/1

1
/1

6
 

 A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

A
4

 –
 E

ar
th

q
u

ak
e 

R
is

k
 R

ed
u

ct
io

n
 i

n
 

W
o

o
d

-F
ra

m
e 

R
es

id
en

ti
al

 B
u

il
d
in

g
s 

w
it

h
 S

o
ft

, 
W

ea
k
 o

r 
O

p
en

 F
ro

n
t 

W
al

ls
. 

T
h

is
 a

p
p

en
d

ix
 c

h
ap

te
r 

is
 n

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e 
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

d
es

ig
n

 c
ri

te
ri

a 
an

d
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 f
o

r 
E

ar
th

q
u

ak
e 

R
is

k
 R

ed
u

ct
io

n
 i

n
 W

o
o

d
-F

ra
m

e 
R

es
id

en
ti

al
 B

u
il

d
in

g
s 

w
it

h
 S

o
ft

, 
W

e
ak

 o
r 

O
p

en
 F

ro
n

t 
W

al
ls

. 

A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
fi

rs
t 

se
n

te
n

ce
 i

n
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

A
3

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 A

3
0

1
.2

 

re
g
ar

d
in

g
  

P
re

sc
ri

p
ti

v
e 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
S

ei
sm

ic
 S

tr
en

g
th

en
in

g
 o

f 

C
ri

p
p

le
 W

al
ls

 a
n

d
 S

il
l 

P
la

te
 A

n
ch

o
ra

g
e 

o
f 

L
ig

h
t 

W
o

o
d

-F
ra

m
e 

R
es

id
en

ti
al

 B
u

il
d

in
g
s 

T
h

is
 a

m
en

d
m

en
t 

is
 n

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 e

st
ab

li
sh

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
o

f 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

A
3

 (
P

re
sc

ri
p

ti
v
e 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
S

ei
sm

ic
 

S
tr

en
g
th

en
in

g
 o

f 
C

ri
p

p
le

 W
al

ls
 a

n
d

 S
il

l 
P

la
te

 A
n

ch
o

ra
g
e 

o
f 

L
ig

h
t 

W
o

o
d

-F
ra

m
e 

R
es

id
en

ti
al

 B
u

il
d
in

g
s)

 a
re

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

. 

A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
fi

rs
t 

se
n

te
n

ce
 i

n
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

A
4

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 A

4
0

3
.2

 

re
g
ar

d
in

g
 E

ar
th

q
u

ak
e 

R
is

k
 R

ed
u

ct
io

n
 i

n
 W

o
o

d
-F

ra
m

e 
R

es
id

en
ti

al
 

B
u

il
d

in
g
s 

w
it

h
 S

o
ft

, 
W

ea
k
 o

r 
O

p
en

 F
ro

n
t 

W
al

ls
. 

T
h

is
 a

m
en

d
m

en
t 

is
 n

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 e

st
ab

li
sh

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
o

f 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

A
4

 (
P

re
sc

ri
p

ti
v
e 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
S

ei
sm

ic
 

S
tr

en
g
th

en
in

g
 o

f 
C

ri
p

p
le

 W
al

ls
 a

n
d

 S
il

l 
P

la
te

 A
n

ch
o

ra
g
e 

o
f 

L
ig

h
t 

W
o

o
d

-F
ra

m
e 

R
es

id
en

ti
al

 B
u

il
d
in

g
s)

 a
re

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

. 

C
o

d
e 

/ 
A

ct
io

n
 /

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 t

o
 b

e 
A

d
d

ed
 o

r 
A

m
e
n
d

ed
 

R
ea

so
n
 f

o
r 

A
m

e
n
d

m
e
n
t 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

ve
 P

ro
vi

si
o

n
s 

 

R
ep

ea
l 

an
d

 a
d
o

p
t 

a 
n

ew
 S

M
C

 1
4

.1
0

.1
0

 (
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

s)
 a

s 
w

ri
tt

en
. 

T
h

e 
re

v
is

ed
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
re

p
la

ce
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

an
d
 t

h
e 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

co
d

e 
cu

rr
en

tl
y
 i

n
 p

la
ce

. 
T

h
e 

re
p

la
ce

d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 

ac
co

m
p

li
sh

 t
h

e 
fo

ll
o

w
in

g
: 

 
C

la
ri

fy
 t

h
e 

ap
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
co

p
e 

o
f 

th
e 

te
ch

n
ic

al
 c

o
d

es
; 

 

 
P

ro
v
id

e 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
ab

at
em

en
t 

o
f 

u
n

sa
fe

 b
u

il
d

in
g
s 

th
at

 w
er

e 
p

re
v
io

u
sl

y
 c

o
n

ta
in

ed
 i

n
 t

h
e 

U
n

if
o
rm

 C
o

d
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

A
b

at
em

en
t 

o
f 

D
an

g
er

o
u

s 
B

u
il

d
in

g
s,

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

n
o

 l
o

n
g
er

 p
u

b
li

sh
ed

; 

 
C

la
ri

fy
 s

u
b

m
it

ta
l 

re
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

p
er

m
it

s;
 

 
C

la
ri

fy
 t

h
e 

ap
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 
ce

rt
ai

n
 b

u
il

d
in

g
 p

er
m

it
s 

an
d

 r
el

at
ed

 f
ee

s;
 

 
C

la
ri

fy
 p

ro
ce

d
u

ra
l 

an
d

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
re

q
u

ir
em

en
ts

 f
o

r 
in

sp
ec

ti
n

g
 w

o
rk

; 

 
A

d
d

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
co

ll
ec

ti
n

g
 a

 f
u
ll

y
 r

ef
u

n
d

ab
le

 w
o

rk
 g

u
ar

an
te

e 
d

ep
o

si
t 

fo
r 

te
m

p
o

ra
ry

 o
cc

u
p

an
cy

 a
u

th
o

ri
za

ti
o

n
s;

 

 
A

d
d

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
cl

ar
if

y
in

g
 t

h
e 

p
ro

ce
ss

 f
o

r 
ap

p
ea

ls
 o

f 
d

ec
is

io
n

s 
m

ad
e 

b
y
 t

h
e 

b
u

il
d

in
g
 o

ff
ic

ia
l;

 

 
A

d
d

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
cl

ar
if

y
in

g
 t

h
e 

p
ro

ce
ss

 a
n

d
 n

o
ti

ci
n

g
 r

eq
u
ir

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

is
su

in
g
 n

o
ti

ce
 o

f 
v
io

la
ti

o
n

s,
 s

to
p
 w

o
rk

 o
rd

er
s 

an
d

 

n
o

ti
ce

s 
o

f 
u
n

sa
fe

 s
tr

u
ct

u
re

s 
an

d
 e

q
u

ip
m

en
t;

 

 
A

d
d

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
cl

ar
if

y
in

g
 t

h
e 

p
ro

ce
ss

 f
o

r 
re

co
v
er

y
 c

o
st

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t 
an

d
 a

b
at

em
en

t 
o

f 
u

n
sa

fe
 s

tr
u

ct
u

re
s;

 

 
D

el
et

e 
fe

e 
ta

b
le

s 
th

at
 w

il
l 

o
th

er
w

is
e 

b
e 

h
an

d
le

d
 o

r 
ad

o
p

te
d
 i

n
 t

h
e 

re
so

lu
ti

o
n
 a

d
o
p

ti
n

g
 r

ev
is

ed
 f

ee
s.

 

2
0

1
6

  
C

a
li

fo
rn

ia
 B

u
il

d
in

g
 C

o
d

e 
 

D
el

et
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
1

, 
D

iv
is

io
n

 I
I 

(S
co

p
e 

an
d

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
) 

an
d

 

re
p

la
ce

 w
it

h
 n

ew
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
o

f 
S

M
C

 1
4

.1
0

.1
0
. 

T
h

e 
p

ro
p
o

se
d

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
co

d
e 

p
ro

v
id

es
 c

o
n

si
st

en
t 

an
d

 m
o

re
 c

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
v
e 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
ap

p
ly

in
g
 t

h
e 

te
ch

n
ic

al
 c

o
d

es
 a

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
te

ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 p

er
m

it
ti

n
g
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

T
h

es
e 

re
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
 r

ep
la

ce
, 

b
u

t 
ar

e 
su

b
st

an
ti

al
ly

 t
h

e 

sa
m

e 
as

, 
th

e 
U

n
if

o
rm

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
C

o
d

e 
w

h
ic

h
 w

as
 p

re
v
io

u
sl

y
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e 

C
it

y
. 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 H

 –
 S

ig
n

s 
P

ro
v
id

es
 n

ew
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
sa

fe
 i

n
st

al
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
si

g
n

s 
n

o
t 

o
th

er
w

is
e 

co
v
er

ed
 b

y
 t

h
e 

co
d

e.
 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 I

 –
 P

at
io

 C
o

v
er

s 
P

ro
v
id

es
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
p

at
io

 c
o

v
er

s 
th

at
 a

re
 n

o
t 

o
th

er
w

is
e 

sp
ec

if
ic

al
ly

 s
p

ec
if

ie
d

 i
n

 t
h

e 
m

ai
n

 b
o
d

y
 o

f 
th

e 
co

d
e.

 

2
0

1
6

  
C

a
li

fo
rn

ia
 R

es
id

en
ti

a
l 

C
o

d
e 

 

D
el

et
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
1

, 
D

iv
is

io
n

 I
I 

(S
co

p
e 

an
d

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
) 

an
d

 

re
p

la
ce

 w
it

h
 n

ew
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
o

f 
S

M
C

 1
4

.1
0

.1
0
. 

T
h

e 
p

ro
p
o

se
d

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
co

d
e 

p
ro

v
id

es
 c

o
n

si
st

en
t 

an
d

 m
o

re
 c

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
v
e 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
ap

p
ly

in
g
 t

h
e 

te
ch

n
ic

al
 c

o
d

es
 a

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
te

ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 p

er
m

it
ti

n
g
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

T
h

es
e 

re
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
 r

ep
la

ce
, 

b
u

t 
ar

e 
su

b
st

an
ti

al
ly

 t
h

e 

sa
m

e 
as

, 
th

e 
U

n
if

o
rm

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
C

o
d

e 
w

h
ic

h
 w

as
 p

re
v
io

u
sl

y
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e 

C
it

y
. 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 G

 –
 S

w
im

m
in

g
 P

o
o

ls
, 
S

p
as

 a
n

d
 H

o
t 

T
u

b
s 

P
ro

v
id

es
 p

o
o

l 
b

ar
ri

er
 a

n
d

 a
n

ti
-d

ro
w

n
in

g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
re

si
d

en
ti

al
 o

cc
u

p
an

ci
es

 c
o

n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
re

q
u

ir
em

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

C
al

if
o

rn
ia

 B
u

il
d
in

g
 C

o
d

e 
an

d
 t

h
e 

C
al

if
o

rn
ia

 H
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

af
et

y
 C

o
d

e.
 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 H

 –
 P

at
io

 C
o

v
er

s 
P

ro
v
id

es
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
p

at
io

 c
o

v
er

s 
th

at
 a

re
 n

o
t 

o
th

er
w

is
e 

sp
ec

if
ic

al
ly

 s
p

ec
if

ie
d

 i
n

 t
h

e 
co

d
e.

 

D
el

et
e 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 R
3

1
3

.2
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
 a

 n
ew

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 R

3
1

3
.2

 a
n
d

 

S
ec

ti
o

n
 R

3
1
3

.2
.1

  
to

 r
eq

u
ir

e 
fi

re
 s

p
ri

n
k
le

rs
 i

n
 n

ew
 a

n
d

 c
er

ta
in

 

al
te

ra
ti

o
n

s 
to

 f
ac

to
ry

-b
u

il
t 

h
o
u

si
n
g
, 

m
o

b
il

e 
h

o
m

es
 a

n
d

 

m
an

u
fa

ct
u

re
d

 h
o

m
es

. 

T
h

is
 a

m
en

d
m

en
t 

st
at

es
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
in

st
al

la
ti

o
n

 o
f 

an
 a

u
to

m
at

ic
 f

ir
e 

sp
ri

n
k
le

r 
sy

st
em

 m
u

st
 b

e 
in

st
al

le
d

 i
n

 o
n

e-
 a

n
d

 t
w

o
- 

fa
m

il
y
 

d
w

el
li

n
g
s,

 f
ac

to
ry

-b
u

il
t 

h
o
u

si
n

g
, 
m

o
b

il
e 

h
o

m
es

 a
n

d
 m

an
u

fa
ct

u
re

d
 h

o
m

es
 i

n
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 F

ir
e 

C
o
d

e 
(C

F
C

).
  

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 a
m

en
d

m
en

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e 

C
F

C
 p

ro
v
id

e 
n

ew
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
fi

re
 s

p
ri

n
k
le

r 
in

 o
n

e-
 a

n
d

 t
w

o
- 

fa
m

il
y
 d

w
el

li
n

g
s,

 f
ac

to
ry

-b
u

il
t 

h
o

u
si

n
g
, 

m
o

b
il

e 
h
o

m
es

 a
n

d
 m

an
u

fa
ct

u
re

d
 h

o
m

es
. 

2
0

1
6

  
C

a
li

fo
rn

ia
 E

le
ct

ri
ca

l 
C

o
d

e 
 

131



A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 B
 

R
ea

so
n

s 
F

o
r 

L
o

ca
l 

A
m

en
d

m
e
n
ts

 –
 R

e
v
1

0
/1

1
/1

6
 

 

D
el

et
e 

A
n

n
ex

 H
 (

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 E
n

fo
rc

em
en

t)
 a

n
d

 r
ep

la
ce

 

w
it

h
 n

ew
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
o

f 
S

M
C

 1
4

.1
0
.1

0
. 

T
h

e 
p

ro
p
o

se
d

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
co

d
e 

p
ro

v
id

es
 c

o
n

si
st

en
t 

an
d

 m
o

re
 c

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
v
e 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
ap

p
ly

in
g
 t

h
e 

te
ch

n
ic

al
 c

o
d

es
 a

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
te

ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 p

er
m

it
ti

n
g
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

T
h

es
e 

re
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
 r

ep
la

ce
, 

b
u

t 
ar

e 
su

b
st

an
ti

al
ly

 t
h

e 

sa
m

e 
as

 t
h

e 
U

n
if

o
rm

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
C

o
d

e 
w

h
ic

h
 w

as
 p

re
v
io

u
sl

y
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e 

C
it

y
. 

2
0

1
6

  
C

a
li

fo
rn

ia
 M

e
ch

a
n

ic
a

l 
C

o
d

e 
 

D
el

et
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
1

, 
D

iv
is

io
n

 I
I 

(S
co

p
e 

an
d

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
) 

an
d

 

re
p

la
ce

 w
it

h
 n

ew
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
o

f 
S

M
C

 1
4

.1
0

.1
0
. 

T
h

e 
p

ro
p
o

se
d

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
co

d
e 

p
ro

v
id

es
 c

o
n

si
st

en
t 

an
d

 m
o

re
 c

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
v
e 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
ap

p
ly

in
g
 t

h
e 

te
ch

n
ic

al
 c

o
d

es
 a

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
te

ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 p

er
m

it
ti

n
g
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

T
h

es
e 

re
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
 r

ep
la

ce
, 

b
u

t 
ar

e 
su

b
st

an
ti

al
ly

 t
h

e 

sa
m

e 
as

, 
th

e 
U

n
if

o
rm

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
C

o
d

e 
w

h
ic

h
 w

as
 p

re
v
io

u
sl

y
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e 

C
it

y
. 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 B

 (
P

ro
ce

d
u

re
s 

to
 b

e 
F

o
ll

o
w

ed
 t

o
 P

la
ce

 G
as

 

E
q

u
ip

m
en

t 
in

to
 O

p
er

at
io

n
) 

 

T
h

is
 p

ro
p
o

se
d

 a
m

en
d

m
en

t 
p

ro
v
id

es
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 s
af

et
y
 p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s 

to
 f

o
ll

o
w

 t
o

 p
la

ce
 g

as
 e

q
u

ip
m

en
t 

in
to

 o
p

er
at

io
n
. 

2
0

1
6

  
C

a
li

fo
rn

ia
 P

lu
m

b
in

g
 C

o
d

e 
 

D
el

et
e 

C
h

ap
te

r 
1

, 
D

iv
is

io
n

 I
I 

(A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n
) 

an
d
 r

ep
la

ce
 w

it
h

 

n
ew

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
o

f 
S

M
C

 1
4

.1
0

.1
0
. 

T
h

e 
p

ro
p
o

se
d

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
co

d
e 

p
ro

v
id

es
 c

o
n

si
st

en
t 

an
d

 m
o

re
 c

o
m

p
re

h
en

si
v
e 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
fo

r 
ap

p
ly

in
g
 t

h
e 

te
ch

n
ic

al
 c

o
d

es
 a

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
te

ri
n

g
 t

h
e 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 p

er
m

it
ti

n
g
 p

ro
ce

ss
. 

T
h

es
e 

re
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
 r

ep
la

ce
, 

b
u

t 
ar

e 
su

b
st

an
ti

al
ly

 t
h

e 

sa
m

e 
as

, 
th

e 
U

n
if

o
rm

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
C

o
d

e 
w

h
ic

h
 w

as
 p

re
v
io

u
sl

y
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e 

C
it

y
. 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 A

 (
R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

ed
 R

u
le

s 
fo

r 
S

iz
in

g
 t

h
e 

W
at

er
 

S
u

p
p

ly
 S

y
st

em
).

 

A
d

d
s 

g
u

id
an

ce
 a

n
d

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

si
zi

n
g
 w

at
er

 s
u

p
p

ly
 s

y
st

em
s 

n
o

t 
o
th

er
w

is
e 

co
v
er

ed
 b

y
 t

h
e 

co
d

e.
 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

 (
A

lt
er

n
at

e 
P

lu
m

b
in

g
 S

y
st

em
s)

 
T

h
is

 a
m

en
d

m
en

t 
p

ro
v
id

es
 n

ee
d

ed
 p

ro
ce

d
u

re
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

d
es

ig
n

 o
f 

en
g
in

ee
re

d
 w

at
er

 s
y
st

em
s.

 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 D

 (
S

iz
in

g
 S

to
rm

w
at

er
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

S
y
st

em
s)

 
A

d
d

s 
g
u

id
an

ce
 a

n
d

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

si
zi

n
g
 s

to
rm

w
at

er
 s

y
st

em
s 

n
o

t 
o

th
er

w
is

e 
co

v
er

ed
 b

y
 t

h
e 

co
d

e.
 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 E

 (
M

an
u

fa
ct

u
re

d
/M

o
b

il
e 

H
o

m
e 

P
ar

k
s 

an
d

 

R
ec

re
at

io
n

al
 V

eh
ic

le
 P

ar
k
s)

 

P
ro

v
id

es
 r

eq
u
ir

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

M
an

u
fa

ct
u

re
d

/M
o
b

il
e
 H

o
m

e 
an

d
 R

V
 P

ar
k
s 

n
o

t 
o
th

er
w

is
e 

co
v
er

ed
 b

y
 t

h
e 

co
d

e.
 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 H

 (
P

ri
v
at

e 
S

ew
ag

e 
D

is
p

o
sa

l 
S

y
st

em
s)

 
P

ro
v
id

es
 r

eq
u
ir

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

p
ri

v
at

e 
se

w
ag

e 
d

is
p

o
sa

l 
sy

st
em

s 
(r

eg
u

la
te

d
 a

n
d

 e
n

fo
rc

ed
 b

y
 t

h
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

o
f 

H
ea

lt
h

 S
er

v
ic

es
).

 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 I

 (
In

st
al

la
ti

o
n

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s)
 

P
ro

v
id

es
 i

n
st

al
la

ti
o

n
 s

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

p
lu

m
b

in
g
 s

y
st

em
s 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

m
en

t 
th

e 
co

d
e.

 

2
0

1
6

  
C

a
li

fo
rn

ia
 F

ir
e 

C
o

d
e 

 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

4
 

P
ro

v
id

es
 s

p
ec

ia
l 

d
et

ai
le

d
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 u

se
 a

n
d

 o
cc

u
p

an
cy

 f
o

r 
re

si
d

en
ti

al
 c

ar
e 

fa
ci

li
ti

es
 l

ic
en

se
d

 b
y
 g

o
v
er

n
m

en
ta

l 

ag
en

ci
es

. 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

B
 –

 F
ir

e 
F

lo
w

 R
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

B
u

il
d

in
g
s 

P
ro

v
id

es
 a

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

 f
o

r 
ca

lc
u

la
ti

n
g
 t

h
e 

am
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
w

at
er

 n
ee

d
ed

 f
o

r 
fi

re
fi

g
h

ti
n

g
 p

u
rp

o
se

s 
in

 p
o

rt
io

n
s 

o
f 

b
u

il
d

in
g
s 

o
r 

b
u

il
d

in
g
s 

h
er

ea
ft

er
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
ed

. 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

B
B

 –
 F

ir
e 

F
lo

w
 R

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 f
o

r 

B
u

il
d

in
g
s 

P
ro

v
id

es
 a

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

 f
o

r 
ca

lc
u

la
ti

n
g
 t

h
e 

am
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
w

at
er

 n
ee

d
ed

 f
o

r 
fi

re
fi

g
h

ti
n

g
 p

u
rp

o
se

s 
fo

r 
sc

h
o

o
l 

b
u

il
d

in
g
s 

re
q
u

ir
ed

 b
y
 t

h
e 

G
o

v
er

n
m

en
t 

C
o

d
e.

 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

C
 –

 F
ir

e 
H

y
d

ra
n

t 
L

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n
 

P
ro

v
id

es
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

lo
ca

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 m
in

im
u

m
 d

is
tr

ib
u
ti

o
n
 o

f 
fi

re
 h

y
d

ra
n

ts
. 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

C
C

 -
 F

ir
e 

H
y
d

ra
n

t 
L

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 

P
ro

v
id

es
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

lo
ca

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 m
in

im
u

m
 d

is
tr

ib
u
ti

o
n
 o

f 
fi

re
 h

y
d

ra
n

ts
 f

o
r 

sc
h

o
o

l 
b
u
il

d
in

g
s 

re
q
u

ir
ed

 b
y
 t

h
e 

G
o

v
er

n
m

en
t 

C
o

d
e.

 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

D
 

P
ro

v
id

es
 t

h
e 

m
in

im
u

m
 s

p
ec

if
ic

at
io

n
s 

fo
r 

fi
re

 a
p

p
ar

at
u

s 
ac

ce
ss

 r
o

ad
s.

  

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

E
 

P
ro

v
id

es
 a

d
d
it

io
n

al
 i

n
fo

rm
at

io
n

, 
ex

p
la

n
at

io
n

s 
an

d
 e

x
am

p
le

s 
to

 i
ll

u
st

ra
te

 a
n

d
 c

la
ri

fy
 h

az
ar

d
o

u
s 

m
at

er
ia

l 
ca

te
g
o

ri
es

 a
n

d
 

cl
as

si
fi

ca
ti

o
n

s.
 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

F
 

P
ro

v
id

es
 f

ir
ef

ig
h

te
r 

w
ar

n
in

g
 p

la
ca

rd
 d

es
ig

n
at

io
n

s 
b

as
ed

 o
n

 h
az

ar
d

 c
la

ss
if

ic
at

io
n

 c
at

eg
o

ri
es

. 

A
d

o
p

t 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

H
 

P
ro

v
id

es
 a

 t
em

p
la

te
 f

o
r 

b
u

si
n

es
se

s 
w

h
en

 t
h

e 
ty

p
e 

an
d

 q
u

an
ti

ty
 o

f 
h

az
ar

d
o

u
s 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 s

to
re

d
 r

eq
u

ir
es

 a
 H

az
ar

d
o

u
s 

M
at

er
ia

ls
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

P
la

n
 a

n
d
 I

n
v
en

to
ry

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

A
m

en
d

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 1

0
5

.6
.4

7
 –

 A
d

d
it

io
n

al
 (

o
p

er
at

io
n

al
) 

p
er

m
it

s 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 

A
d

d
s 

ad
d

it
io

n
al

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 (

o
p

er
at

io
n

al
) 

p
er

m
it

s 
–

 N
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 b
e 

co
n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

 l
o

ca
l 

am
en

d
m

en
ts

 t
o

 b
e 

ad
o
p

te
d

 b
y
 o

th
er

 

S
o

n
o

m
a 

C
o

u
n

ty
 j

u
ri

sd
ic

ti
o

n
s.

 

A
d

d
 a

 n
ew

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 1

0
5

.7
.1

7
 -

 A
d

d
it

io
n

al
 (

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
) 

p
er

m
it

s 
A

d
d

s 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 c
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n
 p

er
m

it
s 

- 
N

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 b

e 
co

n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

 l
o

ca
l 

am
en

d
m

en
ts

 t
o

 b
e 

ad
o

p
te

d
 b

y
 o

th
er

 

S
o

n
o

m
a 

C
o

u
n

ty
 j

u
ri

sd
ic

ti
o

n
s.

 

ATTACHMENT B 

 

132



A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 B
 

R
ea

so
n

s 
F

o
r 

L
o

ca
l 

A
m

en
d

m
e
n
ts

 –
 R

e
v
1

0
/1

1
/1

6
 

 

A
m

en
d

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 1

0
9

.3
 –

 v
io

la
ti

o
n
 p

en
al

ti
es

 
A

m
en

d
s 

th
e 

co
d

e 
to

 e
st

ab
li

sh
 v

io
la

ti
o

n
s 

th
er

eo
f 

as
 a

 m
is

d
em

ea
n

o
r 

an
d

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

p
en

al
ti

es
 f

o
r 

v
io

la
ti

o
n

s 
th

er
eo

f 
ar

e 
se

t 
fo

rt
h

 i
n

 

S
o

n
o

m
a 

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 C
o

d
e 

(S
M

C
) 

C
h

ap
te

r 
1
.1

2
. 

 N
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 b
e 

co
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
 S

M
C

. 

A
m

en
d

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 1

1
1

.4
 –

 F
ai

lu
re

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 s

to
p
 w

o
rk

 o
rd

er
 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 e

st
ab

li
sh

 t
h

at
 a

 f
ai

lu
re

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 a
 s

to
p

 w
o

rk
 o

rd
er

 i
s 

an
 i

n
fr

ac
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

p
en

al
ti

es
 a

re
 s

et
 f

o
rt

h
 i

n
 

S
o

n
o

m
a 

M
u

n
ic

ip
al

 C
o

d
e 

(S
M

C
) 

C
h

ap
te

r 
1
.1

2
. 

 N
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 b
e 

co
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
 S

M
C

 

A
m

en
d

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 2

0
2

 t
o

 a
d

d
 t

h
e 

d
ef

in
it

io
n

 o
f 

"A
D

D
IT

IO
N

" 
A

m
en

d
s 

th
e 

co
d

e 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e 
a 

n
ee

d
ed

 d
ef

in
it

io
n
 t

o
 b

e 
co

n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

 p
re

v
io

u
s 

C
it

y
 o

rd
in

an
ce

s 
an

d
 p

o
li

ci
es

 p
er

ta
in

in
g
 t

o
 f

ir
e
 

sp
ri

n
k
le

r 
sy

st
em

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 a

n
d

 t
ri

g
g
er

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 2

0
2

 t
o

 a
d

d
 t

h
e 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g
 d

ef
in

it
io

n
 o

f 

"M
A

N
U

F
A

C
T

U
R

E
D

 H
O

M
E

" 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e 
a 

n
ee

d
ed

 d
ef

in
it

io
n
 t

o
 b

e 
co

n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

 C
A

 H
ea

lt
h

 &
 S

af
et

y
 C

o
d

e 
§

1
8
0
0

7
. 

A
m

en
d

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 2

0
2

 t
o

 a
d

d
 t

h
e 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g
 d

ef
in

it
io

n
 o

f 
"M

O
B

IL
E

 

H
O

M
E

" 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e 
a 

n
ee

d
ed

 d
ef

in
it

io
n
 t

o
 b

e 
co

n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

 C
A

 H
ea

lt
h

 &
 S

af
et

y
 C

o
d

e 
§

1
8
0
0

8
. 

A
m

en
d

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 2

0
2

 t
o

 a
d

d
 t

h
e 

d
ef

in
it

io
n

 o
f 

"R
E

M
O

D
E

L
E

D
” 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e 
a 

n
ee

d
ed

 d
ef

in
it

io
n
 t

o
 b

e 
co

n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

 p
re

v
io

u
s 

C
it

y
 o

rd
in

an
ce

s 
an

d
 p

o
li

ci
es

 p
er

ta
in

in
g
 t

o
 f

ir
e
 

sp
ri

n
k
le

r 
sy

st
em

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 a

n
d

 t
ri

g
g
er

s.
  

E
st

ab
li

sh
es

 t
h

e 
tr

ig
g
er

 f
o

r 
re

q
u

ir
in

g
 a

 f
ir

e 
sp

ri
n

k
le

r 
sy

st
em

 i
n

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 b

u
il

d
in

g
s 

w
h

en
 c

o
sm

et
ic

 o
r 

st
ru

ct
u

ra
l 

re
p

ai
rs

, 
re

n
o

v
at

io
n

s,
 r

es
to

ra
ti

o
n

s,
 a

lt
er

at
io

n
s 

o
r 

ad
d

it
io

n
s 

to
 a

 s
tr

u
ct

u
re

, 
th

e 
to

ta
l 

v
al

u
at

io
n
 o

f 

w
h

ic
h

, 
as

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 b
y
 t

h
e 

b
u

il
d
in

g
 o

ff
ic

ia
l,

 e
x

ce
ed

s 
$

1
0

0
,0

0
0

 f
o

r 
b

u
il

d
in

g
s 

co
n

ta
in

in
g
 r

es
id

en
ti

al
 u

se
s 

o
r 

o
cc

u
p

an
ci

es
 a

n
d

 

$
1

5
0

,0
0
0

 f
o

r 
al

l 
o

th
er

 o
cc

u
p

an
ci

es
 o

v
er

 a
n

y
 3

6
 m

o
n

th
 p

er
io

d
. 

A
m

en
d

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 2

0
2

 t
o

 a
d

d
 t

h
e 

d
ef

in
it

io
n

 o
f 

"S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
" 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e 
a 

n
ee

d
ed

 d
ef

in
it

io
n
 t

o
 b

e 
co

n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

 p
re

v
io

u
s 

C
it

y
 o

rd
in

an
ce

s 
an

d
 p

o
li

ci
es

 p
er

ta
in

in
g
 t

o
 f

ir
e 

sp
ri

n
k
le

r 
sy

st
em

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 a

n
d

 t
ri

g
g
er

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 3

0
4

.1
.2

 b
y
 a

d
d

in
g
 s

u
b

se
ct

io
n

 3
0

4
.1

.2
.1

 -
  

C
o

m
b

u
st

ib
le

 V
eg

et
at

io
n

 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e 
a 

n
ee

d
ed

 d
ef

in
it

io
n
 t

o
 b

e 
co

n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

 p
re

v
io

u
s 

C
it

y
 o

rd
in

an
ce

s 
an

d
 p

o
li

ci
es

 p
er

ta
in

in
g
 t

o
 w

ee
d

 

ab
at

em
en

t.
 

A
d

d
 s

u
b

se
ct

io
n
 3

0
4

.1
.4

 -
 D

ef
en

si
b

le
 s

p
ac

e 
A

m
en

d
s 

th
e 

co
d

e 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e 
a 

d
ef

en
si

b
le

 s
p

ac
e 

o
f 

n
o

t 
le

ss
 t

h
an

 3
0
 f

ee
t 

b
et

w
ee

n
 v

ac
an

t 
lo

ts
 a

n
d
 n

ei
g
h
b

o
ri

n
g
 s

tr
u

ct
u

re
s.

 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 5

0
1

.1
 –

 F
ir

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
fe

at
u

re
s.

 
A

m
en

d
s 

th
e 

co
d

e 
to

 a
u

th
o

ri
ze

 t
h

e 
fi

re
 c

o
d

e 
o

ff
ic

ia
l 

to
 a

u
th

o
ri

ze
 a

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

d
es

ig
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 f

ea
tu

re
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

fi
re

 

ap
p

ar
at

u
s 

ac
ce

ss
 r

o
ad

s,
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 r
o

o
fs

, 
p

re
m

is
es

 i
d

en
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
, 

k
ey

 b
o

x
es

, 
fi

re
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n
 w

at
er

 s
u

p
p
li

es
, 

fi
re

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n
 

eq
u

ip
m

en
t 

id
en

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 a
n
d

 a
cc

es
s,

 e
tc

.,
 w

h
en

 d
o
n

e 
in

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 S

ec
ti

o
n

 1
0
4

.9
 A

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

M
at

er
ia

ls
 a

n
d

 M
et

h
o

d
s.

  
 

T
h

is
 c

o
d

e 
ch

an
g
e 

is
 n

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e 
fl

ex
ib

il
it

y
 i

n
 e

n
fo

rc
em

en
t 

p
ro

v
id

ed
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
m

at
er

ia
l,

 m
et

h
o

d
 o

r 
w

o
rk

 o
ff

er
ed

 i
s 

at
 l

ea
st

 

eq
u

iv
al

en
t 

in
 q

u
al

it
y
, 

st
re

n
g
th

, 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s,

 f
ir

e 
re

si
st

an
ce

 d
u

ra
b

il
it

y
 a

n
d

 s
af

et
y
. 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 5

0
3

.2
.3

- 
 S

u
rf

ac
e 

re
q

u
ir

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

fi
re

 

ap
p

ar
at

u
s 

ac
ce

ss
 r

o
ad

s 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 c

la
ri

fy
 f

ir
e 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

ac
ce

ss
 r

o
ad

 s
u

rf
ac

in
g
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

. 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 5

0
3

.6
. 

- 
 B

ri
d

g
es

 a
n

d
 E

le
v
at

ed
 S

u
rf

ac
es

. 
A

m
en

d
s 

th
e 

co
d

e 
b

y
 n

o
t 

li
m

it
in

g
 t

h
e 

A
m

er
ic

an
 A

ss
o

ci
at

io
n

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 H

ig
h

w
ay

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 O

ff
ic

ia
ls

 t
o

 t
h

e 
1
7

th
 E

d
it

io
n

. 
 

A
d

d
 s

u
b

se
ct

io
n
 5

0
3

.2
.7

 f
o

r 
b
u

il
d

in
g
s 

lo
ca

te
d

 o
n

 s
lo

p
es

 o
f 

g
re

at
er

 

th
an

 f
iv

e 
p

er
ce

n
t 

(5
%

).
 

A
d

d
s 

n
ee

d
ed

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

t 
fo

r 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 f

ir
e 

p
ro

te
ct

io
n

 m
ea

su
re

s,
 a

s 
th

e 
fi

re
 c

h
ie

f 
d

ee
m

s 
n

ec
es

sa
ry

 t
o

 m
it

ig
at

e 
ac

ce
ss

 

co
n

st
ra

in
ts

 b
y
 b

u
il

d
in

g
 o

n
 s

lo
p

es
 g

re
at

er
 t

h
an

 f
iv

e 
p

er
ce

n
t 

(5
%

).
 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 5

0
5

.1
 –

 P
re

m
is

es
 i

d
en

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n
 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 c

la
ri

fy
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
C

it
y
 o

f 
S

o
n

o
m

a 
as

si
g
n

s 
ad

d
re

ss
 n

u
m

b
er

s 
an

d
 c

la
ri

fi
es

 t
h

e 
cr

it
er

ia
 f

o
r 

ad
d

re
ss

 

id
en

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

. 

A
d

d
 a

 n
ew

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 5

0
7
.1

.1
 -

 E
m

er
g
en

cy
 w

at
er

 d
u

ri
n

g
 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
. 

A
d

d
s 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 t
o

 r
eq

u
ir

e 
em

er
g

en
cy

 w
at

er
 s

y
st

em
 o

n
-s

it
e 

p
ri

o
r 

to
 i

n
st

al
li

n
g
 c

o
m

b
u

st
ib

le
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
. 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 5

0
7

.5
 -

 F
ir

e 
h

y
d

ra
n

t 
sy

st
em

s 
A

m
en

d
s 

th
e 

co
d

e 
to

 e
li

m
in

at
e 

th
e 

re
fe

re
n

ce
 t

o
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

C
 w

h
ic

h
 i

s 
n

o
t 

ad
o

p
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e 

C
it

y
. 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 5

0
7

.5
.1

 –
 W

h
er

e 
fi

re
 h

y
d

ra
n

ts
 a

re
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 
A

m
en

d
s 

th
e 

co
d

e 
to

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e 
th

e 
p

re
v
io

u
s 

re
q
u

ir
em

en
t 

fo
r 

o
n

-s
it

e 
h

y
d

ra
n

ts
 (

5
0

8
.5

.1
) 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 5

1
0

.1
 –

 E
m

er
g

en
cy

 r
es

p
o

n
d

er
 r

ad
io

 c
o

v
er

ag
e
 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 r

eq
u

ir
e 

n
ee

d
ed

 e
m

er
g
en

cy
 r

es
p

o
n

d
er

 r
ad

io
 c

o
v
er

ag
e 

in
 b

u
il

d
in

g
s 

an
d

 c
er

ta
in

 w
in

er
y
 c

av
es

. 
  

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 9

0
1

.4
.1

- 
O

w
n

er
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

il
it

ie
s 

fo
r 

fu
n

ct
io

n
 

an
d

 p
ro

p
er

 o
p

er
at

io
n

 o
f 

fi
re

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n

 s
y
st

em
s 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 r

eq
u

ir
e 

th
at

 i
t 

is
 t

h
e 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
th

e 
o

w
n

er
 t

h
at

 a
 p

er
so

n
 o

r 
p

er
so

n
s 

fa
m

il
ia

r 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
fu

n
ct

io
n

 a
n
d

 

p
ro

p
er

 o
p

er
at

io
n

 o
f 

a 
b

u
il

d
in

g
’s

 f
ir

e 
p

ro
te

ct
io

n
 s

y
st

em
 b

e 
in

 a
tt

en
d

an
ce

 w
h

en
ev

er
 t

h
e 

p
re

m
is

es
 a

re
 o

cc
u

p
ie

d
. 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 9

0
1

.6
.1

 -
 S

ta
n
d

ar
d

s 
T

h
e 

ta
b

le
 r

ef
er

en
ce

d
 b

y
 t

h
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 n

ee
d

s 
cl

ar
if

ic
at

io
n

 t
o
 b

e 
sp

ec
if

ic
 t

o
 f

o
r 

w
at

er
-b

as
ed

 f
ir

e 
p

ro
te

ct
io

n
 s

y
st

em
s.

 

A
d

d
 s

u
b

se
ct

io
n
 9

0
1

.1
1
 -

 N
o

ti
ce

 o
f 

N
u

is
an

ce
 A

la
rm

 
A

m
en

d
s 

th
e 

co
d

e 
to

 e
st

ab
li

sh
 a

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

 f
o

r 
w

ri
tt

en
 n

o
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a 

n
u

is
an

ce
 a

la
rm

. 
 N

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 e

n
fo

rc
e 

p
en

al
ti

es
 f

o
r 

fa
ls

e
 

fi
re

/s
m

o
k

e/
sp

ri
n

k
le

r 
al

ar
m

s.
 

A
d

d
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 9
0

1
.1

2
- 

U
n

re
li

ab
le

 F
ir

e 
A

la
rm

 S
y
st

em
s 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 e

st
ab

li
sh

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
an

d
 p

en
al

ti
es

 f
o

r 
fa

ls
e
 f

ir
e/

sm
o

k
e/

sp
ri

n
k
le

r 
al

ar
m

s.
 

133



A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 B
 

R
ea

so
n

s 
F

o
r 

L
o

ca
l 

A
m

en
d

m
e
n
ts

 –
 R

e
v
1

0
/1

1
/1

6
 

 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 9

0
3

.2
  

- 
F

ir
e 

S
p

ri
n

k
le

rs
 -

 W
h

er
e 

R
eq

u
ir

ed
 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 b

e 
co

n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

 p
re

v
io

u
s 

C
it

y
 o

rd
in

an
ce

s 
an

d
 p

o
li

ci
es

 p
er

ta
in

in
g
 t

o
 f

ir
e 

sp
ri

n
k
le

r 
sy

st
em

 r
eq

u
ir

e
m

en
ts

 

an
d

 t
ri

g
g
er

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 9

0
3

.3
.7

 -
 F

ir
e 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

co
n

n
ec

ti
o
n

s 
T

h
e 

p
u

rp
o

se
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 c

o
d
e 

la
n

g
u

ag
e 

is
 t

o
 t

ak
e 

ad
v
an

ta
g
e 

o
f 

n
ew

 t
ec

h
n

o
lo

g
y
 d

es
ig

n
ed

 t
o

 a
ss

u
re

 t
h

at
 f

ir
e 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

co
n

n
ec

ti
o
n

s 
ar

e 
u

se
ab

le
 w

h
en

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
. 

F
ir

e 
d

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
co

n
n

ec
ti

o
n

s 
ar

e 
ty

p
ic

al
ly

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t

im
es

 w
h

en
 t

h
e 

m
u

n
ic

ip
al

 

w
at

er
 s

u
p

p
ly

 i
s 

in
ca

p
ab

le
 o

f 
d

el
iv

er
in

g
 n

o
rm

al
 f

lo
w

s 
an

d
 p

re
ss

u
re

s.
 S

u
ch

 c
ir

cu
m

st
an

ce
s 

h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 e
x

p
er

ie
n

ce
d

 b
y
 o

th
er

 

co
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

d
u

ri
n

g
 l

ar
g
e 

fi
re

s 
an

d
 s

u
b

se
q

u
en

t 
to

 s
ei

sm
ic

 a
ct

iv
it

y
. 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 9

0
3

.4
.2

 -
 A

la
rm

s 
T

h
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 a
m

en
d

m
en

t 
p

ro
v
id

es
 c

le
ar

er
 g

u
id

an
ce

 t
o

 b
u
il

d
in

g
 o

w
n

er
s,

 f
ir

e 
p

ro
te

ct
io

n
 s

y
st

em
 d

es
ig

n
er

s 
an

d
 s

y
st

em
 i

n
st

al
le

rs
. 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 9

0
5

.3
.1

- 
C

la
ss

 I
II

 s
ta

n
d
p

ip
e 

sy
st

em
s.

 
A

m
en

d
s 

th
e 

co
d

e 
to

 c
o

n
si

d
er

 t
h

e 
ro

o
f 

as
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 s
to

ry
 f

o
r 

b
u

il
d

in
g
s 

th
re

e 
o

r 
m

o
re

 s
to

ri
es

 i
n

 h
ei

g
h

t 
th

er
eb

y
 e

x
p

an
d

in
g
 t

h
e 

cl
as

s 
II

I 
st

an
d

p
ip

e 
sy

st
em

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

t 
 

A
m

en
d

 s
u

b
se

ct
io

n
 9

0
7

.2
.8

.1
 E

x
ce

p
ti

o
n

 2
 -

 M
an

u
al

 f
ir

e 
al

ar
m

 

sy
st

em
 f

o
r 

R
-1

 O
cc

u
p

an
ci

es
 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 r

eq
u

ir
e 

n
o

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 d
ev

ic
es

 t
o

 a
ct

iv
at

e 
in

 e
ac

h
 r

es
id

en
ti

al
 u

n
it

 u
p
o

n
 s

p
ri

n
k
le

r 
w

at
er

 f
lo

w
 s

in
ce

 t
h

es
e 

ar
e 

tr
an

si
en

t 
o

cc
u
p

an
ci

es
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

h
o

te
ls

, 
m

o
te

ls
 a

n
d

 a
p

ar
tm

en
t 

b
u

il
d

in
g
s.

 

A
d

d
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 3
3

1
4

.3
 -

 B
u

il
d
in

g
s 

u
n

d
er

 c
o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
. 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e 
an

 a
d

d
ed

 m
ea

su
re

 o
f 

fi
re

 s
af

et
y
 f

o
r 

b
u
il

d
in

g
s 

fo
u

r 
o

r 
m

o
re

 s
to

ri
es

 i
n
 h

ei
g
h

t.
 

A
d

d
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 3
3

1
4

.4
 -

 B
u

il
d
in

g
s 

b
ei

n
g
 d

em
o

li
sh

ed
 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e 
an

 a
d

d
ed

 m
ea

su
re

 o
f 

fi
re

 s
af

et
y
 d

u
ri

n
g
 t

h
e 

d
em

o
li

ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

u
lt

i-
st

o
ry

 b
u

il
d

in
g
s.

 

A
d

d
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 5
0

0
1

.5
.3

 -
 E

le
ct

ro
n

ic
 R

ep
o

rt
in

g
 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 m

ee
t 

fu
tu

re
 e

le
ct

ro
n

ic
 r

ep
o

rt
in

g
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 o
f 

A
B

 2
2

8
6
 f

o
r 

th
e 

C
al

if
o

rn
ia

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
en

ta
l 

R
ep

o
rt

in
g
 

S
y
st

em
. 
  T

h
is

 i
n

cl
u

d
es

 f
ac

il
it

y
 d

at
a 

re
g
ar

d
in

g
 h

az
ar

d
o

u
s 

m
at

er
ia

l 
re

g
u

la
to

ry
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s,
 c

h
em

ic
al

 i
n

v
en

to
ri

es
, 
u

n
d

er
g
ro

u
n
d

 a
n
d

 

ab
o

v
eg

ro
u

n
d
 s

to
ra

g
e 

ta
n

k
s,

 a
n

d
 h

az
ar

d
o

u
s 

w
as

te
 g

en
er

at
io

n
. 

A
ll

 r
eg

u
la

te
d

 b
u

si
n

es
se

s 
an

d
 U

n
if

ie
d

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 A

g
en

ci
es

 i
n

 t
h

e 

S
ta

te
 o

f 
C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 m

u
st

 u
se

 t
h

e 
in

te
rn

et
 t

o
 f

il
e 

b
y
 J

an
u

ar
y
 1

, 
2

0
1

6
 .
 

A
d

d
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 5
7

0
4

.1
.1

 -
  

T
an

k
s 

S
to

ra
g
e 

p
ro

h
ib

it
ed

 
A

m
en

d
s 

th
e 

co
d

e 
to

 r
em

o
v
e 

th
e 

th
re

at
 o

f 
fi

re
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

lo
si

v
e 

d
an

g
er

 f
ro

m
 t

an
k
 s

to
ra

g
e 

o
f 

cl
as

s 
I 

an
d

 I
I 

li
q
u

id
s 

in
 m

er
ca

n
ti

le
, 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 a
n

d
 r

es
id

en
ti

al
 p

ar
ce

ls
. 

A
d

d
 S

ec
ti

o
n

 5
7
0

4
.1

.2
 -

 T
an

k
 S

to
ra

g
e 

- 
O

th
er

 l
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
A

m
en

d
s 

th
e 

co
d

e 
to

 a
ss

u
re

 t
h

at
 n

ew
 t

an
k
 i

n
st

al
la

ti
o

n
s 

m
ee

t 
cu

rr
en

t 
sa

fe
ty

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 f

o
r 

cl
as

s 
I 

an
d

 I
I 

li
q

u
id

s.
 A

d
d

it
io

n
al

ly
 

ex
is

ti
n

g
 t

an
k
s 

in
 a

p
p

ro
v
ed

 l
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
m

u
st

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

sa
fe

ty
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 w
it

h
in

 o
n

e 
y
ea

r.
 

A
d

d
 S

ec
ti

o
n

 5
7
0

4
.1

.3
 -

 E
x
is

ti
n

g
 T

an
k
 S

to
ra

g
e
 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 u

p
g
ra

d
e 

ex
is

ti
n

g
 t

an
k
 i

n
st

al
la

ti
o

n
s 

to
 m

ee
t 

cu
rr

en
t 

sa
fe

ty
 r

eq
u

ir
e
m

en
ts

 f
o

r 
cl

as
s 

I 
an

d
 I

I 
li

q
u

id
s.

  

A
d

d
 S

ec
ti

o
n

 6
1
0

7
.5

 -
 S

ei
sm

ic
 A

n
ch

o
ri

n
g
 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 r

eq
u

ir
e 

ap
p

ro
v
ed

 s
ei

sm
ic

 a
n

ch
o

ri
n

g
 f

o
r 

in
st

al
le

d
 p

ro
p

an
e/

L
P

G
 g

as
 c

o
n

ta
in

er
s 

 

A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
d

ef
in

it
io

n
 o

f 
F

IR
E

-F
L

O
W

 i
n

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n
 

B
1

0
2
. 

T
h

is
 r

ev
is

io
n

 c
la

ri
fi

es
 w

h
er

e 
th

e 
p

re
ss

u
re

 f
o

r 
fi

re
-f

lo
w

 i
s 

m
ea

su
re

d
. 

A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
d

ef
in

it
io

n
 o

f 
F

IR
E

-F
L

O
W

 C
A

L
C

U
L

A
T

IO
N

 A
R

E
A

 

in
 A

p
p

en
d
ix

 B
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 B
1

0
2

.1
 

F
lo

o
r 

ar
ea

 w
as

 c
la

ri
fi

ed
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e 
co

n
si

st
en

cy
 i

n
 c

al
cu

la
ti

n
g
 f

ir
e 

fl
o

w
. 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 B
1

0
5
.1

 –
 F

ir
e 

fl
o

w
 f

o
r 

 o
n

e-
an

d
 

tw
o

-f
am

il
y
 d

w
el

li
n

g
s 

T
h

is
 i

s 
am

en
d

ed
 t

o
 i

n
cr

ea
se

 t
h

e 
m

in
im

u
m

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 f

ir
e
-f

lo
w

 f
ro

m
 1

0
0

0
 t

o
 1

5
0
0

 g
al

lo
n

s 
p

er
 m

in
u

te
. 

T
h

e 
la

n
g
u

ag
e 

to
 r

ed
u

ce
 

fi
re

-f
lo

w
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 s

p
ri

n
k
le

r 
sy

st
em

 i
n

st
al

la
ti

o
n

 i
s 

n
o

t 
au

to
m

at
ic

. 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 B
1

0
5
.2

 –
 F

ir
e 

fl
o

w
 f

o
r 

b
u

il
d

in
g
s 

o
th

er
 t

h
an

 o
n

e-
an

d
 t

w
o

-f
am

il
y
 d

w
el

li
n

g
s 

T
h

e 
la

n
g
u

ag
e 

to
 r

ed
u

ce
 f

ir
e-

fl
o

w
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 s

p
ri

n
k
le

r 
sy

st
em

 i
n

st
al

la
ti

o
n

 i
s 

n
o

t 
au

to
m

at
ic

. 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B
, 

T
ab

le
 B

1
0

5
.1

 b
y
 d

el
et

in
g
 f

o
o

tn
o

te
 a

).
 

T
h

is
 p

re
v
en

ts
 a

 r
ed

u
ct

io
n

 i
n

 n
ee

d
ed

 f
ir

e
-f

lo
w

 f
o

r 
re

si
d

en
ti

al
 s

tr
u

ct
u
re

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 C
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 C
1

0
2
 -

 F
ir

e 
H

y
d

ra
n

t 
L

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

to
 s

ta
n

d
ar

d
iz

e 
th

e 
lo

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

fi
re

 d
e
p

ar
tm

en
t 

co
n

n
ec

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

m
o

re
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
fi

re
 s

ce
n

e 

o
p

er
at

io
n

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
, 

S
ec

ti
o

n
 D

1
0
1

 -
 F

ir
e 

ap
p

ar
at

u
s 

ac
ce

ss
 r

o
ad

s 
A

m
en

d
s 

th
e 

co
d

e 
to

 a
ll

o
w

 t
h

e 
fi

re
 c

o
d

e 
o

ff
ic

ia
l 

so
m

e 
fl

ex
ib

il
it

y
 w

h
en

 d
o
n

e 
in

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 1
0

4
.9

 A
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 

M
at

er
ia

ls
 a

n
d

 M
et

h
o
d

s.
 F

le
x
ib

il
it

y
 i

n
 e

n
fo

rc
em

en
t 

p
ro

v
id

ed
 t

h
at

 t
h
e 

m
at

er
ia

l,
 m

et
h

o
d

 o
r 

w
o

rk
 o

ff
er

ed
 i

s 
at

 l
ea

st
 e

q
u

iv
al

en
t 

in
 

q
u

al
it

y
, 

st
re

n
g
th

, 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s,

 f
ir

e 
re

si
st

an
ce

 d
u

ra
b

il
it

y
 a

n
d

 s
af

et
y
. 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 D
1

0
3
.1

 -
 A

cc
es

s 
ro

ad
 w

id
th

 w
it

h
 

a 
h

y
d

ra
n

t 

A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
al

lo
w

s 
lo

ca
l 

au
th

o
ri

ti
es

 t
o

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

fi
re

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

ac
ce

ss
 s

p
ec

if
ic

at
io

n
s 

in
st

ea
d

 o
f 

th
e 

In
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 F

ir
e 

C
o

d
e.

 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 D
1

0
3
.2

 -
  

G
ra

d
e 

o
f 

fi
re

 a
p

p
ar

at
u

s 

ac
ce

ss
 r

o
ad

s 

T
h

e 
g
ra

d
e 

o
f 

fi
re

 a
p

p
ar

at
u

s 
ac

ce
ss

 r
o

ad
s 

is
 s

p
ec

if
ic

 t
o

 t
h

e 
ty

p
e 

o
f 

eq
u

ip
m

en
t 

av
ai

la
b

le
 a

n
d

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e 

d
et

er
m

in
ed

 l
o

ca
ll

y
. 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 D
1

0
3
.3

 -
 m

in
im

u
m

 t
u

rn
in

g
 

ra
d

iu
s 

T
u

rn
in

g
 r

ad
iu

s 
is

 s
p

ec
if

ic
 t

o
 t

h
e 

fi
re

 a
p

p
ar

at
u

s 
u

se
d
. 

134



A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 B
 

R
ea

so
n

s 
F

o
r 

L
o

ca
l 

A
m

en
d

m
e
n
ts

 –
 R

e
v
1

0
/1

1
/1

6
 

 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 D
1

0
3
.4

 -
 D

ea
d

-e
n

d
 f

ir
e 

ap
p

ar
at

u
s 

ac
ce

ss
 r

o
ad

s 

T
h

is
 c

h
an

g
e 

al
lo

w
s 

a 
lo

ca
l 

ju
ri

sd
ic

ti
o

n
 t

o
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
d

ea
d

-e
n

d
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 f
o

r 
w

id
th

 a
n
d

 t
u

rn
ar

o
u

n
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 D
1

0
3
.4

 b
y
 d

el
et

in
g
 T

ab
le

 

D
1

0
3
.4

 

A
ll

o
w

s 
lo

ca
l 

st
an

d
ar

d
s 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 D
1

0
3
.6

 -
  

N
O

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

-F
IR

E
 

L
A

N
E

 s
ig

n
s 

C
h

an
g
e 

al
lo

w
s 

lo
ca

l 
ju

ri
sd

ic
ti

o
n
 t

o
 a

p
p
ly

 t
h

e 
si

g
n

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 V

eh
ic

le
 C

o
d

e 
in

 d
es

ig
n

 a
n

d
 p

la
ce

m
en

t 
ra

th
er

 

th
an

 b
as

in
g
 i

t 
o

n
 s

o
le

ly
 o

n
 r

o
ad

 w
id

th
. 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 D
1

0
4
.2

 b
y
 d

el
et

in
g
 e

x
ce

p
ti

o
n

 t
o

  

D
1

0
4
.2

 

T
h

e 
ex

ce
p

ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
id

ed
 f

o
r 

a 
re

d
u
ct

io
n

 i
n

 f
ir

e 
d

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
ac

ce
ss

 i
n

 s
tr

u
ct

u
re

s 
w

it
h

 a
 g

ro
ss

 b
u
il

d
in

g
 a

re
a 

u
p

 t
o

 1
2

4
,0

0
0

 s
q

u
ar

e 

fe
et

. 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 D
1

0
6
.1

 –
 F

ir
e 

ap
p

ar
at

u
s 

ac
ce

ss
 

ro
ad

s 
fo

r 
 m

u
lt

i-
fa

m
il

y
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

h
av

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h

an
 5

0
 d

w
el

li
n

g
 

u
n

it
s 

M
o

d
if

ie
s 

w
h

en
 t

w
o

 f
ir

e 
ap

p
ar

at
u

s 
ac

ce
ss

 r
o

ad
s 

ar
e 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 –

 C
h

an
g
es

 t
h

e 
re

q
u

ir
em

en
t 

fr
o

m
 1

0
0

 d
w

el
li

n
g
 u

n
it

s 
to

 5
0

 d
w

el
li

n
g
 

u
n

it
s.

 

A
m

en
d

  
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 D

, 
su

b
se

ct
io

n
 D

1
0

6
 b

y
 d

el
et

in
g
 s

u
b

se
ct

io
n

 

D
1

0
6
.2

 

T
h

is
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 r
ef

er
re

d
 t

o
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

o
f 

2
0

0
 o

r 
m

o
re

 d
w

el
li

n
g
 u

n
it

s 
an

d
 r

ep
ea

ts
 t

h
e 

tw
o

 a
cc

es
s 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

en
t 

re
g
ar

d
le

ss
 o

f 
sp

ri
n

k
le

rs
 

A
d

d
  

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n
 D

1
0

6
.3

 –
 F

ir
e 

ap
p

ar
at

u
s 

ac
ce

ss
 

ro
ad

s 
fo

r 
m

u
lt

i-
re

si
d

en
ti

al
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

h
av

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h

an
 5

0
 d

w
el

li
n

g
 

u
n

it
s 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 a

ll
o

w
 f

ir
e 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

ac
ce

ss
 f

o
r 

em
er

g
en

cy
 o

p
er

at
io

n
s 

an
d

/o
r 

ev
ac

u
at

io
n

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
, 

su
b

se
ct

io
n

 D
1

0
7
 -

–
 F

ir
e 

ap
p

ar
at

u
s 

ac
ce

ss
 

ro
ad

s 
fo

r 
p

ro
je

ct
s 

h
av

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h

an
 5

0
 d

w
el

li
n

g
 u

n
it

s 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 a

ll
o

w
 f

ir
e 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

ac
ce

ss
 f

o
r 

em
er

g
en

cy
 o

p
er

at
io

n
s 

an
d

/o
r 

ev
ac

u
at

io
n

s.
 

2
0

1
6

  
C

a
li

fo
rn

ia
 G

re
en

 B
u

il
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s 
C

o
d

e 
 

A
d

o
p

t 
b

y
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 a
n

d
 a

d
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 C
h

ap
te

r 
A

4
 (

R
es

id
en

ti
al

 

V
o

lu
n
ta

ry
 M

ea
su

re
s)

 a
n

d
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 C

h
ap

te
r 

A
5

 (
N

o
n

re
si

d
en

ti
al

 

V
o

lu
n
ta

ry
 M

ea
su

re
s)

 o
f 

th
e 

2
0
1

6
  
C

al
if

o
rn

ia
 G

re
en

 B
u

il
d

in
g
 

S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s 
C

o
d

e 
ap

p
en

d
ic

es
. 

T
h

es
e 

ap
p

en
d

ic
es

 p
ro

v
id

e 
th

e 
p

re
re

q
u

is
it

e 
an

d
 a

p
p

li
ca

b
le

 e
le

ct
iv

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 a

ch
ie

v
e 

T
ie

r 
1

. 

A
m

en
d

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 3

0
1

 –
 R

eq
u

ir
es

 m
an

d
at

o
ry

 c
o

m
p

li
an

ce
 w

it
h

 T
ie

r 

1
 s

ta
tu

s 
o

f 
th

e 
co

d
e 

ex
ce

p
t 

fo
r 

en
er

g
y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
an

d
 

ad
d

it
io

n
s 

an
d

 a
lt

er
at

io
n

s.
 

A
m

en
d

s 
th

e 
co

d
e 

to
 r

eq
u

ir
e 

th
at

 t
h

e 
p

re
re

q
u
is

it
e 

an
d
 a

p
p

li
ca

b
le

 e
le

ct
iv

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 a

ch
ie

v
e 

T
ie

r 
1

 s
ta

tu
s,

 a
s 

sp
ec

if
ie

d
 i

n
 t

h
e 

co
d

e 
b

ec
o

m
e 

m
an

d
at

o
ry

 f
o

r 
al

l 
n

ew
 b

u
il

d
in

g
s 

ex
ce

p
t 

th
at

 t
h

e 
E

n
er

g
y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 M

ea
su

re
s 

in
 A

p
p

en
d
ix

 A
4

 D
iv

is
io

n
 A

4
.2

 a
n

d
 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 A
5

 a
n

d
 D

iv
is

io
n

 A
5

.2
 n

ee
d

 n
o

t 
b

e 
m

et
. 

 T
ie

r 
1

 E
n

er
g

y
 m

ea
su

re
s 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e 

v
er

y
 d

if
fi

cu
lt

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 g
iv

en
 t

h
e 

re
ce

n
t 

in
cr

ea
se

 i
n

 t
h

e 
m

an
d

at
o

ry
 e

n
er

g
y
 r

eq
u

ir
e
m

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

2
0
1

6
  
C

A
 E

n
er

g
y
 C

o
d

e.
  

 

T
h

is
 a

m
en

d
m

en
t 

al
so

 s
ti

p
u

la
te

s 
th

at
 t

h
e 

ad
d
it

io
n

al
 C

A
L

G
re

en
 T

ie
r1

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 d

o
 n

o
t 

ap
p

ly
 t

o
 a

d
d
it

io
n

s 
an

d
 a

lt
er

at
io

n
s.

  

T
h

e 
ap

p
li

ca
ti

o
n
 o

f 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 T

ie
r 

1
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e 

v
er

y
 d

if
fi

cu
lt

 t
o

 c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 f
o

r 
ex

is
ti

n
g
 b

u
il

d
in

g
s.

  

T
h

is
 a

m
en

d
m

en
t 

es
ta

b
li

sh
es

 g
re

en
 b

u
il

d
in

g
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 t
h

at
 a

re
 m

o
re

 r
es

tr
ic

ti
v

e 
th

an
 w

h
at

 i
s 

o
th

er
w

is
e 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 b

y
 s

ta
te

 l
aw

 

an
d

 a
re

 i
n
 s

u
b

st
an

ti
al

 c
o
n

fo
rm

an
ce

 w
it

h
 w

h
at

 i
s 

b
ei

n
g
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

ed
 f

o
r 

ad
o
p

ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e 

m
aj

o
ri

ty
 o

f 
o

th
er

 b
u

il
d

in
g
 o

ff
ic

ia
ls

 

th
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t 
S

o
n
o

m
a 

C
o

u
n

ty
. 

T
h

is
 c

o
d

e 
am

en
d

m
en

t 
w

il
l 

h
el

p
 p

ro
v
id

e 
re

g
io

n
al

 c
o

n
si

st
en

cy
 o

f 
g
re

en
 b

u
il

d
in

g
 r

eg
u

la
ti

o
n

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
ti

tl
e 

an
d
 e

x
p

la
n

at
o

ry
 n

o
te

 o
f 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 A
4

. 
C

la
ri

fi
es

 t
h

e 
ti

tl
e 

to
 r

ef
le

ct
 t

h
at

 t
h
e 

ap
p

en
d
ix

 p
ro

v
id

es
 s

u
p
p

le
m

en
ta

ry
 r

es
id

en
ti

al
 m

an
d

at
o

ry
 a

n
d

 e
le

ct
iv

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

ra
th

er
 t

h
an

 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 m
ea

su
re

s.
 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 S
ec

ti
o
n

 A
4

.2
0

1
.1

  
 

T
h

is
 c

h
an

g
e 

is
 n

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 c

la
ri

fy
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
co

n
ta

in
ed

 i
n
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 A

4
 D

iv
is

io
n

 A
4

.2
 (

E
n

er
g
y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 M

ea
su

re
s)

 

ar
e 

en
ti

re
ly

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 a

re
 i

n
te

n
d

ed
 o

n
ly

 a
s 

a 
m

ea
n

s 
to

 e
n

co
u

ra
g
e 

b
u

il
d

in
g
s 

to
 a

ch
ie

v
e 

ex
em

p
la

ry
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 i

n
 t

h
e 

ar
ea

 

o
f 

en
er

g
y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
. 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 S
ec

ti
o
n

 A
4

.6
0

1
.4

.2
 

T
h

is
 c

h
an

g
e 

is
 n

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 c

la
ri

fy
 t

h
at

 p
re

re
q
u

is
it

e 
an

d
 T

ie
r 

1
 m

ea
su

re
s 

ar
e 

re
q

u
ir

ed
. 

A
m

en
d

 I
te

m
 2

 i
n

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 A

4
.6

0
1
.4

.2
 

T
h

is
 a

m
en

d
m

en
t 

cl
ar

if
ie

s 
th

at
 t

h
e 

T
ie

r 
1

 E
n

er
g

y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 m

ea
su

re
s 

d
o

 n
o

t 
ap

p
ly

. 

A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
n

o
te

 i
n

 t
h

e 
la

st
 p

ar
ag

ra
p

h
 o

f 
A

p
p

en
d

ix
 S

ec
ti

o
n

 

A
4

.6
0

1
.4

.2
 

T
h

is
 a

m
en

d
m

en
t 

cl
ar

if
ie

s 
th

at
 t

h
e 

b
u

il
d

in
g
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
m

ay
 d

ev
el

o
p

 a
n

d
 r

eq
u

ir
e 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 f
o

rm
s 

to
 s

h
o

w
 C

A
L

G
re

en
 

co
m

p
li

an
ce

. 
 

D
el

et
e 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
iv

is
io

n
 A

4
.7

 
T

h
is

 d
el

et
es

 a
 d

iv
is

io
n

 w
h

ic
h

 c
o

n
ta

in
s 

a 
m

o
d

el
 o

rd
in

an
ce

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

n
o

t 
n

ec
es

sa
ry

 i
n

 t
h

e 
co

d
e.

 

A
m

en
d

 t
h

e 
ti

tl
e 

an
d
 e

x
p

la
n

at
o

ry
 n

o
te

 o
f 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 A
5

 
C

la
ri

fi
es

 t
h

e 
ti

tl
e 

to
 r

ef
le

ct
 t

h
at

 t
h
e 

ap
p

en
d
ix

 p
ro

v
id

es
 s

u
p
p

le
m

en
ta

ry
 n

o
n

re
si

d
en

ti
al

 m
an

d
at

o
ry

 a
n

d
 e

le
ct

iv
e 

m
ea

su
re

s,
 r

at
h

er
 

th
an

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 m
ea

su
re

s.
 

135



A
T

T
A

C
H

M
E

N
T

 B
 

R
ea

so
n

s 
F

o
r 

L
o

ca
l 

A
m

en
d

m
e
n
ts

 –
 R

e
v
1

0
/1

1
/1

6
 

 

 
 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 S
ec

ti
o
n

 A
5

.2
0

1
.1

  
 

T
h

is
 c

h
an

g
e 

is
 n

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 c

la
ri

fy
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
co

n
ta

in
ed

 i
n
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 A

5
 D

iv
is

io
n

 A
5

.2
 (

E
n

er
g
y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 M

ea
su

re
s)

 

ar
e 

en
ti

re
ly

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 a

re
 i

n
te

n
d

ed
 o

n
ly

 a
s 

a 
m

ea
n

s 
to

 e
n

co
u

ra
g
e 

b
u

il
d

in
g
s 

to
 a

ch
ie

v
e 

ex
em

p
la

ry
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 i

n
 t

h
e 

ar
ea

 

o
f 

en
er

g
y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
. 

A
m

en
d

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 S
ec

ti
o
n

 A
5

.6
0

1
.2

.3
 

T
h

is
 c

h
an

g
e 

is
 n

ee
d

ed
 t

o
 c

la
ri

fy
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

s 
co

n
ta

in
ed

 i
n
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 A

5
 D

iv
is

io
n

 A
5

.2
 (

E
n

er
g
y
 E

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 M

ea
su

re
s)

 

ar
e 

en
ti

re
ly

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 a

re
 i

n
te

n
d

ed
 o

n
ly

 a
s 

a 
m

ea
n

s 
to

 e
n

co
u

ra
g
e 

b
u

il
d

in
g
s 

to
 a

ch
ie

v
e 

ex
em

p
la

ry
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 i

n
 t

h
e 

ar
ea

 

o
f 

en
er

g
y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
. 

136



 

 

City of Sonoma 

City Council 

Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
    7C  
 
10/17/16 

 

Department 

Building 

Staff Contact  

Wayne Wirick, Development Services Director / Building Official 

Agenda Item Title 

Introduction and First Reading of an Ordinance amending Chapter 14.24 (Review, Rehabilitation 
and Abatement of Existing Seismically Unsafe Buildings) of the Sonoma Municipal Code  

Summary 

The purpose of the revisions to Chapter 14.24 (Review, Rehabilitation and Abatement of Existing 
Seismically Unsafe Buildings) is to coordinate and update provisions contained in the existing 
ordinance with the 2016 California Building Standards Code. The existing ordinance has outdated 
language and references to codes no longer adopted or enforceable by the City. 

Recommended Council Action 

Introduce the amending ordinance by title “An Ordinance of the City of Sonoma Amending 
Chapter 14.24 (Review, Rehabilitation and Abatement of Existing Seismically Unsafe 
Buildings) of the Sonoma Municipal Code”. 

Alternative Actions  

1. Introduce the ordinance with any revisions deemed necessary by the City Council. 
2. Decline to introduce the ordinance. 

Financial Impact 

     None 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

Attachments:  

 Attachment A - Draft ordinance amending Chapter 14.24 of the Sonoma Municipal Code  

 Attachment B - Draft ordinance amending Chapter 14.24 in strikeout/underline format. 

Alignment with Council Goals:   

This item is not directly related to any stated in Council Goal. 
137

file://///COSFX1/VOL1/SHARE/CITY%20COUNCIL/Council%20Goals/2016-17%20GOALS/2016-17%20COUNCIL%20GOALS.pdf


cc: 

 

138



CITY OF SONOMA 
 

ORDINANCE NO. XX - 2016 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SONOMA  
AMENDING CHAPTER 14.24 (REVIEW, REHABILITATION AND ABATEMENT 

OF EXISTING SEISMICALLY UNSAFE BUILDINGS) OF THE SONOMA 
MUNICIPAL CODE 

 
 

 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SONOMA DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. Chapter 14.24 of the Sonoma Municipal Code is amended to read as follows: 

 
Chapter 14.24 

REVIEW, REHABILITATION AND ABATEMENT OF EXISTING SEISMICALLY UNSAFE 
BUILDINGS 

 
Sections: 
14.24.005    Findings. 
14.24.010    Purpose, scope and application. 
14.24.020    Definitions. 
14.24.030    Preliminary building department review. 
14.24.040    Notice to owner. 
14.24.050    Property owner review. 
14.24.060    Upgrading design – Requirements for continued use of structure. 
14.24.070    Information required on plans. 
14.24.080    Implementation schedule and time extensions. 
14.24.090    Notification of tenants. 
14.24.100    Abatement – Rehabilitation or demolition. 
14.24.110    Appeals. 
14.24.120    Violation – Penalty. 
14.24.130    Severability. 

14.24.005 Findings. 

The city council finds that in order to best protect the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of 
Sonoma, seismic upgrading regulations adopted pursuant to the authority provided in California 
Health and Safety Code Sections 19161 and 19162 should be adopted to reduce the risk of 
death or injury resulting from earthquake hazards in existing masonry wall or concrete wall 
buildings in an economically feasible manner, while preserving the historic character of the 
community. 

14.24.010 Purpose, scope and application. 

A.  Purpose.  The city has experienced and will continue to experience moderate to great 
earthquakes in the future due to its proximity to the Rodgers Creek, Hayward, San Andreas and 
other earthquake faults. Many buildings subject to severe earthquake hazards continue to be a 
serious threat to the life and safety of people who live and work in the community in the event of 
an earthquake. The primary goal of this chapter is to provide construction regulations designed 
to reduce the risk of death or injury resulting from earthquake hazards in existing masonry or 
concrete buildings in an economically feasible manner, while preserving the historic character of 
the community. 

139



B.  Scope.  This chapter provides procedures for the systematic review and reconstruction of 
existing masonry and concrete wall buildings within the city to improve their safety in the event 
of an earthquake.  

1. This chapter shall apply to: 

a. All buildings or portions of buildings constructed with unreinforced masonry walls; 

b. The diaphragms and connections of diaphragms of all buildings constructed of 
concrete or reinforced masonry walls constructed or being constructed prior to 
September 24, 1973. Required seismic upgrading of concrete and reinforced masonry 
buildings may be limited to the review, analysis, design, and upgrading of the 
diaphragms and diaphragm connections of the building pursuant to Section 
14.24.060.D. 

2. The requirements of this chapter shall not apply to: 

a. Public schools; 

b. Hospitals; 

c. State-owned buildings; 

d. Detached one- and two-family dwellings. 

This chapter does not require alteration of existing electrical, plumbing or mechanical systems 
unless such conditions or defects exist to the extent that the life, health, property or safety of the 
public or its occupants are endangered. 

C.  Application to Qualified Historical Buildings or Properties.  Qualified historical buildings or 
properties shall be upgraded in accordance with the California Historical Building Code and 
applicable sections of the regular code. The design and upgrading provisions of the regular 
code may be used in conjunction with the California Historical Building Code as a method of 
complying with the minimum requirements of this chapter.  

14.24.020 Definitions. 

For the purposes of this chapter, certain terms, phrases, words and their derivatives shall be 
construed as specified in this section or as otherwise specified in the applicable sections of the 
California Building Code, the California Existing Building Code, the California Fire Code, the 
Sonoma Municipal Code and the California Historical Building Code and their appendices 
thereto, where applicable and as adopted by the city council. Where terms are not defined, they 
shall have their ordinary accepted meanings within the context with which they are used. Where 
definitions vary or conflict, the building official shall determine which definition applies. 

A.  “Architect” means a person who is licensed to practice architecture in this state. 

B.  “Qualified historical building or property” shall have the same meaning as defined in the 
California Historical Building Code. 

C.  “Engineer” as used in this chapter means any professional, civil or structural engineer who is 
licensed or registered to practice engineering in this state. 

D.  “Regular code” shall have the same meaning as defined in the California Historical Building 
Code. 

E.  “Upgrading” means all work necessary to comply with the requirements of this chapter. 

F.  “Unreinforced masonry building” means any building or structure containing walls 
constructed wholly or partly with unreinforced masonry walls. 

140



G.  “Unreinforced masonry wall”  shall have the same meaning as defined in Appendix Chapter 
A1 of the California Existing Building Code. 

14.24.030 Preliminary building department review. 

Buildings within the scope of this chapter constructed or being constructed prior to September 
24, 1973, shall be subject to a preliminary review by the building official to determine the 
general structural characteristics, the relative safety of the building, and its general compliance 
with the structural requirements of the California Existing Building Code, as adopted and 
amended by the city council. If the structure is determined to so comply with the minimum 
requirements, it shall be exempt from the requirements of this chapter. If the building official 
determines that the structure does not comply, the property owner shall cause the building to be 
further reviewed in accordance with the provisions of Section 14.24.050. 

A.  The scope of the preliminary review by the building official or his authorized representative 
may include, but shall not be limited to, the following: 

1. Location by street address and assessor’s parcel number; 

2. Type of occupancy and approximate square footage; 

3. Type of construction and foundations, and type of material used in construction (where 
observable); 

4. Approximate age of construction; photos of the building exterior; construction drawings (if 
available); 

5. Quality of maintenance, cracks and cleanliness; evidence of leaks, foundation settlement, 
sagging floors or rusting metal and rotting wood; general deterioration of any other building 
material used (where observable); 

6. Building type and occupancy classification of the structure pursuant to the California 
Building Code; 

7. General adequacy of exiting system; 

8. Type and adequacy of wall and parapet anchorage (where observable); 

9. Type and likely adequacy of horizontal diaphragms and wall bracing (where observable); 

10. Type of interior partitions (where observable). 

B.  For the purpose of determining compliance with this chapter, the building official may rely on 
the information provided in items 1 through 10 of paragraph A above and shall not be required 
to provide extensive tests in connection with the preliminary review. 

14.24.040 Notice to owner. 

A.  Notice to Correct Deficiencies.  For each building found to not be in compliance with the 
requirements of Section 14.24.060, the building official shall prepare a notice to owner to correct 
deficiencies. The notice to correct deficiencies shall include the following: 

1. A statement to the effect that the structure has been reviewed and appears to be of the 
type which is prone to significant damage, including collapse, in a moderate to major 
earthquake; 

2. The determination of noncompliance with the requirements of Section 14.24.060; 

3. Where applicable, the findings on which the determination that the building or structure 
does not comply is based; 

4. The time schedule for abatement must be commenced and completed; 

141



5. A statement that the property owner shall cause the structure to be further reviewed as 
provided in Section 14.24.050; 

6. A statement that the owner is required to provide a copy of the notice to correct 
deficiencies to the tenant or tenants of the structure in accordance with Section 14.24.090. 

B. Recordation.  At the time that the aforementioned notice is served, the building official may 
file with the office of the county recorder a certificate stating that the subject building is within 
the scope of this chapter. The certificate shall also state that the owner thereof has been 
ordered to review, analyze and upgrade the building in accordance with this chapter.  

14.24.050 Property owner review. 

Upon notice by the building official to the property owner to correct deficiencies, the property 
owner shall require an engineer or architect to review and prepare an upgrading design for the 
subject building or structure within the time limits set forth in Section 14.24.080.  

14.24.060 Upgrading design – Requirements for continued use of structure. 

A. The required upgrading design shall be prepared by a California registered architect, 
structural engineer or civil engineer specializing in structural work and shall be designed in 
accordance with the provisions of the California Existing Building Code, including Appendix 
Chapter A1, or if applicable, the California Historical Building Code as adopted by the city;  

B. Compliance is required with the fire and exiting requirements of the California Existing 
Building Code, the California Fire Code and, where applicable, the California Historical Building 
Code as such codes are amended and adopted by the city council. Requirements concerning 
egress, corridors, enclosed stairways, fire sprinkler systems, fire separations, fire protection and 
panic hardware shall be addressed. Alternative methods of fire protection, including but not 
limited to fire sprinkler systems and smoke detection systems, may be approved by the fire 
marshal and the building official; 

C. Existing electrical, plumbing, mechanical and other elements or nonstructural portions of the 
building which are found by the fire marshal or the building official to be dangerous to the extent 
that the life, health, property or safety of the public or its occupants are endangered shall be 
upgraded or removed in accordance with the regular code.  

D. Chords, horizontal diaphragms, connections of existing diaphragms to vertical elements and 
connection of collectors to existing diaphragms and new or existing vertical elements in 
structures shall be provided in accordance with the regular code. 

14.24.070 Information required on plans. 

The review and upgrading design prepared by the engineer or architect shall be submitted to 
the building official and shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

A. Location by street address and assessor’s parcel number; 

B. Type of occupancy, use of the building and accurate dimensions; 

C. Type of construction, type of foundation, and material used in construction. Field and 
laboratory tests as determined necessary by the building official, the architect or the engineer 
shall include but not be limited to the drilling of inspection holes, the determination of the 
strength and quality of materials, and a general description of how these materials are 
integrated within the structure; 

D. Comprehensive review of the adequacy and performance of the foundation; 

142



E. Complete vertical load resume, analysis or estimate based on typical bays and details of all 
critical areas; 

F. Investigation, review, analysis and rehabilitation design for building elements including, but 
not limited to the following: 

1. The ability of the unreinforced masonry walls to resist normal and in-plane seismic forces; 

2. The anchorage and stability of exterior parapets and ornamentation; 

3. The anchorage of unreinforced masonry, reinforced masonry and reinforced concrete 
walls to the floors and roof diaphragm; 

4. The development of a complete bracing system to resist earthquake forces; 

5. The examination for adequacy of mortar, masonry, walls, parapets, diaphragms, shear 
walls, bracing, ornamentation, ceilings, lights, stairs, interior partitions, diaphragm chords, 
ties and connections for a complete and adequate load path; 

G. Verification of elements of preliminary building department review; 

H. Such plans or sketches, as necessary, to describe building strengths and deficiencies; 

I. Such other information or testing as required by the architect, engineer or building official; 

J. Calculations, plans and specifications to show compliance with the requirements of this 
chapter; 

K. Exceptions and/or alternatives to the specific items required by this subsection may be 
authorized by the building official upon review of a written request from the engineer or 
architect. Exceptions may only be granted when it can be demonstrated that the specific item or 
items are unnecessary to provide information available by other equivalent means; 

L. Archaeological report and recommendations shall be provided by the owner when determined 
necessary by the building official or city planner due to proposed significant excavations on 
known sites of historic significance.  

14.24.080 Implementation schedule and time extensions. 

A. Implementation Schedule. 

1. An upgrading design prepared by an engineer or architect must be submitted to the 
building official for approval within two (2) years of the date of the notice to owner to correct 
deficiencies. 

2. Complete upgrading shall be completed within five (5) years of the date of the notice to 
owner to correct deficiencies unless otherwise specified in a previously recorded notice to 
owner to correct deficiencies. 

B. Time Extensions. 

1. When it is demonstrated that legitimate circumstances have prevented the work 
described herein from being performed, the building official may extend the time required for 
preparation of upgrading design or completion of required upgrading work for a period of up 
to one year. Said circumstances and a commitment to complete the required work by a 
specified date shall be provided in writing to the building official by the owner prior to 
granting of any extension. 

2. In addition to the time extension provided in subsection B.1 of this section, any person 
having record title, equitable or legal interest in the subject building may request, before the 
city council, an extension of the time limits set forth herein. The city council may, at its sole 

143



discretion, extend the time required for preparation of upgrading design or completion of 
required upgrading work for any period deemed reasonable provided the following 
conditions are first met: 

a. The circumstances dictating the need for a time extension and a commitment to 
complete the required work by a specified date shall be provided in writing to the city 
council by the owner. 

b. The property owner shall agree in writing to immediately vacate the building without 
further notice or administrative appeal on the day following the extended required 
completion date, unless final inspection approval of all required upgrading work has 
otherwise been granted by the building department. 

14.24.090 Notification of tenants. 

Upon receipt of notice to correct deficiencies, the building owner shall notify all current and 
subsequent tenants, in writing, that a review of the building has been performed and that said 
building may be structurally hazardous in the event of an earthquake.  

14.24.100 Abatement – Rehabilitation or demolition. 

Buildings subject to the requirements of this chapter that do not meet the requirements of this 
chapter shall be abated by rehabilitation, repair or demolition in accordance with the provisions 
of this chapter. 

A. Rehabilitation.  Qualified historical structures or properties, when rehabilitated, remodeled, 
repaired or upgraded, shall comply with the provisions of the California Historical Building Code.  
All other rehabilitated, remodeled, repaired or upgraded, buildings shall meet or exceed the 
requirements of Section 14.24.060 herein and the regular codes together with their adopted 
appendices where applicable and as adopted by the city council. 

B. Demolition.  Buildings subject to the requirements of this chapter which do not meet the 
requirements of this chapter may be abated by demolition. Owners of buildings located within 
the historic overlay district must receive approval from the design review and historic 
preservation commission prior to obtaining a demolition permit to demolish the structure. Prior to 
obtaining a demolition permit for the demolition of a qualified historical building or property, the 
proposed building demolition shall be reviewed by the city’s environmental review committee 
and shall comply with the guidelines of the California Environmental Quality Act and the 
requirements of this chapter. 

C. Structures or portions thereof, hazards and dangerous conditions subject to the requirements 
of this chapter which are not abated within the time limits set forth in Section 14.24.080 shall be 
considered a public nuisance and an unsafe building and shall be vacated and/or abated in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 14.10.010 and/or Chapter 14.30 of the Sonoma 
Municipal Code, as determined to be applicable by the building official. In addition to any other 
remedy provided herein, the city council may cause any building not abated within the time 
limits set forth in Section 14.24.080 to be vacated, strengthened, repaired, rehabilitated, 
remodeled, demolished or upgraded in accordance with the provisions of this chapter and place 
a special assessment on the property for all costs incurred in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 14.10.010 and and/or Chapter 14.30 of the Sonoma Municipal Code.  

14.24.110 Appeals. 

Appeals of orders, decisions or determinations made by the building official in carrying out the 
provisions of this chapter shall be made and filed in accordance with Chapter 1.24 of the 
Sonoma Municipal Code.  Appeals of orders, decisions or determinations made by the building 
official in carrying out the provisions of the regular codes shall be made and filed in accordance 

144



with the appeal requirements of Section 14.10.010 (Administrative provisions) of the Sonoma 
Municipal Code. Appeals of orders, decisions or determinations made by the building official in 
carrying out the provisions of the California Historical Building Code shall be made and filed in 
accordance with the appeal requirements of the California Historical Building Code. 

 14.24.120 Violation – Penalty. 

Any person, firm or corporation who violates a provision of this chapter, or fails to comply with 
any of the requirements thereof, or allows a violation to continue without taking reasonable 
means to cure or abate the same after having been ordered to do so, or who erects, constructs, 
alters or repairs a building or structure in violation of the approved construction documents or 
directive of the building official, or of a permit or certificate issued under the provisions of this 
chapter, is punishable as provided by Sonoma Municipal Code Section 1.12.010. Each violation 
shall constitute a separate offense for each and every day such person, firm or corporation 
violates or allows a violation to continue without taking reasonable means to cure or abate the 
same after having been ordered to do so. A violation of this section or any other section of this 
chapter shall be deemed a public nuisance and is subject to nuisance abatement proceedings 
as provided by Sonoma Municipal Code Section 1.12.010.  

14.24.130 Severability. 

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or word of this chapter is for any reason 
held to be invalid and/or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall 
not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this chapter. The city council hereby declares 
that it would have passed and adopted this chapter and each of the provisions thereof 
irrespective of the fact that any one or more of said provisions be declared invalid and/or 
unconstitutional.  

SECTION 2.   CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 
The City Council finds that the adoption of this ordinance is exempt from the California 
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) under California Code of Regulations, Title 14 Section 
15061(b)(3), in that it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the adoption of 
this ordinance will have a significant effect on the environment.  The ordinance adopts standard 
codes that will be in effect pursuant to state law and sets requirements for compliance.  The 
adoption of this ordinance does not entitle new development or any changes to the physical 
environment. 

 

SECTION 3.   EFFECTIVE DATE 

 This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after its adoption by the City Council or on 
January 1, 2017, whichever is later. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Sonoma this 7th day 
of November, 2016.  
 

___________________________ 
Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebekah Barr, City Clerk 

State of California   ) 
County of Sonoma ) 

145



City of Sonoma ) 
 
I, Rebekah Barr, City Clerk of the City of Sonoma, do hereby certify that the foregoing ordinance was 
adopted on November 7, 2017 by the following vote: 
 
 AYES:   
 NOES:   
 ABSENT:  
             
       ____________________________ 
       Rebekah Barr, City Clerk 
 

 146



CITY OF SONOMA 
 

ORDINANCE NO. XX - 2016 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SONOMA  
AMENDING CHAPTER 14.24 (REVIEW, REHABILITATION AND ABATEMENT 

OF EXISTING SEISMICALLY UNSAFE BUILDINGS) OF THE SONOMA 
MUNICIPAL CODE 

 
 

 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SONOMA DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. Chapter 14.24 of the Sonoma Municipal Code is amended to read as follows: 

 
Chapter 14.24 

REVIEW, REHABILITATION AND ABATEMENT OF EXISTING SEISMICALLY UNSAFE 
BUILDINGS 

Sections: 
14.24.005    Findings. 

14.24.010    Purpose, scope and application. 

14.24.020    Definitions. 

14.24.030    Preliminary building department review. 

14.24.040    Notice to owner. 

14.24.050    Property owner review. 

14.24.060    Upgrading design – Requirements for continued use of structure. 

14.24.070    Information required on plans. 

14.24.080    Implementation schedule and time extensions. 

14.24.090    Notification of tenants. 

14.24.100    Abatement – Rehabilitation or demolition. 

14.24.110    Appeals. 

14.24.120    Violation – Penalty. 

14.24.130    Severability. 

14.24.005 Findings. 

The city council finds that in order to best protect the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of 

Sonoma, construction seismic upgrading regulations adopted pursuant to the authority provided 

in California Health and Safety Code Sections 19161 and 19162 (a) should be provided adopted 

to reduce the risk of death or injury resulting from earthquake hazards in existing masonry wall 

or concrete wall buildings in an economically feasible manner, while preserving the historic 

character of the community. 

147



14.24.010 Purpose, scope and application. 

A.  Purpose.  The city has experienced and will continue to experience moderate to great 

earthquakes in the future due to its proximity to the Rodgers Creek, Hayward and, San Andreas 

and other earthquake faults. Many buildings subject to severe earthquake hazards continue to 

be a serious threat to the life and safety of people who live and work in the community in the 

event of an earthquake. The primary goal of this chapter is to provide alternative construction 

regulations designed to reduce the risk of death or injury resulting from earthquake hazards in 

existing masonry or concrete buildings in an economically feasible manner, while preserving the 

historic character of the community. 

B.  Scope.  This chapter provides procedures for the systematic review and reconstruction of 

existing masonry and concrete wall buildings within the city to improve their safety in the event 

of an earthquake.  

1. This chapter shall apply to: 

a. All buildings or portions of buildings constructed with unreinforced masonry walls; 

b. The diaphragms and connections of diaphragms of all buildings constructed of 

concrete or reinforced masonry walls constructed or being constructed prior to 

September 24, 1973. Required seismic upgrading of concrete and reinforced masonry 

buildings may be limited to the review, analysis, design, and upgrading of the 

diaphragms and diaphragm connections of the building pursuant to SMC Section 

14.24.060.(D). 

2. The requirements of this chapter shall not apply to: 

a. Public schools; 

b. Hospitals; 

c. State-owned buildings; 

d. Detached one- and two-family dwellings. 

This chapter does not require alteration of existing electrical, plumbing or mechanical systems 

unless such conditions or defects exist to the extent that the life, health, property or safety of the 

public or its occupants are endangered. 

C.  Application to Designated Qualified Historical Buildings or Properties.  Designated Qualified 

historical buildings or properties shall be upgraded in accordance with the California Historical 

148



Building Code and applicable sections of the regular code. The design and upgrading provisions 

of the regular code may be used in conjunction with this chapter may be used in conjunction 

with the California Historical Building Code as a method of complying with the minimum 

requirements of this chapter.  

14.24.020 Definitions. 

For the purposes of this chapter, certain terms, phrases, words and their derivatives shall be 

construed as specified in this section or as otherwise specified in the applicable sections of the 

California Building Code, the California Existing Building Code, the California Fire Code, the 

Uniform Code for the Abatement of Dangerous Buildingsthe Sonoma Municipal Code,  and the 

California Historical Building Code and their appendices thereto, , where applicable and as 

adopted by reference in this code, or Chapter 19.42 SMCthe city council. Where terms are not 

defined, they shall have their ordinary accepted meanings within the context with which they are 

used. Where definitions vary or conflict, the building official shall determine which definition 

applies. 

A.  “Architect” means a person who is licensed to practice architecture in this state. 

B.  “Designated Qualified historical building or property” shall have the same meaning [asit is 

defined in the California Historical Building Code]..].means any building, structure or collection 

of structures deemed of importance to the history, architecture, or culture of an area by an 

appropriate local, state, or federal governmental jurisdiction. This shall include structures on 

existing or future national, state or local historical registers or official inventories of historical or 

architecturally significant sites, places, historic districts, or landmarks. 

C.  “Engineer” as used in this chapter means any professional, civil or structural engineer who is 

licensed or registered to practice engineering in this state. 

D.  “Prevailing Regular code” shall have the same meaning [asit is defined in the California 

Historical Building Code.] means the “regular building regulations” as that term is used in 

Section 18954 of the Health and Safety Code, which govern the design and construction of 

nonhistorical buildings within the city of Sonoma. 

E.  “Upgrading” means all work necessary to comply with the requirements of this chapter. 

F.  “Unreinforced masonry building” means any building or structure containing walls 

constructed wholly or partly with unreinforced masonry walls. 

149



G.  “Unreinforced masonry wall”  [shall have the same meaning as it isdefined in Appendix 

Chapter A1 of the California Existing Building Code].is a masonry wall that relies on the tensile 

strength of masonry units, mortar and grout in resisting design loads, and in which the area of 

reinforcement is less than 25 percent of the minimum ratio required by the most recent version 

of the building code adopted by the city for new buildings.  

14.24.030 Preliminary building department review. 

Buildings within the scope of this chapter constructed or being constructed prior to September 

24, 1973, shall be subject to a preliminary review by the building official to determine the 

general structural characteristics, the relative safety of the building, and its general compliance 

with the structural requirements of the California Existing Building Code, as adopted by 

referenceand amended by the city of Sonomacouncil. If the structure is determined to so comply 

with the minimum requirements, it is shall be exempt from the requirements of this chapter. If 

the building official determines that the structure does not comply, the property owner shall 

cause the building to beit shall be  further reviewed by the property owner in accordance with 

the provisions of SMCSection 14.24.050. 

A.  The scope of the preliminary review by the building official or his authorized representative 

may include, but shall not be limited to, the following: 

1. Location by street address and assessor’s parcel number; 

2. Type of occupancy and approximate square footage; 

3. Type of construction and foundations, and type of material used in construction (where 

observable); 

4. Approximate Aage of construction; photos of the building exterior; construction drawings 

(if available); 

5. Quality of maintenance, cracks and cleanliness; evidence of leaks, foundation settlement, 

sagging floors or rusting metal and rotting wood; general deterioration of any other building 

material used (where observable); 

6. General fireBuilding  type and occupancy classification of the structure pursuant to the 

California Building Code; 

7. AGeneral adequacy of exiting system; 

8. Type and strength adequacy of wall and parapet anchorage (where observable); 

150



9. Type and likely adequacy of horizontal diaphragms and wall bracing (where observable); 

10. Type of interior partitions (where observable). 

B.  For the purpose of determining compliance with this chapter, the building official may rely on 

the information provided in subsections items (A)(1) through (10) of this sectionparagraph A 

above and shall not be required to provide extensive tests in connection with the preliminary 

review. 

14.24.040 Notice to owner. 

A.  Notice to Correct Deficiencies.  For each building found to not be not in compliance with the 

requirements of SMCSection 14.24.060, the building official shall prepare a notice to owner to 

correct deficiencies. The notice to correct deficiencies shall include the following: 

1. A statement to the effect that the structure has been reviewed and appears to be of the 

type which is prone to significant damage, including collapse, in a moderate to major 

earthquake; 

2. The determination of noncompliance with the requirements of SMCSection 14.24.060; 

3. Where applicable, the findings on which the determination that the building or structure 

does not comply is based; 

4. The time schedule for abatement must be commenced and completed; 

5. A statement that the property owner shall cause the structure shall to bebe further 

reviewed by the property owner as provided in SMCSection 14.24.050; 

6. A statement that the owner is required to provide a copy of the notice to correct 

deficiencies to the tenant or tenants of the structure in accordance with SMCSection 

14.24.090. 

B. Recordation.  At the time that the aforementioned notice is served, the building official may 

file with the office of the county recorder a certificate stating that the subject building is within 

the scope of this chapter. The certificate shall also state that the owner thereof has been 

ordered to review, analyze and upgrade the building in accordance with this chapter.  

14.24.050 Property owner review. 

Upon notice by the building official to the property owner to correct deficiencies, the property 

owner shall require an engineer or architect to review and prepare an upgrading design for the 

subject building or structure within the time limits set forth in SMCSection 14.24.080.  

151



14.24.060 Upgrading design – Requirements for continued use of structure. 

A. The Rrequired upgrading design shall be designed prepared by a California licensed 

registered architect, structural engineer or civil engineer specializing in structural work work and 

shall be designed in accordance with the provisions of the California Existing Building Code, 

including Appendix Chapter A1, or, if applicable, the California Historical Building Code as 

adopted by the city;  

B. Compliance is required with the fire and panic exiting requirements of Chapter 34 of the 

California Existing Building Code, the California Fire Code and, where applicable, the California 

Historical Building Code as such codes are amended and adopted by the city council. 

Requirements concerning egress, corridors, enclosed stairways, fire sprinkler systems, fire 

separations, fire protection and panic hardware shall be addressed. Alternative methods of fire 

protection, including but not limited to fire sprinkler systems and smoke detection systems, may 

be approved by the fire marshal and the building official; 

C. Existing electrical, plumbing, mechanical and other elements or nonstructural portions of the 

building which are found by the fire marshal or the building official to be dangerous to the extent 

that the life, health, property or safety of the public or its occupants are endangered shall be 

upgraded or removed in accordance with prevailingthe regular code. The Uniform Code for the 

Abatement of Dangerous Buildings shall be used in determining whether dangerous conditions 

exist.  

D. Chords, horizontal diaphragms, connections of existing diaphragms to vertical elements and 

connection of collectors to existing diaphragms and new or existing vertical elements in 

structures shall be provided in accordance with the regular code. 

14.24.070 Information required on plans. 

The review and upgrading design prepared by the engineer or architect shall be submitted to 

the building official and shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

A. Location by street address and assessor’s parcel number; 

B. Type of occupancy, use of the building and accurate dimensions; 

C. Type of construction, type of foundation, and material used in construction. Field and 

laboratory tests as determined necessary by the building official, the architect or the engineer 

shall include but not be limited to the drilling of inspection holes, the determination of the 

152



strength and quality of materials, and a general description of how these materials are 

integrated within the structure; 

D. Comprehensive review of the adequacy and performance of the conditions, maintenance and 

foundation performance; 

E. Complete vertical load resume, analysis or estimate based on typical bays and details of all 

critical areas; 

F. Investigation, review and , analysis and rehabilitation design of for building elements 

including, but not limited to the following: 

1. The ability of the unreinforced masonry walls to resist normal and in-plane seismic forces; 

2. The anchorage and stability of exterior parapets and ornamentation; 

3. The anchorage of unreinforced masonry, reinforced masonry and reinforced concrete 

walls to the floors and roof diaphragm; 

4. The development of a complete bracing system to resist earthquake forces; 

5. The examination for adequacy of , mmortar, masonry, walls, parapets, diaphragms, shear 

walls, bracing, attachments and ornamentation, ceilings, lights, stairs, type and resistance of 

interior partitions, presence and adequacy of diaphragm chords, and ties and connections 

for a complete and adequate load path; 

G. Verification of elements of preliminary building department review; 

H. Such plans or sketches, as necessary, to describe building strengths and deficiencies; 

I. Such other information or testing as required by the architect, engineer or building official; 

J. Calculations, plans and specifications to show compliance with the requirements of this 

chapter; 

K. Exceptions and/or alternatives to the specific items required by this subsection may be 

authorized by the building official upon review of a written request from the engineer or 

architect. Exceptions may only be granted when it can be demonstrated that the specific item or 

items are unnecessary to provide information available by other equivalent means; 

L. Archaeological report and recommendations shall be provided by the owner when determined 

necessary by the building official or city planner due to proposed significant excavations on 

known sites of historic significance.  

153



14.24.080 Implementation schedule and time extensions. 

A. Implementation Schedule. 

1. An upgrading design prepared by an engineer or architect must be submitted to the 

building official for approval within two (2) years of the date of the notice to owner to correct 

deficiencies. 

2. Complete upgrading shall be completed within five (5) years of the date of the notice to 

owner to correct deficiencies unless otherwise specified in a previously recorded notice to 

owner to correct deficiencies. 

B. Time Extensions. 

1. When it is demonstrated that legitimate circumstances have prevented the work 

described herein from being performed, the building official may extend the time required for 

preparation of upgrading design or completion of required upgrading work for a period of up 

to one year. Said circumstances and a commitment to complete the required work by a 

specified date shall be provided in writing to the building official by the owner prior to 

granting of any extension. 

2. In addition to the time extension provided in subsection (B)(.1) of this section, any person 

having record title, equitable or legal interest in the subject building may request, before the 

city council, an extension of the time limits set forth herein. The city council may, at its sole 

discretion, extend the time required for preparation of upgrading design or completion of 

required upgrading work for any period deemed reasonable provided the following 

conditions are first met: 

a. The circumstances dictating the need for a time extension and a commitment to 

complete the required work by a specified date shall be provided in writing to the city 

council by the owner. 

b. The property owner shall agree in writing to immediately vacate the building without 

further notice or administrative appeal on the day following the extended required 

completion date, unless final inspection approval of all required upgrading work has 

otherwise been granted by the building department. 

154



14.24.090 Notification of tenants. 

Upon receipt of notice to correct deficiencies, the building owner shall notify all current and 

subsequent tenants, in writing, that a review of the building has been performed and that said 

building may be structurally hazardous in the event of an earthquake.  

14.24.100 Abatement – Rehabilitation or demolition. 

Buildings subject to the requirements of this chapter which that do not meet the requirements of 

this chapter shall be abated by rehabilitation, repair or demolition in accordance with the 

provisions of this chapter. 

A. Rehabilitation.  Designated Qualified historical structures or properties, when rehabilitated, 

remodeled, repaired or upgraded, shall comply with the provisions of the California Historical 

Building Code.  All other rehabilitated, remodeled, repaired or upgraded, buildings shall meet or 

exceed the requirements of Section 14.24.060 herein and the regular codes together with their 

adopted appendices where applicable and as adopted by the city council. 

B. Demolition.  Buildings subject to the requirements of this chapter which do not meet the 

requirements of this chapter may be abated by demolition. Owners of buildings located within 

the historic overlay district must receive approval from the design review and historic 

preservation commission prior to obtaining a demolition permit to demolish the structure. Prior to 

obtaining a demolition permit for the demolition of a designated historical structurequalified 

historical building or property, the proposed building demolition shall be reviewed by the city’s 

environmental review committee and shall comply with the guidelines of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and the requirements of this codechapter. 

C. Substandard buildingsStructures or portions thereof, hazards and dangerous conditions 

subject to the requirements of this chapter which are not abated within the time limits set forth in 

SMC Section 14.24.080 shall be considered a public nuisance and a dangerous an unsafe 

building and shall be vacated and/or abated in accordance with the provisions of the Uniform 

Code for the Abatement of Dangerous Buildings and Section 14.10.010 and/or Chapter 14.30 of 

the Sonoma Municipal Code, as determined to be applicable by the building officialSMC. In 

addition to any other remedy provided herein, the city council may cause any building not 

abated within the time limits set forth in SMCSection 14.24.080 to be vacated, strengthened, 

repaired, rehabilitated, remodeled, demolished or upgraded in accordance with the provisions of 

this chapter and place a special assessmentlien on the property for all costs incurred in 

155



accordance with the provisions of Section 14.10.010 andthe Uniform Code for the Abatement of 

Dangerous Buildings and/or Chapter 14.30 SMCof the Sonoma Municipal Code.  

14.24.110 Appeals. 

Appeals of orders, decisions or determinations made by the building official in carrying out the 

provisions of this chapter shall be made and filed in accordance with Chapter 1.24 of the 

Sonoma Municipal Code.  Appeals of orders, decisions or determinations made by the building 

official in carrying out the provisions of the regular codes shall be made and filed in accordance 

with the appeal requirements of Section 14.10.010 (Administrative provisions) of the Sonoma 

Municipal Code. Appeals of orders, decisions or determinations made by the building official in 

carrying out the provisions of the California Historical Building Code shall be made and filed in 

accordance with the appeal requirements of the California Historical Building Code. 

 Any person having record title, equitable or legal interest in the subject building may appeal any 

notice, order, decision, determination or action made in the administration of this chapter to the 

city council; provided, that the appeal is made in writing and filed with the building official within 

60 days from the date of service of said notice, order, decision, determination or action by the 

building official. However, if the building or structure is in such a condition as to make it 

immediately dangerous to the life, limb, property or safety of the public or adjacent property and 

is ordered vacated and is properly posted, such appeal shall be filed within 10 days from the 

date of service of this notice and order. Only one subject of appeal is allowed per building, 

provided due process is met. 

A. The written appeal shall contain the following: 

1. A heading in the words: “To the City Council of the City of Sonoma”; 

2. The names of the appellants named in the appeal; 

3. A brief statement setting forth the legal interest of each of the appellants in the land 

and/or building involved; 

4. A brief statement in ordinary and concise language of the specific order or action 

protested, together with any material facts claimed to support the contentions of the 

appellants; 

5. A brief statement in ordinary and concise language of the relief sought and the reasons 

why it is claimed the protested order or action should be reversed, modified or otherwise set 

aside; 

156



6. The submittal of any documents, sworn statements or other written material claimed to 

have value on the contentions made in support of the appeal; 

7. The signatures of all parties named as appellants and their mailing addresses; 

8. The verification (by declaration under penalty of perjury) of at least one appellant as to 

the truth of the matters stated in the appeal. 

B. Upon receipt of an appeal filed pursuant to the above requirements, the building official shall 

present it at the next regular meeting of the city council. Failure to appeal will constitute a waiver 

of all rights to an administrative hearing and determination of the matter.  

14.24.120 Violation – Penalty. 

Any person, firm or corporation who violates a provision of this chapter, or fails to comply with 

any of the requirements thereof, or allows a violation to continue without taking reasonable 

means to cure or abate the same after having been ordered to do so, or who erects, constructs, 

alters or repairs a building or structure in violation of the approved construction documents or 

directive of the building official, or of a permit or certificate issued under the provisions of this 

codechapter, is punishable as provided by Sonoma Municipal Code Section SMC 1.12.010. 

Each violation shall constitute a separate offense for each and every day such person, firm or 

corporation violates or allows a violation to continue without taking reasonable means to cure or 

abate the same after having been ordered to do so. A violation of this section or any other 

section of this chapter shall be deemed a public nuisance and is subject to nuisance abatement 

proceedings as provided by Sonoma Municipal Code SectionSMC 1.12.010.  

14.24.130 Severability. 

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or word of this chapter is for any reason 

held to be invalid and/or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall 

not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this chapter. The city council hereby declares 

that it would have passed and adopted this chapter and each of the provisions thereof 

irrespective of the fact that any one or more of said provisions be declared invalid and/or 

unconstitutional.  

SECTION 2.   CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 

The City Council finds that the adoption of this ordinance is exempt from the California 

Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) under California Code of Regulations, Title 14 Section 

15061(b)(3), in that it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the adoption of 

157



this ordinance will have a significant effect on the environment.  The ordinance adopts standard 

codes that will be in effect pursuant to state law and sets requirements for compliance.  The 

adoption of this ordinance does not entitle new development or any changes to the physical 

environment. 

 

SECTION 3.   EFFECTIVE DATE 

 This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after its adoption by the City Council 
or on January 1, 2017, whichever is later. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Sonoma this 7th day 
of November, 2016.  
 

___________________________ 
Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebekah Barr, City Clerk 

State of California   ) 
County of Sonoma ) 
City of Sonoma ) 
 
I, Rebekah Barr, City Clerk of the City of Sonoma, do hereby certify that the foregoing ordinance 
was adopted on November 7, 2017 by the following vote: 
 
 AYES:   
 NOES:   
 ABSENT:  
             
       ____________________________ 
       Rebekah Barr, City Clerk 

 

 158



 

 

City of Sonoma 

City Council 

Agenda Item Summary 

 
City Council Agenda Item: 

 
Meeting Date: 

 
7D 
 
10/17/2016 

 

Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact  

Carol E. Giovanatto, City Manager 

Agenda Item Title 

Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action to  (1) Accept the First Quarter Progress Report on 
the 2016-17 City Council Goals and (2) Provide Direction on Climate Action 2020 Target Goals  

Summary 

On May 23rd the City Council held a goal-setting work study session facilitated by the City Manager 
during which they each discussed what they envisioned for the upcoming year.  The seven GOALS 
include 43 key elements which define the work areas. This Progress Report demonstrates that staff 
remains focused on accomplishing the Goals as set forth by the City Council.   The 2016-17 seven major 
categories include: 

 City Character 
 Fiscal Management 
 Housing 
 Infrastructure 
 Policy & Leadership 
 Public Service  & Community Resources 
 Water 

 

In the first quarter, progress has been made on 25 of the key elements.   

CLIMATE ACTION 2020 TARGET GOAL:  The City has continued involvement with the Regional Climate 
Protection Authority (RCPA) relative to Climate Policies and the Climate Action 2020 Plan (CAP).  Due 
to pending litigation, the Council negated to adopt the plan until the litigation was settled.  This action 
does not preclude the City from independently working towards addressing the measures identified in 
the Plan.  Council goals under POLICY & LEADERSHIP state:  Expand focus on elements of the Climate 
2020 Plan Targets; lead by example with the Sonoma community.  The Community Services & 
Environment Commission has recently undertaken review of the measures and will be submitting 
comments and recommendations to the Council on potential actions they feel appropriate for the City to 
pursue.  Mayor Gallian has also expressed (particularly through her individual listing of Council goals) a 
focus on Climate Action.  Staff is seeking Council’s direction on whether to (1) initiate work on all the 
measures, (2) prioritize the CAP measures or (3) place the measures on hold until the CAP litigation is 
resolved.  From staff’s perspective, Council could address this issue with the following suggested 
options: 

1)  Initiate work on all Group 1 measures:  Per the CAP the list of 13 measures (Group 1) are slated to 
begin in 2016. With limited time remaining in 2016 this may not occur although some actions have been 
taken such as the conversion of the street lights to LED and the Sonoma Clean Power Evergreen 
Program.  At this time that current staffing levels cannot meet the demands of adding this level of focus 
and required data collection to their existing workload. 

2)  Prioritize the CAP measures:  While it would be difficult for existing staff to undertake work on all 13 
measures, there are opportunities to begin addressing some of the measures contained in the CAP.  The 
first step would be to identify and prioritize what might be considered the best and most essential of the 
measures.  This discussion took place at the CSEC meeting held on October12th (outcome of the 159



meeting was not available at time of Council agenda preparation) and a recommendation is expected to 
be forthcoming to Council.  Council should also be aware that some of the measures may impact 
business and residential construction requirements which may increase construction costs.  There may 
also be options for the City to engage a college intern or outside assistance for the data collection.  
Council could direct staff to prepare an outline of the impacts of each measure and report back at a future 
Council meeting for further discussion and direction. 

(3)  Place the measures on hold until the CAP litigation is resolved:  Council may want to place the 
measures on hold at this time until the litigation issue is resolved.  It is staffs understanding that RCPA 
may have grants and staff available to assist the City in implementing its measures once it is done.   

Climate Action and the impacts are an important issue to the City, region and the world and must be 
addressed in a meaningful way.  The goals and measures need to be completed in coordination with 
staff’s current project workload, daily tasks and other pressing needs.  It is likely that some form of outside 
assistance will be necessary.  Staff’s approach would be to first define each measure with respect to 
implementation and the steps that will be necessary to move the measure to completion.  By creating 
that definition, Council will be better prepared to understand and address what the City is undertaking 
and how to establish realistic completion dates. 

Recommended Council Action 

Receive status report on Council GOALS; provide possible direction to staff on Climate 2020 target 
goals. 

Alternative Actions 

N/A 

Financial Impact 

N/A 

Environmental Review Status 

   Environmental Impact Report    Approved/Certified 
   Negative Declaration    No Action Required 
   Exempt    Action Requested 
   Not Applicable  

Attachments: 

1. 2016-17 Council Goals “Progress Report” 
2. Climate Action Goals 

 

cc: 

160



COUNCIL GOALS   2016-2017 
PROGRESS REPORT   

July through September 2016 
 

“TO PROVIDE SOUND MUNCIPAL LEADERSHIP IN A MANNER  
THAT EXEMPLIFIES SONOMA’S HISTORIC CHARACTER WHILE  

ENSURING LONGTERM VIABILITY, RESILIENCY AND SUSTAINABILITY” 
 

CITY CHARACTER 
COUNCIL GOAL:  To preserve, promote and celebrate the unique characteristics of Sonoma; 
encourage the incorporation of our history into City, community and business identities; focus 
on fostering a tourism economy while maintaining and strengthening historic values; create a 
sense of place for our residents in a safe, healthy & vibrant community; preserve Sonoma as a 
“hometown”. 
 
Key Elements for City Character  

1. Update vision statement including providing for 
community engagement    

 

2. Foster more connectivity with the Sonoma 
Valley Visitors Bureau marketing program to 
insure that a nexus is established between 
tourism, hometown character and residents of 
the community 

SVVB is working to be more inclusive; Council 
& staff attended brand marketing session to 
oversee the content of the new branding. 

3. Market Sonoma not only as a destination but as 
a great place to work, raise families and work 
towards creating a more diverse community 
 

Working with SVVB on expanding brand 
marketing.  Modifying Chamber programs to 
tailor business programs to hometown. 

 

FISCAL MANAGEMENT 
COUNCIL GOAL:  Maintain high level fiscal accountability that ensures short and long-term 
sustainability of City’s financial position; provide for effective and efficient management of local 
taxpayers’ dollars; apply prudent internal policies and practices to assure the most cost-
effective methods are utilized; be wise with our resources. 
 
Key Elements for Fiscal Management  

1. Adopt Balanced City Budget & Capital 
Improvement Plan with conservative 
assumptions that maintains a stable General 
Fund reserve level 

Budget & CIP adopted on June 27th; 
maintained conservative assumptions without 
drawdown from reserves. 

2. Identify long-term strategy to address the 
Cemetery Fund deficit; explore alternative 

 

161



revenue options and programs including review 
of the prior cemetery master plan 

3. Continue to seek opportunities for new revenue 
sources and/or grant revenues 

This is an on-going task for staff in all 
departments. 
Awarded an $80K grant to assess traffic safety 
at all major intersections around the City. 

4. Review funding of  Tier 1 non-profits using 
Community Grant Funds and/or other revenue 
sources 

 

 

HOUSING 
COUNCIL GOAL:  To analyze policy and programmatic tools suggested by the City’s Housing 
Element; implement strategies to facilitate creation of affordable rental and workforce 
housing; sustain and increase opportunities to continue the programs currently in place to 
maintain current affordable housing stock. 
 
Key Elements for Housing  

1. Develop housing programs while protecting 
the Urban Growth Boundary 
 Options for rent stabilization 
 Encourage alternative rental housing  
 Continue to support affordable workforce 

and senior housing 

Programs currently in development between 
Council & Planning Commission: 

 Nexus study for housing impact fee. 

 Update of inclusionary ordinance 
 

2. Develop and implement policy, Development 
Code and Zoning changes that encourage or 
direct developers to build smaller units and 
market rate rental housing. 
 Appoint ad hoc committee (including 

Councilmembers, Planning 
Commissioners, local developers and 
others with industry knowledge) 

Programs currently in development between 
Council & Planning Commission: 

 Development of junior second unit 
ordinance. 

 Identification of partnership 
opportunities with the Sonoma Housing 
Land Trust. 

3. Continue to enforce illegal vacation rental 
provisions & review options for limitations on 
future vacation rentals 
 

 Code enforcement & MuniServices are 
working on monitoring websites and 
contacting property owners.   

 Council scheduled to consider an interim 
moratorium on new applications for 
vacation rentals, while changes to the 
regulations are considered. 

4. Track ongoing legislation for affordable 
housing and support legislative efforts 
 

These efforts are ongoing.  Staff has 
submitted letters on behalf of the Council to 
local legislators and the LOCC. 

5. Explore revenue sources and/or partnerships 
to off-set costs of housing programs and to 

The preparation of a nexus study to establish 
a housing impact fee is underway. 

162



establish and sustain an Affordable Housing 
Trust Fund. 

6. Explore options for establishing a resource 
page on City website for Housing related 
assistance programs. 
 Legal Aid of Sonoma County 
 Share Sonoma County 

In progress. Staff is developing a housing 
resources page. 

 

INFRASTRUCTURE 
COUNCIL GOAL:  To provide reliable, safe and effective infrastructure (streets & roads, 
sidewalks, parking and pedestrian safety) throughout the City; maintain the high level of service 
and reliability of City facilities; monitor, mitigate and reduce community impacts related to 
development, infrastructure repair, community events or other outside agencies. 
 
Key Elements for Infrastructure  

1. Transportation:  Review options for 
increasing public transit within Sonoma 
 Connector bus for SMART station in 

Petaluma, bus service to San Francisco, 
County services in Santa Rosa and 
commuting options for single car drivers 
(CAP 2020 Climate Goal) 

 Seek assistance from outside agencies 
SCTA, GGBD, RCPA 

In October, the City Council adopted an 
updated Circulation Element that includes 
policies for enhancing transit in cooperation 
with outside agencies. 

2. Promote walking and bicycle (promote 
bicycle valet at special events) 

City Special Event Policy is being reviewed to 
incorporate bicycle valet parking at events. 

3. Review parking options/striping for taxi-cabs  Council approved placement of 3-minute 
parking at 3 Plaza parking stalls for taxi or 
ridesharing parking only.  To be implemented 
in October 2016. 

4. Upgrade interior of Plaza bathrooms.  
Review policy for maintenance, cleaning and 
hours open for public use   

In planning stage of project to upgrade Plaza 
restrooms in the winter season, upgrading 
lighting, partitions, fixtures, plumbing, hand 
dryers, and painting. 

5. Install a water bottle filling water fountain 
on Plaza 

Water bottle filling water fountain has been 
received, and will be installed near the 
Carnegie Building later in fall 2016. 

6. Prioritize infrastructure needs, don’t overuse 
the Plaza, work on appearance of Plaza and 
streets by engaging Plaza businesses to be 
custodians of their storefront areas (i.e. 
sweeping, collecting litter, etc.) 

 

7. Pursue lease of Casa Grande Parking Lot 
from State Parks for City long-term use 

City staff has met with on-site State Parks 
local representative; letter has been sent 

163



requesting further discussions with District 
Director. 

 

POLICY & LEADERSHIP 
COUNCIL GOAL:  Promote the highest standard of ethics and accountability; respond to County, 
State and Federal legislative issues with a focus on retaining local control; maintain strong 
relationships with institutional partners to maintain economic vitality; promote actions to 
protect agricultural and natural resources from climate change impacts through Climate 2020 
Plan strategies 
 
Key Elements for Policy & Leadership  

1. Expand focus on elements of the Climate 
2020 Plan Targets; lead by example with the 
Sonoma community 
 Encourage more electric vehicles (CAP 

Climate 2020 Goal) 

Currently under review at CSEC; further 
direction to be discussed with City Council. 

2. Promote opportunities to expand the 
installation of Electric Vehicle Charging 
Stations at businesses, shopping centers and 
lodging establishments; include eligibility for 
funding under Business Loan Program 

Update to Business Improvement Loan 
Program to include funding for Electric 
Vehicle Charging Stations. 
Streamlined permitting process will be 
developed for EV Charging Stations by 
September 2017. 

3. Review/update policies for public notices to 
maximize public engagement 

 

4. Establish internal policy to maximize utility 
and effectiveness of City social media; 
expand public communication in using these 
resources. 

 

5. Revisit City staff’s core values, training, 
procedures & policies with a focus on 
efficiencies and becoming more customer 
service accommodation.  Work to streamline 
processes and assist in downsizing 
requirements 

 

6. Create tracking system to monitor training 
for City commission and committee 
members. 

CSEC and Traffic Safety Committee members 
have been given written information on 
duties and responsibilities, including rules of 
order and Brown Act rules. 

7. Continue work with the Sonoma Chamber 
through the Economic Vitality Partnership 
Program to communicate with businesses 

Monthly EVSC meetings; update to Business 
Improvement Loan Program. 

 

PUBLIC SERVICE & COMMUNITY RESOURCES 

164



COUNCIL GOAL:  Provide continued leadership as public officials and residents of the 
community; display the values exemplified through the extensive community-wide 
volunteerism by  participation and actions; promote synergy of local and regional non-profits, 
community youth groups, School District and Sonoma Valley organizations; recognize that local 
agencies and non-profits fill vital roles with services that the City does not provide. 
 
Key Elements for Public Service & Community 
Resources 

 

1. Provide more public education and review 
policies on Smart Growth; create smart 
growth strategies 

 

2. Work with County to address lack of overall 
County resources available and potential long-
range opportunities to share resources with the 
City  

Mayor has initiated discussions with 
Supervisor Gorin. 

3. Review options to provide diverse and affordable 
recreational programs.  Collaborate with other 
agencies and groups to achieve this objective 

 

4. Review options to create an inventory of current 
recreation services  (outsource to local non-
profit organization) 

Initial step by Bella Fanucchi (Senior Project) 
to create Recreation Website. 

5. Take survey (utilizing local groups and senior 
housing to get maximum outreach) of need of 
senior residents.  Host study session on results, 
potential aging in place policies we could adopt 
and possible strategic partnerships with area 
non-profits. 

 

6. Review Community Grant Program and how it 
compares with other donor organizations to 
assure that the City does not duplicate funding 
opportunities. 

 

 

WATER 
COUNCIL GOAL:  Evaluate, develop and implement short and long term strategies to address 
the environmental and financial impacts of drought conditions; strengthen Capital 
infrastructure with a focus on enhancing the City’s local water supply; promote and support the 
value of water conservation to protect local resources. 
 
Key Elements for Water  

1. Discuss a water reserve fund to assist with 
infrastructure upgrades 

 

2. Educate through many nonprofits like Daily Acts 
landscaping and garden best practices for a drought 
tolerant and resilient community 

 

165



3. Conservation awareness/continue to operate as if 
we are in a drought; continue current information 
flow on conservation efforts  

Promoting conservation through the 
Sonoma-Marin Saving Water Partnership 
(SMSWP) ad campaign, including print and 
Spanish radio ads. 

4. Balance water use and new development of 
hotels/businesses/residential housing and 
affordable housing. 

Updated Urban Water Management Plan 
to show adequate water supply conditions, 
including expected development. 

5. Continue to explore options for City uses related to 
recycled water, water banking, grey water uses,   
and storm runoff 

Recycled water project is bringing recycled 
water to the School District and City’s 
Engler Park in fall 2016. 
Drilled/tested well, and seeking State 
RWQCB permitting for groundwater 
banking project at Well 6, attempting to 
store 2016/17 excess winter Russian River 
water in the Sonoma aquifer for summer 
extraction and use. 

6. Update and review opportunities for 
programs/grants for business and residential 
Infrastructure changes (recycled water and grey 
water for landscaping) 

Adoption of new 2016 CA Plumbing Code 
will include expanded provisions to allow 
nonpotable graywater, nonpotable 
reclaimed water, nonpotable water reuse 
and nonpotable rainwater catchment 
systems.  

7. Continue to repair and upgrade City infrastructure 
to avoid leaks and waste 

West Napa Water Improvement Project to 
rebid in October or November 2016. 
Implementing Water Loss Audit 
requirements of SB555. 

8. Research feasibility of extending purple pipe 
carrying recycled water from High School to Plaza 

Feasibility study in 16-17 Budget to 
determine costs.  Preparing consultant 
scope of work. 

9. Review greywater permits, regulation and 
procedures to standardize with County 

 

COLOR LEGEND: 

COMPLETED 

IN PROCESS 

NOT INITIATED 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL GOALS POLICY STATEMENT:   
 “OUR COUNCIL GOALS ARE LISTED ALPHABETICALLY AND NOT IN PRIORITY ORDER AS WE BELIEVE 

THEY ARE ALL  
EQUAL IN VALUE TO THE COMMUNITY” 

 

166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK 

180



Department 

Administration 

Staff Contact 

 Rebekah Barr, MMC 

 City Clerk/Executive Assistant to the City Manager 

Agenda Item Title 

Councilmembers’ Reports on Committee Activities. 

Summary 

Council members will report on activities, if any, of the various committees to which they are assigned. 

MAYOR  GALLIAN MPT AGRIMONTI CLM. COOK CLM. EDWARDS CLM.  HUNDLEY 

City Audit Committee LOCC North Bay 
Division Liaison 

ABAG Alternate ABAG Delegate Cittaslow Sonoma 
Valley Advisory 
Council, Alt. 

Marin/Sonoma 
Mosquito & Vector 
Control District 

North Bay Watershed 
Association 

City Audit Committee Cittaslow Sonoma 
Valley Advisory 
Council 

LOCC North Bay 
Division Liaison, 
Alternate 

Sonoma County 
Mayors &  Clm. Assoc. 
BOD 

Sonoma County 
Mayors &  Clm. Assoc. 
BOD, Alt. 

City Facilities 
Committee 

City Facilities 
Committee 

Sonoma Clean Power 
Alt. 

Sonoma County 
Trans. Authority & 
Regional Climate 
Protection Authority 

Sonoma County 
Trans. & Regional 
Climate Protection 
Authority, Alternate 

Oversight Board to the 
Dissolved CDA 

Oversight Board to the 
Dissolved CDA, Alt. 

Sonoma County M & C 
Assoc. Legislative 
Committee 

Sonoma Disaster 
Council 

Sonoma County 
Waste Management 
Agency 

Sonoma Clean Power Sonoma County 
Health Action & SV 
Health Roundtable 

S. V. Citizens Advisory 
Commission 

Sonoma Housing 
Corporation 

Sonoma Disaster 
Council, Alternate 

S.V. Economic Vitality 
Partnership, Alt. 

Sonoma County M & C 
Assoc. Legislative 
Committee, Alt. 

S.V. Economic Vitality 
Partnership 

S.V.C. Sanitation 
District BOD 

Sonoma Housing 
Corporation 

S. V. Library Advisory 
Committee 

Sonoma Valley 
Citizens Advisory 
Comm. Alt. 

S. V. Library Advisory 
Committee, Alternate 

S.V. Fire & Rescue 
Authority Oversight 
Committee 

S.V.C. Sanitation 
District BOD, Alt. 

VOM Water District Ad 
Hoc Committee 

S.V. Fire & Rescue 
Authority Oversight 
Committee 

Water Advisory 
Committee 

VOM Water District Ad 
Hoc Committee, 
Alternate 

Water Advisory 
Committee, Alternate 

Recommended Council Action – Receive Reports 

Attachments:  None 

Agenda Item:   9 

Meeting Date:  10/17/2016 
City of Sonoma 
City Council 
Agenda Item Summary 

181


	Item 3B Domestic Violence Awareness Proclamation 
	Item 3C SGMA / GSA Governance Formation Presentation
	Item 3D Pavement Management System Update
	Item 4B Resolution Denying an Appeal 19366 and 19370 Sonoma Highway
	Item 6A Safe Parking Program Ordinance
	Item 6B Vacation Rentals Interim Moratorium Ordinance
	Item 7A Extension of Refuse Contract
	Item 7B Introduction of Ordinance Adopting and Amending New Construction Codes 
	Item 7C Introduction of Ordinance Amending Chapter 14.24 of the SMC
	Item 7D Update on Council Goals and Climate Action 2020
	Item 9 Councilmembers Reports



